
 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

 
 
 
BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS   PAGE 1 OF 9  

   

 
Barnstable, ss. 
 
At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners on the eighth 
day of April, A.D. 2020, held through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts Governor 
Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on March 12, 
2020 
 
 
Board Regional Commissioners: 
 
Ronald R. Beaty   Present remotely 
 
Ronald Bergstrom  Present remotely 
 
Mary Pat Flynn   Present remotely  
 
 
Staff Present: 
 
 
Staff Present Remotely:  
 
Jack Yunits   County Administrator 
 
Justyna Marczak  Human Resources Director, Administration 
 
Sonja Sheasley  Communications Manager, Administration 
 
Owen Fletcher   Executive Assistant, Administration 
 
Elizabeth Braccia  Director of Finance/Treasurer 
 
Jennifer Frates   Chief Procurement Officer, Finance 
 
Sean O’Brien   Director, Health and Environment 
 
Beth Albert   Director, Human Services 
 
Vaira Harik   Deputy Director & Senior Project Manager, Human Services 
 
Irene Hamman   HOME Program Manager, Human Services 
 
John Meade   Register of Deeds, Registry of Deeds 
 
David Murphy   Assistant Register of Deeds, Registry of Deeds 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 2 OF 9 
 

 
Gail Coyne   Fiscal Officer, Cape Cod Commission 
 
Lev Malakhoff   Transportation Planner, Cape Cod Commission 
 
Ian Roberts   Technical Support Specialist, Information Technology 
 
 
 
1. Call to Order  

 
Chairman Bergstrom called the meeting to order at 11:30 A.M. The Chairman noted the 
Board held the meeting through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts Governor 
Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on March 
12, 2020.  
 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
 

3. Moment of Silence  
 
 
4. Public Comment    

 
The Board permitted members of the public to join the meeting online, asked that all public 
comments or questions be directed Mr. Yunits by phone or email, and stated the Board would 
address any submissions at its next meeting. No members of the public offered comment. 

 
 
5. Approval of Minutes 
 

a. Regular Meeting of April 8, 2020 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve the minutes of the Board of Regional 
Commissioners' Regular Meeting of April 8, 2020 as presented, 2nd by 
Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 

 
 
6. General Business  
 

a. Update on Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19) and Barnstable County 
 

Mr. Burt updated the Board on the County’s efforts at the Testing Center at Cape 
Cod Community College. He noted the testing was running smoothly. Mr. O’Brien 
reported on the number of confirmed COVID-19 cases and fatalities. He also 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 3 OF 9 
 

answered questions from the Board. He noted the County’s success recruiting 
volunteers and getting personal protective equipment (PPE). Mr. O’Brien also 
discussed planning for a possible field hospital located at Joint Base Cape Cod with 
staff from Cape Cod Healthcare. 
 

b. Presentation by Liz Argo, Manager of Programs & Administration for the 
Cape and Vineyard Electric Cooperative (CVEC) on Round 5 
Photovoltaic/Storage Initiative Barnstable County 
 
Ms. Argo gave a presentation to the Board describing various current and projected 
solar projects in Barnstable County. Ms. Argo detailed the benefits to the County 
of using different types of agreements for each item. Ms. Braccia clarified the 
County is not a taxing authority and discussed the effect this would have on the 
lease agreements. The Board also discussed projected to savings to the County for 
electric bills based upon the execution of projected solar agreements. Mr. Yunits 
explained the process for the County’s Assembly of Delegates approving the lease 
agreements under the County Home Rule Charter. Ms. Argo noted the need to 
approve the agreements quickly to make sure those projects were included in the 
current round of funding. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Flynn to authorize the Chair to execute agreements 
regarding the Cape and Vineyard Electric Cooperative (CVEC) Round 5 
Photovoltaic/Storage Initiatives in Barnstable County after approval by the County 
Board of Regional Commissioners, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Beaty, 
approved 3-0-0 
 

 
c. Request by Julie Wake, Executive Director of the Arts Foundation of Cape 

Cod, to support its Cape Cod Arts Relief Fund 
 
Ms. Wake spoke to the Board regarding possible County support and the effect of 
COVID-19 on artists, Mr. Yunits informed the Board the County could not give 
funds to non-profits. However, he explained this would not prevent the Arts 
Foundation from applying for a grant from the County’s Economic Development 
Committee. Mr. Yunits also committed to have County Counsel review any 
requests immediately after this meeting. 
 

d. Discussion on the effect of COVID-19 (Novel Coronavirus) on the County’s 
financial position 
 
Mr. Meade answered questions from the Board and noted the Registry received 
more revenue through March of 2020 than through March of 2019. However, he 
informed the Board the Registry would have to receive $2 million more in revenue 
to hit its target for Fiscal Year 2020. Ms. Braccia described Finance Department 
efforts, including a hiring and non-essential spending freeze. The Board discussed 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 4 OF 9 
 

the current state of County reserves and Ms. Braccia explained the County would 
not have any issues through the current fiscal year. 
 

e. Barnstable County COVID-19 Emergency Building and Facility Access Policy 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve and adopt the Barnstable County 
COVID-19 Emergency Building and Facility Access Policy, as presented, 2nd by 
Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 
Mr. Yunits explained the need for this item. He explained that the County’s 
Facilities Department had trouble handling the additional cleaning the emergency 
required. He also explained the need to close buildings to make that no infected 
member of the staff or public could enter the building without permission. The 
Board discussed recent issues creating the need for the policy. 
 

 
7. New Business – Other business not reasonably anticipated by the Chair 
 
 
8. Commissioners’ Actions 
 

a. Authorizing the approval of a request by the Cape Cod Chapter of the New 
England Mountain Bike Association (NEMBA) and the Friends of Cape Cod 
Pathways to create a trail on a parcel of land owned by Barnstable County 
near the intersection of Route 132 and Phinney’s Lane 

 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the approval of a request by the Cape 
Cod Chapter of the New England Mountain Bike Association (NEMBA) and the 
Friends of Cape Cod Pathways to create a trail on a parcel of land owned by 
Barnstable County near the intersection of Route 132 and Phinney’s Lane, as 
presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn 
 
 
Mr. Malakhoff and Mr. Yunits described the path for the Board. Mr. Malakhoff 
stressed he was making this request as a member of an outside organization and not 
as a County staff member. Mr. Yunits explained to the Board that any permission 
it gave would not restrict the County from using the property for another purpose 
later. Commissioner Beaty noted the Assembly of Delegates would also have to 
approve the project because it deals with County real estate. He also noted there 
was a deed restriction on the property. He asked that County Counsel review the 
request before the Board approved it. Commissioner Beaty retracted his motion and 
Commissioner Flynn retracted her second. The Board decided it would take up the 
item at a future meeting after further review by County Counsel and County staff. 
 

b. Authorizing the execution of an application and certifications for the annual 
allocation from the United States Department of Housing and Urban 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 5 OF 9 
 

Development (HUD) to the Barnstable County HOME Program, in the 
amount of $462,277.00, to create and preserve affordable housing for Program 
Year 2020, from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of an application and 
certifications for the annual allocation from the United States Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to the Barnstable County HOME 
Program, in the amount of $462,277.00, to create and preserve affordable housing 
for Program Year 2020, from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, as presented, 
2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 
Ms. Hamman gave a brief summary to the Board regarding the item. 

 
Authorizing the execution of an Inter-Governmental Net Energy Power Sales 
Agreement with the Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. (CVEC) for Roof 
Mounted Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at Barnstable County Deeds 

 
Authorizing the execution of a Lease Agreement for Rooftop Mounted Solar 
Photovoltaic Energy Facility with Alliance CVEC V LLC located at Barnstable 
County Deeds 

 
Authorizing the execution of an Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with 
CVEC for management of Solar Photovoltaic Dual Use Energy Facility located at 
Barnstable County Farm 

 
Authorizing the execution of a Lease Agreement for Ground Mounted Dual Use 
Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility with Main Street Solar Project 2020, LLC at 
Barnstable County Farm 

 
Authorizing the execution of an Inter-Governmental Net Energy Power Sales 
Agreement with CVEC For Solar Canopy Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at 
Barnstable County Main Parking Lot 

 
Authorizing the execution of a Lease Agreement for Canopy Solar Photovoltaic 
Energy Facility with Greenskies Clean Energy LLC at Barnstable County Main 
Parking Lot 

 
Authorizing the execution of an Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with 
CVEC for management of Rooftop Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at 
Rock Harbor Road Cy Solar Project 2020, LLC 

 
Authorizing the execution of an Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with 
CVEC for management of Solar Canopy Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at 
Rock Harbor Road Cy Solar Project 2020, LLC 

 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 6 OF 9 
 

Authorizing the execution of a Lease Agreement for Roof Mounted Solar 
Photovoltaic Energy Facility with Rock Harbor Road RF Solar Project 2020, LLC 
located in the Town of Orleans 

 
Authorizing the execution of a Lease Agreement for Solar Canopy Photovoltaic 
Energy Facility with Rock Harbor Road Cy Solar Project 2020, LLC located in 
the Town of Orleans 

 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve Item 8c through 8l as listed on the 
agenda for the Board of Regional Commissioners’ Meeting on April 8, 2020, as 
presented, and introduce any required ordinances at the next meeting of the County 
Assembly of Delegates, pursuant to Section 2 – 8(e) of the Barnstable County Home 
Rule Charter, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 

 
c. Authorizing the execution of the discharge of a mortgage by Tyler Y. Pierce to 

Barnstable County, acting by and through the Cape Cod Commission, dated 
January 5, 2010 and recorded with the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds 
in Book 24286, Page 35 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of the discharge of a 
mortgage by Tyler Y. Pierce to Barnstable County, acting by and through the Cape 
Cod Commission, dated January 5, 2010 and recorded with the Barnstable County 
Registry of Deeds in Book 24286, Page 35, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner 
Flynn, approved 3-0-0 

 
9. Commissioners’ Reports 
 

The Commissioners offered no reports at this meeting 
 
 
10. County Administrator and Staff Reports 

 
Mr. Yunits highlighted a program for customers to pre-order and pay for fresh produce in 
advance of the coming season to support Cape Cod farmers. 
 

 
11. Adjournment 
 

Barnstable, ss. at 11:39 A.M. on this eighth day of April A.D. 2020, motion by Commissioner 
Beaty to adjourn, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0  

  



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 7 OF 9 
 

 
List of Documents: 

 
 Draft minutes of the Board of Regional Commissioners' Regular Meeting of April 8, 2020 
 Presentation by Liz Argo, Executive Director of the Cape and Vineyard Electric 

Cooperative (Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. (CVEC)), on Round 5 
Photovoltaic/Storage Initiative Barnstable County, dated March 17, 2020 

 Barnstable County COVID-19 Emergency Building and Facility Access Policy 
 Email from Julie Wake, Executive Director of the Arts Foundation of Cape Cod, to Ronald 

Bergstrom, Chair of the County Board of Regional Commissioners, on March 24, 2020 at 
5:55 PM with the subject "Cape Cod Artists Relief Fund - will the County join us" 

 Proposal for a Trail on County Land near Route 132/Phinneys Lane dated April 2, 2020 to 
the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners from Lev Malakhoff, Friends of 
Cape Cod Pathways Trail Ambassador, New England Mountain Biking Association 
(NEMBA) 

 Memorandum from Renie Hamman, HOME Program Manager, to Jack Yunits, County 
Administrator / County Commissioners regarding "Barnstable County HOME Program, 
HUD 2020 Allocation / Certifications to be Signed" dated April 2, 2020 

 Application and certifications for the annual allocation from the United States Department 
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to the Barnstable County HOME Program, in 
the amount of $462,277.00, to create and preserve affordable housing for Program Year 
2020, from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 

 Inter-Governmental Net Energy Power Sales Agreement with Cape & Vineyard Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. (Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. (CVEC)) for Roof Mounted 
Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at Barnstable County Deeds 

 Proposed Ordinance 20- , To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease 
agreement between Barnstable County and Alliance CVEC V LLC for Rooftop Mounted 
Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility at the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds Building, 
located at 3195 Main St., Barnstable, MA 02630 

 Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
(CVEC) for management of Solar Photovoltaic Dual Use Energy Facility located at 
Barnstable County Farm 

 Proposed Ordinance 20- , To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease 
agreement between Barnstable County and Main Street Solar Project 2020, LLC for 
Ground Mounted Dual Use Solar located at Barnstable County Farm, 3675 Main Street, 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

 Inter-Governmental Net Energy Power Sales Agreement with Cape & Vineyard Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. (CVEC) For Solar Canopy  Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at 
Barnstable County Main Parking 

 Proposed Ordinance 20- , To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease 
agreement between Barnstable County and Greenskies Clean Energy LLC for Canopy 
Photovoltaic Energy Facility on an area of ground space which is a part of the Property 
located at 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 8 OF 9 
 

 Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
(CVEC) for management of Rooftop Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at Rock 
Harbor Road Cy Solar Project 2020, LLC 

 Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
(CVEC) for management of Solar Canopy Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at Rock 
Harbor Road Cy Solar Project 2020, LLC 

 Proposed Ordinance 20- , To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease 
agreement between Barnstable County and Rock Harbor Road RF Solar Project 2020, LLC 
for Roof Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility at Buildings located at 237 Rock Harbor Road, 
Orleans, MA 02653 

 Proposed Ordinance 20- , To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease 
agreement between Barnstable County and Rock Harbor Road CY Solar Project 2020, LLC 
for Solar Canopy Photovoltaic Energy Facility on an area of ground space which is a part 
of the Property located at 237 Rock Harbor Road, Orleans, MA 

 Discharge of a mortgage by Tyler Y. Pierce to Barnstable County, acting by and through 
the Cape Cod Commission, dated January 5, 2010 and recorded with the Barnstable County 
Registry of Deeds in Book 24286, Page 35 
   



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 9 OF 9 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

  Janice O’Connell, Regional Clerk 

The foregoing records have been read and approved, April    , 2020 

A true copy, attest: 

Approved, Board of Regional Commissioners: 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair Ronald Bergstrom, Chair Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner 

Date 



 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

 
 
 
BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS   PAGE 1 OF 10  

   

 
Barnstable, ss. 
 
At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners on the eighth 
day of April, A.D. 2020, held through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts Governor 
Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on March 12, 
2020 
 
 
Board Regional Commissioners: 
 
Ronald R. Beaty   Present remotely 
 
Ronald Bergstrom  Present remotely 
 
Mary Pat Flynn   Present remotely  
 
 
Staff Present: 
 
 
Staff Present Remotely:  
 
Jack Yunits   County Administrator 
 
Justyna Marczak  Human Resources Director, Administration 
 
Sonja Sheasley  Communications Manager, Administration 
 
Owen Fletcher   Executive Assistant, Administration 
 
Elizabeth Braccia  Director of Finance/Treasurer 
 
Jennifer Frates   Chief Procurement Officer, Finance 
 
Sean O’Brien   Director, Health and Environment 
 
Beth Albert   Director, Human Services 
 
Vaira Harik   Deputy Director & Senior Project Manager, Human Services 
 
Irene Hamman   HOME Program Manager, Human Services 
 
John Meade   Register of Deeds, Registry of Deeds 
 
David Murphy   Assistant Register of Deeds, Registry of Deeds 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 2 OF 10 
 

 
Gail Coyne   Fiscal Officer, Cape Cod Commission 
 
Lev Malakhoff   Transportation Planner, Cape Cod Commission 
 
Ian Roberts   Technical Support Specialist, Information Technology 
 
 
 
1. Call to Order  

 
Chairman Bergstrom called the meeting to order at 11:30 A.M. The Chairman noted the 
Board held the meeting through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts Governor 
Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on March 
12, 2020.  
 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
 

3. Moment of Silence  
 
Chairman Bergstrom asked for a moment of silence to support members of the United States 
Armed Forces serving at home or overseas. 

 
 
4. Public Comment    

 
The Board permitted members of the public to join the meeting online, asked that all public 
comments or questions be directed Mr. Yunits by phone or email, and stated the Board would 
address any submissions at its next meeting. No members of the public offered comment. 

 
 
5. Approval of Minutes 
 

a. Regular Meeting of April 8, 2020 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve the minutes of the Board of Regional 
Commissioners' Regular Meeting of April 8, 2020 as presented, 2nd by 
Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 3 OF 10 
 

6. General Business  
 

a. Update on Coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19) and Barnstable County 
 

Mr. Burt updated the Board on the County’s efforts at the Testing Center at Cape 
Cod Community College. He noted the testing was running smoothly. Mr. O’Brien 
reported on the number of confirmed COVID-19 cases and fatalities. He also 
answered questions from the Board. He noted the County’s success recruiting 
volunteers and getting personal protective equipment (PPE). Mr. O’Brien also 
discussed planning for a possible field hospital located at Joint Base Cape Cod with 
staff from Cape Cod Healthcare. 
 

b. Presentation by Liz Argo, Manager of Programs & Administration for the 
Cape and Vineyard Electric Cooperative (CVEC) on Round 5 
Photovoltaic/Storage Initiative Barnstable County 
 
Ms. Argo gave a presentation to the Board describing various current and projected 
solar projects in Barnstable County. Ms. Argo detailed the benefits to the County 
of using different types of agreements for each item. Ms. Braccia clarified the 
County is not a taxing authority and discussed the effect this would have on the 
lease agreements. The Board also discussed projected to savings to the County for 
electric bills based upon the execution of projected solar agreements. Mr. Yunits 
explained the process for the County’s Assembly of Delegates approving the lease 
agreements under the County Home Rule Charter. Ms. Argo noted the need to 
approve the agreements quickly to make sure those projects were included in the 
current round of funding. 
 
Motion by Commissioner Flynn to authorize the Chair to execute agreements 
regarding the Cape and Vineyard Electric Cooperative (CVEC) Round 5 
Photovoltaic/Storage Initiatives in Barnstable County after approval by the County 
Board of Regional Commissioners, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Beaty, 
approved 3-0-0 
 

 
c. Request by Julie Wake, Executive Director of the Arts Foundation of Cape 

Cod, to support its Cape Cod Arts Relief Fund 
 
Ms. Wake spoke to the Board regarding possible County support and the effect of 
COVID-19 on artists, Mr. Yunits informed the Board the County could not give 
funds to non-profits. However, he explained this would not prevent the Arts 
Foundation from applying for a grant from the County’s Economic Development 
Committee. Mr. Yunits also committed to have County Counsel review any 
requests immediately after this meeting. 
 

d. Discussion on the effect of COVID-19 (Novel Coronavirus) on the County’s 
financial position 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 4 OF 10 
 

 
Mr. Meade answered questions from the Board and noted the Registry received 
more revenue through March of 2020 than through March of 2019. However, he 
informed the Board the Registry would have to receive $2 million more in revenue 
to hit its target for Fiscal Year 2020. Ms. Braccia described Finance Department 
efforts, including a hiring and non-essential spending freeze. The Board discussed 
the current state of County reserves and Ms. Braccia explained the County would 
not have any issues through the current fiscal year. 
 

e. Barnstable County COVID-19 Emergency Building and Facility Access Policy 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve and adopt the Barnstable County 
COVID-19 Emergency Building and Facility Access Policy, as presented, 2nd by 
Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 
Mr. Yunits explained the need for this item. He explained that the County’s 
Facilities Department had trouble handling the additional cleaning the emergency 
required. He also explained the need to close buildings to make that no infected 
member of the staff or public could enter the building without permission. The 
Board discussed recent issues creating the need for the policy. 
 

 
7. New Business – Other business not reasonably anticipated by the Chair 

 
There was no new business at this meeting. 

 
 
8. Commissioners’ Actions 
 

a. Authorizing the approval of a request by the Cape Cod Chapter of the New 
England Mountain Bike Association (NEMBA) and the Friends of Cape Cod 
Pathways to create a trail on a parcel of land owned by Barnstable County 
near the intersection of Route 132 and Phinney’s Lane 

 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the approval of a request by the Cape 
Cod Chapter of the New England Mountain Bike Association (NEMBA) and the 
Friends of Cape Cod Pathways to create a trail on a parcel of land owned by 
Barnstable County near the intersection of Route 132 and Phinney’s Lane, as 
presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn 

 
Mr. Malakhoff and Mr. Yunits described the path for the Board. Mr. Malakhoff 
stressed he was making this request as a member of an outside organization and not 
as a County staff member. Mr. Yunits explained to the Board that any permission 
it gave would not restrict the County from using the property for another purpose 
later. Commissioner Beaty noted the Assembly of Delegates would also have to 
approve the project because it deals with County real estate. He also noted there 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 5 OF 10 
 

was a deed restriction on the property. He asked that County Counsel review the 
request before the Board approved it. Commissioner Beaty retracted his motion and 
Commissioner Flynn retracted her second. The Board decided it would take up the 
item at a future meeting after further review by County Counsel and County staff. 
 

b. Authorizing the execution of an application and certifications for the annual 
allocation from the United States Department of Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) to the Barnstable County HOME Program, in the 
amount of $462,277.00, to create and preserve affordable housing for Program 
Year 2020, from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of an application and 
certifications for the annual allocation from the United States Department of 
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to the Barnstable County HOME 
Program, in the amount of $462,277.00, to create and preserve affordable housing 
for Program Year 2020, from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021, as presented, 
2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 
 

i. Ms. Hamman gave a brief summary to the Board regarding the item. 
 

c. Authorizing the execution of an Inter-Governmental Net Energy Power Sales 
Agreement with the Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. (CVEC) for 
Roof Mounted Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at Barnstable 
County Deeds 

 
d. Authorizing the execution of a Lease Agreement for Rooftop Mounted Solar 

Photovoltaic Energy Facility with Alliance CVEC V LLC located at 
Barnstable County Deeds 

 
e. Authorizing the execution of an Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with 

CVEC for management of Solar Photovoltaic Dual Use Energy Facility located 
at Barnstable County Farm 

 
f. Authorizing the execution of a Lease Agreement for Ground Mounted Dual 

Use Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility with Main Street Solar Project 2020, 
LLC at Barnstable County Farm 

 
g. Authorizing the execution of an Inter-Governmental Net Energy Power Sales 

Agreement with CVEC For Solar Canopy Photovoltaic Energy Facility 
located at Barnstable County Main Parking Lot 

 
h. Authorizing the execution of a Lease Agreement for Canopy Solar 

Photovoltaic Energy Facility with Greenskies Clean Energy LLC at 
Barnstable County Main Parking Lot 

 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 6 OF 10 
 

i. Authorizing the execution of an Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with 
CVEC for management of Rooftop Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility located 
at Rock Harbor Road Cy Solar Project 2020, LLC 

 
j. Authorizing the execution of an Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with 

CVEC for management of Solar Canopy Photovoltaic Energy Facility located 
at Rock Harbor Road Cy Solar Project 2020, LLC 

 
k. Authorizing the execution of a Lease Agreement for Roof Mounted Solar 

Photovoltaic Energy Facility with Rock Harbor Road RF Solar Project 2020, 
LLC located in the Town of Orleans 

 
l. Authorizing the execution of a Lease Agreement for Solar Canopy 

Photovoltaic Energy Facility with Rock Harbor Road Cy Solar Project 2020, 
LLC located in the Town of Orleans 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to approve Item 8c through 8l as listed on the 
agenda for the Board of Regional Commissioners’ Meeting on April 8, 2020, as 
presented, and introduce any required ordinances at the next meeting of the County 
Assembly of Delegates, pursuant to Section 2 – 8(e) of the Barnstable County Home 
Rule Charter, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0 

 
m. Authorizing the execution of the discharge of a mortgage by Tyler Y. Pierce to 

Barnstable County, acting by and through the Cape Cod Commission, dated 
January 5, 2010 and recorded with the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds 
in Book 24286, Page 35 
 
Motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of the discharge of a 
mortgage by Tyler Y. Pierce to Barnstable County, acting by and through the Cape 
Cod Commission, dated January 5, 2010 and recorded with the Barnstable County 
Registry of Deeds in Book 24286, Page 35, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner 
Flynn, approved 3-0-0 

 
9. Commissioners’ Reports 
 

The Commissioners offered no reports at this meeting 
 
 
10. County Administrator and Staff Reports 

 
Mr. Yunits highlighted a program for customers to pre-order and pay for fresh produce in 
advance of the coming season to support Cape Cod farmers. 
 
 
 

 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 7 OF 10 
 

11. Adjournment 
 

Barnstable, ss. at 11:39 A.M. on this eighth day of April A.D. 2020, motion by Commissioner 
Beaty to adjourn, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0  

  



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 8 OF 10 
 

List of Documents: 
 

 Draft minutes of the Board of Regional Commissioners' Regular Meeting of April 8, 2020 
 Presentation by Liz Argo, Executive Director of the Cape and Vineyard Electric 

Cooperative (Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. (CVEC)), on Round 5 
Photovoltaic/Storage Initiative Barnstable County, dated March 17, 2020 

 Barnstable County COVID-19 Emergency Building and Facility Access Policy 
 Email from Julie Wake, Executive Director of the Arts Foundation of Cape Cod, to Ronald 

Bergstrom, Chair of the County Board of Regional Commissioners, on March 24, 2020 at 
5:55 PM with the subject "Cape Cod Artists Relief Fund - will the County join us" 

 Proposal for a Trail on County Land near Route 132/Phinneys Lane dated April 2, 2020 to 
the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners from Lev Malakhoff, Friends of 
Cape Cod Pathways Trail Ambassador, New England Mountain Biking Association 
(NEMBA) 

 Memorandum from Renie Hamman, HOME Program Manager, to Jack Yunits, County 
Administrator / County Commissioners regarding "Barnstable County HOME Program, 
HUD 2020 Allocation / Certifications to be Signed" dated April 2, 2020 

 Application and certifications for the annual allocation from the United States Department 
of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) to the Barnstable County HOME Program, in 
the amount of $462,277.00, to create and preserve affordable housing for Program Year 
2020, from July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 

 Inter-Governmental Net Energy Power Sales Agreement with Cape & Vineyard Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. (Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. (CVEC)) for Roof Mounted 
Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at Barnstable County Deeds 

 Proposed Ordinance 20- , To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease 
agreement between Barnstable County and Alliance CVEC V LLC for Rooftop Mounted 
Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility at the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds Building, 
located at 3195 Main St., Barnstable, MA 02630 

 Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
(CVEC) for management of Solar Photovoltaic Dual Use Energy Facility located at 
Barnstable County Farm 

 Proposed Ordinance 20- , To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease 
agreement between Barnstable County and Main Street Solar Project 2020, LLC for 
Ground Mounted Dual Use Solar located at Barnstable County Farm, 3675 Main Street, 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

 Inter-Governmental Net Energy Power Sales Agreement with Cape & Vineyard Electric 
Cooperative, Inc. (CVEC) For Solar Canopy  Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at 
Barnstable County Main Parking 

 Proposed Ordinance 20- , To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease 
agreement between Barnstable County and Greenskies Clean Energy LLC for Canopy 
Photovoltaic Energy Facility on an area of ground space which is a part of the Property 
located at 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630 

 Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
(CVEC) for management of Rooftop Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at Rock 
Harbor Road Cy Solar Project 2020, LLC 



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 9 OF 10 
 

 Inter-Governmental Services Agreement with Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
(CVEC) for management of Solar Canopy Photovoltaic Energy Facility located at Rock 
Harbor Road Cy Solar Project 2020, LLC 

 Proposed Ordinance 20- , To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease 
agreement between Barnstable County and Rock Harbor Road RF Solar Project 2020, LLC 
for Roof Solar Photovoltaic Energy Facility at Buildings located at 237 Rock Harbor Road, 
Orleans, MA 02653 

 Proposed Ordinance 20- , To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease 
agreement between Barnstable County and Rock Harbor Road CY Solar Project 2020, LLC 
for Solar Canopy Photovoltaic Energy Facility on an area of ground space which is a part 
of the Property located at 237 Rock Harbor Road, Orleans, MA 

 Discharge of a mortgage by Tyler Y. Pierce to Barnstable County, acting by and through 
the Cape Cod Commission, dated January 5, 2010 and recorded with the Barnstable County 
Registry of Deeds in Book 24286, Page 35 
   



 
 
 
                              BOARD OF REGIONAL COMMISSIONERS                   REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
                                                 APRIL 8, 2020      
                                  

                                       
                                  

 

 

  PAGE 10 OF 10 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Approved, Board of Regional Commissioners: 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair Ronald Bergstrom, Chair Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner 

Date 

The foregoing records have been read and approved, April    , 2020 

A true copy, attest: 

  Janice O’Connell, Regional Clerk 



 

Template for the Out of State Travel Report for Barnstable County Staff – Version 1 – May 2016 

Out of State Travel Report 

Fill out this report and submit it to the County Administrator (copy the County Administrative 

Assistant) within 30 days of completing your travel. Be prepared to speak about the subject at 

the following Regional Board of Commissioners’ meeting.  

Name:  Shannon Hulst 

Title:  Deputy Director / Floodplain Specialist & CRS Coordinator 

Department:  Cape Cod Cooperative Extension 

Dates of Trip:  February 3 – February 6, 2020 

Name of Meeting:  Social Coast Conference 

Location:  Charleston, SC 

Report Submitted for 
Commissioners’ Meeting On:   

 

Purpose: [describe the purpose and goals of the trip and about the organization hosting the event] 

 Social Coast is a biannual conference hosted by the National Oceanic and Atmospheric 
Administration to put a special focus on social science and the human uses of our coastal systems. 
It provides an opportunity for researchers, coastal managers, and others to share research on 
best practices and lessons learned in interacting with coastal residents, businesses, stakeholders, 
etc. to accomplish the best management of our coasts. 
 

Highlights: [describe achievements, meetings attended, or successes or new information, etc.] 

 Cities in VA are running a pilot program to use vacant floodprone lots for managing flooding and 
stormwater, improving recreational value, working into innovative zoning bylaw 

 Demonstration of need to have flood insurance outside of designated floodplain: 84% of claims 
from Hampton Roads, VA from Hurricane Matthew were outside of floodplain (heavy rain) 

 NC State is working on research on historic resources and flooding which may have transferable 
results that could be very helpful for Cape communities grappling with this issue 

 Rhode Island Sea Grant Legal Program is creating an online training for municipalities on coastal 
resilience legal liability – we’ve been working with them on this topic and it’s in high demand 
 

Outcomes: [describe the goals that were achieved, how they were achieved & the short or long‐term 
impact for Barnstable County]. 

 The highlights listed above can be applied to our work in coastal resilience here on the Cape. We 
often look to other parts of the Country that have faced the same challenges to get lessons 
learned and best practices. Zoning bylaws, historic resources research, and legal liability are all 
issues that we are actively working on with regard to flooding and coastal resilience and we will 
be able to use this information and these contacts to provide guidance for our work and to inform 
our efforts. Furthermore, creating and maintaining relationships with professionals in the field 
from other regions helps to make those transfers of knowledge and best practices easier and 
more viable. 





AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
 

Barnstable County 
3295 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

and 
 
Bailit Health Purchasing, LLC 
56 Pickering Street 
Needham, MA 02492 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made this 30th day of March 2020 by and between BAILIT HEALTH 
PURCHASING, LLC (hereinafter referred to as Contractor) and Barnstable County 
Administrator (County), but without any personal liability. 

 WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and County for the consideration hereinafter named agree 
as follows:  

WHEREAS: The process followed MA General Law Chapter 30B; 
 
 WHEREAS: The County issued a Request for Written Quotes (RFQ); and  
 
WHEREAS: The Contractor is a vendor with an approved Master Blanket Purchase Order on 
COMMBUYS and who provided the lowest quote.  
  
NOW THEREFORE, the County and the Contractor do mutually agree as follows: 

1.   Employment of Contractor.   The Vendor hereby agrees to perform the services 
hereinafter set forth in the Scope of Services.  Contractor hereby agrees to hold the 
County harmless from any claims regarding worker's compensation benefits, 
unemployment compensation benefits, retirement benefits, or any other benefit normally 
attributable to the status of "employee" and Contractor specifically agrees to pay for all 
damages incurred by the County or Town, including costs, benefits, and reasonable attorney 
fees in the event the Contractor files such claim. 
 
2.   Scope of Services.  The Contractor shall perform the scope of services as set forth in the 
Barnstable County’s Request for Written Quotes and the Contractor’s proposal dated March 
10, 2020 both incorporated by reference herein as Attachment A.   
 
3.  Time of Performance.  April 8, 2020 - June 30, 2022. 
 
4.  Payment and Invoicing. A maximum of $68,616.00 will be paid according to the schedule 
below: 

a. $20,000.00 payable upon contract execution; 



Bailit Contract 
OD2A Evaluation 

April 8, 2020- June 30, 2022 
2 

 

b. $20,000.00 payable following delivery of proposed evaluation and monitoring 
plan (Due by May 31, 2020); 

c. $ 8,804.00 payable upon receipt of final evaluation and monitoring plan (By June 
30, 2020); 

d. $4,953 payable upon submission of quarterly monitoring reports (Invoice due 
12/31/20 for quarterly reports June – Sept 2020 and Oct – Dec 2020)  

e.  $ 4,953 payable upon submission of quarterly monitoring reports (Invoice due 
6/30/21 for quarterly reports Jan – March 2021 and April – June 2021) 

f. $4,953 payable upon submission of quarterly monitoring reports (Invoice due 
12/31/21 for quarterly reports June – Sept 2021 and Oct – Dec 2021)  

g.  $ 4,953 payable upon submission of quarterly monitoring reports (Invoice due 
6/30/22 for quarterly reports Jan – March 2022 and April – June 2022) 
 

 
5.  Termination or Suspension of Contract for Cause.  If through any sufficient cause, the 
Customer or the County shall fail to fulfill or perform its duties and obligations under this 
Contract, or if either party shall violate or breach any of the provisions of this Contract, 
either party shall thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend this Contract, by giving 
written notice to the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the 
effective date thereof. Such notice shall be given at least fifteen (15) calendar days before 
such effective date. 

 
6. Termination for Convenience of County. The County shall have the right to discontinue 
the work of the Contractor and cancel this contract by written notice to the Contractor of 
such termination and specifying the effective date of such termination.  In the event of such 
termination or suspension of this Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to just and 
equitable compensation for satisfactory work completed, for services performed and for 
reimbursable expenses  necessarily incurred in the performance of this Contract up to 
and including the date of termination or suspension. 
 
7.  Changes.  The County may, from time to time, require changes in the Scope of Services to 
be performed hereunder.   Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount 
of the Contract, which are mutually agreed upon by the County and the Contractor, shall 
be incorporated in written amendments to this Contract. 
 
8.  Non-Discrimination in Employment and Affirmative Action.  The Customer shall take 
affirmative action to ensure that qualified applicants and employees are treated without 
regard to age, race, color, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, 
disability, or Vietnam Era Veteran status. The Customer agrees  to  comply  with  all  
applicable  Federal  and  State  statutes,  rules  and  regulations prohibiting discrimination 
in employment including but not limited to: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended; Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 1518§(1); the Americans with Disabilities 



Bailit Contract 
OD2A Evaluation 

April 8, 2020- June 30, 2022 
3 

 

Act of 1990; and all relevant administrative orders and executive orders including Executive 
Order 246. 
 
 
9.  Subcontracting.  None of the services to be provided to the County pursuant to this 
Contract shall be subcontracted or delegated in whole or in part to any other organization, 
association, individual, corporation, partnership or other such entity without the prior 
written approval of the Towns. No subcontract or delegation shall relieve or discharge the 
Customer from any obligation or liability under this Contract except as specifically set 
forth in the instrument of approval. If this Contract is funded in whole or in part with 
federal funds, Contractor further agrees to comply with the provisions of the Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-110, as amended, with respect to taking affirmative 
steps to utilize the services of small and minority firms, women's business enterprises and 
labor surplus area firms. All subcontracts shall be in writing and shall contain provisions 
which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this Contract. 
The County shall have the right to obtain a copy of the subcontract upon request. 
 
10.  Interest of Members of County and Others.  No officer, member or employee of the 
County, and no member of its governing body of the locality or localities in which the 
Project is situated or being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibility in the 
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of the Project, shall participate in 
any decision relating to this Contract which affects his personal interest or the interest of 
any corporation, partnership, or association in which he is directly or indirectly 
f i n a n c i a l l y  interested or has any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in 
this Contract or the proceeds thereof. 
 
11.   Interest of Contractor.   The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest 
and shall not acquire any interest directly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of its services hereunder. 
 
12.  Assignability. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior 
written consent of the Towns or County thereto; provided, however that claims for money 
due or to become due the Contractor from the Towns under this Contract may be assigned 
to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution without such approval. Notice of any 
such assignment or transfer shall be furnished promptly to the County. 
 
13.  Recordkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records.  The Contractor shall maintain books, 
records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the requirements of the Contract to 
the extent and in such detail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under the 
Contract. All such records shall be kept for a period of seven (7) years or for such longer 
period as is specified herein. All retention periods start on the first day after final payment 
under this Contract. If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the 



Bailit Contract 
OD2A Evaluation 

April 8, 2020- June 30, 2022 
4 

 

records is commenced prior to the expiration of the applicable retention period, all 
records shall be retained until completion of the action and resolution of all issues resulting 
therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, whichever is later.  If this 
contract is funded in whole or in part with state or federal funds, the state or federal 
grantor agency, the County or any of its duly authorized representatives or designees, 
shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to examine and 
copy, at reasonable expense, the books, records and other compilations of data of the 
Contractor which pertain to the provisions and requirements of this Contract. Such access 
shall include on-site audits, review and copying of records. 
 
14.  Findings Confidential.  Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or prepared or 
assembled by the Contractor under this Contract which the Towns requests to be kept as 
confidential shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the 
Contractor without the prior written approval of the County or Towns. 
 
15.  Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material.  No material produced in whole or in 
part under this Contract shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other 
country. The County and Towns shall have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, 
distribute, and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials 
prepared under this Contract. 
 
 
16.  Political Activity Prohibited.  None of the services to be provided by the Contractor 
shall be used for any partisan political activity or to further the election or defeat of any 
candidate for public office. 
 
17.  Anti-Boycott Warranty.   During the term of this Contract, neither the Contractor nor 
any "affiliated company" as hereafter defined, shall participate in or cooperate with an 
international boycott, as defined in Section 999 (b) (3) and (4) of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1954, as amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or engage in conduct declared to be 
unlawful by Sections 2 and 3 of Chapter 151E, Massachusetts General Laws. As used 
herein, an "affiliated company" shall be any business entity of which at least 51% of the 
ownership interested is directly or indirectly owned by the Contractor or by a person or 
persons or business entity or entities which directly or indirectly own at least 51% of the 
ownership interests of the Contractor. 
 
18.   Choice of Law.   This Contract shall be construed under and governed by the laws of 
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Contractor and the agents thereof, agree to 
bring any federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Contract, in which the County 
or Towns are a party, in a court of competent jurisdiction within the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts. This paragraph shall not be construed to limit any rights a party may have 
to intervene in any action, wherever pending, in which the other is a party.  All parties to this 
contract and covenant agree that any disputes be litigated in the District or Superior courts 



Bailit Contract 
OD2A Evaluation 

April 8, 2020- June 30, 2022 
5 

 

in Barnstable County. 
 
19.  Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be liable to the other nor be deemed to be in 
breach of this Contract for failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes 
factually beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may include 
but are not limited to acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, 
strikes, or unusually severe weather. Dates or times of performance shall be extended to 
the extent of delays excused by this section, provided that the party whose performance is 
affected notifies the other promptly of the existence and nature of such delay. 
 
20.   Compliance with Laws.   The Contractor shall promptly comply with all applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, ordinances, orders and requirements of the Commonwealth and any 
state or federal governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services described in 
this Contract subject to section 18 above.  Unless otherwise provided by law, the 
Contractor shall promptly pay all fines, penalties and damages that may arise out of or are 
imposed because of the Contractor's failure to comply with the provisions of this section 
and, shall indemnify the County or Towns against any liability incurred as a result of a 
violation of this section. If the Contractor receives federal funds pursuant to this 
Contact, Contractor understands and agrees to comply with all federal requirements 
including but not limited to audit requirements. Not-for-Profit entities that receive federal 
funds from the County or Towns must comply with the audit requirements outlined in the 
Office of Management and Budget OMB Circular A-133. 
 
21.   Headings, Interpretation and Severability.   The headings used herein are for 
reference and convenience only and shall not be a factor in the interpretation of the 
Contract. If any provision of this Contract is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, 
or void, then both parties shall be relieved of all obligations under that provision. The 
remainder of the Contract shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 
 
22.  Waiver of Liability.  The Contractor and the County hereby covenant and agree to 
waive any and all claims against Barnstable County and release Barnstable County from any 
liability arising out of the Scope of Services described in the attached “Exhibit A” brought by 
the Contractor.   
 
23.  Vendors shall submit invoices within 60 days of completing the work. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Bailit Contract 
OD2A Evaluation 

April 8, 2020- June 30, 2022 
6 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement this 
________day of _________ in the year two thousand and twenty.  
 
 
FOR THE COUNTY: 
 
County Commissioners: 
 
 
     
 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
   Date 
    
 
   FOR THE CONTRACTOR: 
     
                                                                                      
 
                                                                                       
   Date 
   
  
 
   
 
 ____  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



ATTACHMENT A  

BARNSTABLE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

REQUEST FOR QUOTES 

 

Introduction 

Barnstable County Department of Human Services (BCDHS) was recently awarded a grant from the 
Massachusetts Department of Public Health’s Bureau of Substance Addiction Services.   The grant 
is provided with funding from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) - Overdose 
Data to Action (OD2A) Initiative.    A consultant will be hired by BCDHS to provide program 
evaluation and monitoring planning for two new programs: 1.) WellStrong Peer Wellness 
Coaching (PWC) Startup Program and 2.) Expansion of the Recovery Support Navigator (RSN) 
Program to the Town of Dennis.  Wellstrong and Duffy are sub-grantees to BCDHS. 

Program 1: WellStrong Peer Wellness Coaching Program  

The programs' evaluation needs will form the basis upon which program monitoring and data 
collection are planned. Preparations for planning data collection, monitoring, and evaluation 
will take place in the winter and spring of 2020, in collaboration with our OD2A sub-grantees 
and with help from outside consultants. The proposed program is new to WellStrong. We do not 
wish to overlook opportunities for evaluating it and therefore will value guidance from our 
BSAS Contract Advisor and associated evaluators. 

We foresee the development of the Evaluation Plans and the selection of indicators as a 
collaborative process, informed by the evidence base, which includes the following 
participants: 

 BCDHS MOAPC (Mass. Opioid Abuse Prevention Collaborative grant) staff (Harik 
and Slade) 

 Consultants experienced in evaluation planning for substance use-related programs and 
services. 

 The sub-grantee (WellStrong; Amy Doherty-CEO) 

 Barnstable County RSAC Harm Reduction and Recovery Workgroup members 
(selected). 

Start-up Phase (January – June 2020, 6 Months) 



2 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

WellStrong Falmouth, (http://www.wellstrong.org/) will start a Peer Wellness Coaching (PWC) 
Program for their members in the spring of 2020. In the spring and summer of 2020 WellStrong 
will be serving as an internship placement for up to 8 graduates of Cape Cod Community 
College's Recovery Coaching Academy.  At WellStrong the interns will receive  80 hours 
towards their Recovery Coach certification requirements and will be developed as Peer Wellness 
Coaches using the SAMHSA/HRSA-approved Whole Health Action Management (WHAM) 
training program (see https://www.integration.samhsa.gov/health-wellness/wham).  
Thereafter, two of the interns will be offered employment by WellStrong as PWCs and they 
will be overseen by a Certified Recovery Coach who is also certified to supervise. 

During the Start-up Phase the BCDHS will be supporting the costs of stipends for 8 interns and 
the costs of their supervision by the Recovery Coach ($16,520 total). 

Implementation Phase (July 2020 – June 2022, 2 years) 

Well Strong’s annual budget for the PWC Program is $111,420.  BCDHS (via BSAS OD2A grant 
funding) will fund $31,000 of the program in each of Years 1 and 2 of the program. 

BCDHS funding will support 0.5 FTE of one PWC, oversight of the PWC by a certified supervisory 
Recovery Coach, program coordination and other startup and operating costs.  A total of 2.0 
FTE Peer Wellness Coaches (1.5 FTEs of which will be funded via other sources) will serve 20 
clients each per year (total of 40). 

Evaluation and Monitoring Scope of Work 

The consultant will provide the BCDHS with a 2-year Program Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. 

Indicators  

Consultant will be required to identify and justify indicators for measurement of success.  
Preliminarily, indicators and information of importance to the evaluation of the programs may 
include: 

1. Outcome indicators recommended by BSAS or its affiliated research/evaluation partners. 

2. Outcome indicators of success relevant to participation in peer-based recovery support 
services and in Recovery Community Centers, via review of the relevant peer-reviewed and 



3 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

grey literature. For example, a recent paper (2017) by Dr. John Kelly and his team at 
MGH/Harvard's Recovery Research Institute1discusses the relevant features of peer-based 
recovery support services and Recovery Community Centers that correlate with successful 
client outcomes. We will require assistance from the consultants to select indicators that 
will be most relevant to the proposed program. 

3. Outcome indicators suggested by a review of the relevant peer-reviewed and grey 
literature on contribution of personal health and wellness activates to SUD recovery. 
 

4. Assessment and monitoring of Recovery Capital of program participants along 4 sub-
channels, pre- and post-participation (as deemed relevant): 

a. Social capital: The sum of resources that each person has as a result of their 
relationships. This includes both support from and obligations to groups to which 
they belong. 

b. Physical capital: Tangible assets such as stable employment or housing, access to 
a healthy diet and fulfilling activities. 

c. Human capital: Skills, positive health, aspirations and hopes, and personal resources 
that will enable the individual to prosper, including educational attainment and 
skills, which are key aspects of human capital and will help with some of the problem 
solving that is required on a recovery journey. 

d. Cultural capital: The values, beliefs and attitudes that link to social integration.  

Data Collection  

BCHDS MOAPC staff have significant experience with data collection, analysis, and 
reporting and will be able to provide technical assistance to WellStrong to implement 
the evaluation plan which the consultants deliver. 

The consultant will develop data collection structures and processes that will ensure the 
selected program and outcome indicators are being measured and reported upon. 

 
1 Kelly, J.F. (2017) Report of Findings from a Systematic Review of the Scientific Literature on Recovery Support 
Services in the United States. Recovery Research Institute: Massachusetts General Hospital and Harvard Medical 
School. 



4 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

The consultant will work closely with designated WellStrong staff to oversee and support data 
collection activities.  The consultant will liaise with BCDHS as needed for support of data 
collection and reporting by WellStrong. 

Timeline 

SFY20 (6 Months, January — June 2020)  

Month 1 (January 2020): Discussions between Barnstable MOAPC staff, WellStrong, and our 
BSAS Contract Manager/Advisor provider will take place to develop a scope of work for 
development of the evaluation, monitoring, and data collection plans for the project. 

Month 2 (February 2020): Dissemination of evaluation scope of work to selected vendors on 
MA Professional Services Contract PRF61 (Management Consultants, Program Coordinators, 
and Planners Services Statewide Contract). Engagement of selected evaluation consultant. 

Month 3-4 (March & April 2020): Meetings with and between BCDHS, the evaluation 
consultant, and WellStrong to support consultant's drafting of the program evaluation and 
monitoring plans. Signature of contract between BCDHS and WellStrong, as necessary. 

Months 6 (June 2020): Finalization of consultant's program Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. 

SFY21 (12 Months, July 2020 — June 2021)  

Quarterly (September/December/March/June): Collation of data by consultant via reporting 
formats set forth in Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. Intra-quarter monitoring of quantity and 
quality of income data by consultant with feedback and technical support to WellStrong, as 
needed.  Consultant will provide BCDHS with a Quarterly Summary of Activities and Progress 
(scope TBD). 

Month 12 (June 2021): Delivery of Year 2 Program Evaluation and Monitoring Annual Report by 
consultant (scope TBD). 

 SFY22 (12 Months, July 2021 — June 2022)  

Quarterly (September/December/March/June): Collation of data by consultant via reporting 
formats set forth in Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. Intra-quarter monitoring of quantity and 



5 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

quality of income data by consultant with feedback and technical support to WellStrong, as 
needed.  Consultant will provide BCDHS with a Quarterly Summary of Activities and Progress 
(scope TBD). 

Month 12 (June 2022): Delivery of Year 2 Program Evaluation and Monitoring Annual Report by 
consultant (scope TBD). 

Background on Wellstrong 

WellStrong is a nonprofit, peer-run, community recovery center for people in recovery from 
substance use disorder which offers opportunities for fitness, wellness and health.  In the two 
years that WellStrong has been open, it has grown from a volunteer organization with one 
part-time employee to having six part-time employees, each in recovery, as well eight paid 
class instructors, most of whom are in recovery. In January 2020, two part-time employees will 
rise to full-time management positions. 

WellStrong offers a variety of fitness, yoga and meditation classes, as well as meetings and 
open gym time. It’s a place where members come not only for class, but to connect before and 
after. It is a safe space for new members who are greeted with empathy, understanding and 
guidance when they walk through the doors. 

Wellstrong’s total annual budget is $275,000, which supports 5 FTE employees and 5 volunteer 
staff, gymnasium space and the costs of associated equipment and supplies. WellStrong serves 
over 600 people per year and is the Recovery Community Center to which treatment providers 
(inpatient and outpatient) refer clients living in the upper-Cape area who are newly in recovery. 
Among their 609 participants last year: 

 245 (40%) were still receiving in-patient treatment services but had been connected 
proactively to WellStrong to begin participating in a recovery community. 

 219 (36%) were within 0-6 months of beginning recovery; 

 and 110 (18%) were within 7-12 months of beginning recovery. 

Not all of these clients have access to formal Recovery Coaching services. But all are greatly 
aided in their recovery by being able to join communities of like-minded persons. WellStrong 
provides a communal context centered on health for people in recovery.  In 2020 it will expand 



6 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

its services to include one-on-one health and life coaching to further support members via an 
evidence-based intervention. 

Peer Wellness Coaches (PWCs) are an emerging professional designation akin to CHWs and 
Patient Navigators (https://www.integration.samhsa.gov/workforce/team-members/peer-
providers).  In early recovery, after finding the security of a place to live, there are other day-
to-day aspects of wellness that must be fulfilled such as medical health, mental health, 
emotional health, stress management and nutrition. Peer Wellness Coaching services at 
WellStrong will help clients create a wellness plan, set and meet goals in all areas of wellness, 
help keep the clients accountable to action items they have set in their plan, and address client 
needs/provide referrals beyond WellStrong to recovery support services. 

 

Project # 2 Recover Support Navigator 

 A consultant will be hired by BCDHS to provide program evaluation and monitoring planning 
for Duffy Health Center’s expansion of its Recovery Support Navigator (RSN) Program to the 
Town of Dennis (https://www.duffyhealthcenter.org/).  Duffy is already providing contracted 
RSN services to the Town of Yarmouth, MA; Dennis is adjacent to Yarmouth.  Duffy will the 
BCDHS’ sub-grantee implementing the program. 

The programs' evaluation needs will form the basis upon which program monitoring and data 
collection are planned. Preparations for planning data collection, monitoring, and evaluation 
will take place in the winter and spring of 2020, in collaboration with our OD2A sub-grantee and 
with help from outside consultants. We do not wish to overlook opportunities for evaluating 
the RSN Program and therefore will value guidance from our BSAS Contract Advisor and 
associated evaluators. 

We foresee the development of the Evaluation Plans and the selection of indicators as a 
collaborative process, informed by the evidence base, which includes the following 
participants: 

 BCDHS MOAPC (Mass. Opioid Abuse Prevention Collaborative grant) staff (Harik 
and Slade) 



7 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 Consultants experienced in evaluation planning for substance use-related programs and 
services. 

 The sub-grantee (Duffy Health Center, Heidi Nelson-CEO, and Daniel Rodrigues, 
Associate Director) 

 Barnstable County RSAC Harm Reduction and Recovery Workgroup members 
(selected). 

Duffy RSN Program Expansion to the Town of Dennis 

Start-up Phase (4 Months, March – June 2020) 

Duffy Health Center will extend its Yarmouth RSN services to the citizens of the Town of Dennis.  
Starting in March 2020 10 hours of service per week will be available, contracted at an hourly 
rate of $30, payable to Duffy by the BCDHS on behalf of the Town of Dennis ($5,000 total).  
During this period Dennis will be encouraged to identify resources to support these services in 
FY21 and FY22. 

Implementation Phase (2 Years, July 2020 – June 2022) 

In FY21 and FY22 BCDHS will provide program support for RSN services of $6,000 (4 
hours/week) and $4,000 (2.5 hours/week) respectively.  The Town of Dennis is expected to 
provide funding if more hours per week of RSN services are desired. 

 

Program Monitoring and Evaluation Scope of Work 

The Evaluation Consultant will provide the BCDHS with a 2-year Program Evaluation and 
Monitoring Plan. 

Indicators  

Duffy already tracks the following RSN program client utilization indicators: 

 Demographics (gender, age, etc.) 

 Co-morbid conditions (e.g., mental health conditions) 

 Number of calls (initial, unduplicated calls) received from Yarmouth residents 



8 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 Type and number of contacts with the RSN (encounters, by phone, etc.) 
 Services accessed by Yarmouth residents, including: 

o Engagement with RSN 
o Participation in office based opioid treatment program, with counseling, either at 

Duffy or another health center or agency, as a result of this program 
o Participation in other substance use disorder counseling/treatment (such as use 

of mobile app for health and recovery, see below) 
o Additional community resources used, e.g. detox or other levels of care 
o Transportation provided (through taxi /bus vouchers) 

Collection of additional information may be necessary, as defined by the (pending) Evaluation 
and Monitoring Plan.  

The Evaluation Consultant will be required to identify and justify indicators for measurement of 
program success.  Preliminarily, indicators and information of importance to the evaluation of 
the programs may include: 

5. Outcome indicators recommended by BSAS or its affiliated research/evaluation partners. 

6. Outcome indicators of success relevant to participation in peer-based Recovery Support 
Navigator services via review of the relevant peer-reviewed and grey literature. We will 
require assistance from the Consultant to select indicators that will be most relevant to the 
proposed program. 

7. Outcome indicators suggested by a review of the relevant peer-reviewed and grey 
literature on contribution of personal health and wellness activates to SUD recovery. 
 

8. Assessment and monitoring of Recovery Capital of program participants along 4 sub-
channels, pre- and post-participation (as deemed relevant): 

e. Social capital: The sum of resources that each person has as a result of their 
relationships. This includes both support from and obligations to groups to which 
they belong. 

f. Physical capital: Tangible assets such as stable employment or housing, access to 
a healthy diet and fulfilling activities. 



9 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

g. Human capital: Skills, positive health, aspirations and hopes, and personal resources 
that will enable the individual to prosper, including educational attainment and 
skills, which are key aspects of human capital and will help with some of the problem 
solving that is required on a recovery journey. 

h. Cultural capital: The values, beliefs and attitudes that link to social integration.  

Data Collection  

As a FQHC Duffy Health Center has the capacity and experience to collect, process, 
analyze, and report on indicators and outcomes of significance.  

The Consultant will work with relevant Duffy staff regarding data collection structures and 
processes that will be relevant to the RSN Program evaluation.   

The Consultant will work with BCDHS as needed for support of data collection and reporting by 
Duffy. 

Timeline 

SFY20 (6 Months, January — June 2020)  

Month 1 (January 2020): Discussions between Barnstable MOAPC staff, Duffy, and our BSAS 
Contract Manager/Advisor provider will take place to develop a scope of work for 
development of the evaluation, monitoring, and data collection plans for the project. 

Month 2 (February 2020): Dissemination of evaluation scope of work to selected vendors on 
MA Professional Services Contract PRF61 (Management Consultants, Program Coordinators, 
and Planners Services Statewide Contract). Engagement of selected Evaluation Consultant.  
Signature of contract between BCDHS and Duffy Health Center. 

Month 3-4 (March & April 2020): Meetings with and between BCDHS, the Evaluation 
Consultant, and Duffy to support Consultant's drafting of the program evaluation and 
monitoring plans. 

Months 6 (June 2020): Finalization of consultant's program Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. 

SFY21 (12 Months, July 2020 — June 2021)  



10 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Quarterly (September/December/March/June): Collation of data by Consultant via reporting 
formats set forth in Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. Intra-quarter monitoring of quantity and 
quality of income data by consultant with feedback and technical support to Duffy, as 
needed.  Consultant will provide BCDHS with a Quarterly Summary of Activities and Progress 
(scope TBD). 

Month 12 (June 2021): Delivery of Year 2 Program Evaluation and Monitoring Annual Report by 
consultant (scope TBD). 

 SFY22 (12 Months, July 2021 — June 2022)  

Quarterly (September/December/March/June): Collation of data by Consultant via reporting 
formats set forth in Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. Intra-quarter monitoring of quantity and 
quality of income data by Consultant with feedback and technical support to Duffy, as 
needed.  Consultant will provide BCDHS with a Quarterly Summary of Activities and Progress 
(scope TBD). 

Month 12 (June 2022): Delivery of Year 2 Program Evaluation and Monitoring Annual Report by 
Consultant (scope TBD). 

Background on Duffy Health Center Recovery Support Navigator (RSN) Services 

Duffy offers an integrated team approach to provide primary care, behavioral health, and case 
management services. An integral member of that team is a Recovery Support Navigator (RSN), 
who links patients to services, follows up with clients, and acts as advocate for persons with 
opioid use disorders, with the goal of keeping clients engaged in treatment and recovery. The 
Recovery Support Navigator is responsible for linking patients with providers and outside 
agencies arid to provide support, guidance, and advocacy.   

As noted, Duffy is already providing contracted RSN services to the Town of Yarmouth, MA.  
Beginning March 2020 a RSN employed by Duffy will be available to citizens of the Town of 
Dennis for approximately 10 hours per week for follow up and support of residents seeking 
treatment and counseling for substance use disorders. 

Residents will have a published phone number which provides direct access to a Recovery 
Support Navigator to link residents to treatment and other community resources.  In addition, 
the RSN will respond to requests from the Dennis police department and EMS staff to follow 



11 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

up with Dennis residents needing services. This partnership will help maximize the care 
coordination with this program for Dennis residents.  Clients will also have access to a validated 
mobile app, myStrength (licensed to Duffy for clients and staff).2 

Services offered by the RSN will include client engagement, assistance with referrals to 
evidence based treatment and recovery options, and coordination with other organizations to 
assist clients in obtaining appropriate social services, resources, and assistance. The RSN is 
supervised by the Duffy Senior Director of Program Services, Patricia A. Cawley, LICSW, and is 
trained as a Recovery Coach, and has appropriate life/work experience. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2  The MyStrength app allows users to address depression, anxiety, stress, substance use, chronic pain and 
sleep challenges, while also supporting the related physical and spiritual aspects of the person’s health 
https://mystrength.com/. 



12 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Specifications for Submission: 

Submit a written quote to implement a 2-year Program Evaluation and Monitoring.  Quote must 
include an hourly rate/total cost proposal inclusive of all costs, qualifications, resumes of lead staff 
who will work on the project, and references from 3 projects similar in scope.  

Price proposals/quotes should not exceed $ $49,500 in year one and up to $10,000 in year two 
and $10,000 in year three.  

Submission deadline:  February 28, 2020 

Term: April 2020 – June 2022 

Submit quotes and required documentation to vharik@barnstablecounty.org 

 

 

March 10, 2020 
 
 
Ms. Beth Albert 
Director 
Barnstable County Department of Human Services 
P.O. Box 427  
Barnstable, MA 02630 
 
 
Dear Beth, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit a response to the request for quotes by Barnstable 
County Department of Human Services (BCDHS)  to provide two-years of program evaluation 
and monitoring for the WellStrong Peer Wellness Coaching (PWC) Start-Up Program and 
Expansion of the Recovery Support Navigator (RSN) Program in the Town of Dennis. 
 
This response includes the firm’s background and qualifications, the key staff on the team and 
resumes for the lead staff, our approach to the work, major tasks, our rates, and total costs. We 
also have included three references.    
 
Bailit Health Background 



13 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
As you’re aware, Bailit Health Purchasing, LLC (Bailit Health) is a Massachusetts-based health 
care policy consulting firm that is over 20 years old.  We are dedicated to ensuring insurer and 
provider performance accountability on behalf of public agencies and employer purchasers and 
a range of other clients.  Consultants at Bailit Health have a broad and deep understanding of 
the health care system in Massachusetts and particularly with the behavioral health care, health 
plans and providers, and also bring expertise in evaluation and monitoring. 
  
We have recently been involved in a number of substance use disorder (SUD) related projects 
that support our qualifications and inform our work on this topic. They include: 
 

 Conducted an evaluation of program outcomes at the Thundermist, a Community 
Health Center in Rhode Island, where community health teams worked with primary 
care providers to support adults to access supports to address complex social, 
environmental, medical and behavioral health needs. 
Reference:  Marea Tumber, SIM Liaison and Project Advisor, Rhode Island Office of the 
Health Insurance Commissioner 
Email: Marea.Tumber@ohic.ri.gov  
Phone: 401-462-2144 
 

 Supporting the Massachusetts Blue Cross Blue Shield Foundation of Massachusetts in its 
behavioral health urgent care (BHUC) grant program for emergency service providers.  
This work includes the monitoring and evaluation of grantees in expanding programs to 
include BHUC.  
Reference: Jacquie Anderson; Senior Director of Grantmaking, BCBSMA Foundation 
Email: Jacquie.anderson@bcbsma.com 
Phone: 617-246-5434 
 

 A related policy brief for the Foundation on the barriers to expanding access to BHUC. 
 

 Supporting the Cambridge Health Alliance (CHA) Accountable Care Organization in its 
efforts to expand their substance use disorders preferred provider network. 
Reference: Colleen O’Brien, Psy.D, Clinical Director, Population Health, Cambridge 
Health Alliance 
Email: coobrien@challiance.org 
Phone: 617-575-5383 
 



14 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 A published policy brief on the use of ASAM criteria in Medicaid Managed Care and 
prior authorization for State Health and Value Strategies.3 

 
The Bailit Health Team 
Beth Waldman, a senior consultant at Bailit Health and former Massachusetts Medicaid 
director, will serve as our project director. She has broad and diverse background in a range of 
consulting projects, including developing a SUD strategic plan for Barnstable County in 2015.  
Beth will be joined by Amy Lischko, a professor at Tufts University, former Commissioner of 
the Massachusetts Department of Health Care Finance and Policy, and senior consultant at 
Bailit Health who has extensive experience in evaluation and monitoring and would lead the 
design of the monitoring and evaluation for both programs, Ellie Shea-Delaney, a senior 
consultant at Bailit Health and former Assistant Commissioner for the Massachusetts 
Department of Mental Health in 2017, who brings a strong background in behavioral health 
services, including knowledge of peer support services such as Recovery Support Navigation 
and the Whole Health Action Management (WHAM) model, and Rachel Isaacson, a consultant 
at Bailit Health, who has done extensive research and drafted numerous documents for Bailit 
clients.  Resumes for each team member are included as Attachment A.  
 
Proposed Tasks 
To provide program evaluation and monitoring planning for WellStrong and Duffy for their 
new programs, Bailit Health will work closely with the grantees, BCDHS staff, and members of 
the Barnstable County RSAC Harm Reduction and Recovery Workgroup in order to develop 
evaluation plans and select indicators and measures to be included within those plans.   
 
We suggest an initial kick off meeting between BCDHS staff and the Bailit Health Team to 
understand the programs and projects from your perspective, followed by separate kick off 
meetings with Bailit Health, BCDHS staff and each of the grantees.  On an ongoing basis, we 
would suggest at bi-weekly calls with BCDHS staff and Bailit Health during the evaluation 
planning process, moving to quarterly meetings once the evaluation plan is put into place.  
Likewise, it will be important to have regular meetings with the grantees as part of the planning 
process, moving to quarterly once plan is in place.   
 
In developing the evaluation plans, Bailit Health proposes holding planning meetings with all 
participants, including BCDHS staff, the grantee and the Workgroup members.  Assuming that 
the members of the Workgroup will be participating in the development of both evaluation 
plans, we suggest conducting joint meetings to the extent feasible.  We expect that the 
evaluation plans will be similar, while the selected indicators and measures will differ across 
programs.  Potential indicators and measures will come from a variety of sources, including 
BSAS, literature reviews, and program specific reviews, such as indicators of success at 
Recovery Support Centers, and assessment and monitoring of Recovery Capitol of program 

 
3 The brief is accessible at https://www.shvs.org/resource/implementing-the-asam-criteria-for-sud-treatment-
through-medicaid-managed-care/  



15 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

participants, as appropriate for the WellStrong, PWC program. Additional indicators will be 
considered for Duffy’s RSN program on top of those indicators which are already tracked to 
provide indicators of success relevant to RSN services and relative to overall SUD recovery.  
 
Following the development of the evaluation and monitoring plan, Bailit Health will collate the 
data collected and provide quarterly monitoring of the data.  Bailit Health will develop a 
quarterly report for each program and will provide technical assistance to WellStrong and 
Duffy, as needed.  We recommend that quarterly reports be due 30 days following the end of 
each quarter, and the annual reports be due 60 days following the end of the year.  If you agree, 
this would extend the end date of the contract through August 31, 2022 to allow for full data 
collection.  If you are not able to extend the contract beyond June 2022, the final report could be 
based on the final 3 quarters of data instead of a full year.  
 
Below is a proposed high level work plan:  
 

Task Timeframe 
Kick off meetings  

 with BCDHS and Bailit Health 
 with BCDHS, Bailit Health and WellStrong 
 with BCDHS, Bailit Health and Duffy Health Center 
 with the Workgroup  

April 2020 

Develop proposed evaluation plan approach for both programs and 
identify potential measurement of success for each program including 
consideration of measures proposed by BSAS, identified sources and 
other appropriate options 

April/May 2020 

Work with BCHDS staff to develop data collection structures and 
processes for each program that will ensure that   outcome indicators 
for selected programs are being measured and reported on.  
 

May 2020 

Share draft program evaluation and monitoring plans for review 
and approval with BCDHS, grantees and Workgroup members.  
Each plan will include overall approach to evaluation and 
monitoring, indicators and measures to be collected, and a data 
collection approach. 

June 2020 

Finalize evaluation and monitoring plan including reporting 
formats 

June 2020 

Collation of data for both programs with technical support, as 
needed   

Quarterly between 
July 2020-June 2022 



16 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Submit quarterly summary of activities and progress for both 
programs to BCDHS.  

Quarterly starting July 
2020 
through June 2022 

Submit program monitoring evaluation and monitoring annual 
report (FY21 and FY22).  We recommend that this report be due 
60 days following the end of the 4th quarter to allow for full 
analysis  

August 31, 2021 
August 31, 2022 

 
 
Budget 
Our proposed budget to complete this work is $48,804 from April 2020 – June 2020, and $9,906 
per year between July 2021 and August 2022 (per our recommendation above to extend the date 
for last quarterly and final report). For a detailed budget, see Attachment B.  Bailit will only bill 
Barnstable County for actual hours and expenses, so if we require fewer hours to complete the 
work, the budget could decrease.  We have estimated that the initial kick off meetings will all 
happen in the same day to reduce travel costs and that there will be one planning meeting that 
reviews both evaluation plans. 
 
Please let us know if you have any questions about the proposal.  We look forward to the 
potential to work with you again. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Beth Waldman 
 
cc: Michael Bailit 
 
  



17 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A – Resumes 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



18 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
 
 
  



19 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

BETH WALDMAN, J.D., M.P.H. 
 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 
2007 - Present BAILIT HEALTH PURCHASING, LLC Needham, MA 
  Senior Consultant   

 Behavioral Health Care:  
 Supporting the Massachusetts BCBS Foundation’s behavioral health urgent care 

(BHUC) grant program through planning and facilitating of learning 
communities with grantees and implementing continuing grant guidelines; and 
developing a brief to identify barriers to BHUC and recommendations; 

 Supporting the Bureau for Substance Addiction Services (BSAS) within the 
Massachusetts Department of Public Health, including developing a 
procurement to serve for individuals committed to substance use treatment 
through the court system; 

 Developed issue brief for State Health and Value Strategies (SHVS) focused on 
the intersection of the ASAM criteria and managed care utilization review;  

 Supported a MA-based ACO in the development of a preferred substance use 
network; 

 Supported NH in the development and drafting of successful CMMI grants for 
Maternal Opioid Misuse (MOM), and for Integrated Care for Kids (InCK); 

 Worked with the Massachusetts Medicaid program and BSAS to develop and 
implement a SUD Waiver for the Commonwealth; lead drafter of SUD portion of 
state’s waiver request; assisting BSAS in considering impact of SUD Waiver on 
the state’s payor of last resort policy;  

 Participated in evaluation of CMS Medicaid Innovation Accelerator Program 
(IAP), in partnership with Abt Associates, focused on physical and mental health 
integration which provides technical support to states 

 Supported CO HCPF in improving coordination between Medicaid and the 
Department of Corrections and County Jails to better support Medicaid-eligible 
clients who are justice-involved 

 Worked with Neighborhood Health Plan of Rhode Island to support 
development of a behavioral health strategic plan; 

 Assisted Barnstable County (MA) in the development of a regional substance use 
plan, including holding focus group with key stakeholders on Cape Cod 

 Facilitated the MA CHIA-chaired Task Force on Behavioral Health Data and 
Long Term Stays 

 Facilitated Governor’s Opiate Task Force (MA) to identify potential solutions to 
public health emergency and priorities for spending $20M in emergency 
funding; 

 Worked with CO HCPF to design and develop a health home model, including a 
focus on individuals with SPMI; 

 Facilitated MA DMH-chaired Behavioral Health Integration Task Force; 
 Provided strategic direction and drafting for managed behavioral health carve-

out procurement in MA; previously led similar effort for the Iowa Medicaid 
Enterprise;  



20 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 Assisted Iowa in the transition of additional services (institutional and 
community based services) into the Iowa Plan through facilitation of transition 
committees.  

 Managed Care Procurements:  
 Supporting states in development and review of MCO procurements, including 

LA and TN; assisted MI, DC and VA in recently released procurements;   
 Providing ongoing support to MI in MCO contract management, including 

reporting on value-based purchasing and aligning that contract with new 
Medicaid managed care rules.  Also assisted in development of dental RFP and 
model contract and development of an EQRO procurement; 

 Supporting Medicaid health plan preparing to respond to a state’s dental RFP; 
 Co-authored a report for the California Health Care Foundation on how the state 

can use purchasing power and oversight to improve Medi-Cal Managed Care 
performance. 

 Annually facilitated day-long sessions on MCO procurement and value-based 
purchasing to select states on behalf of NASHP and State Health Value and 
Strategies (SHVS) Project between 2015-2018; topics included Medicaid managed 
care procurements; Medicaid managed care and VBP; Medicaid managed care 
and LTSS; and Medicaid managed care and Behavioral Health;  

 Developed Medicaid managed care toolkit for states to use to help guide 
development of procurements for SHVS 

 Revised NJ Medicaid managed care contract; 
 Drafted chapter on provider networks and delivery systems for the National 

Governors Association Medicaid Health Care Purchasing Compendium; 
 Supported Neighborhood Health Plan of RI in responding to state procurement 

in September 2016, previously led drafting of responses to Medicaid managed 
care procurements for MCOs in WA, TN, WI, CT and RI.  

 Payment Reform and Cost Containment Efforts:  
 Leading study for the Medicaid and CHIP Payment and Access Commission on 

use of Medicaid managed care to further payment and delivery system reform 
efforts in five states. Supporting Catalyst for Payment Reform in scan of 
Medicaid managed care contracts focused on contractual requirements for 
payment reform activities.  

 Assisting Michigan in developing and ongoing support of APM reporting and 
strategic planning templates and ongoing support of an APM Workgroup for 
Medicaid health plans to increase use of APMs across plans.  

 Supporting Network4Health, led by Catholic Medical Center (NH) and its 
partners, to meet state requirements as a DSRIP entity.  Supported CMC since 
inception of Network4Helath to develop the integrated delivery network as part 
of NH’s DSRIP initiative; served as lead drafter of successful IDN application 
and initial project plan submission.  

 Assisted OR in implement VBP framework as part of their 1115 Waiver, 
including developing the framework and facilitating a CCO APM Workgroup 
and supporting VBP requirements within CCO 2.0 RFP; previously assisted OR 
in development of strategy and tools to spread their Coordinated Care Model to 
other state agencies and employers 



21 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 Assisted Medicaid health plan in Rhode Island to implement Accountable Entity 
program; assisted FQHC in Rhode Island in responding to state’s Accountable 
Entity application.  

 Assisted hospital system in development of strategic plan focused on 
streamlining activities focused on avoidable emergency room and hospitalization 
usage.  

 Assisted Arizona in development and implementation of DSRIP-like program 
focused on behavioral health.  

 Developed tool to assist FQHCs in use of data when participating in risk-based 
contracts.  

 Served as faculty for FQHC Payment Reform Academy through NASHP; 
reviewed FQHC payment methodology for DC Medicaid, including payment 
options, considerations for cost reporting and potential measurement; 

 Conducted a national study of payment reform activity within state Medicaid 
programs for the National Association of Medicaid Directors. 

 Conducted a study of safety net ACOs for MACPAC focusing on development, 
challenges and lessons learned 

 Conducted review of CO Medicaid rate setting methodologies and 
recommending short term improvements; 

 Assisted VT and MN in the development and drafting of their successful SIM 
Model Testing Grant Applications; Assisted PA in development, drafting and 
review of their SIM Model Testing Grant Application;  

 Developed payment reform strategy for MA managed care plans; 
 Directed the MA Health Care Quality and Cost Council on its Roadmap to Cost 

Containment;  
 Developed a payment reform readiness tool for Catalyst for Payment Reform. 

 Long Term Care Services and Supports:  
 Providing support to Idaho in development of incentives to plan to improve 

LTSS quality. 
 Conducting evaluation of CMS Medicaid Innovation Accelerator Program (IAP) 

focused on LTSS technical support to states in partnership with Abt Associates. 
 Supported a plan response to LTSS One Care RFP in MA 
 Worked with a LTSS-focused Medicaid MCO to develop a strategic plan 
 Conducted a review of covered services and provider qualifications for CO to 

bring greater alignment across HCBS waivers for persons with disabilities and 
elders.  

 Supported VT’s SIM-funded DLTSS Work Group and assisting in management 
of technology projects related to the LTSS population 

 Worked with health plans to develop dual eligible managed care products, 
including developing Medicare Model of Care; responding to state 
procurements; design and implementation of care management program and 
dementia programs; and preparation for readiness review; 

 Worked with VT on development of several long term care services and supports 
grant proposals;  

 Provided strategic support to the NC Association of Long Term Care Facilities.  
 Health Care Reform:  



22 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 Provided technical assistance to CCIIO in support of implementation and 
operation of state-based and federal SHOP Marketplaces 

 Assisted in development of eligibility and enrollment rules for the MA Medicaid 
program based on ACA requirements; provided assistance to development of 
eligibility rules in ME and CCIIO;  

 Reviewed and made recommendations on Medicaid waiver authority and use 
for the Medicaid and CHIP Payment and Access Commission (MACPAC); 

 Worked with CO HCPF on the design, implementation and monitoring of early 
expansion coverage of Adults without Dependent Children and eligibility 
expansion for working individuals with disabilities; continuing focus on 
provision of care to former inmates, including facilitating statewide workgroup 
and studying impact of Denver recovery court program. 

 Staffed the MN Health Care Reform Task Force and its subgroups to develop 
recommendations for Care Integration & Payment Reform, Access (including 
whether to have a Basic Health Plan), Workforce Development and Public Health 
& Prevention;  

 Assisted VT in Exchange Implementation effort, including leading early 
Exchange design efforts;  

 Led initial ME planning efforts for implementation of the ACA, including 
drafting state health plan chapter detailing implementation efforts, development 
of policy presentations on key aspects of reform, including design of an 
Exchange, impact on Medicaid and related policy decisions, and impact on 
Maine’s insurance laws and related policy decisions; 

 Provided support to the OR Health Authority in the development of their 1115 
Waiver authorizing Coordinated Care Organizations. 

 Performance Measurement:  
 Facilitated ongoing statewide quality committee for Massachusetts, including 

development of quality priority recommendations 
 Assisted WA in development of a statewide core measure set 
 Assisted CO HCPF in review of and suggested improvements to its Key 

Performance Indicators (KPI) performance incentive program; 
 Developed a performance indicator dashboard for Medi-Cal. 

 Eligibility Modernization:  
 Reviewed state of VT and CO’s Medicaid eligibility and enrollment processes 

and issued report recommending improvements. 
 
1994 - 2007 EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES Boston, MA 
  Medicaid Director (2003 – 2007) 

 Responsible for overall administration and management of MassHealth program, 
with an annual budget of $8 billion and over 1 million members. 

 Led complex, matrix organization with approximately 1000 employees across 
EOHHS and oversaw cross-agency Medicaid Management Team. 

 Served as a member of the EOHHS Management Committee. 
 Set policy, programmatic and purchasing goals for MassHealth program. 
 Played key role in the development and implementation of the Massachusetts Health 

Care Reform initiative, including participating as an active member of team that 



23 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

created Governor’s initial plan and legislation; negotiating terms of waiver 
amendment to implement HCR with CMS; implementing MassHealth expansions 
and new Commonwealth Care program; participating as a member of the 
Commonwealth Health Insurance Connector Authority Board (the Massachusetts 
Exchange); serving on cross-agency implementation team to trouble shoot across the 
reform; and serving as a spokesman about the reform effort both in Massachusetts 
and nationally. 

 Provided executive leadership to major agency initiatives including implementation 
of Health Care Reform legislation, program integrity gap analysis and organizational 
restructuring, and procurement and build of a new MMIS system. 

 Managed relationship with CMS, including negotiating terms of Medicaid state plan 
and waiver. 

 Provided testimony to state legislature on annual budget request, MassHealth related 
bills, and oversight hearings. 

 Provided executive direction in the negotiation of the Rosie D lawsuit on provision of 
services for children’s behavioral health. 

 
DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE 
Acting Deputy Commissioner (January 2003 – September 2003) 
 Managed staff responsible for the 1115 Demonstration Waiver and SCHIP program; 

Federal/National Policy Management; Evaluation Support; and Constituent Services 
(including legislation and press). 

 Assisted Commissioner in overall administration of the MassHealth program, 
including playing a lead role in transition planning for EOHHS reorganization. 

 Continued to serve as Director, Waiver Implementation and Administration. 
 

Director, Waiver Implementation and Administration (2001 – 2003) 
 Administered the Division’s 1115 Demonstration Waiver and SCHIP programs, 

including negotiating amendments and extensions with CMS and monitoring state 
and federal budget neutrality. 

 Recommended and implemented major eligibility policy changes – including 
Insurance Partnership program and SCHIP. 

 Led agency in development of and application for new waivers or amendments to 
current programs. 

 Led major agency policy and program initiatives. 
 Led evaluations of agency programs, including annual reports for the 1115 Waiver 

and the SCHIP program. 
 Key agency contact for advocate groups. 

 
Assistant General Counsel (1994 – 2001) 
 Provided legal counsel for an 1115 waiver and SCHIP expansion - including 

involvement in shaping of new programs, drafting legislation and regulations for 
Children's Expansion, Insurance Partnership program and HIV Expansion; 
negotiating proposed expansions with the Health Care Financing Administration; 
drafting member and employer notices; procuring vendors; and troubleshooting 
operational issues. 



24 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 Represented Commonwealth in litigation of Medicaid actions, including oral 
argument before the Supreme Judicial Court. 

 Advised Division's Claims Review Board on provider payment issues. 
 Honors: Twice awarded Commonwealth Citation for Outstanding Performance: as 

member of the Pharmacy Program Plus team (2000); as member of the Insurance 
Partnership implementation team (1999). 
 

1993 – 1994 BOARD OF REGISTRATION IN MEDICINE Boston, MA 
  Litigation Counsel (part-time) (1993 – 1994) 
 
1993 - 1994 NATHANSON & GOLDBERG Boston, MA 
  Associate (part-time) (1993 – 1994) 
 
EDUCATION 
 
1995 – 1997 HARVARD SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH Boston, MA 
 
1990 – 1993  BOSTON COLLEGE LAW SCHOOL        Newton, MA 
 
1986 – 1990 UNION COLLEGE Schenectady, NY 
 
PUBLICATIONS 
 
Isaacson R, Shea Delaney E, and Waldman B. “Implementing the ASAM Criteria for SUD Treatment 
through Medicaid Managed Care” Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, Princeton, NJ, November 2019. 
 
Waldman B, Dyer MB, Lischko A and Boros A. “Raising the Bar: How California Can Use Purchasing 
Power and Oversight to Improve Quality in Medi-Cal Managed Care” California Health Care 
Foundation, Oakland, CA, April 2019. 
 
Waldman B, Bailit M and Dyer MB. “State Medicaid Approaches for Defining and Tracking Managed 
Care Organizations Implementation of Alternative Payment Models” Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, 
Princeton, NJ, February 2018. 

Loeffler A, Tobey R, Bailit M and Waldman B.  “Using Data to Manage Population Health Under Risk 
Based Contracts” HRSA HITEQ Center, July 12, 2017. 
 
Burns M and Waldman B. “The Role of State Medicaid Programs in Improving the Value of the Health 
Care System” National Association of Medicaid Directors, March 2016.  
 
Bailit M and Waldman B. “Safety-Net Provider ACOs: Considerations for State 
Medicaid Purchasers” Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, Princeton, NJ, January 2016. 
 
Waldman B and Bailit M. “Provider Network Development and Management and Delivery System 
Transformation in State Medicaid Programs” in Medicaid Health Care Purchasing Compendium, 
National Governors Association, January 2016. 
 



25 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Bailit Health Purchasing and Abt Associates (Waldman B and Bailit M) “A Study of Safety-Net Providers 
Functioning as Accountable Care Organizations” Medicaid and CHIP Payment and Access Commission 
(MACPAC), July 28, 2015. 
 
Bailit Health Purchasing (Houy M, Waldman B and Bailit M). “Three Emerging Challenges for Sustained 
Payment and Delivery System Reform” Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, Princeton, NJ, March 2015. 
 
Hogan B, Bazinsky K and Waldman B. “Approaches to the Integration of Services for Persons with 
Intellectual and Other Developmental Disabilities (I/DD)” Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, Princeton, 
NJ, October 2014. 
 
Waldman B and Bailit M. “Considerations for State Development of Performance Measure Sets” Robert 
Wood Johnson Foundation, Princeton, NJ, September 2014. 
 
Lischko A, and Waldman B. “Understanding State Resistance to the Patient Protection and Affordable 
Care Act: Is it Really Just Politics As Usual?” Journal of Health and Biomedical Law; IX (2013): 27-60. 
 
Lind, A, Center for Health Care Strategies, Hogan B and Waldman B, Bailit Health Purchasing.  
“Challenges and Considerations for Including Medicare-Medicaid Enrollees in Health Homes,” Technical 
Assistance Brief, Integrated Care Resource Center, Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services, June 2012.  
 
Waldman B, Seifert R, and Nordahl K. “Stabilizing MassHealth Funding: Options to Break the Recurring 
Cycle of Expansion and Contraction”, Massachusetts Medicaid Policy Institute, February 2012. 
 
Waldman B and Nordahl K. “The ACAs Impact on Medicaid: Changes and Opportunities for 
MassHealth”, Massachusetts Medicaid Policy Institute, July 2011. 
 
Bailit Health Purchasing (Waldman B and Bailit M). “A Medi-Cal Performance Dashboard: Practical 
Recommendations for a Framework and Measures.” California HealthCare Foundation, Oakland, CA, 
January 2011.  
 
Waldman B. "Massachusetts Health Care Reform", Health and Human Rights Journal, April 2010. 
 
Waldman B. "Covering Children and their Parents – The Massachusetts Model and Implications for 
National Health Reform, First Focus, December 2009. 
 
Waldman B. “The State Children’s Health Insurance Program in Massachusetts: Achievements, 
Challenges and Implications for Health Reform”, Massachusetts Medicaid Policy Institute, April 2007. 
  



26 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Rachel Isaacson, MPH 

 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

1/2019-present BAILIT HEALTH PURCHASING, LLC     Needham, MA 
  Consultant  

 Assisting Michigan’s and Louisiana’s implementation of payment reform through 
their Medicaid plans, including: analyzing detailed plan data and reports on their 
use of Alternative Payment Models and the provider payments related to such 
models; and drafting reporting instruments.  

 Supporting technical assistance provided to states via the Robert Wood Johnson 
Foundation’s State Health and Value Strategies (SHVS) including supporting: 

o A workgroup of ten state Medicaid agencies who are addressing the social 
determinants of heath through Medicaid managed care approaches 

o the development of an SHVS issue brief on the intersection of American 
Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria and utilization management.   

o providing technical assistance to Hawaii Medicaid regarding MCO 
requirements for social determinants of health screening and referral 
guidelines  

 Supporting the development of a population health management approach for San 
Bernardino County and the Arrowhead Regional Medical Center  

 Supported implementation of a specialty-referral network for substance use 
providers for a Medicaid ACO  

 Supported an evaluation of social determinants of health screening and 
implementation, including to identify opportunities for improvement for a Medicaid 
ACO 

 Supporting implementation of the Medicaid Accountable Entity program and 
drafted a Request for Proposal Response for a Medicaid Dental bid for 
Neighborhood Health Plan of Rhode Island 

 Supported New Hampshire’s applications for Center for Medicare and Medicaid 
Innovation grants for Maternal Opioid Misuse (MOM) and Integrated Care for Kids 
(InCK) 

 Drafted a Health Resources and Services Administration New Access Point Grant 
application 



27 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 Developed an evaluation tool for Michigan’s Medicaid managed care External 
Quality Review Organization re-procurement and reviewing related procurement 
documents and scoring approaches being considered by the state 

 
2018  COMMUNITY CATALYST       Boston, MA 

Policy Intern  
 Conducted a qualitative research project on patient engagement in the Financial 

Incentive Alignments. Responsibilities included writing literature reviews, 
interviewing participants, creating survey instruments, data analysis, and synthesis. 

 Responsible for policy research on health plans that serve individuals dually enrolled 
in Medicare and Medicaid. 

 
Q4 2017  HARVARD T.H. CHAN SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH  Boston, MA 

Graduate Research Assistant 
 Assisted with study design and data collection in an implementation science guided 

intervention that explored if targeted physical activity interventions decrease 
classroom disruptions for adolescents with disabilities at an alternative school in 
Worcester, MA.  

 
2015-2017 SAN DIEGO FOOD BANK      San Diego, CA 

North County Food Bank Supervisor 
 Created and maintained relations with food bank partners. Lead trainings, helped 

partners increase programmatic capacity, and performed outreach to potential new 
partners. 

 Co-chaired the North County Food Policy Council. Responsibilities included 
facilitating meetings, promoting opportunities for learning, and connecting members 
to resources to support their organizations. 

 

EDUCATION 

2017-2018 HARVARD T.H. CHAN SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH  Boston, MA  
  Master of Public Health, Social & Behavioral Sciences Concentration 
 
2010-2014 UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, SAN DIEGO    San Diego, CA   

Bachelor of Arts, Political Science  
  



28 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
AMY M LISCHKO 

 
PROFESSIONAL EXPEREINCE 
 
2016 – present  BAILIT HEALTH PURCHASING, LLC 
                          Senior Consultant 

 Assist the Rhode Island Office of the Health Insurance Commissioner with 
various projects related to their Affordability Standards and value-based 
payment reform activities. 

 Provide program evaluation support to various projects including an evaluation 
of a Community Health Team intervention for high risk patients. 

  Support Network4Health, led by Catholic Medical Center (NH) and its partners, 
to meet state requirements as a DSRIP entity.  

 Assisted the state of Maine in its planning efforts for implementation of the 
ACA, including development of policy presentations on key aspects of reform, 
including design of an Exchange, impact on Medicaid and related policy 
decisions, and impact on Maine’s insurance laws and related policy decisions; 

 
2007- present    TUFTS UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC  
    HEALTH AND COMMUNITY MEDICINE  
     Associate Professor 

 Assessed consumer preferences regarding choice of inpatient hospital for the 
Massachusetts Health Policy Commission under a grant funded by the Robert 
Wood Johnson Foundation. 

 Evaluated insurer participation in SHOP exchanges for the U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services. 

 Evaluated risk selection in market-based state health programs under a grant 
provided by the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, State Health Access Reform 
Evaluation program. 

 Evaluated the implementation of the Massachusetts Commonwealth Health 
Insurance Connector under a grant provided by The Commonwealth Fund. 

 Evaluated the financial impact of a fraud prevention program in Medicare for the 
Administration for Community Living in the Department of Health and Human 
Services. 

  
1993-2007 COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS  

Various Senior Management Positions 
 

 
 



29 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
SELECTED PUBLICATIONS 
 
Research Articles 
 
Zhao, N. Koch-Weser, S. Lischko, A. and Chung, M. Translation of Nutrition Science for the 
WIC Program and the Impact of Organizational Readiness for Change on Successful 
Translation.  
Current Developments in Nutrition, Volume 3, Issue Supplement_1, June 2019. 
 
Koch-Weser, S. Chui, K., Hijaz, S., Lischko, A., Auerbach, D. Investigating Consumer Hospital 
Choice: Demand-side Levers Could Address Health Care Costs. HealthCare, January 11, 2019.  
 
Lischko, A. Whitemore, H. Stromber, S, Green, M, Cowdry, R, Gabel, J.  SHOP Talk:  An Early 
Look at the Tying Provision in States with a Federal Exchange.  Under Review. 
 
Gabel, J., Whitemore, H. Lischko, A., Stromberg, S, Green, M., An Early Look At SHOP 
Marketplaces: Low Premiums, Adequate Plan Choice In Many, But Not All States. Health 
Affairs.   
Health Aff May 2015 vol. 34 no. 5 732-740 
 
Lischko, A. Burgess, J. Knowledge of Cost Sharing and Decisions to Seek Care, American 
Journal of Managed Care, April 2010. 
 
 
EDUCATION  
 
1982  BS University of Massachusetts,  Amherst, MA  Food Science and Nutrition  
 
1988  MSPH University of Massachusetts, Amherst, MA  Health Policy and Management 

 
 

2008   D.Sc. Boston University, Boston MA  Health Services Research  
 
  



30 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

ELEANOR SHEA-DELANEY, M.P.A. 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 
2017              BAILIT HEALTH PURCHASING, LLC    Needham, MA 

         Senior Consultant (03/2017-present) 
 Since joining Bailit Health, Ellie has used 35 years of experience in state government in  

program development and implementation, and public policy.  Her expertise is in the 
areas of Medicaid, elders, and people with disabilities, including those with behavioral 
health issues. 

  Recent  projects and clients include: supporting the Blue Cross Blue Shield Foundation 
(BCBSF) in the development of Behavioral Health Urgent Care Centers (BHUC), by 
facilitating learning communities with grantees and evaluating outcomes; developing a 
brief for BCBSF on the barriers to developing BHUC; helping Cambridge Health Alliance 
expand their substance use disorder services network; developing a brief on the use of 
ASAM criteria in managed care for State Health and Value Strategies; supporting the 
Massachusetts DPH Bureau of Substance Abuse Services in the re-procurement of Section 
35 beds.  

  She has worked on other projects related to a range of substance use disorder issue 
forArizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCS) regarding behavioral health 
system improvements and measures; and strategic planning for Hallmark Health 
Systems to sustain key SUD and care management programs. 

  She has also worked on a number of projects related to long term services and supports 
and strategic planning. 

 
2008-2017     MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH (DMH) Boston, MA 
                      Assistant Commissioner of Program Development and Interagency Planning,  
                      (01/2008-01/2009 and 07/2009-2017) 

 Served as a member of the agency’s executive leadership team with a budget of 
approximately $760M and 3,300 employees;  

 Facilitated interagency collaboration primarily with MassHealth, Elder Affairs and the 
Department of Public Health (DPH); projects included: the One Care Duals Initiative 
from development to implementation, Money Follows the Person, the Balancing 
Incentive Program, Aging and Disability Resource Consortia leadership team, nursing 
facility Pre-Admission Screening (PASRR) improvements, the Elder Peer Bridger’s 
initiative and other MassHealth reform  activities such as Patient Centered Medical 
Homes, ACO’s and  BH and LTSS Certified Partners;  

 Co-chaired the Elder Mental Health Collaborative consisting of many state agencies, 
advocates and providers;  

 Helped to promote interagency support for the established Certified Older Adult Peer 
Supports (COAPS) and other peers supports such as Whole Health Action 
Management (WHAM); 

 Coordinated activities involving the Massachusetts Behavioral Health Partnership 
(MBHP), such as the development of the Emergency Services Program (ESP) 
procurement and on-going monitoring of the network’s performance, including 
assessing the impact of ESP’s on ED Boarding;  



31 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 Served as the Commissioner’s designee to chair a legislatively mandated Special 
Commission which completed a report on enhancing in-patient access via 
improvements to MBHP’s website, some of which are now in place;  

 Led an interagency planning team that organized a summit held in October 2014 on 
older adult behavioral health needs resulting from a SAMHSA Older Adults BH Policy 
Academy; summit was attended by over 100 health aging health policy leaders and a 
report is available 

 Served as a National Association of State Mental Health Program Directors 
(NASMHPD) Financing and Medicaid Division and the Northeast Regional 
representative for the Older Persons Division;  

 Supervised the Quality Unit and staff responsible for coordinating the Statewide 
Mental Health Planning Council and preparing the Department’s annual State Plan to 
SAMHSA;  

 Oversaw a twenty-person Training and Staff Development Unit during a successful 
reorganization.  

 
2004-2009    MASSACHUSETTS EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF   Boston, MA 
        ELDER AFFAIRS 
                     Interim Secretary, (06-10/2007 and 02-07/2009) 

 Served as the executive of a $2.4B agency (including some Medicaid funds) with 
approximately 125 employees during two transition periods;  

 Key Elder Affairs’ programs and responsibilities included: Prescription Advantage, 
managing the Aging Services Access Points (Massachusetts AAA vendors) and 
Councils on Aging networks, Information and Referral, Elder Protective Services, 
managing a range of federal grants and some critical responsibilities in the 
MassHealth Office of Long Term Care;  

 Each tenure included budget priority setting, the public hearing process, developing a 
spending plan and budget implementation, along with facilitating mandatory 9C 
budget reductions in 2009;  

 Reported to the Secretary of Health and Human Services and was a member of the 
Executive Office of Health and Human Services/Medicaid Management Leadership 
team.  

 
                      Assistant Secretary for Planning and Development, (2005-2009) 

 Oversight of all aspects of Housing programs and Assisted Living Certif ication 
operations, Nutrition services, Title III/Older Americans Act oversight and planning, 
and the Senior Community Service Employment Program;  

 Directed Data, Quality and Evaluation programs 
 Oversaw the MS Aging and Disability Resource Center grant 
 Coordinated Elder Affairs' involvement in numerous CMS grant activities cross 

Health and Human Services and development projects with the University of 
Massachusetts Medical School;  

 Helped to coordinate Massachusetts Rebalancing Long Term Care (LTC) activities 
related to ongoing efforts with the National Governors Association LTC Policy 
Academy and develop specific features of Massachusetts’ cross-Secretariat 
Community First policy and Olmstead Plan.  



32 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
 
EDUCATION 
 
KENNEDY SCHOOL, HARVARD UNIVERSITY       Boston, MA 
Tier IV Executive Training Program 
 
NORTHEASTERN UNIVERSITY      Boston, MA  
Master of Public Administration 
 
BOSTON COLLEGE        Boston, MA  
Bachelor of Arts, Psychology, Magna Cum Laude  
Scholar of the College 
 
  



33 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
Attachment B – Budget  
 

Task Hours  
 Beth Waldman, Amy 

Lischko and Ellie 
Shea Delaney 

$273 

Rachel Isaacson 
 

$128 

Project Management (assumes bi-weekly 
check in calls with BCDHS through June 
2020, and then quarterly calls) 

30 15 

Kick off meetings  (assumes 4, one hour 
meetings)  

12 4 

Develop two evaluation plans  30 30 

Develop data collection approach  20 20 

Share draft plan and present each to 
BCDHS, grantees and Workgroup members 

20 20 

Finalize evaluation and monitoring plan 
including reporting formats 

10 20 

Total Hours – (April – June 2020) 124 hours @ 
$273/hour = $33,852 

109 hours @ $128/hour = 
$13,952 

Travel (assumes 2 trips each to Cape for 4 
individuals)  = $1000 

  

Total Budget ($48,804 + $1000) = $48,804   

Collation of data for both programs with 
technical support, as needed   

20 38 

Submit quarterly summary of activities and 
progress  for both programs to BCDHS.  

8 20 

Submit program monitoring evaluation and 
monitoring annual report (FY21 and FY22).   

8 20 



34 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Total – (July 2020 – August 2021; July 2021- 
August 2022) (no travel assumed; cost 
spread across years 2 and 3) = $19,812 
($9,906/year) 

36 hours @ 
$273/hour = $9,828 

78 hours @ $128/hour = 
$9,984 

 
 



Certificate Of Completion
Envelope Id: E8FC01948A4444899A4D4167AE72E4A6 Status: Completed
Subject: Please DocuSign: 20200415_Item 8b_Agreement_HS_Balit_Dennis Programs Subgrantee.pdf
Source Envelope: 
Document Pages: 40 Signatures: 1 Envelope Originator: 
Certificate Pages: 2 Initials: 0 Owen Fletcher
AutoNav: Enabled
EnvelopeId Stamping: Enabled
Time Zone: (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada)

3195 Main Street
Barnstable, MA  02630
owen.fletcher@barnstablecounty.org
IP Address: 76.118.188.46  

Record Tracking
Status: Original
             4/17/2020 2:07:36 PM

Holder: Owen Fletcher
             owen.fletcher@barnstablecounty.org

Location: DocuSign

Security Appliance Status: Connected Pool: StateLocal
Storage Appliance Status: Connected Pool: Barnstable County Location: DocuSign

Signer Events Signature Timestamp
Ronald Bergstrom
ronald.bergstrom@barnstablecounty.org
Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Signature Adoption: Pre-selected Style
Using IP Address: 73.227.103.133

Sent: 4/17/2020 2:09:06 PM
Viewed: 4/17/2020 2:26:25 PM 
Signed: 4/17/2020 2:26:42 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

In Person Signer Events Signature Timestamp

Editor Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Agent Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Intermediary Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Certified Delivery Events Status Timestamp

Carbon Copy Events Status Timestamp
Quan Tobey
quan.tobey@barnstablecounty.org
Barnstable County
Security Level: Email, Account Authentication 
(None)

Sent: 4/17/2020 2:26:44 PM

Electronic Record and Signature Disclosure: 
      Not Offered via DocuSign

Witness Events Signature Timestamp

Notary Events Signature Timestamp

Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Envelope Sent Hashed/Encrypted 4/17/2020 2:26:44 PM
Certified Delivered Security Checked 4/17/2020 2:26:44 PM
Signing Complete Security Checked 4/17/2020 2:26:44 PM



Envelope Summary Events Status Timestamps
Completed Security Checked 4/17/2020 2:26:44 PM

Payment Events Status Timestamps



 

 
 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 
 

 
BANRSTABLE, SS. 
 

     

  

   

 

 

 

 
 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair: 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair: Y 

Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner: 

Y 

A true copy, Attest, April 15, 2019 

Barnstable County Regional Clerk 

Y 

At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners on the fifteenth 

day of April, A.D. 2020, held through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts Governor 

Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on March 12, 

2020, motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the execution of an agreement with Bailit 

Health Purchasing, LLC, in the amount of $68,616.00, funded by a grant from the United States 

Department of Health and Human Services, through to Massachusetts Executive Office of Health, 

and Department of Public Health, to the County Human Services Department, for the WellStrong 

Peer Wellness Coaching Startup, and Recovery Support Navigator Programs in the Town of 

Dennis,  for a period from April 08, 2020 through June 30, 2022, as presented, 2nd by 

Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0  

 

 



Date: April 10, 2020 

To: Barnstable County Commissioners 

From: Lisa Dillon 
Commission Clerk 

RE: Cape Cod Commission Appointments 

Section 3(b)(c) of the Cape Cod Commission Act stipulates that the County Commissioners 
make several annual appointments to the Commission for Minority Representative, Native 
American Representative and County Commissioner Representative to the Commission. 

John Harris, Minority Representative, has indicated that he would like to continue to serve.  
Your vote is requested to reappoint Mr. Harris for the one-year term of April 25, 2020 
to April 24, 2021. 

David Weeden, Native American Representative, has indicated that he would like to continue to 
serve.  Your vote is requested to reappoint Mr. Weeden for the one-year term of April 
25, 2020 to April 24, 2021. 

Your vote is also requested to reappoint Ronald Bergstrom as the County 
Commissioner Representative to serve for the one-year term of April 25, 2020 to 
April 24, 2021. 

Approved by Barnstable County Commissioners on ____________   _, 2020 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

cc:     John Harris 
          David Weeden 

April 15



Ronald Bergstrom, Chair: 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair: Y 

Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner: 

Y 

A true copy, Attest, April 15, 2019 

Barnstable County Regional Clerk 

Y 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

BANRSTABLE, SS. 

At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners on the 

fifteenth day of April, A.D. 2020, held through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts 

Governor Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on 

March 12, 2020, motion by Commissioner Beaty to reappoint Ronald Bergstrom to the 

Cape Cod Commission as the County Commissioner Representative for a one-year term from 

April 25, 2020 through April 24, 2021, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 

3-0-0  



Date: April 10, 2020 

To: Barnstable County Commissioners 

From: Lisa Dillon 
Commission Clerk 

RE: Cape Cod Commission Appointments 

Section 3(b)(c) of the Cape Cod Commission Act stipulates that the County Commissioners 
make several annual appointments to the Commission for Minority Representative, Native 
American Representative and County Commissioner Representative to the Commission. 

John Harris, Minority Representative, has indicated that he would like to continue to serve.  
Your vote is requested to reappoint Mr. Harris for the one-year term of April 25, 2020 
to April 24, 2021. 

David Weeden, Native American Representative, has indicated that he would like to continue to 
serve.  Your vote is requested to reappoint Mr. Weeden for the one-year term of April 
25, 2020 to April 24, 2021. 

Your vote is also requested to reappoint Ronald Bergstrom as the County 
Commissioner Representative to serve for the one-year term of April 25, 2020 to 
April 24, 2021. 

Approved by Barnstable County Commissioners on ____________   _, 2020 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

cc:     John Harris 
          David Weeden 

April 15



Ronald Bergstrom, Chair: 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair: Y 

Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner: 

Y 

A true copy, Attest, April 15, 2019 

Barnstable County Regional Clerk 

Y 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

BANRSTABLE, SS. 

At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners on the 

fifteenth day of April, A.D. 2020, held through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts 

Governor Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on 

March 12, 2020, motion by Commissioner Beaty to reappoint John Harris to the Cape Cod 

Commission as the Minority Representative for a one-year term from April 25, 2020 through 

April 24, 2021, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0  



Date: April 10, 2020 

To: Barnstable County Commissioners 

From: Lisa Dillon 
Commission Clerk 

RE: Cape Cod Commission Appointments 

Section 3(b)(c) of the Cape Cod Commission Act stipulates that the County Commissioners 
make several annual appointments to the Commission for Minority Representative, Native 
American Representative and County Commissioner Representative to the Commission. 

John Harris, Minority Representative, has indicated that he would like to continue to serve.  
Your vote is requested to reappoint Mr. Harris for the one-year term of April 25, 2020 
to April 24, 2021. 

David Weeden, Native American Representative, has indicated that he would like to continue to 
serve.  Your vote is requested to reappoint Mr. Weeden for the one-year term of April 
25, 2020 to April 24, 2021. 

Your vote is also requested to reappoint Ronald Bergstrom as the County 
Commissioner Representative to serve for the one-year term of April 25, 2020 to 
April 24, 2021. 

Approved by Barnstable County Commissioners on ____________   _, 2020 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

cc:     John Harris 
          David Weeden 

April 15



Ronald Bergstrom, Chair: 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair: Y 

Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner: 

Y 

A true copy, Attest, April 15, 2019 

Barnstable County Regional Clerk 

Y 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

BANRSTABLE, SS. 

At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners on the 

fifteenth day of April, A.D. 2020, held through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts 

Governor Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on 

March 12, 2020, motion by Commissioner Beaty to reappoint David Weeden to the Cape Cod 

Commission as the Native American Representative for a one-year term from April 25, 2020 

through April 24, 2021, as presented, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0  



Barnstable County First District Court  
 

{A0645231.1 }  

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

INTER-GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN  
 

THE CAPE & VINEYARD ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
 

AND 
 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
 

FOR MANAGEMENT OF SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC ENERGY FACILITY 
 

LOCATED AT BARNSTABLE COUNTY FIRST DISTRICT COURTHOUSE 
 
 
 

_________________  ___, 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



{A0645231.1 } 2 
 

 
INTER-GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN  
THE CAPE & VINEYARD ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

AND 
BARNSTABLE COUNTY, MASSACHUSETTS 

 
 

This Inter-Governmental Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into this __   day 
of _____________, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) and is by and between the Cape & Vineyard 
Electric Cooperative, Inc., a Massachusetts cooperative corporation (“CVEC”), and Barnstable 
County, Massachusetts (“County”).  CVEC and the County may be referred to as “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the County is a member of CVEC; 
 
WHEREAS, at the County’s request, CVEC issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) 

pursuant to G. L. c. 164, § 137, seeking a Developer to design, procure, install, test, commission, 
own, operate and maintain a solar energy generation facility (“PV System”) to be located on 
property owned by the County and leased to the Developer;   

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the RFP, County has entered into a lease agreement (“Lease”), 

attached as Exhibit A, with the Developer to develop the PV System, specifically a solar roof 
mounted PV System at the Barnstable County First District Courthouse,  3195 Main Street, 
Barnstable, MA 02630 (the “Premises”), to be owned by the Developer and to be operated by the 
Developer on space leased by the County to the Developer; and 

 
 WHEREAS, per the County’s request, CVEC will perform financial and operations 
management services on the County’s behalf for the PV System, including the tasks listed below. 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises set forth 
below, CVEC and County agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I:  SCOPE OF WORK 

1.1 Conditions Precedent.   The obligations of the County and CVEC under this 
Agreement shall be conditioned upon execution by Developer and County of the Lease as of or 
of even date with the Effective Date of this Agreement.   

1.2 Scope of Work.  CVEC shall serve as the County’s representative and complete 
the following tasks in the Lease on behalf of the County: 

(a) Represent the County’s interests with the Developer and the utility and 
facilitate PV System commissioning; 



{A0645231.1 } 3 
 

(b) Represent the County’s interests concerning PV System design and 
construction; 

(c) Monitor Developer’s compliance with the federal, state, and local permit 
and regulatory requirements identified in the Lease, exclusive of tax issues; 

(d) Ensure that Developer provides for Decommissioning Assurance per the 
terms of the Lease; 

(e) Provide County with access to information regarding the operations of the 
PV System or other data concerning the PV System; and 

The County’s obligations in the Lease not specifically tasked to CVEC herein shall remain the 
sole responsibility of the County. 
 

1.3 County’s Informational Obligations.  The County shall provide to CVEC all 
information necessary for CVEC to fulfill the Scope of Work set forth in Section 1.2, including 
making County administrative staff available as necessary or appropriate. 

ARTICLE II:  COMPENSATION FOR CVEC’S SERVICES 

2.1 Payment to CVEC and Billing.  Based on the CVEC Scope of Work set forth in 
Article I and in accordance with a Sliding Scale established by a CVEC Board of Directors 
vote, the County shall pay to CVEC $200 for CVEC annual services. CVEC shall invoice the 
County annually on the project’s commercial operations anniversary, and County shall pay 
CVEC within thirty (30) days of the receipt of CVEC’s invoice. 

ARTICLE III:  TERM 

3.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) commences on the Effective 
Date and continues for a period of twelve (12) months unless terminated earlier by either Party 
pursuant to Section 4.1.  The County may, in its sole discretion, elect to renew this Agreement 
for up to nine (9) additional 12-month terms, with amendments to Exhibit A (Lease), including 
pricing terms and scope of services, as the Parties may agree to in writing.  The Term may be 
extended upon mutual agreement of the Parties and in conformance with all Applicable Legal 
Requirements for one five (5) year period, with such modifications to the provisions hereto 
which may be appropriate to such extension and which are mutually agreed upon in writing.  A 
Party seeking to extend the Term of this Agreement shall send written notice of such intent to 
the other Party no later than two (2) months prior to the Termination Date. 

ARTICLE IV:  NONPERFORMANCE; TERMINATION; REMEDIES 

4.1 Nonperformance. 

(a) In the event that CVEC fails to perform any part of the Scope of Work set forth in 
Section 1.2 of this Agreement, the County may provide written notice to CVEC of such 
nonperformance, which CVEC may then within ten (10) business days cure the nonperformance 
or produce a plan acceptable to the County (in its reasonable discretion) to cure the 



{A0645231.1 } 4 
 

nonperformance.  In the event that CVEC fails to cure the nonperformance or to agree with the 
County on a plan to cure the nonperformance within that timeframe, the County may (i) remove 
such task(s) from CVEC’s Scope of Work and take over such responsibility or responsibilities, 
with compensation to CVEC reduced accordingly, or (ii) terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) 
days’ written notice to CVEC.  In taking over, the County shall have the right, for completing the 
services, to have access to any database and materials of CVEC.  CVEC shall not be held liable 
for nonperformance of any part of the Scope of Work if the reason for such nonperformance is 
lack of adequate or accurate information or resources from the County. 

(b) In the event that the County fails to provide information to CVEC in accordance 
with Section 1.3 or to compensate CVEC in accordance with Section 2.1, CVEC may provide 
written notice to the County of such noncompliance, which the County may then within ten (10) 
business days cure the noncompliance or produce a plan acceptable to the other Party (in its 
reasonable discretion) to cure the noncompliance.  In the event that the County fails to cure the 
noncompliance, CVEC may terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) days’ written notice to the 
County, with interest on any amounts due and owing related to the nonperformance or breach.   

4.2 Termination.  In addition to the termination provisions for nonperformance set 
forth in Section 4.1, this Agreement shall be subject to termination by either Party for (a) Force 
Majeure (as defined in the Lease), or (b) in the event that the Lease is terminated, except to the 
extent the Lease is terminated due to CVEC’s or County’s exercise of their Purchase Options (as 
defined therein). 

4.3 Remedies.  Each Party reserves and shall have all rights and remedies available 
to it at law or in equity with respect to any nonperformance or breach by the other Party under 
this Agreement, subject to any limitations set forth in this Agreement.   

4.4 Limitation of Liability.  NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY 
SPECIAL, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES 
OF ANY CHARACTER, RESULTING FROM, ARISING OUT OF, IN CONNECTION 
WITH OR IN ANY WAY INCIDENT TO ANY ACT OR OMISSION OF EITHER PARTY 
RELATED TO THE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT, IRRESPECTIVE OF 
WHETHER CLAIMS OR ACTIONS FOR SUCH DAMAGES ARE BASED UPON 
CONTRACT, WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER 
THEORY AT LAW OR EQUITY.  

 
ARTICLE V:  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

5.1 Dispute Resolution.  Unless otherwise expressly provided for in this Agreement, 
the dispute resolution procedures of this Section 5.1 shall be the exclusive mechanism to resolve 
disputes arising under this Agreement.  The Parties agree to use their respective best efforts to 
resolve any dispute(s) that may arise regarding this Agreement.  Any dispute that cannot be 
resolved by informal negotiations shall be submitted to nonbinding mediation.  If the parties 
cannot agree upon a mediator, the parties shall request that the American Arbitration 
Association, Boston, Massachusetts, appoint a mediator.  Each party shall bear its own 



{A0645231.1 } 5 
 

mediation costs.  Injunctive relief may be sought by either Party without resorting to mediation 
to prevent irreparable harm.   

ARTICLE VI:  MISCELLANEOUS 

6.1 Modification.  This Agreement may be modified only by a written amendment 
signed by both Parties hereto.  In the event of a regulatory or legal change related to net 
metering that materially impacts this Agreement, the Parties shall use good faith efforts to 
modify this Agreement to comply with such regulatory or legal change, subject to termination 
rights in this Agreement. 

6.2 Interpretation.  When used in this Agreement, terms shall have the meanings 
defined in Exhibit A (Lease), unless otherwise provided.   Words not defined herein shall be 
given their common and ordinary meanings. 

6.3 Construction.  The Parties acknowledge that inconsistencies may exist between 
this Agreement and the Lease between the County and the Developer, and that CVEC and the 
County will use their best efforts to construe this Agreement harmoniously with that Lease. 

6.4 No Assignment Without Permission.  The Parties agree that each shall not 
assign, subcontract or delegate its rights, privileges or obligations under this Agreement without 
the prior written approval of the other Party, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.   

6.5 Entire Agreement; Binding Effect.  This Agreement constitutes the entire 
agreement between the Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all 
prior oral or written agreements and understandings between the Parties relating to the subject 
matter hereof.  This Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding upon the Parties and their 
respective successors and permitted assigns. 

6.6 Expenses.  Each Party hereto shall pay all expenses incurred by it in connection 
with its entering into this Agreement, including but not limited to, all attorneys’ fees and 
expenses. 

6.7 No Joint Venture.  Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute either 
Party a partner, agent or legal representative of the other Party or to create a joint venture, 
partnership, agency or any relationship between the Parties.  The obligations of the Parties are 
individual and not collective in nature. 

6.8 Joint Work Product.  This Agreement shall be considered the work product of 
both Parties hereto, and, therefore, no rule of strict construction shall be applied against either 
Party. 

6.9 Waiver. No waiver by either Party hereto of any one or more defaults by the 
other Party in the performance of any provision of this Agreement shall operate or be construed 
as a waiver of any future default, whether of like or different character.  No failure on the part of 
either Party hereto to complain of any action or non-action on the part of the other Party, no 
matter how long the same may continue, shall be deemed to be a waiver of any right hereunder 



{A0645231.1 } 6 
 

by the Party so failing.  A waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall only be 
effective if made in writing and signed by the Party who is making such waiver. 

6.10 Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties 
hereunder shall be governed by and shall be construed, enforced and performed in accordance 
with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts without regard to principles of conflicts 
of law.  The Parties agree that Barnstable County Superior Court, Massachusetts shall have 
jurisdiction over any litigation entered into hereunder.   

 
The Parties agree that to the maximum extent permissible by law, nothing in this 

Agreement shall be interpreted to eliminate or reduce legal protections or defenses available to the 
CVEC as public cooperative or to the County as municipal entity. 

6.11 Nondiscrimination.  The Parties agree that they shall not, because of race, color, 
national origin, ancestry, age, sex, religion, physical or mental handicap, or sexual orientation, 
gender identity, genetic information, or status as a veteran, discriminate against any qualified 
employee, applicant for employment, subcontractor, or person or firm seeking to provide goods 
or services to each Party, or deny any person access to the Premises or to any activities or 
programs carried out upon the Premises.  The Parties shall comply with all applicable federal and 
state statutes, rules, and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment or public 
accommodation. 

6.12 Severability.  If any article, section, phrase or portion of this Agreement is, for 
any reason, held or adjudged to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such article, section, phrase, or portion so adjudged shall be deemed separate, 
severable and independent and the remainder of this Agreement shall be and remain in full force 
and effect and shall not be invalidated or rendered illegal or unenforceable or otherwise affected 
by such adjudication, provided the basic purpose of this Agreement and the benefits to the 
Parties are not substantially impaired. 

6.13 Further Assurances. From time to time and at any time at and after the 
execution of this Agreement, each Party shall execute, acknowledge and deliver such documents 
and assurances, reasonably requested by the other and shall take any other action consistent 
with the terms of this Agreement that may be reasonably requested by the other for the purpose 
of effecting or confirming any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

6.14 Survival.  Termination of this Agreement for any reason shall not relieve the 
Parties of any obligation accrued or accruing prior to such termination, including, but not 
limited to, the obligations set forth in Article 5 (Dispute Resolution), which shall survive the 
expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

6.15 Counterparts; Scanned Copy.  This Agreement may be executed in 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one 
and the same instrument.  The Parties agree that a scanned or electronically reproduced copy or 
image of this Agreement bearing the signatures of the Parties hereto shall be deemed an original 
and may be introduced or submitted in any action or proceeding as competent evidence of the 
execution, terms and existence of this Agreement notwithstanding the failure or inability to 



{A0645231.1 } 7 
 

produce or tender an original, executed counterpart of this Agreement and without the 
requirement that the unavailability of such original, executed counterpart of this Agreement first 
be proven. 

6.16 No Limitation of Regulatory Authority.  The Parties acknowledge that nothing 
in this Agreement shall be deemed to be an agreement by any Party to issue or cause the 
issuance of any permit or approval, or to limit or otherwise affect the ability of any Party to 
fulfill its regulatory mandate or execute its regulatory powers consistent with Applicable Legal 
Requirements. 

6.17 Notice.   

All correspondence and notices between County and CVEC shall be directed to the 
following: 
 

If to County: 
 

Barnstable County Administrator 
Barnstable County 
3195 Main Street, 
Barnstable, MA 02630 
Attn:  ___________________ 
Phone (___) ___-_____ 
Email___________ 

 
If to CVEC: 
 

Liz Argo 
Executive Director 
Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
23H2 White’s Path, Suite 2 
South Yarmouth, MA 02664 
Tel: 774-722-1812  
largo@cvecinc.org 

 
Notices hereunder shall be deemed properly served (i) by hand delivery, on the day and at the 
time on which delivered to the intended recipient at the address set forth in this Agreement; (ii) 
by mail, on the third Business Day after the day on which deposited in the United States certified 
or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the intended recipient 
at its address set forth in this Agreement; or (iii) by overnight Federal Express or other reputable 
overnight express mail service, on the next Business Day after delivery to such express mail 
service, addressed to the intended recipient at its address set forth in this Agreement.  Notices 
may also be sent by electronic mail message and shall be deemed properly served when the 
sending Party receives a confirmation that the message has been completely transmitted without 
error (out-of-office auto-responses shall not comply), provided that messages transmitted on any 
day that is not a Business Day, or after 5:00 p.m. local time (at the location of the receiving 
Party) on a Business Day, shall be deemed given on the next Business Day following the day on 



{A0645231.1 } 8 
 

which the sending Party receives a confirmation that the message has been completely 
transmitted without error.  The Parties are responsible for maintaining current and complete 
contact information; any Party may change its contact person and the contact information 
provided above by giving written notice thereof.  
 

6.18 G.L. c. 40 §4A.  The Parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement is an 
inter-governmental agreement entered into in accordance with G.L. c. 40 §4A.  The Parties shall 
maintain accurate and comprehensive records of services performed, costs incurred, and 
reimbursements and contributions received under this Agreement and undertake regular audits 
of such records. 

6.19 Ownership of Documents and Work Product.  In the event of termination of 
this Agreement, all documents, data, spreadsheets, databases, and information of any kind 
developed by CVEC, as well as all results or products of the services provided by CVEC 
pursuant to this Agreement or the Statement of Work in the Peregrine Agreement related to this 
Agreement shall be the sole property of the County, and upon request of the County shall be 
returned to the County.   

 
 

 
[Signature page to follow.] 



{A0645231.1 } 9 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date. 
 
CVEC       
Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc.   
 
By:  __________________________ By: ___________________________ 
Name:       Name:  
Title:   Clerk     Title: President     
 
23H2 White’s Path 
Suite 2 
South Yarmouth, MA 02664 
Tel: (774) 722 -1812  
  

 
 

COUNTY 
Barnstable County 
 
By:  ________________________ 
 
Name:  
 
Title:   

 
 

 
 
 
 

List of Exhibits to Agreement 
 

Exhibit A – Lease between County and Developer (including related exhibits) 



Barnstable County First District Court  
 

{A0645231.1 }  

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEASE BETWEEN COUNTY AND DEVELOPER 



BARNSTABLE COUNTY  
In the Year Two Thousand Nineteen 

Proposed Ordinance 20- __ 

To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease agreement between Barnstable County and Solect Energy 
Development LLC for Rooftop Photovoltaic Energy Facility  at the Barnstable County First District Building, 
located at 3195 Main St., Barnstable, MA 02630 

The Cape Cod regional government, known as Barnstable County, hereby ordains; 

Section 1. Source of Authority and General Purposes 

In accordance with Article II, Section 2-8, (d) (vii) of the Barnstable County Home Rule Charter, Barnstable County 
hereby enters into a lease agreement between Barnstable County and Solect Energy Development LLC for Rooftop 
Photovoltaic Energy Facility at the Barnstable County First District Building, located at 3195 Main St., Barnstable, 
MA 02630 

Section 2. Effective Date 

The Ground Lease Ordinance shall take effect upon passage of the ordinance by the Barnstable County Assembly 
of Delegates and execution by the Barnstable County Commissioners, and Solect Energy Development LLC 

Section 3. Ground Lease Table of Contents 

Article I: Definitions 
Article II: Lease of Premises 
Article III: Term 
Article IV: Rent 
Article V: Design, Installation and Operation of PV System 
Article VI: Developer’s Representations, Warranties, and Additional Covenants 
Article VII: Host’s Representations, Warranties, and Additional Covenants 
Article VIII: Termination; Default; Remedies; Purchase Options 
Article IX: Indemnification; Insurance 
Article X: Quiet Enjoyment 
Article XI: Assignment and Mortgage 
Article XII: Dispute Resolution 
Article XIII: Miscellaneous 
Memorandum of Lease Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 183, §4 

Approved by the Board of County Commissioners on _______________________ at ________. 
Date                            Time 

  Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

April 15, 2020 10:00 AM



 

 
 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 
 

 
BANRSTABLE, SS. 
 

     

  

   

 

 

 

 
 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair: 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair: Y 

Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner: 

Y 

A true copy, Attest, April 15, 2019 

Barnstable County Regional Clerk 

Y 

At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners on the fifteenth 

day of April, A.D. 2020, held through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts Governor 

Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on March 12, 

2020, motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the introduction of Proposed Ordinance 20-__, 

To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease agreement for Rooftop Photovoltaic 

Energy Facility between Solect Energy Development LLC and Barnstable County at the 

Barnstable County First District Building, located at 3195 Main St., Barnstable, MA 02630 as 

presented, at the next meeting of the County Assembly of Delegates, pursuant to Section 2 – 8(e) 

of the Barnstable County Home Rule Charter, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0  

 

 



 

 
 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 
 

 
BANRSTABLE, SS. 
 

     

  

   

 

 

 

 
 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair: 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair: Y 

Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner: 

Y 

A true copy, Attest, April 8, 2019 

Barnstable County Regional Clerk 

Y 

At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners on the eighth 

day of April, A.D. 2020, held through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts Governor 

Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on March 12, 

2020, motion by Commissioner Flynn to authorize the Chair to execute agreements regarding the 

Cape and Vineyard Electric Cooperative (CVEC) Round 5 Photovoltaic/Storage Initiatives in 

Barnstable County after approval by the County Board of Regional Commissioners, as presented, 

2nd by Commissioner Beaty, approved 3-0-0   

 



 

CVEC Round 5 RFP 

{A0635948.1 }  

 

 

 

 

 

 

STANDALONE LEASE AGREEMENT  

FOR  

ROOFTOP PHOTOVOLTAIC ENERGY FACILITY  

BETWEEN 

SOLECT ENERGY DEVELOPMENT LLC 

AND 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY, MASSACHUSETTS 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      i 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
ARTICLE I: DEFINITIONS .......................................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE II: LEASE OF PREMISES ........................................................................................... 7 

2.1  Leased Premises ...................................................................................................... 7 
2.2  As-Is Condition of the Premises ............................................................................. 8 
2.3  Ownership of the PV System .................................................................................. 8 
2.4  Net Lease ................................................................................................................ 9 
2.5  Purpose .................................................................................................................... 9 
2.6  Subordination .......................................................................................................... 9 
2.7  No Interference ....................................................................................................... 9 
2.8  Use of the Premises ................................................................................................. 9 
2.9  Notice of Lease ..................................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE III: TERM ................................................................................................................... 10 

3.1  Term ...................................................................................................................... 10 
3.2  Holdover ............................................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE IV: RENT .................................................................................................................... 10 

4.1  Rent ....................................................................................................................... 10 
4.2  Taxes ..................................................................................................................... 11 
4.3  Monthly Minimum Reliability Contribution ........................................................ 11 

ARTICLE V: DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND OPERATION OF PV SYSTEM .................... 11 

5.1  General Description .............................................................................................. 11 
5.2  Conditions Precedent to Commencement of Construction ................................... 11 
5.3  Governmental Permits .......................................................................................... 12 
5.4  Design and Installation ......................................................................................... 13 
5.5  Interconnection with Electric Distribution Grid ................................................... 13 
5.6  Access to and Use of the Premises ....................................................................... 13 
5.7  Plans and Specifications ....................................................................................... 13 
5.8  Maintenance Responsibilities ............................................................................... 13 
5.9  Manufacturer and Installer Warranties ................................................................. 14 
5.10  Use of Installation and/or Maintenance Subcontractors ....................................... 14 
5.11  Alterations ............................................................................................................. 14 
5.12  Host Cooperation .................................................................................................. 14 
5.13  Emergencies .......................................................................................................... 15 
5.14  Damage ................................................................................................................. 15 
5.15  Payment and Performance Bonds ......................................................................... 15 
5.16  Mechanics Liens ................................................................................................... 15 
5.17  Utilities .................................................................................................................. 16 
5.18  Operations and Maintenance Manual; Training ................................................... 16 
5.19  Notice of Commercial Operation .......................................................................... 16 
5.20  Late Completion.................................................................................................... 16 
5.21  Maintenance; Repairs ............................................................................................ 17 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      ii 

 

5.22  Host’s Maintenance .............................................................................................. 17 
5.24  No Voiding of Existing Warranties ...................................................................... 19 
5.25  Use of Hazardous Materials Prohibited ................................................................ 19 

ARTICLE VI: DEVELOPER’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND ADDITIONAL 
COVENANTS .............................................................................................................................. 19 

6.1  Developer’s Representations and Warranties ....................................................... 19 
6.2  Developer’s Covenants ......................................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE VII: HOST’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND ADDITIONAL 
COVENANTS .............................................................................................................................. 20 

7.1  Host’s Representations and Warranties ................................................................ 20 
7.2  Host’s Covenants .................................................................................................. 21 

ARTICLE VIII: TERMINATION; DEFAULT; REMEDIES; PURCHASE OPTIONS............. 21 

8.1  Termination ........................................................................................................... 21 
8.2  Events of Default by Host ..................................................................................... 22 
8.3  Events of Default by Developer ............................................................................ 22 
8.4  Force Majeure ....................................................................................................... 23 
8.5  Remedies ............................................................................................................... 23 
8.6  Step-in Rights of Financier ................................................................................... 24 
8.7  Damage or Destruction of PV System .................................................................. 25 
8.8  Site Restoration ..................................................................................................... 25 
8.9  Abandonment of PV System ................................................................................. 25 
8.10  Decommissioning Assurance ................................................................................ 25 
8.11  Purchase Options .................................................................................................. 26 

ARTICLE IX: INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE ................................................................. 28 

9.1  Developer Indemnification of Host ...................................................................... 28 

ARTICLE X: QUIET ENJOYMENT ........................................................................................... 29 

10.1  Quiet Enjoyment ................................................................................................... 29 
10.2  Host’s Reserved Uses ........................................................................................... 30 

ARTICLE XI: ASSIGNMENT AND MORTGAGE ................................................................... 30 

11.1  Assignment ........................................................................................................... 30 
11.2  Financing by Leasehold Mortgage........................................................................ 30 
11.3  Financing by Leasehold Mortgage Release of Developer .................................... 31 
11.4  Financier Provisions.............................................................................................. 31 

ARTICLE XII: DISPUTE RESOLUTION .................................................................................. 32 

12.1  Dispute Resolution ................................................................................................ 32 
12.2  Stay of Termination .............................................................................................. 33 

  



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      iii 

 

ARTICLE XIII: MISCELLANEOUS .......................................................................................... 33 

13.1  Construction; Obligation to Modify Agreement ................................................... 33 
13.2  Notices .................................................................................................................. 33 
13.3  Entire Agreement; Amendments; Binding Effect ................................................. 34 
13.4  Expenses ............................................................................................................... 34 
13.5  No Joint Venture ................................................................................................... 34 
13.6  Joint Work Product ............................................................................................... 34 
13.7  Waiver ................................................................................................................... 34 
13.8  Governing Law ..................................................................................................... 35 
13.9  Nondiscrimination................................................................................................. 35 
13.10  Severability ........................................................................................................... 35 
13.11  Further Assurances................................................................................................ 35 
13.12  Survival ................................................................................................................. 35 
13.13  Counterparts; Scanned Copy ................................................................................. 35 
13.14  Special Terms and Conditions .............................................................................. 36 
13.15  No Limitation of Regulatory Authority ................................................................ 36 

 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      1 

STANDALONE LEASE AGREEMENT FOR  
 

ROOFTOP PHOTOVOLTAIC ENERGY FACILITY  

BETWEEN 
 

SOLECT ENERGY DEVELOPMENT LLC 
 

AND 
 

COUNTY OF BARNSTABLE, MASSACHUSETTS 
 

This Lease Agreement (the “Agreement” or “Lease”) is entered into this __day of 
________________, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) and is by and between  Solect Energy 
Development LLC (“Developer”), and Barnstable County, Massachusetts, a Massachusetts 
municipal entity with an address of 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630(“Host”). 

RECITALS 

(a) Host wishes to lease an area of rooftop space described in Exhibit A (the 
“Premises”), which is a part of the Property located at 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630 
to the Developer to allow it to design, procure, install, test, commission, own, operate and 
maintain a rooftop photovoltaic system (“PV System”), as defined in Article I (Definitions), on 
the Premises for beneficial public purposes; 

 
(b) Developer wishes to lease the Premises in order to design, procure, install, test, 

commission, own, operate and maintain the PV System on the Premises for beneficial public 
purposes, subject to the terms and restrictions set forth in this Agreement; and 

 
(c) Host has entered into a Services Agreement with the Cape & Vineyard Electric 

Cooperative, Inc., a Massachusetts cooperative corporation with an address at 23H2 White’s 
Path, Suite 2, South Yarmouth, MA 02664 (“CVEC”) pursuant to which CVEC will provide 
consultation, management and oversight concerning the PV System on behalf of the Host, as set 
forth in that Services Agreement and as set forth in this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for consideration paid, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows. 

ARTICLE I:  DEFINITIONS 

When used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings given, unless 
a different meaning is expressed or clearly indicated by the context.  Words defined in this 
Article I which are capitalized shall be given their common and ordinary meanings when they 
appear without capitalization in the text.  Words not defined herein shall be given their common 
and ordinary meanings. 

“Additional Exceptions” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit A-1 hereto. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      2 

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, such Person’s general partner or manager, 
or any other Person that, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, or is 
controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person. 

“Alternative On-bill Credit” means the energy value of generation from an Alternative 
On-bill Generation Unit, as calculated in accordance with 225 CMR 20.08(1)(a)2. 

“Alternative On-bill Generation Unit” has the meaning as set forth in in 225 CMR 20.02. 

“Applicable Legal Requirements” means any present and future law, act, rule, 
requirement, order, bylaw, ordinance, regulation, judgment, decree, or injunction of or by any 
Governmental Authority, and all licenses, permits, tariffs, and other governmental consents, 
which may at any time be applicable to a Party’s rights and obligations hereunder, including, 
without limitation, the design, procurement, construction, installation, operation, ownership, 
maintenance, repair, decommissioning and removal of the PV System on the Premises, as well as 
the selling and purchasing of power therefrom. 

“Bankrupt” means that a Party or other entity (as applicable):  (i) is dissolved (other than 
pursuant to a consolidation, amalgamation or merger); (ii) becomes insolvent or is unable to pay 
its debts or fails (or admits in writing its inability) generally to pay its debts as they become due; 
(iii) makes a general assignment, arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of its 
creditors; (iv) has instituted against it a proceeding seeking a judgment of insolvency or 
bankruptcy or any other relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or other similar law 
affecting creditor’s rights, or a petition is presented for its winding-up, reorganization or 
liquidation, which proceeding or petition is not dismissed, stayed or vacated within twenty (20) 
Business Days thereafter; (v) commences a voluntary proceeding seeking a judgment of 
insolvency or bankruptcy or any other relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or other 
similar law affecting creditors’ rights; (vi) seeks or consents to the appointment of an 
administrator, provisional liquidator, conservator, receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar 
official for it or for all or substantially all of its assets; (vii) has a secured party take possession 
of all or substantially all of its assets, or has a distress, execution, attachment, sequestration or 
other legal process levied, enforced or sued on or against all or substantially all of its assets; 
(viii) causes or is subject to any event with respect to it which, under the applicable laws of any 
jurisdiction, has an analogous effect to any of the events specified in clauses (i) to (vii) inclusive; 
or (ix) takes any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, approval of, or 
acquiescence in, any of the foregoing acts. 

“Business Day” means a day on which Federal Reserve member banks in Boston are 
open for business; and a Business Day shall open at 8:00 a.m. and close at 5:00 p.m.  Eastern 
Prevailing Time. 

“Commercial Operation” means that the PV System is ready for regular, daily 
operation, has undergone testing and met Commissioning Requirements as set forth in the 
Common Technical Specifications, Exhibit E, has been accepted by Developer and Host (and to 
the extent required, the Distribution Company), is in compliance with Applicable Legal 
Requirements in all respects, including all final inspections, is capable of producing Energy and 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      3 

delivering it to the Point of Delivery, and all Training and Documentation Requirements, as 
required in Common Technical Specifications, Exhibit E, are complete and provided to Host. 

“Commercial Operation Date” means the date that the Developer certifies in a written 
notice to the Host that Commercial Operation has been achieved in accordance with 
Section 5.19, subject to the approval of the Host, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. 

“Commercially Reasonable” means any of the practices, methods and acts which, in the 
exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known, or which in the exercise of due 
diligence, should have been known, at the time the decision was made, would have been 
expected in the industry to accomplish the desired result consistent with reliability, safety, 
expedition, project economics and regulations. 

“Construction Commencement Date” means the date that the Developer has secured all 
required permits and approvals from Governmental Authorities and the Distribution Company 
under Applicable Legal Requirements and has mobilized to commence work at the Premises, as 
certified in writing to the Host and CVEC. 

“Contract Year” means the consecutive 12-month period commencing on the 
Commercial Operation Date. 

“Distribution Company” means Eversource Electric Company or any successor thereto. 

“Distribution Company System” means the electric distribution system operated and 
maintained by the Distribution Company. 

“Effective Date” means the date set forth in the introductory paragraph of this 
Agreement. 

“Energy” means the amount of electricity either used or generated over a period of time; 
expressed in terms of kilowatt hour (“kWh”) or megawatt hour (“MWh”).  Energy shall not 
include renewable energy credits, or any investment or production tax credits under Section 45 
of the Internal Revenue Code or otherwise, to the extent that the PV System receives or is 
entitled to receive any such credits. 

“Environmental Claim” means causes of action, claims, fines, penalties, damages, 
demands, administrative or judicial proceedings, notices of noncompliance or violation, consent 
orders or consent agreements arising from activities conducted on or in connection with the 
Work which arise, or are alleged to have arisen, out of any (a) violation of any applicable 
Environmental Law, (b) action by a Governmental Authority for enforcement, cleanup, removal, 
response or remedial action or damages, pursuant to any Environmental Law, or (c) 
compensation, or injunctive relief resulting from injuries to persons or property due to (i) an 
alleged violation of any Environmental Law or (ii) any release of Hazardous Material. 

“Environmental Law” means any and all existing and future Applicable Legal 
Requirements relating to human health, human safety or the environment. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      4 

“Event of Default” means any event of default as defined in Sections 8.2 and 8.3 of this 
Agreement. 

“Event of Termination” means any event of termination as defined in Section 8.1 of this 
Agreement. 

“Financier” means any individual or entity providing money or extending credit for the 
PV System to Developer for: (1) the construction, term or permanent financing of the PV 
System; or (2) working capital or other ordinary business requirements for the PV System.  
“Financier” shall not include common trade creditors of Developer. 

“Force Majeure” means any cause not within the reasonable control of the affected 
Party which precludes that Party from carrying out, in whole or in part, its obligations under this 
Agreement, including, but not limited to, Acts of God; extreme winds; hurricanes; tornadoes; 
fires; epidemics; landslides; earthquakes; floods; other natural catastrophes; strikes; lock-outs or 
other industrial disturbances; acts of public enemies; acts, failures to act or orders of any kind of 
any Governmental Authority acting in its regulatory or judicial capacity; insurrections; military 
action; war, whether or not it is declared; sabotage; riots; civil disturbances or explosions.  
Nothing in this provision is intended to excuse either Party from performing due to any 
governmental act, failure to act, or order, where it was reasonably within such Party’s power to 
prevent such act, failure to act, or order.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the 
contrary, Force Majeure shall not mean: 

A. Inclement weather affecting construction, start-up, operation, or 
decommissioning of the PV System. 

B. Unavailability of sun. 

C. Unavailability of equipment, repairs or spare parts for the PV System, 
except to the extent due to a qualifying event of Force Majeure. 

D. Inability to obtain, maintain or renew any Permit or any delay in 
obtaining, maintaining, or renewing any Permit, except that Developer shall be able to assert 
Host’s governmental actions on Permits for the PV System as an event of Force Majeure. 

E. Any nonpayment under this Agreement or any third party agreement. 

F. Economic hardship of either Party. 

“Good Engineering Practice” means any of the practices, methods and acts which, in 
the exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known, or which in the exercise of due 
diligence, should have been known, at the time the decision was made, would have been 
expected to accomplish the desired result consistent with reliability, safety, expedition, project 
economics and Applicable Legal Requirements for similar facilities in the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts.  Good Engineering Practice is not intended to be limited to consideration of any 
one practice, method or act, to the exclusion of all others, but rather, is intended to require the 
consideration of a spectrum of possible practices, methods or acts. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      5 

“Governmental Authority” means the United States of America, the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts, and any political or municipal subdivision thereof, and any agency, department, 
commission, board, bureau, independent electric system operator, or instrumentality of any of 
them, or any court or tribunal, including Host in its regulatory capacity but excluding Host as 
Lessor under this Agreement. 

“Interest Rate” means a fluctuating interest rate per annum equal to the sum of (1) the 
Prime Rate as stated in the “Bonds, Rates & Yields” section of The Wall Street Journal on the 
Effective Date and thereafter on the first day of every calendar month, plus (2) two percentage 
points.  (In the event that such rate is no longer published in The Wall Street Journal or such 
publication is no longer published, the Interest Rate shall be set using a comparable index or 
interest rate selected by Host Town and reasonably acceptable to Developer.)  The Interest Rate 
hereunder shall change on the first day of every calendar month.  Interest shall be calculated 
daily on the basis of a year of 365 days and the actual number of days for which such interest is 
due. 

 “Leasehold Mortgage” has the meaning set forth in Section 11.4. 

“Metering Device(s)” means any and all revenue quality meters installed by Developer 
or the Distribution Company at, before, or after the Point of Delivery necessary or appropriate 
for the delivery of Energy into the Distribution Company System, the calculation of Net 
Metering Credits, and the registration, recording, and transmission of information regarding the 
amount of Net Energy generated by the PV System and delivered to the Point of Delivery for 
sale. 

“Monthly Minimum Reliability Contribution” has the meaning set forth in G. L. 
c.  164, §139(j) and 220 CMR 18.10, as approved by the Department of Public Utilities in the 
Distribution Company’s tariff. 

“Net Energy” means the actual and verifiable amount of Energy generated by the PV 
System as metered in kWh at the Metering Device(s), and in conformance with Applicable Legal 
Requirements and the Tariffs. 

“Net Metered Generation Unit” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR 20.02. 

“Net Metering” means the process of measuring the difference between electricity 
delivered by a local electric distribution company and electricity generated by a Net Metering 
facility and fed back to the local electric distribution company, as set forth under M.G.L. c. 164, 
§§ 138 – 140 and 220 CMR 18.00, as may be amended from time to time by a Governmental 
Authority, and pursuant to the Distribution Company’s Tariffs. 

“Net Metering Credits” has the meaning set forth in 220 CMR 18.00, as may be 
amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority, as implemented by the Tariffs. 

“Outside Construction Commencement Date” means the later of ninety (90) days after 
the Effective Date or ninety (90) days after  Developer receives notification from DOER that 
DOER has issued a final Statement of Qualifications approving the developer’s enrollment in the 
SMART Program. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      6 

“Outside Commercial Operation Date” means the later of one-hundred eighty (180) days 
from the Effective Date or one-hundred eighty (180) days after Developer receives notification 
from DOER that DOER has issued a final Statement of Qualifications approving the developer’s 
enrollment in the SMART Program. 

 “Parties” means Host and Developer collectively, and their respective successors and 
permitted assignees. 

“Party” means Host or Developer individually, and their respective successors and 
permitted assignees. 

“Permits” means all state, federal, county, and local authorizations, certificates, permits, 
licenses and approvals required by any Governmental Authority for the construction, operation 
and maintenance of the PV System. 

“Permitted Use” means the use, occupation, and enjoyment of the Premises by 
Developer to design, procure, install, test, commission, own, operate, maintain, expand and 
remove the PV System, all of which are designed and intended for the purpose of producing 
solar-generated electricity in accordance with Applicable Legal Requirements. 

“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation (including a business trust),, 
limited liability company, joint stock company, trusts, unincorporated association, joint venture, 
Governmental Authority, or other entity. 

“Point of Delivery” means the agreed location or locations on the Premises where Net 
Energy is to be delivered and received, as further set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

 “Premises” means the site for PV System installation and operation owned by Host 
located at the Property, which is more specifically identified in Exhibit A to this Agreement. 

“Property” means the real property owned by the Host upon which the Premises is 
located. 

“PV System” means the solar electric generating facility, including, but not limited to, 
the PV System Assets, which produces the Net Energy as further identified in Exhibit B attached 
hereto.  The PV System may (or may not include) a Battery Energy Storage System, as specified 
in Exhibit B. 

“PV System Assets” means each and all of the assets of which the PV System is 
comprised, including the solar energy panels, mounting systems, carports, tracking devices, 
inverters, integrators, Battery Energy Storage Systems, if any,  and other related equipment and 
components installed on the Premises, electric lines and conduits required to connect such 
equipment to the Point of Delivery, protective and associated equipment, improvements, 
Metering Device(s), and other tangible and intangible assets, permits, property rights and 
contract rights reasonably necessary for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the PV 
System. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      7 

“Services Agreement” has the meaning set forth in the recitals, a form of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit G. 

“SMART Program” means the Solar Massachusetts Renewable Target (SMART) 
Program as established in 225 CMR 20. 

“SMART Tariff” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR 20.02, as may be amended from 
time to time by a Governmental Authority. 

“Solar Net Metering Facility” has the meaning set forth in 220 CMR 18.00, as may be 
amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority. 

“Solar Tariff Generation Unit” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR 20.02, as may be 
amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority. 

“Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1. 

“Termination Date” means the earlier to occur of: (1) the last day of the Term; or (2) 
the date of termination. 

ARTICLE II:  LEASE OF PREMISES 

2.1 Leased Premises.   

(a) Host, in consideration of the covenants and agreements on the part of the 
Developer, hereby leases to Developer, and Developer accepts and takes from Host, the 
possession, use, enjoyment, and control of the Premises (as described in Exhibits A and A-1) for 
the sole and exclusive purpose of conducting the Permitted Use, as set forth below, subject to the 
conditions in this Agreement and the Host’s reserved uses as set forth in Article X (Quiet 
Enjoyment). 

(b) As shown in Exhibit A, Host also grants to Developer a non-exclusive 
license for reasonable pedestrian and vehicular access to and egress from the Premises plus the 
right and sufficient space for the installation, operation and maintenance of electric lines, cables, 
conduits and related equipment necessary to operate the PV System and interconnect the PV 
System to the local electric distribution system operated by the Distribution Company such that 
the PV System qualifies as a Solar Net Metering Facility. 

(c) Host also grants Developer the exclusive right to receive sunlight at the 
Premises during every hour of each day that sunlight reasonably could be received by the PV 
System, and Host shall not create or install vegetation or structures that will obstruct the passage 
of sunlight to the Premises occupied by the PV System. 

(d) To the extent requested by Developer and reasonably necessary, and 
subject to Applicable Legal Requirements and available space, as determined in Host’s sole 
discretion, Host shall provide necessary space on the Property at locations and for such time as 
specified by Host (such locations, the “Construction Laydown Area”) for temporary (i) storage 
and staging of tools, materials and equipment, (ii) construction laydown, (iii) parking of 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      8 

construction crew vehicles, (iv) vehicular and pedestrian access and access for rigging and 
material handling, and other temporary facilities reasonably necessary to construct, erect, install 
and remove the System.  The foregoing notwithstanding, Developer shall not obstruct access to 
the Property, or interfere with or disrupt Host’s use thereof or operations therein.  Following 
temporary use thereof, the Developer shall immediately restore the Construction Laydown Area 
and such other areas of the Property used by the Developer, but not included in the Premises, to 
their condition prior to Developer’s use. 

(e) The Premises are demised subject to the following: 

(i) any encumbrances shown on the survey of the Premises; 

(ii) covenants, restrictions, easements, agreements, and reservations, as 
set forth in Exhibit A-1; 

(iii) present and future zoning laws, ordinances, bylaws, resolutions, 
and regulations of the municipality in which the land lies, and all present and future 
ordinances, laws, regulations, and orders of all boards, bureaus, commissions, and bodies 
of any municipal, county, state, or federal authority, now or hereafter having jurisdiction, 
so long as they permit or otherwise regulate the use of the Premises for the Permitted 
Use; 

(iv) the condition and state of repair of the Premises as the same may 
be on the Effective Date; 

(v) all electric and telecommunication cable or wireless services 
charges, accrued or unaccrued, fixed or not fixed, from and after the Effective Date 
arising as a result of the construction and operation of the PV System or any appurtenant 
facilities or improvements associated with the Permitted Use; 

(f) full compliance by the Developer with all Applicable Legal Requirements; 
and 

(g) Host’s reserved uses, as provided in Article X (Quiet Enjoyment) and set 
forth in the Additional Exceptions, attached hereto as Exhibit A-1, or Special Terms and 
Conditions, attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

2.2 As-Is Condition of the Premises.  Developer accepts the Premises in the 
condition or state in which the Premises now are without any representation or warranty, express 
or implied in fact or by law, by Host and without recourse to Host, as to the title thereto, the 
nature, condition or usability thereof or the use or uses to which the Premises or any part thereof 
may be put, subject, however, to such representations and warranties specifically provided herein 
and subject, further, to Developer’s right to terminate this Agreement for failure of conditions 
precedent to construction set forth in Section 5.2. 

2.3 Ownership of the PV System.  Except as otherwise provided herein, prior to and 
during the Term, Host shall have no ownership interest in the PV System, except for any 
ownership interest Host may have by exercising its purchase option in accordance with 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      9 

Section 8.11 or by virtue of being a CVEC Member in the event that CVEC exercises its 
purchase option in accordance with Section 8.11.  Developer and Host acknowledge and agree 
that Host shall not be required to make any expenditure, incur any obligation, or incur any 
liability of any kind whatsoever in connection with the ownership, construction, operation, 
maintenance, repair, or removal of the PV System. 

2.4 Net Lease.  Except as expressly set forth herein, the Parties acknowledge and 
agree that Host shall not be required prior to or during the Term to make any expenditure, incur 
any obligation, or incur any liability of any kind whatsoever in connection with this Agreement 
or the ownership, installation, operation, maintenance, repair reconstruction or removal of the PV 
System, subject to the Additional Exceptions set forth in Exhibit A-1. 

2.5 Purpose.  The Premises shall be used for the sole and exclusive purpose of 
conducting the Permitted Use.  Except with the prior express written consent of Host Town, 
Developer shall not use the Premises for any use other than the Permitted Use. 

2.6 Subordination.  Developer acknowledges and understands that this Agreement 
and all rights of Developer are subject and subordinate to all existing leases, easements, rights of 
way, declarations, restrictions, permits, or other matters of record and all existing agreements of 
the Host with respect to the Premises.  Developer acknowledges and understands that the Host 
reserves the right to grant additional leases, easements, or rights of way, whether recorded or 
unrecorded, as may be necessary, which do not unreasonably interfere with Developer’s use of 
the Premises and the operation of the PV System.  Host shall provide Developer with reasonable 
notice in the event that Host grants such additional rights on the Premises to a third party.  
Notwithstanding any term to the contrary contained herein, Host shall provide Developer with a 
commercially reasonable Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment Agreement for any 
and all existing and future mortgagees and tenants of the Property. 

2.7 No Interference.  Developer shall operate, maintain and repair the PV System in 
a manner that will not obstruct or interfere with other uses of the Property, as identified in 
Exhibit A-1 to this Lease.  In the event interference occurs, Developer agrees to take all 
commercially reasonable steps necessary to eliminate such interference promptly, but no later 
than thirty (30) days from notification by the Host.   

Host may make alterations to the Premises that do not materially interfere with or 
substantially impair the installation and operation of the PV System.  The Developer 
acknowledges and agrees that Host may have continued operation or maintenance 
responsibilities at the Premises to be conducted at the sole expense of the Host, and Developer 
will use its best efforts to cooperate with Host’s prosecution and completion of such work. 

2.8 Use of the Premises.  Developer and its subcontractors, agents, consultants, and 
representatives shall have reasonable access at all reasonable times, subject to any Special 
Conditions in Exhibit D (including under emergency conditions) to the necessary portion of the 
Premises for the purpose of construction, operation, inspection, maintenance, repair and removal 
of the PV System, and to any documents, materials and records of Host relating to the Premises 
that Developer reasonably requests in conjunction with these activities.  Developer shall provide 
Host with reasonable notice of all activities conducted by or on behalf of Developer on the 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      10 

Premises relating to the PV System.  During any such activities, Developer, and its 
subcontractors, agents, consultants and representatives shall comply with Host’s reasonable 
safety and security procedures (as may be promulgated from time to time) and Developer and its 
subcontractors, agents, consultants and representatives shall conduct such activities in such a 
manner and such a time and day as to cause minimum interference with Host’s activities.   

2.9 Notice of Lease.  Developer shall use Commercially Reasonable efforts to cause 
a Notice of Lease to be properly recorded, and Host shall provide Commercially Reasonable 
assistance as necessary for Developer to do so, with the applicable land registry that in each case 
includes all information as may be required pursuant to M.G.L. c. 183, §4 with respect to the real 
property rights described in the Lease, as applicable.  Developer shall be responsible for all 
reasonable documented costs of recording the Notice of Lease in a form attached hereto as 
Exhibit H. 

ARTICLE III:  TERM 

3.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) commences on the Effective 
Date of this Agreement and ends at the earlier of 11:59 PM on the day preceding the twentieth 
(20th) anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date (the “Termination Date”) or such date as 
of which this Agreement may be earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.  
The Term may be extended upon mutual agreement of the Parties and in conformance with all 
Applicable Legal Requirements, for one five (5) year period, with such modifications to the 
provisions hereto as may be appropriate to such extension and which are mutually agreed upon 
in writing.  A Party seeking to extend the Term of this Agreement shall send written notice of 
such intent to the other Party no later than two (2) months prior to the Termination Date. 

3.2 Holdover.  If Developer or any party claiming by, through or under Developer, 
retains possession of the Premises or any part thereof for longer than one hundred twenty (120) 
days after the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, then Host may, at its option, serve 
written notice upon Developer that such holding over constitutes (i) a month-to-month tenancy, 
upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease, or (ii) the creation of a tenancy-at-
sufferance, and in either event such possession shall be upon the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Lease.  Developer shall also pay to Landlord all damages sustained by Host resulting from 
retention of such possession by Developer including but not limited to court costs and attorney’s 
fees.  Developer hereby agrees that the provisions of this Section shall not constitute a waiver by 
Host of any right of re-entry as set forth in this Lease or otherwise; and that the receipt of any 
Rent or any other act in apparent affirmance of the tenancy shall not operate as a waiver of 
Host’s right to terminate this Lease for Developer’s breach of the Lease.  For greater clarity, the 
120-day period mentioned in this section is the period afforded to Developer for removal of the 
PV System pursuant to Section 8.9 of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV: RENT 

4.1 Rent.  Commencing on the Commercial Operation Date until the end of the Term, 
Developer shall pay to Host an annual rental payment in the amount set forth in Exhibit A-2, to 
be paid to the Host on a lump sum basis beginning on or before the Commercial Operation Date 
and on each anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date until the end of the Term.  The 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      11 

amount of the rent payment shall be pro-rated for the last calendar year of Commercial 
Operation.  If Developer shall fail to pay Host any sum required to be paid by Developer to Host 
within ten (10) Business Days after such payment is due, interest on the unpaid amount shall 
accrue at the Interest Rate from and including the date such payment is due but excluding the 
date the payment is received. 

4.2 Taxes.  Developer shall be responsible for and pay to the local Governmental 
Authority all ad valorum real and personal property taxes, if any, assessed by the local 
Governmental Authority, with respect to the leasehold or the PV System, as may be further set 
forth in Exhibit D (Special Terms and Conditions).  The Parties acknowledge and agree that 
within thirty (30) days of Developer’s payment of such charges and fees to the Host, the Host 
will have ninety (90) days to reimburse Developer for such charges and fees.  In the event any of 
the sales of Net Energy hereunder are to be exempted from or not subject to one or more 
Governmental Charges, the applicable Party shall, promptly upon the other Party’s request 
therefor, provide the other Party with all necessary documentation to evidence such exemption or 
exclusion. 

4.3 Monthly Minimum Reliability Contribution.  Developer shall be responsible to 
pay any Monthly Minimum Reliability Contribution charged or assessed to Host by the 
Distribution Company. 

ARTICLE V:  DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND OPERATION OF PV SYSTEM 

5.1 General Description.  Except as otherwise specified herein, the PV System shall 
consist of the equipment and property described in Exhibit B. 

5.2 Conditions Precedent to Commencement of Construction.  The right to and 
obligation of Developer to commence construction of the PV System on the Premises is subject 
to the fulfillment or waiver by the applicable Party of each of the following conditions precedent: 

(a) Developer shall have obtained financing on terms acceptable to Developer 
in its sole discretion.  For the purposes of this subparagraph, financing may include debt 
financing, equity financing, tax equity financing, loan and credit agreements, notes, bonds, 
indentures, security agreements, lease financing agreements, mortgages, interest rate exchanges, 
or swap agreements, and any other documents relating to the development, bridge construction 
or the permanent financing for the construction and operation of the PV System; 

(b) Developer shall have obtained all permits, licenses and other approvals 
required by Applicable Legal Requirements and from the Distribution Company for construction, 
installation and operation of the PV System, and agree to follow the requirements of Section 5.3, 
below (Governmental Permits); 

(c) Developer shall have determined that no features of the Premises will 
substantially impair the installation and operation of the PV System, and that the Premises has 
sufficient space to accommodate the installation, operation and maintenance of the PV System 
along with the operation and maintenance of existing facilities;  



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      12 

(d) Developer shall have determined that it is feasible to make related 
improvements as necessary on the Premises to install, operate, and interconnect the PV System 
to existing infrastructure, it being acknowledged by both Parties that neither Party shall be under 
any obligation to pay for any required upgrades, but that this condition may be satisfied if either 
Party agrees to implement any necessary upgrades at its own cost, or if the Parties agree to share 
the costs of such upgrades; 

(e) Distribution Company requires material changes in plans and/or 
specifications to the PV System or its interconnection, which require additional costs or fees, in 
excess of $10,000, which in Developer’s sole discretion are unreasonable, except if Host agrees 
to pay for such Distribution Company mandated costs; 

(f) In the event that the Interconnection Agreement, in form and substance 
satisfactory to Developer and Buyer, in each of its reasonable discretion, is not finalized and 
executed within one-hundred eighty (180) days of Developer’s submission of the interconnection 
application, provided, however, that Buyer will extend the deadline for compliance with this 
subsection in thirty (30) day increments, upon Buyer’s determination, in its reasonable 
discretion, that Developer is using Commercially Reasonable efforts to secure such 
Interconnection Agreement; 

(g) Host, in its regulatory capacity as a Governmental Authority, and 
Developer shall have reached agreement on the liability of Developer for ad valorum property 
taxes, if any are to be assessed, and have entered into a structured tax agreement with respect 
thereto; and 

(h) Host shall have approved the final design of the PV System and its 
integration into the Host’s Property, in accordance with Section 5.4 hereof. 

Either Party may waive any condition precedent to be achieved by the other Party.  The 
Party proposing to terminate this Agreement as the result of the non-fulfillment or failure of any 
of the above-referenced conditions precedent shall give the other Party written notice of the 
notifying Party’s intent to terminate this Agreement due to non-fulfillment or failure of any such 
foregoing conditions, and shall include in such notice a detailed description of the efforts 
undertaken by the notifying Party to satisfy such condition or conditions (which efforts need only 
be commercially reasonable) and the reasons why such condition or conditions have not been 
satisfied.  In the event either Party terminates this Agreement the Parties shall have no further 
obligations hereunder except those which survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

5.3 Governmental Permits.  Developer shall obtain at its sole cost all Permits 
required for Developer’s use of the Premises, the Permitted Use, and the PV System from any 
and all Governmental Authorities having jurisdiction in the matter.  Developer shall promptly 
inform Host of all significant developments relating to the issuance of such Permits.  Host shall 
reasonably cooperate with Developer in procuring such Permits.  If any changes in plans and/or 
specifications for the Project are required by any Governmental Authority, then Developer shall 
submit such changes, if any, to Host for its approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      13 

5.4 Design and Installation.  Developer shall design the PV System in accordance 
with Good Engineering Practice, shall consult with and receive input from Host with respect to 
integration of the PV System with the Host’s facilities and submit the final design for Host’s 
approval, not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed, with a copy to CVEC.  In the case of a 
Battery Energy Storage System, Developer shall submit a fire prevention plan to Host’s fire chief 
and obtain his or her approval. Developer shall furnish all supplies, materials, labor, tools, 
equipment and other services necessary for installation of the PV System.  As soon as practicable 
after the Effective Date, Developer shall provide Host and CVEC an updated schedule for 
design, permitting, equipment procurement, commencement of construction and commissioning 
of the PV System, indicating milestones and durations of activities.  Developer shall commence 
construction of the PV System no later than the Outside Construction Commencement Date and 
will proceed diligently and continuously thereafter until completion, but in no event shall the 
installation be completed later than one hundred eighty (180) days from the Commercial 
Operation Date.  Developer shall install the PV System in accordance with Good Engineering 
Practice, all Applicable Legal Requirements, applicable contractor, subcontractor and vendor 
warranties or guarantees, manufacturer’s warranties, instruction and specifications, as further 
identified in the Common Technical Specifications set forth in Exhibit E, applicable 
requirements of the insurance policies maintained by Host with respect to the PV System, and 
the terms of this Agreement. 

5.5 Interconnection with Electric Distribution Grid.  Developer shall obtain at its 
sole cost all Permits and agreements required for Developer’s interconnection of the PV System 
to the electric distribution grid maintained by the Distribution Company.  Developer shall 
promptly inform Host and CVEC of all significant developments relating to such interconnection 
matters.  Host shall provide Developer with such information as Developer may reasonably 
request in connection with Developer’s procurement of such Permits and agreements.  If any 
material changes in plans and/or specifications to the PV System are required by the applicable 
electric distribution company, then Developer shall submit such changes, if any, to Host for its 
approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, with a copy to CVEC. 

5.6 Access to and Use of the Premises.  During construction and the operation of the 
PV System, including, but not limited to, all pre-construction activities, Developer and its 
contractors or agents shall have access to the Premises in accordance with Exhibit D (Special 
Terms and Conditions). 

5.7 Plans and Specifications.  Installation of the PV System shall be completed in 
accordance to plans approved by Host, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, with 
a copy to CVEC.  Prior to the Commercial Operation Date, Developer shall provide Host and 
CVEC with documentation as set forth in the Common Technical Specifications, Exhibit E, 
including as-built plans, permission to Operate from local distribution company, and 
specifications of the PV System installed on the Premises which show the actual location of the 
PV System. 

5.8 Maintenance Responsibilities.  Developer shall properly maintain the PV 
System, conduct all required maintenance, and make all repairs thereto in accordance with Good 
Engineering Practice.  Developer shall take all measures necessary to maximize production of 
the PV System throughout the Term.  Such obligations shall include, but not be limited to, 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      14 

maintaining the PV System in a condition of Commercial Operation, and taking all actions 
necessary to comply with the Applicable Legal Requirements.  The Developer shall deliver a 
maintenance report annually to the Host and CVEC.  Developer shall be responsible for all costs 
related to the PV System, including, but not limited to, those costs necessary to construct, 
operate, maintain, repair, and remove the PV System.  Host shall have no duty or liability to 
Developer with respect to maintenance, repair or security of the PV System. 

5.9 Manufacturer and Installer Warranties.  Developer shall ensure that each 
manufacturer and each installer of equipment and parts comprising the PV System provides a 
warranty as further described in the Common Technical Specifications attached hereto as 
Exhibit E.  Such warranties shall run to the benefit of the Host. 

5.10 Use of Installation and/or Maintenance Subcontractors.  Developer may use 
qualified subcontractors to install and/or maintain the PV System, provided that Developer shall 
at all times remain fully responsible for the acts and omissions of such subcontractors.  
Installation and maintenance subcontractors shall be required to meet the insurance requirements 
set forth in Exhibit C, provided, however, that satisfaction of such requirements shall not relieve 
Developer of its responsibilities for such subcontractors as set forth in this Section 5.10. 

5.11 Alterations.  Developer shall have the right from time to time both before and 
after the completion of the PV System and at Developer’s sole cost and expense to make 
additions, alterations and changes, structural or otherwise in or to the PV System, subject, 
however, in all cases to the following: 

(a) No alteration shall be made which would tend to (i) materially change the 
general design, use, character or structure of the PV System, or (ii) increase, reduce or impair, to 
any material extent, the use of the PV System for the generation of electricity, subject to 
Applicable Legal Requirements (any such alteration, a “Substantial Alteration”); 

(b) No Substantial Alteration shall be commenced except after prior written 
notice to and consent from Host, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; 

(c) Any alteration or Substantial Alteration shall be made with reasonable 
dispatch, in accordance with Good Engineering Practice, and in compliance with all Applicable 
Legal Requirements; and 

(d) No later than completion of any alteration or Substantial Alteration, 
Developer will provide Host with complete copies of all final plans and specifications therefor 
not previously provided; and 

(e) No alteration shall be made that conflicts with the Host’s existing and 
future uses enumerated in Exhibits A-1 and D to this Lease. 

5.12 Host Cooperation.  Host shall have the following duties under this Agreement: 

(a) to act expeditiously, and in good faith in supporting application for and 
facilitating any Permits necessary for the construction and operation of the PV System.  
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the execution of this Lease does not authorize a 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      15 

waiver of any permit or approval the Developer may require from the Host acting in its 
regulatory capacity, nor require the Host, acting in its regulatory capacity, to expedite its review 
of the Developer’s Permit application in the Host’s normal course of business; 

(b) to cooperate with Developer to the extent reasonable and appropriate 
given the particular use of the Property on issues regarding access, construction, on-site electrical 
metering and consumption, and interconnection. 

5.13 Emergencies.  The Parties agree that Host shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to respond to any emergency or equipment failure involving the PV System if 
necessary to protect the Property, including the Premises, or to protect public health or safety, 
and to effectuate any necessary repairs or take corrective action. 

5.14 Damage.  Any damage done to the Premises or other property not belonging to 
Developer during installation or during operations which is directly caused by Developer shall be 
repaired at Developer’s expense as soon as practicable, but no later than thirty (30) days after 
notification of damage, or sooner if immediate repair is required to prevent further damage to 
such property. 

5.15 Payment and Performance Bonds.  Prior to the Commencement Construction 
Date, the Developer shall provide Host with a performance bond from an issuer with a Best’s 
rating of not less than “A”, and from a surety company licensed to do business in the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts whose name appears on U.S.  Treasury Dept. Circular 570, in 
a form reasonably acceptable to Host (the “Performance Bond”), which Performance Bond shall 
be in an amount sufficient to secure 100% of Developer’s obligations with respect to the 
construction of the PV System under this Agreement or, prior to completion of construction and 
commissioning of the System.  The Performance Bond shall name Host as obligee.  The 
Performance Bond shall remain in effect until sixty (60) days after delivery by Developer to Host 
of the Notice of Commercial Operation, unless (a) fully drawn upon earlier by Host, (b) Host  
has provided notice to Developer of a dispute regarding the completion of the PV System in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, in which case the Performance Bond shall 
remain in effect until the resolution of such dispute, (c) Host provides the issuer of the 
Performance Bond written notice authorizing the expiration of the Performance Bond, or (d) this 
Agreement is terminated pursuant to the provisions hereof and Developer has fulfilled its 
removal and restoration obligations under this Agreement.  In addition, at least fifteen (15) days 
prior to the Construction Commencement Date, Developer shall provide Host with a payment 
bond from an issuer with a Best’s rating of not less than “A” in a form and amount reasonably 
acceptable to Host (the “Payment Bond”).  The Payment Bond shall name Host as obligee.  The 
Payment Bond shall be released upon the later of: (a) receipt by Host of satisfactory evidence 
that all subcontractors, laborers, have been paid in full; or (b) the Commercial Operation Date. 

5.16 Mechanics Liens.  Developer shall not file any mechanics liens against Host for 
its work performed in accordance with this Agreement and this requirement shall flow down to 
all of Developer’s contractors.  If any mechanic’s, laborer’s or materialman’s lien shall at any 
time be filed against the Property, the Premises or the PV System, Developer, within ten (10) 
days after notice to Developer of the filing thereof, shall cause such lien to be discharged of 
record by payment, deposit, bond, insurance, order of court of competent jurisdiction or 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      16 

otherwise.  If Developer shall fail to cause such lien to be discharged within the period aforesaid, 
then, in addition to any other right or remedy, Host may, but shall not be obligated to, discharge 
the same either by paying the amount claimed to be due or by procuring the discharge of such 
lien by deposit or by bonding.  Any amount so paid by Host and costs and expenses, including 
court costs and attorney’s fees reasonably incurred by Host in connection therewith, together 
with interest thereon at the Interest Rate from the respective dates of Host’s making of the 
payment of the cost and expenses, shall be paid by Developer to Host within ten (10) Business 
Days of Host’s invoice therefor. 

5.17 Utilities.  Developer shall make all arrangements for and pay directly to the entity 
providing the service, before delinquent, all electricity consumed by the Developer in accordance 
with the Permitted Use.  Host shall have no duty or liability to Developer with respect to the 
maintenance, repair, upgrade, replacement or security of any utilities, including, without 
limitation, any electrical transmission or distribution lines, whether such lines are owned by 
Host, or any third party, nor shall Host have any liability to Developer (including, without 
limitation, liability for lost revenue) arising from Host’s actions or omissions with respect to 
such maintenance, repair, upgrade, replacement or security.  In the event that Developer desires 
to undertake maintenance, repair, upgrade, replacement or security activities with respect to 
electrical transmission or distribution lines owned by Host, Developer may do so at Developer’s 
expense subject to notice to CVEC and the Host and the approval of Host, which shall not be 
unreasonably withheld. 

5.18 Operations and Maintenance Manual; Training.  Prior to the Commercial 
Operation Date, the Developer shall deliver a set each to Host and CVEC an operations and 
maintenance manual covering the PV System in accordance with the Common Technical 
Specifications set forth in Exhibit E.  In addition, Developer will train Host’s representative(s), 
including employees or contractors of Host on emergency preparedness and response, as well as 
basic principles of operation and maintenance of the PV System.  Developer shall also provide 
an online portal or other tool sufficient to allow the Host to monitor activity at the PV System 
without operation of PV System.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Host shall have no right to 
perform any maintenance or repair on the PV System without Developer’s prior written consent, 
except in the case of an emergency where immediate action on the part of Host is reasonably 
necessary for safety reasons. 

5.19 Notice of Commercial Operation.  Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, 
Developer shall notify and represent to Host and CVEC when the PV System has achieved 
Commercial Operation (“Notice of Commercial Operation”), and shall in such notice certify to 
Host and CVEC the Commercial Operation Date. 

5.20 Late Completion.  If the commencement of construction does not occur on or 
before the Outside Construction Commencement Date and/or Commercial Operation does not 
occur on or before the Outside Commercial Operation Date for any reason other than Host’s 
failure to perform its obligations hereunder, Developer shall pay to Host all lost rent revenue 
(prorated by day) for the duration between: (a) the Outside Construction Commencement Date 
and the date of actual Construction Commencement Date; (b) the Developer’s anticipated 
Commercial Operation date, and the date of actual Commercial Operation; or (c) if the actual 
Construction Commencement Date or Commercial Operation Date are not achieved, such Delay 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      17 

Liquidated Damages shall continue until  termination of this Agreement. (“Delay Liquidated 
Damages”).   

Developer shall be responsible for Delay Liquidated Damages if such delay is due to causes 
within Developer’s control, but Developer shall not be responsible for Delay Liquidated 
Damages if such delay is due to (a) Buyer’s failure to perform its obligations under the PPA or 
Host’s failure to perform its obligations hereunder, (b) delays caused by Buyer or the 
Distribution Company, (c) delays in receiving approvals from Governmental Authorities, (e) 
events of Force Majeure, or (f) in the event that Developer cannot satisfy the Outside 
Construction Date or Outside Commercial Operation Date milestones because Developer lacks a 
permit, approval or Interconnection Agreement necessary to commence construction and/or 
Commercial Operation of the PV System, and Developer is utilizing Commercially Reasonable 
efforts to secure such permit, approval or Interconnection Agreement.  The Parties recognize the 
delays, expense and difficulties involved in proving the actual losses or damages in a judicial or 
other proceeding, and agree that the Delay Liquidated Damages are reasonable compensation to 
Buyer. Payment of Delay Liquidated Damages shall not preclude Host from seeking other 
damages at law or equity to which it may be entitled as a result of Developer’s failure to 
commence construction on or before the Outside Construction Commencement Date and/or 
Commercial Operation on or before the Outside Commercial Operation Date.   

5.21 Maintenance; Repairs.   

(a) Developer shall take good care of the Premises and the PV System, 
conduct all required maintenance and make all repairs to the PV System, ordinary and 
extraordinary, foreseen and unforeseen, and shall maintain and keep Premises and the PV 
System in first class order and condition, and in compliance with all Applicable Legal 
Requirements and Good Engineering Practice. 

(b) Host shall have no duty or liability to Developer with respect to the 
maintenance and repair of the PV System. 

(c) Any damage caused by Developer or its subcontractors to the Premises or 
other property not belonging to Developer or its subcontractors shall be repaired at Developer’s 
expense within thirty (30) days after notification of damage, or sooner if immediate repair is 
required to prevent further damage to such property.   

(d) Host shall maintain the Property in good repair that is sufficient to support 
operation of the PV System.  However, nothing in this Agreement shall limit Host’s ability to 
maintain the Property in a reasonable manner consistent with Host’s current and past practices, 
the Additional Exceptions set forth in Exhibit A-1, and any other conditions imposed by a 
Governmental Authority that are applicable to the Premises. 

5.22 Host’s Maintenance.  Developer acknowledges that Host may need to 
temporarily remove or relocate all or a portion of the PV System in order to perform routine or 
necessary maintenance.  Unless such maintenance is necessitated as a result of installation or 
operation of the PV System (in which case the Developer shall be solely responsible):  



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      18 

(a)  Host will provide Developer with at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice of its intent to temporarily relocate (except in the case of an Emergency, in which case 
notice shall be given as soon as practical and may be after some emergency response work has 
occurred);  

(b)  In such notice, Host will certify that Host’s requested removal or 
relocation of the PV System is required to perform routine or necessary maintenance (except 
that, in the case of an Emergency, such certification may be provided after some emergency 
response work has occurred) and Developer will have no obligation to temporarily remove or 
relocate all or a portion of the PV System unless the Host provides such certification;  

(c)  Host will be responsible for any and all actual, documented, reasonable 
costs incurred in the relocation of all or a portion of the PV System to and from the temporary 
location, including any temporary storage costs;  

(d)  any such relocation shall be performed by Developer (except that, in the 
case of an Emergency, Host may perform such activities as are reasonably necessary in light of 
such Emergency);  

(e)  Host may not request more than one relocation per Contract Year; and  

(f)  in the event that a temporary relocation, which is not an “Emergency”, is 
for longer than 30 days or if there has already been at least one relocation during the Term, Host, 
shall promptly pay Developer for any lost revenue during the relocation accrued after the first 30 
days of the first relocation (for the first 30 days of any first relocation during the Term, Host 
shall not be responsible for any lost revenue to Developer).   

Such lost revenue shall be based on Net Energy that would have been produced during the time 
period of the relocation as estimated by PVWatts Calculator, or similar recognized method using 
accurate data inputs for the parameters of the PV System and its location.  Host agrees to work in 
good faith to minimize the timing of a temporary removal or relocation of the PV System.  For 
purposes of this Section 5.22, “Emergency” shall mean any Force Majeure event, condition or 
circumstance at or affecting the Premises that would, in the reasonable opinion of Host, 
materially and substantially harm life or property on the Premises without immediate 
preventative or remedial action. The Host shall not be responsible in any way for lost revenue 
that is the result of an Emergency. 

5.23 Project Relocation.  Host may request to move the PV System to another 
location on the Property or to another site owned by Host, but any such relocation shall be 
subject to the approval of Developer and Financing Party, not to be unreasonably withheld 
provided the alternate location or site structurally supports the PV System and the PV System is 
capable of generating substantially equivalent amounts of electric energy when installed at the 
alternate site.  In connection with such relocation, Host shall execute an amendment to this 
Agreement reflecting the new location of the PV System but otherwise continuing all the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement for the remaining term of this Agreement.  Host shall also 
provide any consents or releases required by Developer in connection with the new location.  



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      19 

Host shall pay all costs associated with the removal and relocation of the Project, including 
installation and testing costs and interconnection costs.   

In addition, starting at the shutdown of the Project pursuant to such relocation, and 
ending at the commercial operation of the PV System when such relocated PV System is 
reinstalled at a new location (the “Relocation Event”), Host will pay Developer an amount equal 
to the sum of (i) payments that Host would have made to Developer hereunder for electric energy 
that would have been produced by the PV System following the Relocation Event; (ii) revenues 
that Developer would have received with respect to the PV System under applicable solar 
programs and any other assistance program with respect to electric energy that would have been 
produced following the Relocation Event; and (iii) revenues from Environmental Attributes that 
Developer would have received with respect to electric energy that would have been produced by 
the PV System following the Relocation Event.  Determination of the amount of energy that 
would have been produced following the Relocation Event shall be based, during the first 
Contract Year, on the estimated levels of production and, after the first Contract Year, based on 
actual operation of the PV System in the same period in the previous Contract Year, unless 
Developer and Host mutually agree to an alternative methodology. 

5.24 No Voiding of Existing Warranties.  Developer shall ensure that the PV System 
is designed and constructed so that no existing warranties that apply to the Premises, as set forth 
in Exhibit A-3, are voided because of the installation of the PV System.  Developer shall consult, 
as may be necessary, with any company that has provided such warranty.   

5.25 Use of Hazardous Materials Prohibited.  Developer shall not use at nor 
transport to the Property, including the Premises, any hazardous materials, including any 
substances defined, classified, or otherwise denominated as a “hazardous substance”, “toxic 
substance”, “hazardous material”, “hazardous waste”, “hazardous pollutant”, “toxic pollutant” or 
oil by the Applicable Legal Requirements, unless specifically authorized by Host in writing.  The 
Developer shall fully indemnify the Host for any release of hazardous materials at the Property 
caused by the Developer including all court costs, attorney’s fees, damages and liabilities as a 
result thereof.  The provisions of this Section 5.25 shall survive the expiration or earlier 
termination of the Agreement. 

ARTICLE VI:  DEVELOPER’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND 
ADDITIONAL COVENANTS 

6.1 Developer’s Representations and Warranties.  As of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, Developer represents and warrants to Host as follows: 

(a) Developer has full legal capacity to enter into this Agreement; 

(b) The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized, and each 
person executing this Agreement on behalf of Developer has full authority to do so and to fully 
bind Developer; 

(c) Developer knows of no pending or threatened action, suit, proceeding, 
inquiry, or investigation before or by any judicial court or administrative or law enforcement 
agency against or affecting Developer or its properties wherein any unfavorable decision, ruling, 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      20 

or finding would materially and adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement 
or Developer’s ability to carry out its obligations under this Agreement; and 

(d) None of the documents or other written or other information furnished by 
or on behalf of Developer to Host or its agents pursuant to this Agreement contains any untrue 
statement of a material fact or omits to state any material fact required to be stated therein or 
necessary to make the statements contained herein or therein, in the light of the circumstances in 
which they were made, not misleading. 

6.2 Developer’s Covenants.  In addition to the other covenants set forth in this 
Agreement, Developer covenants to Host as follows: 

(a) Developer shall promptly inform Host and CVEC of the occurrence of any 
event that may reasonably be expected to materially affect the operation of the PV System or the 
performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement (including, but not limited to, any 
notices of default under any third party contract and the occurrence of any event that may result 
in the imposition of material liability or obligations on Developer or Host); and 

(b) Developer shall provide Host or CVEC such other information as Host or 
CVEC may reasonably request in order to review Developer’s compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE VII:  HOST’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND ADDITIONAL 
COVENANTS 

7.1 Host’s Representations and Warranties.  As of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, Host represents and warrants the following to Developer: 

(a) Host has full legal capacity to enter into this Agreement; 

(b) Host has the power to perform all of its obligations hereunder and the right 
to grant Developer rights provided under this Lease; 

(c) The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized, and each 
person executing this Agreement on behalf of Host has full authority to do so and to fully bind 
Host; 

(d) Host knows of no pending or threatened action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, 
or investigation before or by any judicial court or administrative or law enforcement agency 
against or affecting Host or its properties wherein any unfavorable decision, ruling, or finding 
would materially and adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or Host’s 
ability to carry out its obligations under this Agreement; and 

(e) Host warrants that it holds sufficient title in the Premises to authorize the 
completion of activities in this Lease, except those listed in the Additional Exceptions set forth in 
Exhibit A-1. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      21 

7.2 Host’s Covenants.  In addition to the other covenants set forth in this Agreement, 
Host covenants to Developer that throughout the Term and any extensions thereof, Host shall not 
interfere or allow a third party to interfere with the sun affecting the PV System.  Host shall not 
construct or permit to be constructed any structure on the Property that could adversely affect 
insolation levels at the Premises, permit the growth of foliage that could adversely affect 
insolation levels at the Premises, or directly emit or permit the emission of suspended particulate 
matter, smoke, fog or steam or other air-borne impediments to insolation on the Premises. If Host 
becomes aware of any potential development or other activity on adjacent or nearby properties 
that could diminish the insolation to the Premises, Host shall advise Developer of such 
information and reasonably cooperate with Developer in measures to preserve average levels of 
insolation at the Premises as they existed on the date of execution of this Agreement.  Host will 
not conduct activities on, in or about the Property that have a reasonable likelihood of causing 
material damage or impairment to the PV System or otherwise materially adversely affecting the 
PV System or operation thereof. 

Developer shall take all reasonable actions to prevent any parties from accessing the 
Premises other than Developer, Host, and each of their respective employees, invitees, agents 
and representatives, including fencing, security cameras, and other appropriate security 
measures. 

ARTICLE VIII:  TERMINATION; DEFAULT; REMEDIES; PURCHASE OPTIONS 

8.1 Termination.  Subject to Section 8.4 (Force Majeure), this Agreement shall not 
be subject to termination, except for the following Events of Termination: 

(a) Any applicable party may terminate this Agreement prior to the 
Construction Commencement Date for failure to achieve a condition precedent to construction, 
pursuant to Section 5.2. 

(b) The non-defaulting party may terminate this Agreement in the event a 
material Event of Default pursuant to Section 8.2 (Events of Default by Host) or 8.3 (Events of 
Default by Developer) prevents operation of the PV System for twelve (12) months, except with 
respect to Force Majeure events. 

(c) Host may terminate this Agreement in the event that Commercial 
Operation is not achieved by the Outside Commercial Operation Date unless such failure to 
achieve Commercial Operation is due to delays caused by the Host, CVEC, the local electric 
utility, governmental authorities or an event of Force Majeure, as set forth in Section 5.20.   

(d) Host may terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) Business Days written 
notice to the Developer, in the event that Developer’s material breach of this Agreement, 
including but not limited to its negligent failure to install and maintain the PV System, causes 
damage to the Premises or its occupants, and such damage is not cured within cure periods set 
forth in Section 8.3. 

(e) Host may terminate this Agreement upon five (5) Business Days written 
notice, in the event Developer fails to cure an Event of Default under Section 8.3(c); 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      22 

(f) Either Party may terminate this Agreement if Host exercises its Purchase 
Option or if CVEC exercises its Purchase Option, consistent with the terms of Section 8.11. 

8.2 Events of Default by Host.  The following shall each constitute an Event of 
Default by Host: 

(a) Host breaches any material obligation under this Agreement, and fails to 
cure such breach within sixty (60) Business Days after notification by Developer of the breach. 

(b) If any material representation or warranty made by Host in Article VII of 
this Agreement (Host’s Representations, Warranties, and Additional Covenants) proves to have 
been misleading or false in any material respect when made and to have a material adverse effect 
on the Developer, and Host does not cure the underlying facts so as to make such representation 
or warranty correct and not misleading within ten (10) Business Days of written notice from 
Developer. 

(c) Host fails to carry out its obligations and duties pursuant to Article X 
(Quiet Enjoyment). 

(d) Any other material breach of this Agreement, or the Intergovernmental 
Power Sale Agreement, which proves to have a material adverse effect on the Developer, not 
specifically enumerated above. 

Events of Default in this Section 8.2 are subject to specific performance and monetary 
damages pursuant to Section 8.5 (Remedies). 

8.3 Events of Default by Developer.  It shall constitute an Event of Default by 
Developer if Developer: 

(a) breaches any material obligation under this Agreement that proves to have 
a material adverse effect on Host and fails to cure the breach within thirty (30) days after 
notification by Host of the breach; provided, however, no Event of Default shall occur if the 
nature of such breach is such that it cannot reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days and 
Developer commences remedying the breach within said thirty (30) day period and actually 
remedies the breach with ninety (90) days after notification by Host of the breach; 

(b) makes any material representation or warranty made by Developer in 
Article VI (Developer’s Representations, Warranties and Additional Covenants) proves to have 
been misleading or false in any material respect when made and to have a material adverse effect 
on the Host, and Developer does not cure the underlying facts so as to make such representation 
or warranty correct and not misleading within ten (10) Business Days of written notice from 
Host; or 

(c) fails to provide or maintain in full force and effect any required insurance 
or bond or other surety, if such failure is not remedied within five (5) Business Days after receipt 
of written notice from the Host, or the occurrence of a default by the insurer of such Developer 
under any insurance policy provided hereunder. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      23 

8.4 Force Majeure.  Notwithstanding Sections 8.1 (Termination), 8.2 (Events of 
Default by Host) and 8.3 (Events of Default by Developer), if by reason of Force Majeure either 
Party is unable to carry out, either in whole or in part, its obligations herein contained, such Party 
shall not be deemed to be in default during the continuation of such inability, provided that:  (a) 
the non-performing Party, as soon as practicable, gives the other Party hereto written notice 
describing the particulars of the occurrence; (b) the suspension of performance be of no greater 
scope and of no longer duration than is required by the Force Majeure event; (c) no obligations 
of the Party which were to be performed prior to the occurrence causing the suspension of 
performance shall be excused as a result of the occurrence; and (d) the non-performing Party 
shall use Commercially Reasonable efforts to remedy with all reasonable dispatch the cause or 
causes preventing it from carrying out its obligations.  If an event of Force Majeure continues for 
a period of one hundred eighty (180) days or longer, either Party may treat such an event as an 
Event of Termination and may immediately terminate this Agreement by sending the non-
performing Party a written termination notice setting forth the Termination Date.  In the Event of 
Termination under this Section 8.4, Financier shall have step-in rights as provided in Section 8.6. 

8.5 Remedies.   

(a) In the event the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default within 
the period for curative action under Sections 8.2 (Events of Default by Host) or 8.3 (Events of 
Default by Developer), as applicable, the non-defaulting Party may seek specific performance 
and/or monetary damages. 

(b) The non-defaulting Party may terminate this Agreement subject to the 
limitations and under the provisions of Section 8.1. 

(c) In the event of a Default by Host requiring the permanent removal of the 
PV System from the Premises, and provided that the Host designates an alternative location at 
which the PV System is able to produce substantially equivalent amounts of Electricity, the 
Developer shall mitigate any damages by removing, storing and re-installing the PV System at 
the alternative location, all such costs to be borne by Host as damages.  In the event PV System 
is unable to produce substantially equivalent amounts of Electricity at the alternative location, 
but the Host agrees to compensate the Developer for lost revenues during the Term of the 
Agreement on account of such reduced capacity, the Developer shall mitigate the Host’s 
damages as provided herein by removing, storing and re-installing the PV System at the 
alternative location. 

(d) In the event of a default by Developer and consistent with the terms of 
Section 8.11 of this Agreement (Purchase Option), (i) Host may elect, but is not required to, 
purchase the PV System, and (ii) CVEC may elect, but is not required to, purchase the PV 
System, provided that Host or CVEC shall be entitled to offset the Purchase Price of the PV 
System determined in accordance with Article XIII against the amount of monetary damages due 
and owing Host or CVEC pursuant to this Section 8.5.    Upon Host’s or CVEC’s tender of the 
Purchase Price as offset by the amount of its monetary damages, should Developer fail to 
execute such necessary documents to convey its rights and interest to the PV System, the PV 
System shall be deemed abandoned and Host or CVEC may retain the PV System as its property 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      24 

or may proceed to remove the PV System in accordance with Section 8.9 of this Agreement 
(Abandonment of PV System). 

For breach of any provision for which an express remedy, other than termination, or 
express measure of damages is provided, such express remedy or measure of damages will be the 
sole and exclusive remedy, the obligor’s liability will be limited as set forth in such provision 
and all other remedies or damages at law or in equity are waived.  If no remedy or measure of 
damages is expressly provided herein, the obligor’s liability will be limited to direct actual 
damages only, such direct actual damages will be the sole and exclusive remedy and all other 
remedies or damages at law or in equity are waived. 

NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY SPECIAL, 
INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES, LOST PROFITS, OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION DAMAGES OF ANY 
CHARACTER, RESULTING FROM, ARISING OUT OF, IN CONNECTION WITH OR 
IN ANY WAY INCIDENT TO ANY ACT OR OMISSION OF EITHER PARTY RELATED 
TO THE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT, IRRESPECTIVE OF WHETHER 
CLAIMS OR ACTIONS FOR SUCH DAMAGES ARE BASED UPON CONTRACT, 
WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER THEORY AT 
LAW OR EQUITY. 

8.6 Step-in Rights of Financier.   

(a) Host agrees to give written notices to any Financier, of which Host has 
written notice, upon the occurrence of any Event of Default hereunder, the failure of Developer 
to cure any Event of Default in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, or an Event of 
Termination on account of Force Majeure, and Financier shall have a period of thirty (30) days 
after receipt of notice of failure of Developer to cure any Event of Default in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement, provided however, that Financier shall have an additional reasonable 
period of time thereafter, not to exceed an additional ninety (90) days, to cure the Event of 
Default or Event of Termination on account of Force Majeure if Financier uses Commercially 
Reasonable efforts to cure such Event of Default or Event of Termination during the initial 
ninety (90) days after notice aforesaid, and Financier provides reasonable written assurances that 
it will be able to cure such Event of Default within such a reasonable period of time thereafter. 

(b) Host agrees that, prior to termination pursuant to Section 8.1 
(Termination), Host shall give written notice to any Financier of which Host has written notice 
upon the occurrence of any Event of Termination hereunder, and Financier shall have a period of 
one hundred eighty (180) days after receipt of said notice to cure such Event of Termination. 

Host also agrees that, in the event that Host terminates this Agreement pursuant to 
Section 8.1 (Termination), and Financier agrees in writing to assume all liabilities and 
obligations of the Developer, then a new agreement shall be executed by Host with Financier to 
assume the Developer’s place, upon the same terms and conditions as are contained in this 
Agreement; provided, however, that any such new agreement will be for the unexpired term of 
this Agreement and provided further, nothing herein shall be construed to alter any substantive 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      25 

terms which would expand the rights of Financier or extend or expand Host’s obligations 
hereunder. 

8.7 Damage or Destruction of PV System.   

(a) Developer shall bear the risk of loss to the PV System (including casualty, 
condemnation or Force Majeure), except to the extent that such loss results from the gross 
negligence of the Host or Host’s agents, representative, customers, vendors, employees, or 
contractors. 

(b) In the event of any PV System loss, Developer shall, at its sole cost and 
expense either (i) repair or replace the PV System, or (ii) elect to terminate this Agreement in 
which case Developer shall remove the PV System and promptly restore the Premises to 
substantially the same condition as existed prior to the Effective Date in accordance with 
Section 8.8 (Site Restoration). 

(c) In the event of a total or partial PV System loss because of casualty loss of 
the all of part of the Premises, and the Host elects not to repair or replace the Premises, the 
Developer shall be limited to recovery of proceeds from its insurance coverage. In the event of a 
total or partial PV System loss because of casualty loss of the all of part of the Premises, and the 
Host elects to repair or replace the Premises, the Developer may exercise either of its options 
under Section 8.7(b).    

8.8 Site Restoration.  On the Termination Date, Developer shall peaceably and 
quietly leave, surrender and yield up unto Host the Leased Premises, provided however that 
following the Termination Date of this Agreement, Developer shall have one hundred twenty 
(120) days to remove the PV System from the Leased Premises, and to restore the Leased 
Premises to the condition that existed as of the Effective Date, reasonable wear and tear 
excepted, or such additional time as may be necessary after Host or CVEC have declined to 
exercise a Purchase Option pursuant to this Lease. 

8.9 Abandonment of PV System.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained in this Agreement, any waiver in whole or in part of the requirement to remove the PV 
System shall require the written approval of Host.  Any of the PV System left on the Premises 
after the passage of one hundred twenty (120) days after the Termination Date shall be deemed 
abandoned.  Host shall provide written notice to the Developer within thirty (30) days of the 
expiration of such one hundred twenty (120) day period, of its election to retain all or any of the 
PV System as its property, or dispose of all or any of the PV System in such reasonable manner 
as Host may see fit and at Developer’s sole cost; provided, however, that Host’s election to retain 
the PV System as its property shall relieve Developer from any liability for its failure to remove 
such PV System; and provided further, however, that the foregoing shall not apply to any of the 
PV System that is not timely removed if the failure to remove is caused by an event of Force 
Majeure or the negligent acts or omissions of Host (in which in either case the time period for 
removal shall be extended on a day for day basis). 

8.10 Decommissioning Assurance.  Upon the issuance of the Notice of Commercial 
Operation, Developer shall establish and maintain thereafter adequate financial assurance in the 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      26 

amount specified in Exhibit D, to fully cover the cost of decommissioning the PV System and 
restoring the Premises as specified in this Agreement (such assurance, the “Decommissioning 
Assurance”).  Depending on the circumstances, and subject to Host’s approval, appropriate 
forms of financial assurance may include, without limitation, an escrow fund, irrevocable letter 
of credit, surety bond or third party guaranty; provided, however, that any form of financial 
assurance must provide Host with adequate rights to access the Decommissioning Assurance in 
the event of Developer’s failure to comply with its PV System removal and Premises restoration 
obligations under the Agreement. 

8.11 Purchase Options.   

(a) Grant of Purchase Option to Host.  For and in consideration of the 
agreement of Host to enter into this Lease, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, Developer hereby grants to 
Host the right and option to purchase all of Developer’s right, title and interest in and to the PV 
System (including solar generation incentives) and the Environmental Attributes on the terms set 
forth in this Lease (the “Host Purchase Option”).  Host, in its sole discretion, shall have the right 
to exercise the Purchase Option: (a) upon the tenth (10th), twelfth (12th), or fifteenth (15th) 
anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date of this Agreement, (b) upon a Developer Event of 
Default pursuant to Section 9.3 and the expiration of any cure right with respect thereto, or (c) 
upon the expiration of the Term of this Agreement, subject to the timing and conditions set forth 
in this Article.   

(b) Grant of Purchase Option to CVEC.  For and in consideration of the 
agreement of Host to enter into this Lease, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, in the instance in which the 
Host has not exercised its Purchase Option under this Lease pursuant to Section 8.11(a), 
Developer hereby grants to CVEC the right and option to purchase all of Developer’s right, title 
and interest in and to the PV System (including solar generation incentives) and the 
Environmental Attributes on the terms set forth in this Lease (the “CVEC Purchase Option”).  
CVEC, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to exercise the Purchase Option: (a) subject to 
the timing limitations in Section 8.11(c); (b) upon a Developer Event of Default pursuant to 
Section 9.3 and the expiration of any cure right with respect thereto, or (c) upon the expiration of 
the Term of this Agreement, subject to the timing and conditions set forth in this Article.   

(c) Timing of Purchase Option.  If the Host declines the Purchase Option or 
otherwise fails to send its Host Purchase Option Notice within sixty (60) Business Days prior to 
tenth (10th), twelfth (12th), or fifteenth (15th) anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date, or 
the date of its Termination, then the CVEC shall have thirty (30) Business Days thereafter to 
provide written notice to Developer of its intent to exercise the Purchase Option (“CVEC 
Purchase Option Notice”) pending completion of due diligence.   Promptly following receipt of a 
Purchase Option Notice from Host, or CVEC, as the case may be, Developer shall promptly, but 
no more than ten (10) Business Days thereafter, make available to the Host, or the CVEC, as the 
case may be, the PV System and all Environmental Attributes, including records relating to the 
operations, maintenance, and warranty repairs, for its inspection during normal business hours. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      27 

(d) Inspection.  CVEC or Host, as the case may be, shall have twenty-five 
(25) Business Days from their respective purchase option notices to inspect the PV system, 
review the records provided by Developer and exercise other due diligence. 

(e) Determination of Purchase Price. The purchase price shall be the 
Appraised Value of the PV System, including but not limited to its physical assets, as determined 
by the Independent Appraiser (“Purchase Price”).   

(f) Independent Appraiser.  Within twenty-five (25) Business Days of 
Developer’s receipt of Purchase Option Notice, Developer and Host shall each propose an 
Independent Appraiser.  If Developer and Host do not agree and appoint an Independent 
Appraiser within such twenty-five (25)) Business Day period, then at the end of such fifteen 
twenty-five (25) Day period, the two proposed Independent Appraisers shall, within five (5) 
Business Days of each Party’s notice, select a third Independent Appraiser (who may be one of 
the Independent Appraisers originally designated by the Parties or another Independent 
Appraiser) to perform the valuation and provide notice thereof to Developer and Host.  Such 
selection shall be final and binding on Developer and Host. 

(g) PV System Records and Inspection. The Developer shall make the PV 
System and records related thereto available to the Independent Appraiser.  Similarly, the Buyer 
or Host shall make available to the Independent Appraiser the results of its inspection, review of 
records and other due diligence.  The selected Independent Appraiser shall, within twenty (20) 
Business Days of appointment, make a preliminary determination of the Appraised Value (the 
“Preliminary Determination”). 

(h) Preliminary and Final Appraisal Determinations.  Upon making such 
Preliminary Determination, the selected Independent Appraiser shall provide such Preliminary 
Determination to Developer and Host or CVEC, together with all supporting documentation that 
details the calculation of the Preliminary Determination.  Developer and Host or CVEC shall 
each have the right to object to the Preliminary Determination within ten (10) Business Days of 
receiving such Preliminary Determination; provided that the objecting Party provides a written 
explanation documenting the reasons for its objection.  Within ten (10) Business Days of receipt 
of the objecting Party’s objections, the selected Independent Appraiser shall issue its final 
determination (the “Final Determination”) to Developer and Host or CVEC, which shall 
specifically address the objections received by the Independent Appraiser and whether such 
objections were taken into account in making the Final Determination.  Except in the case of 
fraud or manifest error, the Final Determination of the Appraised Value by the selected 
Independent Appraiser shall be final and binding on the Parties. 

(i) Appraisal Costs.  Developer and Host or CVEC, as the case may be, shall 
each be responsible for payment of one half of the costs and expenses of the Independent 
Appraiser(s), unless the Purchase Option is to be exercised pursuant to a Developer Event of 
Default, in which case the Developer shall be responsible to pay the fees and costs of the 
Independent Appraiser. 

(j) Final Purchase Option Notice.  Within ten (10) Business Days of the Final 
Determination, Host or CVEC shall notify the Developer in writing whether it intends to exercise 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      28 

the Purchase Option at the Purchase Price determined in accordance with Section 13.2 (“Final 
Buyer Purchase Option Notice” or “Final Host Purchase Option Notice”).  Upon such Final 
Purchase Option Notice, the Purchase Option shall become irrevocable.  If the Host’s Purchase 
Option or CVEC’s Purchase Option has arisen on account of a Developer Event of Default and 
Termination of the Agreement therefor under Section 9.2, the Developer Termination Payment 
shall be deducted from the Purchase Price. 

(k) Transfer Date.   The closing of any sale of the PV System (the “Transfer 
Date”) pursuant to this Article will occur as soon as practicable but no later than ninety (90) 
Business Days following the date of the notice provided to Developer pursuant to Section 
8.11(i).  This Agreement shall terminate effective upon the Transfer Date, if not earlier 
terminated. 

(l) Terms of PV System Purchase.  On the Transfer Date (a) Developer shall 
surrender and transfer to Host or CVEC, as the case may be, all of Developer’s right, title and 
interest in and to the PV System (including solar generation incentives), and the Environmental 
Attributes, and shall retain all liabilities arising from or related to the PV System and the 
Environmental Attributes prior to the Transfer Date, (b) CVEC or Host, as the case may be,  
shall pay the Purchase Price after deduction of any Developer Termination Payment or other set-
offs, as applicable, by certified check, bank draft or wire transfer and shall assume all liabilities 
arising from or related to the PV System and the Environmental Attributes from and after the 
Transfer Date, and (c) both Parties shall (i) execute and deliver a bill of sale and assignment of 
contract rights containing such representations, warranties, covenants and other terms and 
conditions as are usual and customary for a sale of assets similar to the PV System, together with 
such other conveyance and transaction documents as are reasonably required to fully transfer and 
vest title to the PV System, and the Environmental Attributes in Host, and (ii) deliver ancillary 
documents, including releases, resolutions, certificates, third person consents and approvals and 
such similar documents as may be reasonably necessary to complete the sale of the PV System 
and the Environmental Attributes to Host.  The purchase shall be on an “as is,” “where is” basis 
without warranty of any kind. 

If Host or CVEC exercises their respective Purchase Options, then the Host or CVEC 
will assume responsibilities under agreements with energy generation customers existing as of 
the Transfer Date, until the termination date of such agreements.  As set forth in Section 11.1(a), 
Developer shall include in any such agreements with energy generation customers a right of 
Developer to assign such contracts to Host or CVEC.  Monthly Minimum Reliability 
Contribution assessments shall be assumed by the entity that has exercised the Purchase Option. 

(m) Acknowledgement of CVEC’s Purchase Option.  In the event that CVEC 
exercises its Purchase Option under this Lease and the PPA, this Agreement shall be amended to 
substitute CVEC for the Host and shall continue in full force and effect. 

ARTICLE IX:  INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE 

9.1 Developer Indemnification of Host.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the 
Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Host, CVEC and all of their officers, 
employees, boards, commissions, and representatives from and against all claims, causes of 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      29 

action, suits, costs, damages, and liability of any kind (“Losses”), including any Environmental 
Claim, from or to third parties which arise out of the performance of Developer’s work, provided 
that such Losses are attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or 
destruction of tangible property but only to the extent caused by the negligent or intentional acts 
or omissions, including failure to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, of the 
Developer, its employees, agents, subcontractors, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
them or anyone for whose acts Developer is legally liable.  This indemnity obligation shall apply 
notwithstanding any negligent or intentional acts, errors or omissions of the Host, but the 
Developer’s obligation to pay Losses shall be reduced in proportion to the percentage by which 
the Host’s negligent or intentional acts, errors or omissions caused the Losses. 

9.2 Host Indemnification of Developer.  To the extent permitted by law, Host shall 
indemnify and hold harmless Developer from and against any and all Losses from or to third 
parties for injury or death to persons or damage or loss to or of property to the extent arising out 
of the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the Host, its employees, agents, 
subcontractors or representatives.  This indemnity obligation shall apply notwithstanding any 
negligent or intentional acts, errors or omissions of Developer, but the Host’s obligation to pay 
Losses shall be reduced in proportion to the percentage by which the Developer’s negligent or 
intentional acts, errors or omissions caused the Losses.  Notwithstanding any other provision in 
this Agreement, the Host’s liability hereunder shall be limited by the protections and immunities 
afforded by and to the amount set forth in Chapter 258 of the Massachusetts General Laws. 

9.3 The Parties agree to comply with the insurance obligations allocated to them in 
Exhibit C hereto. 

9.4 The provisions of Section 9.1 and 9.2 shall survive the expiration or earlier 
termination of the Agreement. 

ARTICLE X:  QUIET ENJOYMENT 

10.1 Quiet Enjoyment.  Host covenants that Developer shall quietly have and enjoy 
the Premises throughout the Term and any extensions thereof.  Host warrants and agrees that, 
throughout the Term and any extensions thereof: 

(a) the Premises shall be dedicated to Developer’s use for conducting the 
Permitted Use and designing, constructing, operating, maintaining, repairing, and expanding the 
PV System, except as provided for in Section 10.2 and subject to the Additional Exceptions set 
forth in Exhibit A-1 and Special Conditions in Exhibit D; 

(b) any other uses of the Premises by Host or any third party pursuant to 
Section 10.2 and the Additional Exceptions set forth in Exhibit A-1 shall not unreasonably 
interfere with the Permitted Use and the operational and solar requirements of the PV System; 

(c) Host shall maintain or obtain any agreements, contracts, consents, Permits, 
approvals, or other instruments or permissions necessary for Developer to have the quiet 
enjoyment of its rights under this Agreement; and 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      30 

(d) Host shall, in good faith, use its best efforts to protect Developer’s quiet 
enjoyment of its rights hereunder, including, without limitation, defending against a third party 
claim that would materially interfere with Developer’s rights under this Article X. 

Subject to the specific provisions of this Agreement permitting the same, Host shall have 
the right to enter upon the Premises at any time for any purpose and no such entry that complies 
with the provisions of this Agreement permitting the same shall be considered a breach of the 
covenant of quiet enjoyment. 

10.2 Host’s Reserved Uses.  Except as specifically set forth in the Additional 
Exceptions contained in Exhibit A-1, Host shall not itself conduct any other use, nor shall Host 
allow any third party to conduct any other use, on the Premises. 

ARTICLE XI:  ASSIGNMENT AND MORTGAGE 

11.1 Assignment.   

(a) Developer Assignment.  Except as otherwise provided by this Agreement, 
Developer shall not assign, subcontract, sublet or delegate its rights, privileges or obligations 
under this Agreement without the prior written approval of Host, provided that prior notice to or 
consent of Host shall not be required:  (i) for an assignment or transfer by Developer to any of its 
other individual members; and (ii) for a collateral assignment by Developer to any Financier, 
subject to the terms and conditions of this Article XI.  For assignments requiring Host’s 
approval, approval may be denied in the reasonable discretion of Host if it determines that the 
proposed assignee does not have at least the same financial and technical ability as the assigning 
Developer.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Host may not unreasonably withhold its consent to 
an assignment to an affiliated entity under common control or management with Developer.  
Developer’s assignee shall agree in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement.  If Developer assigns, subcontracts, sublets or delegates its rights, privileges or 
obligations under this Agreement, Developer shall reimburse Host for its reasonable attorneys’ 
fees related to review and approval of assignments. 

(b) Host Assignment.  Host shall not assign this Agreement without the prior 
consent of Developer, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, provided, however, that any 
such assignment shall be made subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement.  Host shall 
promptly provide Developer a copy of the assignment document following any assignment. 

The rights and obligations created by this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be 
binding upon, the successors and permitted assigns of the respective Parties hereto.  Notice of 
any permitted assignment shall be provided to the other Party as soon as practicable. 

11.2 Financing by Leasehold Mortgage.  Host is cognizant of the need of Developer 
to finance its interest in the Premises and the PV System thereon, and therefore specifically 
agrees, subject to Section 8.6, without any further request for prior consent to permit Developer 
to mortgage, assign or transfer its interest in the Premises for the purpose of obtaining financing, 
which shall include equity and/or debt, provided: 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      31 

(a) The term of such mortgage, assignment or transfer shall not exceed the 
Term; and 

(b) Developer shall give Host and CVEC notice of the existence of any 
mortgage, assignment or transfer, together with the name and address of the mortgagee, assignee 
or transferee, and a copy of the mortgage, assignment or transfer document within thirty (30) 
days of the execution of such mortgage, assignment or transfer. 

11.3 Financing by Leasehold Mortgage Release of Developer.  Developer shall be 
relieved from its obligations under this Agreement in whole or in part, as the case may be: 

(a) by any whole or partial disposition of Developer’s interest in this 
Agreement in compliance with Section 11.1, when coupled with a written instrument signed by 
the assignee or transferee of such interest in which said assignee or transferee accepts and agrees 
to be bound by the terms of this Agreement, unless the Parties agree otherwise, and except as 
otherwise provided by the terms of any assignment or transfer; and 

(b) in the event of any foreclosure by a Financier, in which case the Financier 
shall substitute for the Developer for purposes of this Agreement. 

Absent express written consent of Host, the execution of a mortgage or any assignment 
from a Financier to another Financier shall not relieve Developer from its obligations under this 
Agreement. 

11.4 Financier Provisions.  Any Person or entity that holds or is the beneficiary of a 
first position mortgage, deed of trust or other security interest in this Agreement or in any PV 
System located on the Premises (any such first position mortgage, deed of trust or other security 
interest is referred to herein as a “Leasehold Mortgage”) shall, for so long as its Leasehold 
Mortgage is in existence and until the lien thereof has been extinguished, be entitled to the 
protections set forth herein.  No Leasehold Mortgage shall encumber or affect in any way the 
interest of Host or Host’s fee interest in and to the Premises, or Host’s rights under this 
Agreement.  Host shall promptly execute any amendments to this Agreement requested by 
Financier in connection with the financing of the PV System so long as said amendment does not 
materially change the terms of this Agreement. 

(a) Financier’s Right to Possession, Acquire and Assign.  Pursuant to the 
provisions of this Section 11.4 and subject to Section 8.6, a Financier shall have the right:  (i) to 
assign its security interest; (ii) to enforce its lien and acquire title to the leasehold estate by any 
lawful means; (iii) to take possession of and operate the PV System or any portion thereof and to 
perform all obligations to be performed by Developer hereunder, or to cause a receiver to be 
appointed to do so, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; (iv) to acquire the 
leasehold estate by foreclosure or by an assignment in lieu of foreclosure; and (v) to sell the PV 
System and rights under any contracts dealing with the sale of Net Energy or renewable energy 
certificates from the PV System to a third party.  Host’s consent shall not be required for the 
Financier’s acquisition of the encumbered leasehold estate created by this Agreement, whether 
by foreclosure or assignment in lieu of foreclosure. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      32 

(b) Upon the Financier’s acquisition of the leasehold estate, whether by 
foreclosure or assignment in lieu of foreclosure, Financier shall have the right to sell or assign 
said acquired leasehold estate, provided Financier and proposed assignee (as applicable) shall 
first satisfy each of the following conditions:  (i) any such assignee shall be approved in advance 
by Host, such approval not to be unreasonably conditioned, withheld or delayed; (ii) any such 
assignee shall assume all of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement; (iii) Financier and/or 
any proposed assignee shall have satisfied every obligation of Developer existing under this 
Agreement but which remains unsatisfied at the time of the proposed assignment; and (iv) 
Financier and any such assignee shall satisfy all Applicable Legal Requirements. 

(c) Notice of Default; Opportunity to Cure.  The Financier shall be entitled to 
receive simultaneous notice of any default by Developer, provided that such Financier shall have 
first delivered to Host notice of its interest in the Leasehold Mortgage in the form and manner, if 
any, provided by state laws, rules, regulations, Developer’s procedures, and the provisions of this 
Agreement.  If any notice shall be given of the default of Developer and Developer has failed to 
cure or commence to cure such default within the cure period provided in this Agreement, then 
any such Financier, which has given notice as above provided, shall be entitled to receive an 
additional notice that Developer has failed to cure such default and such Financier shall be 
entitled to cure any such default pursuant to the terms of Section 8.6.  The Financier may take 
possession of the Premises and the PV System, and operate the PV System if necessary, pursuant 
to Section 8.6. 

ARTICLE XII:  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

12.1 Dispute Resolution.  Unless otherwise expressly provided for in this Agreement, 
the dispute resolution procedures of this Section 12.1 shall be the exclusive mechanism to 
resolve disputes arising under this Agreement.  The Parties agree to use their respective best 
efforts to resolve any dispute(s) that may arise regarding this Agreement.  Any dispute that arises 
under or with respect to this Agreement that cannot be resolved shall in the first instance be the 
subject of informal negotiations between the Parties.  The dispute shall be considered to have 
arisen when one Party sends the other Party a written notice of dispute.  The period for informal 
negotiations shall be fourteen (14) days from receipt of the written notice of dispute unless such 
time period is modified by written agreement of the Parties.  In the event that the Parties cannot 
resolve a dispute by informal negotiations, the Parties may agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation.  If the Parties so agree, within fourteen (14) days following the expiration of the time 
period for informal negotiations, the Parties shall propose and agree upon a neutral and otherwise 
qualified mediator.  In the event that the Parties fail to agree upon a mediator, the Parties shall 
request that the American Arbitration Association, Boston, Massachusetts, appoint a mediator.  
The period for mediation shall commence upon the appointment of the mediator and shall not 
exceed sixty (60) days, unless such time period is modified by written agreement of the Parties.  
The decision to continue mediation shall be in the sole discretion of each Party.  The Parties will 
bear their own costs of the mediation.  The mediator’s fees shall be shared equally by the Parties.  
In the event that the Parties cannot resolve a dispute by informal negotiations or mediation, the 
sole venue for judicial enforcement shall be the courts for and in Barnstable County, 
Massachusetts.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, injunctive relief from such court may be sought 
without resorting to alternative dispute resolution to prevent irreparable harm that would be 
caused by a breach of this Agreement. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      33 

12.2 Stay of Termination.   

(a) During informal negotiations and mediation pursuant to Section 12.1, the 
Parties shall not exercise any termination rights pursuant to this Agreement.  During such 
informal negotiations and/or mediation, the Parties shall continue to fully perform their 
respective obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  All applicable statutes of limitation and 
defense based upon the passage of time and similar contractual limitations shall be tolled while 
discussions in Section 12.1 are pending, the Parties shall take such action, if any, required to 
effectuate such tolling.  Without prejudice to the procedure set forth in Section 12.1, a Party may 
file a complaint for statute of limitations purposes, if in its sole judgment such action may be 
necessary to preserve its claims or defenses. 

(b) As to any claims that arise between the Parties under this Agreement, all 
applicable statutes of limitation and defenses based upon the passage of time and similar 
contractual limitations shall be tolled while such lawsuit is pending and the Parties shall take 
such action, if any, required to effectuate such tolling.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Host may 
file a complaint for statute of limitations purposes, if in its sole judgment such action may be 
necessary to preserve its claims or defenses.  This provision may be waived by Host at any time 
for any reason. 

ARTICLE XIII:  MISCELLANEOUS 

13.1 Construction; Obligation to Modify Agreement.  Upon implementation by the 
Department of Public Utilities, Department of Energy Resources, or other Governmental 
Authority of any Applicable Legal Requirement that may affect any provision of this Agreement 
or the economic benefits anticipated by either Party, in particular any rule or regulation regarding 
Net Metering, the Parties shall be obligated to amend this Agreement and shall use their best 
efforts to conform such amendment to the original intent of this Agreement, including allocation 
of economic benefits to most closely approximate the benefits anticipated by both Parties, and to 
do so in a timely fashion. 

13.2 Notices.  All notices, demands, requests, consents or other communications 
required or permitted to be given or made under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed 
to the following: 

If to Host: 

Peter Lombardi 
Town Administrator 
Town of Brewster 
2198 Main St Brewster, MA 02631 
Phone 508-896-3701 
Email: plombardi@brewster-ma.gov 
  

If to Developer:  
 

Solect Energy Development LLC 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      34 

89 Hayden Rowe Street 
Hopkinton, MA 01746 
Attn: Legal Notices 

If to CVEC: Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
23H2 White’s Path, Suite 2 
South Yarmouth, MA 02664 
Attn: Liz Argo, Manager 
Tel: (774) 722-1812 
Email: largo@cvecinc.org 

Notices hereunder shall be deemed properly served:  (a) by hand delivery, on the day and 
at the time on which delivered to the intended recipient at the address set forth in this 
Agreement; (b) if sent by mail, on the third business day after the day on which deposited in the 
United States certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to 
the intended recipient at its address set forth in this Agreement; or (c) if by Federal Express or 
other reputable express mail service, on the next business day after delivery to such express mail 
service, addressed to the intended recipient at its address set forth in this Agreement.  Either 
Party may change its address and contact person for the purposes of this Section 13.2 by giving 
notice thereof in the manner required herein. 

13.3 Entire Agreement; Amendments; Binding Effect.  This Agreement constitutes 
the entire agreement between the Parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof and 
supersede all prior oral or written agreements and understandings between the Parties relating to 
the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement may only be amended or modified by a written 
amendment to this Agreement signed by both Parties hereto.  This Agreement inures to the 
benefit of and is binding upon the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

13.4 Expenses.  Each Party hereto shall pay all expenses incurred by it in connection 
with its entering into this Agreement, including but not limited to, all attorneys’ fees and 
expenses. 

13.5 No Joint Venture.  Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute either 
Party a partner, agent or legal representative of the other Party or to create a joint venture, 
partnership, agency or any relationship between the Parties.  The obligations of the Parties are 
individual and not collective in nature. 

13.6 Joint Work Product.  This Agreement shall be considered the work product of 
both Parties hereto, and, therefore, no rule of strict construction shall be applied against either 
Party. 

13.7 Waiver.  No waiver by either Party hereto of any one or more defaults by the 
other Party in the performance of any provision of this Agreement shall operate or be construed 
as a waiver of any future default, whether of like or different character.  No failure on the part of 
either Party hereto to complain of any action or non-action on the part of the other Party, no 
matter how long the same may continue, shall be deemed to be a waiver of any right hereunder 
by the Party so failing.  A waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall only be 
effective if made in writing and signed by the Party who is making such waiver. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      35 

13.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties 
hereunder shall be governed by and shall be construed, enforced and performed in accordance 
with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts without regard to principles of conflicts of 
law. 

The Parties agree that to the maximum extent permissible by law, nothing in this Agreement shall 
be interpreted to eliminate or reduce legal protections or defenses available to the Buyer as public 
cooperative or to the Host as municipal entity. 

13.9 Nondiscrimination.  Developer agrees that it shall not, because of race, color, 
national origin, ancestry, age, sex, religion, physical or mental handicap, or sexual orientation, 
gender identity, genetic information, or status as a veteran, discriminate against any qualified 
employee, applicant for employment, subcontractor, or person or firm seeking to provide goods or 
services to Developer, or deny any person access to the Premises or to any activities or programs 
carried out upon the Premises.  Developer shall comply with all applicable federal and state 
statutes, rules, and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment or public 
accommodation. 

13.10 Severability.  If any article, section, phrase or portion of this Agreement is, for 
any reason, held or adjudged to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such article, section, phrase, or portion so adjudged shall be deemed separate, 
severable and independent and the remainder of this Agreement shall be and remain in full force 
and effect and shall not be invalidated or rendered illegal or unenforceable or otherwise affected 
by such adjudication, provided the basic purpose of this Agreement and the benefits to the 
Parties are not substantially impaired. 

13.11 Further Assurances.  From time to time and at any time at and after the 
execution of this Agreement, each Party shall execute, acknowledge and deliver such documents 
and assurances, reasonably requested by the other and shall take any other action consistent with 
the terms of this Agreement that may be reasonably requested by the other for the purpose of 
effecting or confirming any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

13.12 Survival.  Termination of this Agreement for any reason shall not relieve Host or 
Developer of any obligation accrued or accruing prior to such termination, including, but not 
limited to, the obligations set forth in Sections 9.1 and 9.2 (Indemnification) and XII (Dispute 
Resolution), which shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

13.13 Counterparts; Scanned Copy.  This Agreement may be executed in 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and 
the same instrument.  The Parties agree that a scanned or electronically reproduced copy or 
image of this Agreement bearing the signatures of the Parties hereto shall be deemed an original 
and may be introduced or submitted in any action or proceeding as competent evidence of the 
execution, terms and existence of this Agreement notwithstanding the failure or inability to 
produce or tender an original, executed counterpart of this Agreement and without the 
requirement that the unavailability of such original, executed counterpart of this Agreement first 
be proven. 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      36 

13.14 Special Terms and Conditions.  This Agreement is a standard form lease 
agreement for project development and that modifications to the main body of this Agreement 
are not permitted.  To the extent there are special terms and conditions that are specific to the 
installation of the PV System on the Premises, such terms and conditions will be set forth in 
Exhibit D attached hereto (the “Special Terms and Conditions”).  To the extent there is a conflict 
between the Special Terms and Conditions and the main body of this Agreement, the Special 
Terms and Conditions will control. 

13.15 No Limitation of Regulatory Authority.  The Parties acknowledge that nothing 
in this Agreement shall be deemed to be an agreement by Host to issue or cause the issuance of 
any permit or approval, or to limit or otherwise affect the ability of the Host or the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts to fulfill its regulatory mandate or execute its regulatory 
powers consistent with Applicable Legal Requirements. 

 

[Signature page to follow] 

  



 

 

{A0635948.1 }      37 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date. 

DEVELOPER: 
SOLECT ENERGY DEVELOPMENT LLC 
 
 
By:  ________________________ 
Name: James R. Dumas 
Title:  Manager 
 
HOST: 
By:  ________________________ 
Name:  ________________________ 
Title:  ________________________ 



 

 

{A0635948.1 }  

List of Exhibits to this Agreement 

Exhibit A – Description of Premises 
Exhibit A-1 – Additional Exceptions 
Exhibit A-2 – Rent  
Exhibit A-3 – Warranties  
Exhibit B – Description of PV System 
Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 
Exhibit E – Common Technical Specifications 
Exhibit F – Services Agreement between CVEC and Host



 

{A0635948.1 } A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES 

Address:  

3195 Main Street, Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630  
Legal Description: 

Barnstable County First District Court Rooftop, located at the above address, as illustrated in the 
Sketch Plan entitled “First District Courthouse PV System”.  The PV System on the attached 
Sketch Plan is identified by the area where the solar panels and Battery Energy Storage System 
are located, as such Sketch Plan may be amended or revised from time to time.Description of 
the Premises: 

The Premises shall further include all necessary electrical and other utility sources, together with 
the non-exclusive right of ingress and egress from a public right-of-way, to the Premises for the 
purpose of design, procurement, installation, testing, commissioning, ownership, operation, 
inspection, maintenance, repair and improvements and removal of the PV System.  In the event 
there are not sufficient electric and other necessary utility sources located on the Premises to 
enable Developer to transmit Net Energy generated by the PV System to the Point of Delivery, 
Host agrees to grant Developer or the Distribution Company the right to install such utilities on, 
over and/or under the Premises and the Property, as necessary to operate the PV System, 
provided, however, the location of such utilities shall be as reasonably designated by Host. 

 



 

 

{A0635948.1 } A-3 

 

EXHIBIT A-1 

ADDITIONAL EXCEPTIONS 

A.  Developer’s use of the Premises shall be subject to the following: 

 
Host’s Reserved Uses of the Premises:  
 
[LIST] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

{A0635948.1 } A-3 

 

 
EXHIBIT A-2 

RENT 

As described in Section 4.1 of this Agreement, the annual rent payment shall be $____.  



 

 

{A0635948.1 } A-4 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT A-3 
 
 

WARRANTIES



 

 

{A0635948.1 } B-1 

 

EXHIBIT B 

DESCRIPTION OF PV SYSTEM 

PV SYSTEM: Module Manufacturer:  

 Nameplate Capacity:  

 Approximate Annual Energy Production: 

  kWh 

 Location:  

 Preliminary Specifications: 

   

 Battery Manufacturer:  
  
  

 BESS Nameplate Capacity in kilowatts per four 
hours:  

_______________kW for four hours 

Location:   

 

 

Mounting Systems:  

PV SYSTEM ASSETS: Inverters:  

 Related Equipment:  

 Electric Lines:  

  



 

 

{A0635948.1 } C-1 

 

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Developer’s insurance obligations.  Developer shall secure and maintain, at its 
own expense, throughout the Term of this Agreement the following insurance coverage.  
Developer shall provide Host with evidence, reasonably satisfactory to the Host, of its insurance 
hereunder, upon request. 

1. Comprehensive commercial general liability insurance of at least 
$2,000,000 combined single limit.  This limit requirement may be satisfied by (i) the purchase of 
the specified limits in an individual policy, or (ii) with the purchase of additional umbrella or 
excess liability insurance which, in combination with the limits of the separate policies, provides 
the total limit required. 

2. Excess liability coverage of at least $10,000,000. 

3. Additional insurance requirements.  All insurance maintained by 
Developer shall: 

a. include as additional insured the Host for obligations arising out of 
this Agreement.  The policies shall be endorsed to require that such additional insureds 
receive at least thirty (30) days’ notice of cancellation or non-renewal.  Additionally, the 
Developer shall be required to provide notice to the Host of any cancellation or non-
renewal at least thirty (30) days in advance of said cancellation or non-renewal. 

b. the insurance may be provided on a claims-made basis. 

c. in the event such insurance is cancelled or non-renewed, Developer 
agrees to provide a 36 month discovery period endorsement for obligations under this 
Agreement. 

d. The insurance shall include coverage for bodily injury liability, 
property damage liability, advertising injury liability and personal injury liability. 

e. The insurance shall include blanket contractual liability coverage, 
including coverage for this Agreement. 

B. Host’s insurance obligations.  Host shall secure and maintain, at its own expense, 
throughout the Term of this Agreement the following insurance coverage.  Host shall provide 
Developer with evidence, reasonably satisfactory to the Developer, of its insurance hereunder, 
upon request. 

1. Commercial general liability insurance written on an occurrence basis 
and endorsed to include its independent contractors, bodily injury liability, property damage 
liability, personal injury liability, premises/operations liability, and broad form general liability, 
with limits of not less than $3,000,000 combined single limit and annual aggregate.  This limit 



 

 

{A0635948.1 } C-2 

 

requirement may be may be satisfied by (i) the purchase of the specified limits in an individual 
policy, or (ii) with the purchase of additional umbrella or excess liability insurance which, in 
combination with the limits of the separate policies, provides the total limit required. 

2. Property insurance on the Premises with a waiver of subrogation rights 
against the Developer. 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT D 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO THIS 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

Decommissioning Assurance shall be in the amount of $1,132.00. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT E 

COMMON TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

This Exhibit describes the technical specifications and requirements that are common to 
all the PV Systems.  These common technical specifications are those that each PV System must 
meet or exceed.  These specifications and requirements are not intended to be all-encompassing, 
nor are they intended to override Good Engineering Practice or Applicable laws and code 
requirements.  The Developer is responsible for conformance to all relevant, prevailing codes, 
and the codes take precedence over these Technical Specifications.  Site-specific conditions 
and/or local regulations may require additional specifications and requirements not included in 
this Exhibit. 

A. Design 

1. Design Life and Estimated Production Requirements 

a. Each PV System shall have a service life of twenty (20) years at rated load. 

b. The PV System must be designed so that the estimated annual energy output 
for the PV System, based on actual site-specific shading, azimuth, and 
inclination is at least 80% of the default optimal output for a fixed PV System 
of the same capacity in Boston as estimated by PVWATTS Version 1.  
PVWATTS Version 1 is available at the following website: 
http://rredc.nrel.gov/solar/calculators/PVWATTS/version1/US/Massachusetts/
. 

2. Additional Design Requirements - Stamped affidavits or drawings are required 
for the electrical and structural components of the installation. 

a. The electrical design of the PV System must be performed by a Professional 
Engineer (“PE”) licensed in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

b. The structural design of the PV System requires a stamped affidavit from a 
Massachusetts-licensed PE confirming that the underlying structure or bearing 
stratum, is adequate to withstand the static and dynamic loads of the PV 
System.  The analysis must include all mounted portions of the PV System, 
including modules, racks, ballast, and other related components.  The analysis 
must also include all mount securing portions of the PV System, including any 
anchors and penetrating devices. 

B. Equipment 

1. General - All mounting materials for the PV System shall be corrosion-proof 
aluminum or 316 stainless steel.  If the Developer determines the use of 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

 

 

galvanized structural steel is warranted, the extent of Developer’s use of such 
material shall be clearly outlined in the Developer’s Proposal.  All materials 
subject to exposure to the sun must be sunlight resistant material.  All conductors 
shall be copper.  Bare copper conductors exposed to free air shall be tin-plated.  
Alternative materials must be approved by the Host and CVEC. 

2. Inverters 

a. Inverter efficiency shall be equal to or greater than 93%. 

b. Installation shall meet the current UL 1741/IEEE Standard 1547, MEC codes 
and the latest applicable ANSI and FCC standards and addenda dated prior to 
the award of the purchase order for this procurement. 

c. The point of interconnection for the inverter(s) shall not be in parallel with 
any backup generators at the site during emergency generation. 

d. Each inverter shall include: 

i. Automatic operation including start-up, shutdown, self-diagnosis, fault 
detection and alarming. 

ii. Ground fault protection. 

iii. NEMA 2R rating for interior electrical room location or NEMA 3R for 
any exterior locations. 

e. The inverter(s) must have secure, weatherproof housing in the exterior 
installation. 

f. The inverter(s) housing must be a sound structure designed to withstand all 
dead load, live load, wind and seismic loads for the area. 

g. The inverter(s) must be located to provide adequate air flow for cooling. 

h. Lightning protection must be provided for the inverter(s) housing. 

3. Batteries – The battery energy storage system will be DC coupled and meet all 
NEC requirements.  

4. Combiner & Junction Boxes - Combiner boxes and junction boxes which are 
located outdoors shall have the following characteristics: NEMA 4X 3R 
enclosure, 600 VDC, and listed by a nationally recognized testing laboratory.  All 
PV System output circuits shall be protected by lightning arrestors of the 
appropriate voltage rating. 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

 

 

5. DC Disconnect Switches - The DC disconnect(s) shall be 600 VDC, heavy-duty 
safety switch and be listed by a nationally recognized testing laboratory.  Where 
located outdoors, disconnects shall be NEMA 3R.  Where fused disconnects are 
used, the fuse shall have appropriate DC ratings. 

6. AC Disconnects - All AC disconnects shall be rated to interrupt the necessary 
voltage and current for the application and be listed by a nationally recognized 
testing laboratory.  Where located outdoors disconnects shall be NEMA 3R.  The 
AC disconnect shall be appropriately located per the utility’s requirements and its 
location shall be noted on the one-line electrical drawing. 

7. Interconnection Circuit Breaker - The Developer shall provide the appropriate 
size, make, and model circuit breaker for the specified AC interconnection 
switchgear that is suitable for back feed in accordance with NEC 690.64. 

8. Wiring and Conduit 

a. All system wiring shall be of an MEC approved wiring method.  All 
conductors shall have a temperature rating of 90 degrees C or lower. 

b. All conductors shall be copper, sized appropriately to minimize line losses. 

c. All conduits used in interior building applications shall be electro metallic 
tubing (“EMT”). 

d. All exterior conduits shall be hot dipped galvanized EMT with weather tight 
compression fittings and expansion joints as required. 

e. Expansion fittings shall be used in conduit runs in compliance with MEC 
article 300.7.  A value of 144°F (80°C) shall be used for the maximum change 
in temperature (delta T) in the calculation of conduit expansion. 

f. All conduits shall be bonded at each end using listed bonding bushings. 

g. Where conduit is attached to roofs, fully flashed, non ferrous stanchions shall 
allow for expansion and contraction.  For roof-mounted conditions, conduits 
shall be supported at a height greater than 3.5 inches by fully flashed, non 
ferrous stanchions.  Manufacturer’s approved surface applied stanchions shall 
be used on membrane roofs. 

h. All outdoor electrical enclosures shall be NEMA 3R and have watertight 
connections. 

i. Exposed cables shall be listed as sunlight resistant and have a temperature 
rating of 90°C.  These conductors shall be properly secured and well 
supported.  Conductors are not permitted to be resting on the abrasive surfaces 
such as asphalt shingles. 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

 

 

j. All wiring and conductors installed in subsurface applications shall be housed 
in utility grade PVC conduit(s) sufficiently covered and include trench 
warning identification.  Spare conduits shall also be installed with a 
volumetric capacity of at least 25% of the original service.  In the event 
subsurface conduits are exposed to vehicular traffic, concrete encasement 
shall be included. 

9. PV System Grounding - The PV System shall be properly grounded in 
accordance with all applicable requirements of local electrical, MEC and NEC 
codes. 

10. PV Array 

a. PV Modules 

i. Modules shall be UL 1703 listed. 

b. Mounting Systems 

i. In all installations, the mounting system shall promote ambient air 
circulation beneath and above modules to enhance efficiency.  The lower 
edge of the panels on the mounting should be designed to eliminate power 
production losses from snow coverage and provide a comfortable working 
height for maintenance. 

ii. Modules shall be individually removable for maintenance and repair. 

iii. The mounting system, regardless of application, shall be designed to meet 
or exceed requirements of all applicable state and local building codes, 
including wind speed, snow and seismic load requirements.  The 
Developer shall describe and document the wind and snow loads that the 
PV System is designed to withstand. 

iv. For ballasted roof mounted systems, the Developer shall provide a 
manufacturer’s comprehensive designed system.  The Professional 
Engineer responsible for this portion of work shall also be licensed in the 
state of Massachusetts. 

v. In the event an existing lightning protection system is modified or 
augmented, the Developer is responsible for UL recertification. 

vi. Each module row or column must be separated to minimize shadowing 
effects on other modules.  The spacing between modules shall be noted on 
the PV layout drawing. 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

 

 

vii. For all PV Systems with roof penetration points through previously 
warranted roofs, the Developer is responsible that roof warranty is not 
voided 

11. Installation Requirements 

a. The output of the PV inverter(s) shall not interfere with or damage the 
function of existing Building electrical distribution systems.  All serviceable 
components must be “accessible” as defined by the MEC article 100.  The 
installation shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local building 
codes including the latest Massachusetts Electrical Code.  The Developer shall 
not, under any circumstance, operate switchgear forming part of the main 
distribution system.  The Developer shall coordinate with the Host to operate 
the switchgear to disconnect or re-energize loads.  Advanced notice shall be 
given to the Host for interconnection of PV System output or if the switchgear 
is to be turned off. 

b. The PV System electrical work must be performed by individuals licensed in 
Massachusetts. 

c. The PV System must be installed according to the manufacturer’s instructions 
and in compliance with all applicable codes and standards. 

d. The Developer is responsible for all aspects of the local electric utility 
interconnection agreement including the submission of Schedule Z to 
accommodate any Net Metering or Alternative On-bill Credit arrangement 
requested by CVEC or the Host.  An application must be submitted to the 
local electric utility, with or without Schedule Z as appropriate, to start the 
formal interconnection process, and sufficient lead time should be allowed to 
successfully achieve interconnection under the local electric utility 
interconnection standards.  All PV Systems must have an appropriate electric 
utility interconnection agreement in place at the time of interconnection to the 
utility grid. 

e. All pertinent permits and inspections must be obtained and copies kept on file 
as may be required by local codes and/or state law. 

f. All PV Systems shall include appropriate surge arresters or other means to 
protect the PV System components from lightning and other surge events.  It 
is the responsibility of the Developer to ensure that the installation meets any 
local, state or federal building and electrical laws that address lightning and 
surge protection. 

12. PV System Warranty Requirements 

a. Developer Warranty.  All PV Systems must have a minimum five (5) year 
labor warranty provided by the Developer to protect the Host against defective 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

 

 

workmanship, PV System or component breakdown, or degradation in 
electrical output of more than fifteen percent from their originally rated 
electrical output during the warranty period.  The warranty must cover the PV 
System, including PV modules (panels) and inverter(s), racking, conduit run, 
and components, and provide for no-cost repair or replacement of the PV 
System, components, including any associated labor during the warranty 
period. 

b. Manufacturer Warranty.  All major equipment must meet the following 
minimum manufacturer warranties: 

i. Photovoltaic Module: Minimum of one (1) year product warranty from 
date of sale to first consumer purchaser for product workmanship and 
materials, plus a minimum performance warranty of twenty (20) years 
within which time the module will produce, under standard test conditions, 
a minimum of 80% of the product’s minimum rated power at time of sale. 

ii. Inverters: Minimum of ten (10) years product warranty from date of sale 
to first consumer purchaser for product workmanship and materials. 

iii. Batteries: Minimum of ten (10) years product warranty from date of sale to 
first consumer purchaser for product workmanship and materials. 

iv. Revenue grade production meters: Minimum of two (2) years following 
the effective commercial operation date that the meter system will be free 
from all defects in design, materials and workmanship.  Such warranty, 
containing no exclusions or limitations, shall be in a form acceptable to, 
and for the benefit of, the Host. 

v. Mounting equipment: The Developer shall obtain from the mounting 
system manufacturer(s) a warranty that the mounting system(s) will be 
free from all defects in design, materials and workmanship for a period of 
ten (10) years following the effective commercial operation date.  Such 
warranty, containing no exclusions or limitations, shall be in a form 
acceptable to, and for the benefit of, the Host. 

13. Electricity Production Meter Requirements - All PV Systems must have a 
dedicated revenue grade production meter that: 

a. is readily accessible and easily understood by the Host; 

b. records the PV System’s AC output as measured on the AC side of the PV 
System’s isolation transformer; 

c. shall be separate from the local utility billing meter and shall not interfere 
with utility billing or net metering; 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

 

 

d. must be a standard utility “revenue quality” meter that conforms to applicable 
American National Standards Institute (“ANSI”) C-12 standards and shall be 
installed on the AC output side of the PV System’s inverter or isolation 
transformer; and 

e. shall have a visible display of cumulative energy produced by the PV System 
and be available for periodic testing and/or re-calibration, if necessary. 

14. Automated Reporting - All PV Systems must include an automated reporting 
system, i.e.  Data Acquisition System (“DAS”) which will report to the 
Massachusetts Renewable Energy Trust (“MRET”) Production Tracking System 
(“PTS”) and detail view be accessible to CVEC and Host.  In addition, the public 
will have access to a Public View from the DAS.  Where Battery Energy Storage 
System is proposed, automated and manual system controls must be provided 
which will be accessible to CVEC and Host offsite through high speed internet 
online access. 

 

C. Commissioning Requirements 

1. Commissioning Procedure -  At a minimum, the Developer’s sample testing and 
commissioning plan shall cover: 

a. measurement and recording of voltage-open-circuit of every source circuit; 

b. performance of inverter startup tests as specified by the inverter manufacturer 
in the inverter operation manual; 

c. measurement of AC power and comparison to predicted power based upon 
estimated irradiance level; 

d. performance of loss of grid test and verification of five minute delay upon 
restoration of the grid; and 

e. measurement and recording of Imp of every source circuit, measured at each 
combiner box (source circuit measurements should be done under uniform 
irradiance conditions and the time of the first and last measurements taken at 
each combiner box should be recorded). 

2. The Developer shall verify that the data acquisition/display system and, where 
applicable, the Battery Energy Storage System controls, are functioning properly, 
comparing independent measurements to data acquisition display and able to 
switch Battery Energy Storage System configurations and operations. 

3. The Developer shall correct, at no additional cost to the Host, any deficiencies 
uncovered by the testing prior to commissioning of the PV System. 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

 

 

D. Training Requirements 

The Developer shall train the Host or staff at the Premises on basic principles of 
operation, maintenance requirements, on-line data monitoring and system controls, and 
safety issues that are specific to the PV System installed (including points of contact in 
emergency situations).  An operations manual to accompany the training will be 
delivered to the Host and to CVEC. 

E. Documentation Requirements 

1. Documentation – The Developer shall prepare an Operations and Maintenance 
manual for the PV System.  In addition, the Contractor shall provide CVEC and 
the Host each with one (1) printed copy and one (1) digital copies on CD of the 
information listed below. 

2. The documentation shall include: 

a. A complete set of all approved shop drawings, a list of equipment and 
products used, and product literature.  The list of equipment shall include the 
manufacturer, brand name, model (if applicable), equipment components, 
recommended maintenance procedures for each piece of equipment, 
approximate amount of product installed and materials contained in the 
product. 

b. Record drawings showing, to scale, the location of all arrays, locations of 
major equipment, including combiner box clusters, all underground and major 
conduit runs, grounding electrodes and specific locations to building or utility 
connections points.  The record drawings shall also contain detailed DC and 
AC electrical schematics. 

c. The Permission to Operate provided by the Local Distribution Company. 

d. Trouble shooting guidelines. 

e. PV System maintenance schedule and procedures. 

f. Contact information for technical assistance and parts ordering. 

g. Records of all warranties and serial numbers of all warranted equipment. 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0635948.1 } F-1 

 

EXHIBIT F 

[Reserved] 

 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0635948.1 } G-1 

 

EXHIBIT G 

SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN CVEC AND HOST 



Barnstable County Lab 

{A0639245.1 }  

 
 
 
 

INTER-GOVERNMENTAL NET ENERGY POWER SALES AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN  
 

THE CAPE & VINEYARD ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
 

AND 
 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
 

FOR SOLAR CANOPY PHOTOVOLTAIC ENERGY FACILITY 
 

LOCATED AT BARNSTABLE COUNTY LAB BUILDING 
 
 
 

_________ __, 2020 
 

Barnstable County 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{A0639245.1 } ii 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  
 

 
ARTICLE I: DEFINITIONS .............................................................................................. 1 

ARTICLE II: CONSTRUCTION; OBLIGATION TO MODIFY AGREEMENT ........... 7 

2.1 Construction ...................................................................................................... 7 

2.2 Obligation to Modify ........................................................................................ 7 

ARTICLE III: PURCHASE AND SALE ........................................................................... 7 

3.1 Conditions Precedent ........................................................................................ 7 

3.2 Sale and Purchase ............................................................................................. 7 

3.3 ISO Forward Capacity Market. ......................................................................... 8 

3.4 Take-or-Pay for Net Energy Delivered to Point of Delivery ............................ 8 

3.5 Environmental Credits and Value ..................................................................... 8 

3.6 Net Metering Credits......................................................................................... 8 

3.7 Maximum Financial Liability of the Parties Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 40, Section 
4A ...................................................................................................................... 9 

ARTICLE IV: TERM ......................................................................................................... 9 

4.1 Term .................................................................................................................. 9 

ARTICLE V: METERING AND BILLING .................................................................... 10 

5.1 Billing ............................................................................................................. 10 

5.2 Payment........................................................................................................... 10 

5.3 Metering Equipment and Testing .................................................................... 10 

5.4 Dispute ............................................................................................................ 10 

ARTICLE VI: PARTIES’ OBLIGATIONS ..................................................................... 11 

6.1 Seller’s Obligations. ........................................................................................ 11 

6.2 Buyer’s Obligations ........................................................................................ 11 

6.3 Net Metering. .................................................................................................. 12 

ARTICLE VII: REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES ....................................... 13 

7.1 Seller’s Representations and Warranties ........................................................ 13 

7.2 Buyer’s Representations and Warranties ........................................................ 13 

ARTICLE VIII: TERMINATION; DEFAULT; REMEDIES ......................................... 13 



{A0639245.1 } iii 
 

8.1 Termination ..................................................................................................... 13 

8.2 Events of Default by Buyer ............................................................................. 14 

8.3 Events of Default by Seller ............................................................................. 14 

8.4 Force Majeure ................................................................................................. 15 

8.5 Remedies. ........................................................................................................ 15 

8.6 Step-in Rights of Financier ............................................................................. 16 

8.7 Acknowledgement of Seller’s Purchase Option ............................................. 17 

8.8 Host Funded Purchase Option ........................................................................ 17 

ARTICLE IX: ASSIGNMENT......................................................................................... 18 

9.1  No Assignment Without Permission ............................................................... 18 

ARTICLE X: DISPUTE RESOLUTION; GOVERNING LAW ..................................... 18 

10.1  Dispute Resolution .......................................................................................... 18 

10.2  Governing Law ............................................................................................... 19 

10.3  Stay of Termination. ....................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE XI: MISCELLANEOUS ................................................................................. 19 

11.1  Notices ............................................................................................................ 19 

11.2  Entire Agreement; Amendments; Binding Effect ........................................... 20 

11.3  Expenses ......................................................................................................... 20 

11.4  No Joint Venture ............................................................................................. 20 

11.5  Joint Workproduct .......................................................................................... 20 

11.6  Waiver ............................................................................................................. 20 

11.7  Severability ..................................................................................................... 20 

11.8  Further Assurances.......................................................................................... 21 

11.9  Headings and Captions ................................................................................... 21 

11.10  Counterparts; Scanned Copy ........................................................................... 21 

11.11  Reports; Compliance with M.G.L. c. 40, Section 4A ..................................... 21 

11.12  Special Terms and Conditions ........................................................................ 21 

11.13  Third Party Beneficiary……………………….……………………………….………………….23 

 
 
 



Barnstable County Lab 

{A0639245.1 }  

INTER-GOVERNMENTAL NET ENERGY POWER SALES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN  

THE CAPE & VINEYARD ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 
AND 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY, MASSACHUSETTS 
 
 

This Inter-Governmental Net Energy Power Sales Agreement (“Agreement” or “Inter-
Governmental PSA”) is entered into this __ day of __________, 2020 (the “Effective Date”) and 
is by and between the Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc., a Massachusetts cooperative 
corporation (“Seller”), and the Barnstable County, Massachusetts (“Buyer”).  
 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. Whereas, at Buyer’s request, Seller issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) 
pursuant to G. L. c. 164, § 137, seeking a Developer to design, procure, install, test, commission, 
own, operate and maintain a solar energy generation facility with or without a battery energy 
storage system (“PV System”) (defined herein and further identified in Exhibit B) to be located 
on property owned by the Buyer and leased to the Developer;   

 
B. Whereas, pursuant to the RFP, Buyer has entered into a lease agreement (“Lease”) 

with the Developer to develop the PV System, specifically a solar canopy PV System (the “PV 
System”) at the Barnstable County, 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630 (the “Premises”), 
owned by the Buyer; 

 
C. Whereas, Seller has entered into a Power Purchase Agreement (“PPA”) with 

Developer pursuant to which Seller will purchase Net Energy (as defined herein) generated by 
the PV System and in turn sell an allocated share of that Net Energy to Buyer, pursuant to this 
Agreement; 

D. Whereas, Buyer desires to purchase the Net Energy generated by the PV System 
from Seller to reduce its electric load and to obtain Net Metering Credits to apply against electric 
bills; and  

 
E. Whereas, Seller, to the extent permitted by law, will net meter the Net Energy 

generated by the PV System for the benefit of Buyer. 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual promises set forth 
below, Seller and Buyer agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I:DEFINITIONS 

When used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings given, unless 
a different meaning is expressed or clearly indicated by the context.  Words defined in this 
Article I that are capitalized shall be given their common and ordinary meanings when they 



{A0639245.1 } 2 
 

appear without capitalization in the text.  Words not defined herein shall be given their common 
and ordinary meanings. 
 
“Applicable Legal Requirements” means any present and future law, act, rule, requirement, 
order, bylaw, ordinance, regulation, judgment, decree, or injunction of or by any Governmental 
Authority, and all licenses, permits, tariffs, and other governmental consents, which may at any 
time be applicable to a Party’s rights and obligations hereunder, including, without limitation, the 
design, procurement, construction, installation, operation, ownership, maintenance, repair, 
decommissioning and removal of the PV System on the Premises, as well as the selling and 
purchasing of power therefrom.  
 
“Alternative On-bill Credit” means the energy value of generation from an Alternative On-bill 
Generation Unit, as calculated in accordance with 225 CMR 20.08(1)(a)2. 
 
“Alternative On-bill Generation Unit” has the meaning as set forth in in 225 CMR 20.02. 
  
“Battery Energy Storage System” means battery or batteries and necessary controls to extend the 
power available to the host facility when installed in conjunction with a renewable energy resource 
and/or the grid. 

“Business Day” means a day on which Federal Reserve member banks in Boston are open for 
business; and a Business Day shall open at 8:00 a.m. and close at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Prevailing 
Time. 
 
“Commercial Operation” means that the PV System is ready for regular, daily operation, has 
undergone testing as provided in the PPA, has been accepted by Seller and Buyer (and to the 
extent required, the Distribution Company), is in compliance with Applicable Legal 
Requirements in all respects (including, but not limited to, a grant of permission to operate from 
the Distribution Company, and completion of all final inspections), and is capable of producing 
Energy and delivering it to the Point of Delivery. 
 
“Commercial Operation Date” means the first day on which the PV System is ready for 
Commercial Operation, as certified in writing by Developer to Seller in the Notice of 
Commercial Operation. 

 
“Commercially Reasonable” means any of the practices, methods and acts which, in the 
exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known, or which in the exercise of due 
diligence, should have been known, at the time the decision was made, would have been 
expected in the industry to accomplish the desired result consistent with reliability, safety, 
expedition, project economics, and regulations.   
 
“Cooperative Member” means any municipality, county or political subdivision thereof, or 
other body politic, that has duly joined Seller as a cooperative member.  Although Buyer is a 
Cooperative member, Buyer shall be excluded from this definition under this Agreement. 
 



{A0639245.1 } 3 
 

“Developer” means the Lessee under the Lease who will develop the PV System and then sell 
the Net Energy to the Seller pursuant to the PPA. 
 
“Distribution Company” means Eversource Electric Company or any successor thereto. 
 
“Distribution Company System” means the electric distribution system operated and 
maintained by the Distribution Company. 
 
“DOER” means the Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources. 
 
“Effective Date” means the date set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement.  
 
“Energy” means the amount of electricity either used or generated over a period of time; 
expressed in terms of kilowatt hour (“kWh”) or megawatt hour (“MWh”).  Energy shall not 
include Environmental Attributes. 
 
“Environmental Attributes” means any credit, benefit, reduction, offset, financial incentive, 
tax credit and other beneficial allowance that is in effect as of the Effective Date or any 
expansion, reenactment, extension or replacement thereof that may come into effect in the future 
(except Shared Environmental Attributes), including, to the extent applicable and without 
limitation, (i) greenhouse gas offsets under the Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative, (ii) 
Renewable Energy Credits or any similar credits under the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction, (iii) tax credits, incentives or depreciation allowances 
established under any federal or state law, (iv)  energy investment tax credits under section 48 of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (v) incentives under the  Solar Massachusetts 
Renewable Target (SMART) Program as provided in 225 CMR 20.00, and (vi) other allowances 
however named or referenced, with respect to any and all fuel, emissions, air quality, or other 
environmental characteristics, resulting from the use of solar energy generation or the avoidance 
of the emission of any gas, chemical or other substance into the air, soil or water attributable to 
the sale of Net Energy generated by the PV System during the Term and in which Developer has 
good and valid title.  Environmental Attributes shall not include net metering credits, or any 
capacity credits for the PV System, including credits or payments related to the Forward 
Capacity Market or Shared Environmental Attributes.   

 
“Event of Default” means any event of default as defined in Sections 8.2 and 8.3 of this 
Agreement. 
 
“Event of Termination” means any event of termination as defined in Section 8.1 of this 
Agreement.   
 
“Financier” means any individual or entity providing money or extending credit for the PV 
System to Seller or Developer for: (1) the construction, term or permanent financing of the PV 
System; or (2) working capital or other ordinary business requirements for the PV System.  
“Financier” shall not include common trade creditors of Seller or Developer. 
 



{A0639245.1 } 4 
 

“Force Majeure” means any cause not within the reasonable control of the affected Party which 
precludes that Party from carrying out, in whole or in part, its obligations under this Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, Acts of God; winds; hurricanes; tornadoes; fires; epidemics; 
landslides; earthquakes; floods; other natural catastrophes; strikes; lock-outs or other industrial 
disturbances; acts of public enemies; acts, failures to act or orders of any kind of any 
Governmental Authority acting in its regulatory or judicial capacity; insurrections; military 
action; war, whether or not it is declared; sabotage; riots; civil disturbances or explosions.  
Nothing in this provision is intended to excuse either Party from performing due to any 
governmental act, failure to act, or order, where it was reasonably within such Party’s power to 
prevent such act, failure to act, or order.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the 
contrary, Force Majeure shall not mean:  

 
(a) Inclement weather affecting construction, start-up, operation, or decommissioning 
of the PV System. 
 
(b) Unavailability of sun.   
 
(c) Unavailability of equipment, repairs or spare parts for the PV System, except to 
the extent due to a qualifying event of Force Majeure. 
 
(d) Inability to obtain, maintain or renew any Permit or any delay in obtaining, 
maintaining, or renewing any Permit, except that Cooperative shall be able to assert Host 
Town’s governmental actions on Permits for the PV System as an event of Force 
Majeure. 
  
(e) Any nonpayment under this Agreement or any third party agreement. 

 
(f) Economic hardship of either Party. 

 
“Forward Capacity Market” means the locational capacity market in which ISO New England 
projects needs of the power system three years in advance and holds an annual auction to purchase 
power resources to satisfy the New England region future electricity demand needs.   
 
“Good Engineering Practice” means any of the practices, methods and acts which, in the 
exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known, or which in the exercise of due 
diligence, should have been known, at the time the decision was made, would have been 
expected to accomplish the desired result consistent with reliability, safety, expedition, project 
economics and Applicable Legal Requirements for similar facilities in the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts.  Good Engineering Practice is not intended to be limited to consideration of any 
one practice, method or act, to the exclusion of all others, but rather, is intended to require the 
consideration of a spectrum of possible practices, methods or acts. 
 
“Governmental Authority” means the United States of America, the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts, and any political or municipal subdivision thereof, and any agency, department, 
commission, board, bureau, independent electric system operator, or instrumentality of any of 



{A0639245.1 } 5 
 

them, or any court or tribunal, excluding Seller and any Cooperative Members, including, 
without limitation, Buyer, unless acting in their regulatory authority.   
 
“Host Customer” has the meaning set forth in 220 CMR 18.02. 
  
“ISO” means the New England Independent System Operator established in accordance with the 
NEPOOL Agreement (the Second Amended and Restated New England Power Pool Agreement 
dated as of February 1, 2005) and the Interim Independent System Operator Agreement as those 
Agreements are amended, superseded or restated from time to time. 
 
“kW” means Kilowatt. 
 
“kWh” means Kilowatt hour. 
 
“Lease” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals. 
 
“Metering Device(s)” means any and all revenue quality meters installed by Developer, Seller or 
the Distribution Company at, before, or after the Point of Delivery necessary or appropriate for 
the delivery of Energy into the Distribution Company System, the calculation of Net Metering 
Credits, and the registration, recording, and transmission of information regarding the amount of 
Net Energy generated by the PV System and delivered to the Delivery Point for sale to Seller 
and/or Buyer. 
   
“Municipal Load” means Buyer’s total annual energy usage as determined on the Effective 
Date of this Agreement, as specified in Exhibit C. 
 
“MW” means Megawatt. 
 
“MWh” means Megawatt hour. 
 
“NEPOOL” means the New England Power Pool and any successor organization. 
 
“Net Energy” means the actual and verifiable amount of Energy generated by the PV System 
and delivered to Buyer at the Point of Delivery or allocated to Buyer in excess of any Energy 
consumed by the PV System as metered in kWh at the Metering Device(s), and in conformance 
with Applicable Legal Requirements. 
“Net Metered Generation Unit” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR 20.02. 
 
“Net Metering” means the process of measuring the difference between electricity delivered by 
a local electric distribution company and electricity generated by a net metering facility and fed 
back to the local electric distribution company, as set forth under M.G.L. c. 164, §§138 – 140 
and 220 C.M.R.  18.00, as may be amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority, and 
pursuant to the Distribution Company’s tariffs.  
 
“Net Metering Credits” shall have the meaning set forth in 220 C.M.R. 18.00, as may be 
amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority, as implemented by the Tariffs. 



{A0639245.1 } 6 
 

 
“Parties” means Buyer and Seller collectively, and their respective successors and permitted 
assignees. 
 
“Party” means Buyer or Seller individually, and their respective successors and permitted 
assignees. 
 
“Permits” means all state, federal, county, and local authorizations, certificates, permits, 
licenses and approvals required by any Governmental Authority for the construction, operation 
and maintenance of the PV System. 
 
“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation (including a business trust), limited 
liability company, joint stock company, trusts, unincorporated association, joint venture, 
Governmental Authority, or other entity.  
 
“Point of Delivery” means the agreed location or locations on the Premises where Net Energy is 
to be delivered and received, as further set forth in Exhibit A to the Lease. 
 
“PPA” means the Net Energy Power Purchase Agreement between Seller and Developer, a form 
of which is attached hereto as Exhibit D. 
 
“Prime Rate” means the rate published from time to time in the “Money Rates” section of The 
Wall Street Journal, as the prime-lending rate.  In the event this index is discontinued or its basis 
is substantially modified, the Parties shall agree on a substitute equivalent index.  
 
“PV System” means the solar electric generating facility, including but not limited to the PV 
System Assets, which produces the Net Energy sold and purchased under this Agreement, as 
further identified in Exhibit B attached hereto.  The PV System may (or may not include) a 
Battery Energy Storage System, as specified in Exhibit B. 
 
“PV System Assets” means each and all of the assets of which the PV System is comprised, 
including the solar energy panels, mounting systems, carports, tracking devices, inverters, 
integrators, Battery Energy Storage Systems, if any, and other related equipment and 
components installed on the Premises, electric lines and conduits required to connect such 
equipment to the Delivery Point, protective and associated equipment, improvements, Metering 
Devices, and other tangible and intangible assets, permits, property rights and contract rights 
reasonably necessary for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the PV System. 
 

“SMART Program” means the Solar Massachusetts Renewable Target (SMART) 
Program as established in 225 CMR 20. 

 
“SMART Tariff” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR 20.02, as may be amended from 

time to time by a Governmental Authority. 
 
“Solar Net Metering Facility” has the meaning set forth in 220 CMR 18.00, as may be 

amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority. 



{A0639245.1 } 7 
 

 
 “Solar Tariff Generation Unit” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR 20.02, as may be 
amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority. 
 
 “Term” has the meaning set forth in Article IV (Term).   
 
“Termination Date” means the earlier to occur of: (a) the last day of the Term; or (b) the date of 
termination.  
 

ARTICLE II: CONSTRUCTION; OBLIGATION TO MODIFY AGREEMENT  

2.1 Construction 

The Parties acknowledge that inconsistencies may exist between this Agreement, the PPA and the 
Lease and that the Parties will use their best efforts to construe all agreements harmoniously. 

2.2 Obligation to Modify 

Upon implementation by the Massachusetts Department of Public Utilities, DOER, or other 
Governmental Authority of any rule or regulation that may affect any provision of this 
Agreement, in particular any rule or regulation regarding Net Metering, or any rule or regulation 
amending 225 CMR 14.00 (Renewable Energy Portfolio Standard) or 225 CMR 20.00 (Solar 
Massachusetts Renewable Target (SMART) Program), the Parties shall be obligated to amend 
this Agreement to conform to such rule(s), order(s) and/or regulation(s) to the extent that such 
amendments are Commercially Reasonable.  The Parties shall use their best efforts to conform 
such amendment to the original intent of this Agreement and to do so in a timely fashion.   

ARTICLE III:PURCHASE AND SALE 

3.1 Conditions Precedent 

The obligations of the Buyer and Seller under this Agreement shall be conditioned upon the 
following requirements: 

(a) execution by Developer and Host of the Lease as of or of even date with the Effective 
Date of this Agreement.   

(b) execution by Developer and Buyer of the PPA as of or of even date with the Effective 
Date of this Agreement.  

3.2 Sale and Purchase 

Buyer shall purchase and Seller shall sell the Net Energy pursuant to the terms and conditions set 
forth in Exhibit A.  



{A0639245.1 } 8 
 

3.3 ISO Forward Capacity Market. 

Seller shall retain the right to all ISO Forward Capacity Market Demand Resource credits or 
payments associated with the Net Energy. 

3.4 Take-or-Pay for Net Energy Delivered to Point of Delivery 

Subject to Section 8.3 (Events of Default by Seller) and Section 8.4 (Force Majeure), if Buyer 
fails to take Net Energy allocated to Buyer or made available to Buyer at the Delivery Point that 
Buyer is required to purchase under the terms of this Agreement, then Buyer shall pay to Seller 
on a monthly basis the price of the Net Energy as specified in Exhibit A upon thirty (30) days 
prior written notice by Seller.  Seller shall have no duty to mitigate any charges under this 
Section.  Disputes regarding compensation under this provision shall be subject to Article X 
(Dispute Resolution).  Buyer shall not enter into any other energy agreements, other than with 
the Seller, that would result in any reduction in the total number of kWh that are allocated to 
Buyer under this Agreement.  Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 40, §4A, the obligation of the Buyer to 
purchase the Net Energy as required under the terms of this Agreement in any contract year shall 
not be subject to appropriation and the Buyer shall not be exempt from liability pursuant to 
M.G.L. c. 44, §31.   

3.5 Environmental Credits and Value 

The Net Energy to which Buyer is entitled shall not include any Environmental Attributes.  
Buyer may not, under this Agreement, make any claims whatsoever with respect to any 
Environmental Attributes or the corresponding Energy in regards to a renewable portfolio 
standard, emission offset or other environmental, disclosure or similar regulatory requirement. 

3.6 Net Metering and Alternative On-bill Credits 

Seller and Buyer acknowledge and agree that for purposes of complying with the regulations at 
220 C.M.R. 18.07(2), Buyer shall: (i) sign the Interconnection Agreement as Host Customer (as 
such term is defined in 220 C.M.R. 18.02); and (ii) designate Seller as its agent for purposes of 
communications and interactions with the Distribution Company as necessary to carry out the 
terms of this Agreement, the Lease and the PPA.   

(a) Allocation of Net Metering and Alternative On-bill Credits.   
 
(i) Buyer with Seller’s and Developer’s assistance, shall: (i) designate on 

Schedule Z to the Interconnection Agreement Buyer’s accounts for which Buyer desires 
to allocate its share of the Net Metering and Alternative On-bill Credits generated or 
created during the Term in connection with the operation of the PV System; and (ii) at 
Seller’s direction, designate on Schedule Z the accounts of other Cooperative Members 
or governmental entities to receive Net Metering Credits generated or created during the 
Term in connection with the operation of the PV System in excess of Buyer’s Municipal 
Load (as such term is defined in the Inter-Governmental PDA).  Buyer acknowledges that 
for purposes of allocating Net Metering Credits, in Buyer’s role as Host Customer, it 
shall have no interest in and title to any Net Metering and Alternative On-bill Credits 



{A0639245.1 } 9 
 

generated in connection with the operation of the PV System in excess of Buyer’s 
Municipal Load. 

 
(ii) Seller and Buyer acknowledge and agree that in accordance with the 

Distribution Company tariffs, the Host Customer may amend Schedule Z of the tariffs 
two (2) times per calendar year, or as otherwise agreed to by the Distribution Company.  
Buyer and Seller will use Commercially Reasonable efforts to request that the 
Distribution Company amend the Schedule Z to address any changes in the identified 
electric accounts.  Buyer shall report to Seller as soon as reasonably possible in advance 
of any anticipated material change in Buyer’s electric accounts that would require an 
amendment to the Schedule Z. 

 
(b) Purchase of Net Metering Credits by Distribution Company.   

 
In the event that there is Net Energy for which the Distribution Company elects to 
purchase rather than allocate Net Metering Credits to Buyer’s designees, Buyer shall 
assign to Seller the right to receive such payment.  Seller shall allocate to Buyer and any 
other purchaser of Net Metering Credits associated with the Net Energy of the PV System 
their respective shares of the Net Metering Credit value as paid to Seller by the 
Distribution Company pursuant to Buyer’s assignment of such payment right.  
 
Seller and Buyer acknowledge and agree to request on Schedule Z of the Distribution 
Company tariffs that the Distribution Company purchase Net Metering Credits from the 
Host Customer in connection with the operation of the PV System.  In the event that the 
Distribution Company does not agree to such request and instead elects to allocate Net 
Metering Credits to the Host Customer or its designees, Seller and Buyer agree to use 
their best efforts to amend Exhibit A to conform to Section 3.4(a) and the original intent 
and economic effect of this Agreement in a timely fashion.  Regardless of whether Buyer 
receives an allocation of Net Metering Credits or whether Buyer receives a payment for 
its share of the value of the Net Metering Credits purchased by the Distribution 
Company, Buyer must pay the price for each kWh of electric power set forth in Exhibit 
A. 

 
3.7 Maximum Financial Liability of the Parties Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 40, Section 4A 

This Agreement is not intended to impose any financial liabilities on the Parties other than as 
expressly set forth herein.   

ARTICLE IV:TERM 

4.1 Term 

The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) commences on the Effective Date of this Agreement 
and ends at the earlier of 11:59 PM on the day preceding the twentieth (20th) anniversary of the 
Commercial Operation Date (the “Termination Date”) or such date as of which this Agreement 
may be earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.  The Term may be 
extended upon mutual agreement of the Parties and in conformance with all Applicable Legal 



{A0639245.1 } 10 
 

Requirements for one five (5) year period, with such modifications to the provisions hereto 
which may be appropriate to such extension and which are mutually agreed upon in writing.  A 
Party seeking to extend the Term of this Agreement shall send written notice of such intent to the 
other Party no later than two (2) months prior to the Termination Date. 

ARTICLE V: METERING AND BILLING 

5.1 Billing 

On or before the fifteenth (15th) day of each month during the Term (or if such day is not a 
Business Day, the next succeeding Business Day), Seller shall calculate the amount due and 
payable to Seller pursuant to Exhibit A, with respect to the immediately preceding month, and 
shall forward to Buyer two invoices.  One invoice will be for the Net Energy payment.  The 
second invoice will be for payment of the Operational Costs Adder and any other direct costs 
incurred by Seller in connection with the PV System as set forth in Section (b)(i) of Exhibit A.  
Each invoice shall include a calculation with sufficient detail for Buyer to verify the calculation 
and the total amount due and payable for the previous month.  Each invoice shall also contain 
instructions for payment in accordance with Section 5.2 (Payment) of this Agreement. 

5.2 Payment 

Buyer shall pay Seller, within thirty (30) days of the receipt of Seller’s invoice pursuant to 
Section 5.1 (Billing). 

5.3 Metering Equipment and Testing 

Developer and the Distribution Company shall provide, install, own, operate and maintain the 
Metering Device(s).  Except as otherwise provided herein, readings of the Metering Device(s) 
shall be conclusive as to the amount of Net Energy delivered to Buyer.   In accordance with the 
PPA, Developer shall maintain and test the Metering Device(s).  At Buyer’s request, Seller shall 
exercise its rights under the PPA to ensure that the Metering Devices are tested and are 
accurately measuring the Net Energy of the System.   

5.4 Dispute 

If a Party, in good faith, disputes a payment or calculation of Buyer’s share of Net Metering 
Credits, as described in this Article V, the disputing Party shall immediately notify the other 
Party of the basis for the dispute and pay any undisputed portion of such invoice no later than the 
due date.  Upon resolution of the dispute, any required payment shall be made within twenty-one 
(21) Business Days of such resolution along with the interest accrued at the Prime Rate per 
annum from and including the due date but excluding the date paid.  Any overpayments shall be 
returned by the receiving Party upon request or deducted from subsequent payments with interest 
accrued at the Prime Rate.  The Parties shall only be entitled to dispute an invoice within twelve 
(12) calendar months from the date of issuance of such invoice.  If the Parties are unable to 
resolve a payment dispute under this Article V, the Parties shall follow the procedure set forth in 
Article X (Dispute Resolution).  Buyer and Seller hereby acknowledge and agree that during the 
Term of the PPA (as defined therein), Seller will rely on the information in the invoices provided 
to Seller by Developer pursuant to Section 7.4 (Billing) of the PPA in the preparation of its 



{A0639245.1 } 11 
 

invoices sent to Buyer under this Article V, and that the dispute provision in the PPA will govern 
the dispute of invoices under this Article V.  Buyer and Seller further acknowledge and agree that 
upon such time as Seller is the owner of the PV System, the dispute provisions of this Section 5.4 
shall control the dispute of Seller’s invoices to Buyer under this Article V. 

 
ARTICLE VI:PARTIES’ OBLIGATIONS 

6.1 Seller’s Obligations 

(a) Seller shall maintain accurate operating and other records and all other data for 
the purposes of proper administration of this Agreement, including such records as may 
be required (and in the form required) by any Governmental Authority, NEPOOL, ISO, 
or as may be reasonably required by Buyer.  

 
(b) For the duration of the Term, Seller shall provide Buyer with access to 
information regarding the operations of the PV System or other data concerning the PV 
System.   

 
(c) For the duration of the Term, Seller shall notify Buyer as soon as practicable 
when Seller becomes aware that the Facility may be mechanically inoperable for more 
than a seven (7) day period.   

 
6.2 Buyer’s Obligations 

(a) Buyer shall be responsible for any present and future taxes, fees and levies, if any, 
imposed on or associated with the Energy at and from the Delivery Point.  Seller shall 
receive the benefit of any allowances or other credits related to the PV System to the 
extent provided in the PPA, and except as expressly provided to Buyer under this 
Agreement.   During such time as Developer is owner and operator of the PV System, 
Buyer shall reimburse Seller for any Governmental Charges paid by Seller to Developer 
pursuant to the PPA Agreement.   

 
(b) Buyer shall not be required to enter into collateral assignments of this Agreement 
except as provided by this Section 6.2(b).  Subject to the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, Buyer shall, upon prior written request by Seller or Developer, execute a 
consent and agreement with respect to a collateral assignment hereof in favor of any 
Financier in a form acceptable to Buyer, provided (i) Seller shall reimburse Buyer for all 
reasonable expenses and attorneys’ fees incurred by Buyer in connection therewith, and 
(ii) that Buyer’s duty to make factual statements or representations in such consent and 
agreement shall be contingent upon the truthfulness and accuracy of such statements or 
representations at the time the consent and agreement is delivered.  

 
(c) Buyer further acknowledges that the Financier(s) may have other or further 
requests with respect to the assignment of this Agreement and may request that certain 
terms be incorporated into a consent and agreement or assignment agreement to be 
executed by Buyer.  Buyer will consider any such requests and will cooperate and 



{A0639245.1 } 12 
 

negotiate any such consent and agreement or assignment in good faith.  Upon Buyer’s 
written request after execution of any such consent and agreement or assignment, Seller 
shall reimburse Buyer for any reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses associated 
therewith. 
                                                                                                                                                                         
(d) Buyer shall act expeditiously, cooperatively and in good faith in facilitating any 
amendments to this Agreement requested by Financier in connection with the financing 
of the PV System so long as said amendments do not change the substance and 
underlying agreement of the terms originally a part hereof. 
 
(e) Buyer shall act expeditiously, cooperatively and in good faith in facilitating any 
Permit, license or similar authorization necessary for the PV System, including, without 
limitation, assisting Seller with the Interconnection Agreement required by the 
Distribution Company for Net Metering, in particular Schedule Z, but Buyer acting in its 
regulatory capacity shall not be required under this subsection to provide approvals or 
permits to Developer other than in the regular course of exercising its regulatory power. 
 
(f) Buyer agrees that it will accept an assignment from Seller of the PPA in the event 
that Seller ceases its operations, or otherwise if the Parties mutually agree that it is in the 
best interests of both Parties for Buyer to assume the obligations of Seller to purchase 
Net Energy pursuant to the PPA.   

 
6.3 Net Metering or Alternative On-bill Credits 

(a) Each Party’s obligations under this Agreement are subject to the PV System 
qualifying for Net Metering as a Solar Net Metering Facility or for Alternative On-bill 
Credits as an Alternative On-bill Generation Unit   
 
(b) Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, each of Buyer and Seller agree to 
take all reasonable measures with respect to which it has legal capacity to facilitate and 
expedite the review of all approvals necessary for the PV System to be eligible for and 
participate in Net Metering or receiving Alternative On-bill Credits  
 
(c) So long as any such amendment will materially benefit a Party without material 
detriment to the other Party, the Parties commit to each other in good faith to make 
Commercially Reasonable efforts to fully cooperate and assist each other to amend this 
Agreement to conform to any rule(s) or regulation(s) regarding Net Metering or 
Alternative On-bill Credits and ensure that the PV System is eligible for Net Metering or 
Alternative On-bill Credits.    

 
 



{A0639245.1 } 13 
 

ARTICLE VII:REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES  

7.1 Seller’s Representations and Warranties 

As of the Effective Date of this Agreement, Seller represents and warrants to Buyer as follows: 

(a) Seller has full legal capacity to enter into this Agreement; 
 

(b) The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized, and each person 
executing this Agreement on behalf of Seller has full authority to do so and to fully bind 
Seller; and 
 
(c) Seller knows of no pending or threatened action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or 
investigation before or by any judicial court or administrative or law enforcement agency 
against or affecting Seller or its properties wherein any unfavorable decision, ruling, or 
finding would materially and adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this 
Agreement or Seller’s ability to carry out its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
7.2 Buyer’s Representations and Warranties 

As of the Effective Date of this Agreement, Buyer represents and warrants to Seller as follows: 

(a) Buyer has full legal capacity to enter into this Agreement; 
 

(b) The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized, and each person 
executing this Agreement on behalf of Buyer has full authority to do so and to fully bind 
Buyer; and 
 
(c) Buyer knows of no pending or threatened action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or 
investigation before or by any judicial court or administrative or law enforcement agency 
against or affecting Buyer or its properties wherein any unfavorable decision, ruling, or 
finding would materially and adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this 
Agreement or Buyer’s ability to carry out its obligations under this Agreement. 
 
(d) Buyer agrees that it has read and fully understands the form of PPA (attached as 
Exhibit D to this Agreement), including, without limitation, the price paid for Net Energy 
to Developer thereunder. 

 
ARTICLE VIII:TERMINATION; DEFAULT; REMEDIES  

8.1 Termination 

Subject to Section 8.4 (Force Majeure), this Agreement shall not be subject to termination, 
except for the following Events of Termination:  

(a) Either Party may terminate this Agreement in the event that an incurable material 
Event of Default by Developer under the Lease or the PPA that prevents operation of the 
PV System for twelve (12) months, except with respect to Force Majeure events.   



{A0639245.1 } 14 
 

 
(b) Seller may terminate this Agreement if there is an Event of Default by Buyer 
pursuant to Section 8.2.   
 
(c) Either party may terminate this Agreement in the event that the Developer 
defaults under the Lease, either party may terminate this Agreement, and may exercise 
any other remedy provided for in this Agreement or otherwise allowed by law. 
 
(d) Seller may terminate this Agreement in the event that the PPA is terminated by 
either Seller or Developer, except to the extent the PPA is terminated due to Seller’s or 
Buyer’s exercise of their Purchase Options (as defined therein). 
 
8.2 Events of Default by Buyer 

The following shall each constitute an Event of Default by Buyer: 

(a) Buyer breaches any non-monetary material obligation under this Agreement, and 
fails to cure such breach within thirty (30) Business Days after notification by Seller of 
the breach. 
 
(b) Buyer fails to make any payment due under this Agreement within forty-five (45) 
Business Days after such payment is due unless such payment is contested.  

 
(c) If any material representation or warranty made by Buyer in Article VII 
(Representations and Warranties) of this Agreement proves to have been misleading or 
false in any material respect when made and to have a material adverse effect on the 
Seller and Buyer does not cure the underlying facts so as to make such representation or 
warranty correct and not misleading within ten (10) Business Days of written notice from 
the Seller.   
 
(d) Any breach by Buyer pursuant to any of the provisions in Section 3.3 (Take-or-
Pay for Energy Delivered to Point of Delivery). 

 
(e) Any other material breach of this Agreement not specifically enumerated above. 

 
Events of Default in this Section 8.2 are subject to, among other things, specific performance and 
monetary damages pursuant to Section 8.5 (Remedies).   

 
8.3 Events of Default by Seller 

It shall constitute an Event of Default by Seller if Seller breaches any material obligation under 
this Agreement that proves to have a material adverse effect on Buyer and fails to cure the breach 
within thirty (30) Business Days after notification by Buyer of the breach.  Events of Default in 
this Section 8.3 are subject to specific performance and monetary damages pursuant to Section 
8.5 (Remedies).   



{A0639245.1 } 15 
 

8.4 Force Majeure 

Notwithstanding Sections 8.1 (Termination), 8.2 (Events of Default by Buyer) and 8.3 (Events of 
Default by Seller), if by reason of Force Majeure either Party is unable to carry out, either in 
whole or in part, its obligations herein contained, such Party shall not be deemed to be in default 
during the continuation of such inability, provided that: (a) the non-performing Party, as soon as 
practicable (and in any event within five (5) Business Days after the Force Majeure event first 
prevents performance, gives the other Party hereto written notice describing the particulars of the 
occurrence; (b) the suspension of performance be of no greater scope and of no longer duration 
than is required by the Force Majeure event; (c) no obligations of the Party which were to be 
performed prior to the occurrence causing the suspension of performance shall be excused as a 
result of the occurrence; and (d) the non-performing Party shall use Commercially Reasonable 
efforts to remedy with all reasonable dispatch the cause or causes preventing it from carrying out 
its obligations.  If an event of Force Majeure continues for a period of one hundred eighty (180) 
days or longer, either Party may treat such an event as an Event of Termination and may 
immediately terminate this Agreement by sending the non-performing Party a written 
termination notice setting forth the Termination Date, provided, however, that the other Party 
may not terminate this Agreement if the non-performing Party is using Commercially 
Reasonable efforts to cure the Event of Termination and the non-performing Party provides 
reasonable written assurances that it will be able to cure such Event of Termination within an 
additional one hundred eighty (180) days.  In the event of termination under this Section 8.4, 
Financier shall have step-in rights as provided in Section 8.6.   

8.5 Remedies. 

(a) Subject to the limitations set forth in Section 8.5(c) below, in the event the 
defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default within the period for curative action 
under Sections 8.2 (Events of Default by Buyer) or 8.3 (Events of Default by Seller), as 
applicable, the non-defaulting Party may seek, among other things, specific performance 
and/or monetary damages pursuant to this Section 8.5. 
 
(b) In the case of a payment default by Buyer hereunder, Seller shall have the 
obligation, during any cure or waiver period provided to Buyer, to sell Net Energy to any 
other party on Commercially Reasonable terms to mitigate its losses.   

 
 (c) In the case of a payment default by Buyer hereunder, Seller’s monetary damages 

shall be the difference between the price under this Agreement and the price at which 
Seller sells the Buyer’s share of the Net Energy on Commercially Reasonable terms to 
mitigate its losses plus any costs of arranging for such resale.  Provided, however, that if 
the price at which Seller sells the Buyer’s share of the Net Energy to mitigate its losses is 
greater than the price under this Agreement, Seller’s monetary damages shall be 
reasonable costs, including any costs of arranging for such resale, incurred by Seller.  

 
 (d) Both Parties agree that they have a duty to use Commercially Reasonable efforts 

to mitigate damages that may be incurred as a result of the other Party’s performance or 
non-performance under the Agreement. 
 



{A0639245.1 } 16 
 

(e) After the Termination Date of this Agreement, Buyer shall have no further 
obligation to purchase Net Energy or to make any payment whatsoever under this 
Agreement, except for payments for obligations arising or accruing prior to the 
Termination Date.  After the Termination Date, this Agreement shall not be construed to 
provide any residual value to either Party or any successor or any other Person, for rights 
to, use of, or benefits from the PV System, subject to Section 11.10 (Survival).   
 
(f) Buyer may not enforce any remedies against Developer under the PPA, except as 
otherwise provided therein.  Seller agrees to enforce any and all remedies against the 
Developer under the PPA.   
 

For breach of any provision for which an express remedy or measure of damages is provided, 
such express remedy or measure of damages will be the sole and exclusive remedy, the obligor’s 
liability will be limited as set forth in such provision and all other remedies or damages at law or 
in equity are waived.  If no remedy or measure of damages is expressly provided herein, the 
obligor’s liability will be limited to direct actual damages only, such direct actual damages will 
be the sole and exclusive remedy and all other remedies or damages at law or in equity are 
waived. 
 
NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY SPECIAL, 
INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES, LOST PROFITS, OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION DAMAGES OF ANY 
CHARACTER, RESULTING FROM, ARISING OUT OF, IN CONNECTION WITH OR 
IN ANY WAY INCIDENT TO ANY ACT OR OMISSION OF EITHER PARTY RELATED 
TO THE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT, IRRESPECTIVE OF WHETHER 
CLAIMS OR ACTIONS FOR SUCH DAMAGES ARE BASED UPON STATUTE, TORT, 
CONTRACT, WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER 
THEORY AT LAW OR EQUITY. 

 
8.6 Step-in Rights of Financier 

(a) Buyer is cognizant of the need of Developer to finance its interest in the PV 
System.  Pursuant to Sections 6.2 (Buyer’s Obligations),and 9.1(a) (Seller Assignment), 
Buyer agrees without any further request for prior consent to permit Developer to 
mortgage, assign or transfer this Agreement for the purpose of obtaining financing of the 
PV System, provided:  (i) the term of such mortgage, assignment or transfer shall not 
exceed the Term hereof; (ii) Seller shall give Buyer notice of the name and address of 
Financier, and a copy of the mortgage, assignment or transfer document within thirty (30) 
days of the execution of such mortgage, assignment or transfer; and (iii) that the 
existence of such mortgage, assignment or transfer, or any foreclosure by any Financier, 
shall not relieve Seller from any liability or responsibility for the performance of its 
obligations under this Agreement.  
  
(b) Buyer agrees to give written notice to any Financier of which Buyer has written 
notice upon the occurrence of any Event of Default hereunder, and Financier shall have a 
period of sixty (60) days after receipt of said notice to cure such default, provided 



{A0639245.1 } 17 
 

however, that Financier shall have an additional reasonable period of time thereafter, not 
to exceed one hundred eighty (180) days, to cure the Event of Default if Financier uses 
Commercially Reasonable efforts to cure such Event of Default during the initial sixty 
(60) days after notice aforesaid, and Financier provides reasonable written assurances that 
it will be able to cure such Event of Default within such reasonable period of time 
thereafter.   

 
(c) Buyer agrees that, prior to termination pursuant to Section 8.1 (Termination), 
Buyer shall give written notice to any Financier of which Buyer has written notice upon 
the occurrence of any Event of Termination hereunder, and Financier shall have a period 
of one hundred eighty (180) days after receipt of said notice to cure such default, 
provided however, that Financier shall have an additional one hundred eighty (180) days 
to cure the Event of Termination if Financier uses Commercially Reasonably efforts to 
cure such Event of Termination during the initial one hundred eighty (180) days after 
notice aforesaid, and Financier provides reasonable written assurances that it will be able 
to cure such Event of Termination within the additional one hundred eighty (180) days. 

 
(d) Buyer also agrees that, in the event that Buyer terminates this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 8.1 (Termination), then the Buyer shall assume the obligations of the 
Seller in the PPA or a new agreement shall be executed by Buyer with Developer or 
Financier, as the case may be, to assume Seller’s place, upon the same terms and 
conditions as are contained in this Agreement; provided, however, that any such new 
agreement will be for the unexpired term of this Agreement and provided further, nothing 
herein shall be construed to alter any substantive terms which would expand the rights of 
Developer or Financier. 

 
8.7 Purchase Options 

Seller agrees and understands that Buyer shall have the right to purchase the PV System from 
Developer pursuant to Article 13 of the PPA and Article VIII of the Lease.  Buyer agrees and 
understands that if Buyer does not exercise its option to purchase the PV System in accordance 
with Article 13 of the PPA and Article VIII of the Lease, then Seller may exercise its purchase 
option under such provisions. 

8.8 Effect of Purchase Options on this Agreement 

In the event that Buyer exercises its right to purchase the PV System from Developer in 
accordance with the terms of the PPA and the Lease, then this Agreement shall terminate. In the 
event that Seller exercises its right to purchase the PV System from Developer in accordance 
with the terms of the PPA and the Lease, then this Agreement shall continue in full force and 
effect. 



{A0639245.1 } 18 
 

ARTICLE IX:ASSIGNMENT 

9.1 No Assignment Without Permission 

Subject to the following, the rights and obligations created by this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors and permitted assigns of the respective Parties 
hereto: 

(a) Seller Assignment.  Seller may assign, subcontract or delegate all or a portion of 
its rights, privileges or obligations under this Agreement to any Person, subject to the 
prior written approval of Buyer, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld; provided 
that prior notice to or consent of Buyer shall not be required:  (i) for an assignment by 
Seller to any of Seller’s individual other Cooperative Members or individual members of 
the Cape Light Compact; and (ii) for a collateral assignment by Seller to any Financier, 
subject to the terms and conditions of Sections 6.2(b), 6.2(c) and 8.6.   
 
(b) Buyer Assignment.  Buyer shall not assign, subcontract or delegate its rights, 
privileges or obligations under this Agreement without the prior written approval of 
Seller, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.   

 
Notice of any assignment that does not require prior written approval shall be provided to the 
other Party as soon as practicable.  If a Party fails to obtain prior written approval of the non-
assigning Party to the extent required for an assignment under this Section 9.1, such assignment 
is voidable by such non-assigning Party. 
 

ARTICLE X:DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

10.1 Dispute Resolution 

Unless otherwise expressly provided for in this Agreement, the dispute resolution procedures of 
this Article X shall be the exclusive mechanism to resolve disputes arising under this Agreement.  
The Parties agree to use their respective best efforts to resolve any dispute(s) that may arise 
regarding this Agreement.  Any dispute that arises under or with respect to this Agreement that 
cannot be resolved shall in the first instance be the subject of informal negotiations between the 
Parties.  The dispute shall be considered to have arisen when one Party sends the other Party a 
written notice of dispute.  The period for informal negotiations shall be fourteen (14) days from 
receipt of the written notice of dispute unless such time period is modified by written agreement 
of the Parties.  In the event that the Parties cannot resolve a dispute by informal negotiations, the 
Parties may agree to submit the dispute to mediation.  If the Parties agree to mediation, within 
fourteen (14) days following the expiration of the time period for informal negotiations, the 
Parties shall propose and agree upon a neutral and otherwise qualified mediator.  In the event that 
the Parties fail to agree upon a mediator, the Parties shall request that the American Arbitration 
Association, Boston, Massachusetts, appoint a mediator.  The period for mediation shall 
commence upon the appointment of the mediator and shall not exceed sixty (60) days, unless 
such time period is modified by written agreement of the Parties.  The decision to continue 
mediation shall be in the sole discretion of each Party.  The Parties will bear their own costs of 
the mediation.  The mediator’s fees shall be shared equally by the Parties.  In the event that the 



{A0639245.1 } 19 
 

Parties cannot resolve a dispute by informal negotiations or mediation, the sole venue for judicial 
enforcement shall be courts in and for Barnstable County, Massachusetts.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, injunctive relief from such court may be sought without resorting to alternative 
dispute resolution to prevent irreparable harm that would be caused by a breach of this 
Agreement.   

10.2 Stay of Termination.  

(a) During informal negotiations and mediation pursuant to Section 10.1, the Parties 
shall not exercise any termination rights pursuant to this Agreement.  During such informal 
negotiations and/or mediation, the Parties shall continue to fully perform their respective 
obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  All applicable statutes of limitation and defense based 
upon the passage of time and similar contractual limitations shall be tolled while discussions in 
Section 10.1 are pending and the Parties shall take such action, if any, required to effectuate such 
tolling.  Without prejudice to the procedure set forth in Section 10.1, a Party may file a complaint 
for statute of limitations purposes, if in its sole judgment such action may be necessary to 
preserve its claims or defenses.   

 
(b) During the Term of the PPA (as defined therein), if there is any lawsuit pending 

between Seller and Developer, Buyer shall not exercise any termination rights pursuant to this 
Agreement and shall continue to fully perform its obligations under this Agreement.  As to any 
claims that arise between the Parties under this Agreement, all applicable statutes of limitation 
and defenses based upon the passage of time and similar contractual limitations shall be tolled 
while such lawsuit is pending and the Parties shall take such action, if any, required to effectuate 
such tolling.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Buyer may file a complaint for statute of 
limitations purposes, if in its sole judgment such action may be necessary to preserve its claims 
or defenses.  This provision may be waived by the Seller at any time by any reason. 

 
ARTICLE XI:MISCELLANEOUS 

11.1 Notices.  All notices, demands, requests, consents or other communications 
required or permitted to be given or made under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed 
to the following: 

If to Buyer: 
Barnstable County Administrator 
Barnstable County 
3195 Main Street, 
Barnstable, MA 02630 
Phone:  _________________ 
Email:  _________________   
 

  
If to Seller: 
 

Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc.  
23H2 White’s Path 



{A0639245.1 } 20 
 

South Yarmouth, MA  02664  
Attn: Liz Argo, Executive Director 
Tel: (774) 722-1812 
Email: largo@cvecinc.org 

 
Notices hereunder shall be deemed properly served:  (a) by hand delivery, on the day and at the 
time on which delivered to the intended recipient at the address set forth in this Agreement; (b) if 
sent by mail, on the third business day after the day on which deposited in the United States 
certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the intended 
recipient at its address set forth in this Agreement; or (c) if by Federal Express or other reputable 
express mail service, on the next business day after delivery to such express mail service, 
addressed to the intended recipient at its address set forth in this Agreement.  Either Party may 
change its address and contact person for the purposes of this Section 13.2 by giving notice 
thereof in the manner required herein. 
 

11.2 Entire Agreement; Amendments; Binding Effect.  This Agreement and the PPA 
and Lease constitute the entire agreement between the Parties hereto with respect to the subject 
matter hereof and supersede all prior oral or written agreements and understandings between the 
Parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement may only be amended or modified 
by a written amendment to this Agreement signed by both Parties hereto.  This Agreement inures 
to the benefit of and is binding upon the Parties and their respective successors and permitted 
assigns. 

11.3 Expenses.  Each Party hereto shall pay all expenses incurred by it in connection 
with its entering into this Agreement, including but not limited to, all attorneys’ fees and 
expenses. 

11.4 No Joint Venture.  Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute either 
Party a partner, agent or legal representative of the other Party or to create a joint venture, 
partnership, agency or any relationship between the Parties.  The obligations of the Parties are 
individual and not collective in nature. 

11.5 Joint Work Product.  This Agreement shall be considered the work product of 
both Parties hereto, and, therefore, no rule of strict construction shall be applied against either 
Party. 

11.6 Waiver.  No waiver by either Party hereto of any one or more defaults by the 
other Party in the performance of any provision of this Agreement shall operate or be construed 
as a waiver of any future default, whether of like or different character.  No failure on the part of 
either Party hereto to complain of any action or non-action on the part of the other Party, no 
matter how long the same may continue, shall be deemed to be a waiver of any right hereunder 
by the Party so failing.  A waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall only be 
effective if made in writing and signed by the Party who is making such waiver. 

11.7 Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties 
hereunder shall be governed by and shall be construed, enforced and performed in accordance 



{A0639245.1 } 21 
 

with the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts without regard to principles of conflicts of 
law. 

The Parties agree that to the maximum extent permissible by law, nothing in this Agreement shall 
be interpreted to eliminate or reduce legal protections or defenses available to the Seller as public 
cooperative or to the Buyer as municipal entity. 
 

11.8 Nondiscrimination.  The Parties agree that they shall not, because of race, color, 
national origin, ancestry, age, sex, religion, physical or mental handicap, or sexual orientation, 
gender identity, genetic information, or status as a veteran, discriminate against any qualified 
employee, applicant for employment, subcontractor, or person or firm seeking to provide goods or 
services to each Party, or deny any person access to the Premises or to any activities or programs 
carried out upon the Premises.  The Parties shall comply with all applicable federal and state 
statutes, rules, and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment or public 
accommodation. 

11.9 Severability.  If any article, section, phrase or portion of this Agreement is, for 
any reason, held or adjudged to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such article, section, phrase, or portion so adjudged shall be deemed separate, 
severable and independent and the remainder of this Agreement shall be and remain in full force 
and effect and shall not be invalidated or rendered illegal or unenforceable or otherwise affected 
by such adjudication, provided the basic purpose of this Agreement and the benefits to the Parties 
are not substantially impaired. 

11.10 Further Assurances.  From time to time and at any time at and after the 
execution of this Agreement, each Party shall execute, acknowledge and deliver such documents 
and assurances, reasonably requested by the other and shall take any other action consistent with 
the terms of this Agreement that may be reasonably requested by the other for the purpose of 
effecting or confirming any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

11.11 Survival.  Termination of this Agreement for any reason shall not relieve the 
Parties of any obligation accrued or accruing prior to such termination, including, but not limited 
to, the obligations set forth in Article 10 (Dispute Resolution), which shall survive the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement. 

11.12 Counterparts; Scanned Copy.  This Agreement may be executed in 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and 
the same instrument.  The Parties agree that a scanned or electronically reproduced copy or 
image of this Agreement bearing the signatures of the Parties hereto shall be deemed an original 
and may be introduced or submitted in any action or proceeding as competent evidence of the 
execution, terms and existence of this Agreement notwithstanding the failure or inability to 
produce or tender an original, executed counterpart of this Agreement and without the 
requirement that the unavailability of such original, executed counterpart of this Agreement first 
be proven. 

11.13 Developer as Third Party Beneficiary.  The Parties agree that the Developer 
shall be a third party beneficiary of this Agreement. 



{A0639245.1 } 22 
 

11.14 No Limitation of Regulatory Authority.  The Parties acknowledge that nothing 
in this Agreement shall be deemed to be an agreement by any Party to issue or cause the issuance 
of any permit or approval, or to limit or otherwise affect the ability of any Party to fulfill its 
regulatory mandate or execute its regulatory powers consistent with Applicable Legal 
Requirements. 

 

 

 

 
[Signature page to follow.] 



{A0639245.1 } 23 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date. 
 
SELLER       
Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc.   
 
By: _____________________________  By: ___________________________ 
Name:       Name:  
Title:   Clerk     Title: President     
 
23H2 White’s Path 
Suite 2 
South Yarmouth, MA 02664 
(774) 722 -1812 (voice) 
  

 
 

BUYER 
By:  ________________________ 
Name:  
Title:  Barnstable County Administrator 
Barnstable County 
3195 Main Street, 
Barnstable, MA 02630 
Phone:  _________________ 
Email:  _________________ 
 
 

List of Exhibits to Agreement 
 

Exhibit A – Prices and Terms 
Exhibit B – Description of the PV System 
Exhibit C – Special Terms and Conditions  
Exhibit D – Form of PPA 
 



Barnstable County Lab 

{A0639245.1 }  

EXHIBIT A 
 

PRICES AND TERMS 
 

(a) The Term for provision of Energy under this Agreement shall begin on the 
Effective Date and shall continue until the end of the twentieth (20th) year after the 
Effective Date unless otherwise terminated or extended in accordance with its terms.   
 
(b) (i) While the Developer owns the PV System, Buyer shall pay Seller the price 

paid by Seller to Developer under the PPA plus an operational cost adder as 
identified on Exhibit C.   

 
 (ii) Alternatively, in the event that Seller exercises its purchase option and 

takes ownership of the PV System, the price shall be as follows: For the first year 
or any portion thereof following the date on which Seller takes ownership of the 
PV System, Buyer shall pay Seller a price to be determined for each kWh of 
electric power as delivered or allocated to Buyer from the PV System pursuant to 
Buyer's percentage share as determined in (d) below.   

 
(c) This price does not include any applicable taxes. 
 
(d) Buyer’s percentage share of the Net Energy generated by the PV System shall be 
100%.  In the event the Distribution Company allocates rather than purchases Net 
Metering Credits, and the Net Energy projected to be produced in the PV System’s first 
year of operation is greater than the Buyer’s Municipal Load as determined on the 
Effective Date of this Agreement, Seller shall use Commercially Reasonable efforts to 
reallocate any excess Net Energy to other Cooperative Members or governmental entities 
on a pro rata basis. 
 
(e) The Net Energy generated by the PV System shall be purchased by Buyer subject 
to Net Metering or Alternative On-bill Credits (as defined in the Agreement), the 
applicable rules and regulations promulgated by the Department of Public Utilities, and 
the Distribution Company’s Tariffs (as defined in the Agreement).  
 
(f) In the event that there is Net Energy for which the Distribution Company elects to 
purchase rather than allocate Net Metering Credits to Buyer’s designees, Buyer shall 
assign to Seller the right to receive such payment.  Seller shall allocate to Buyer and any 
other purchaser of Net Metering Credits associated with the Net Energy of the PV System 
their respective shares of the Net Metering Credit value as paid to Seller by the 
Distribution Company.   
 
(g) In the event that Developer pays Seller damages for a Production Shortfall 
pursuant to the PPA (as such term is defined in the PPA), Delay Liquidated Damages 
pursuant to PPA (as such term is defined in the PPA), upon Seller termination for a 
Developer event of default pursuant to the PPA, Seller shall, within a reasonable period 



{A0639245.1 } 25 
 

of time after receiving such payment from Developer, allocate such payment to Buyer 
under the same formula for allocating Net Energy produced by the PV System.  



Barnstable County Lab 

{A0639245.1 }  

EXHIBIT B 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PV SYSTEM 

PV SYSTEM: Module Manufacturer: Hanwha Q-Cells 

 Nameplate Capacity: 320.45 KW DC 

 Approximate Annual Energy Production: 

 350,682 kWh 

 Location: Barnstable County Lab Parking Lot at 3195 
Main street 

 Mounting Systems: M Bar C Company 

Preliminary Specifications: 

 Long span design, galvanized structural steel, no water 
management, below grade piers, standard 3’ diameter piers, 
no lighting, no downspouts, no snow guards, minimum 
height 9’6” 

 Battery Manufacturer:  Tesla Powerpack 2.5   

 

 

 

 

PV SYSTEM ASSETS: 

BESS Nameplate Capacity in kilowatts per hour:  

111 kW for 2.0 hours 

Location: Barnstable County Lab Parking Lot at 3195 
Main Street, co located with the solar project 

 

Mounting System: M Bar C Canopy   

 Inverters: Solectria PVI 60TL (Qty-4) 

 Related Equipment:  

 Electric Lines:   

* Final system size will be determined once final field layout and structural analysis 
has been completed. 



Barnstable County Lab 

{A0639245.1 }  

EXHIBIT C 
 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO THIS INTER-
GOVERNMENTAL NET METERED POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 
 
1. Operational Costs Adder.   
 
Seller shall be entitled to recover its operational costs for its services in managing this 
Agreement and any other Net Metered Power Sales Agreement entered into pursuant to 
Seller’s Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for the Lease and the PPA.   
 
The operational adder for Buyer pursuant to Section (b)(i) of Exhibit A shall be $0.0075.  
Commencing on the first anniversary of the Commercial Operation date of the PV 
System, and on each anniversary date thereafter, the operational adder shall be increased 
by the percentage that the United States Department of Labor Bureau of Labor Statistics 
Consumer Price Index For All Urban Consumers (All Items Index for Boston-Brockton-
Nashua) (“CPI-U”) for the month in which such anniversary occurs exceeds the 
corresponding CPI-U for the month in which the Commercial Operation date of the PV 
System occurs.  If the manner in which the CPI-U is determined is substantially revised 
or the CPI-U shall become unavailable, Seller and Buyer agree to cooperate to determine 
an acceptable, comparable alternative index upon which to base the increase in the 
operational adder. 
 
 
2. Municipal Load.  The Municipal Load of Buyer is approximately 1,500,000kWh. 
 

 



Barnstable County Lab 

{A0639245.1 }  

EXHIBIT D 
 

FORM OF POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
 

Please see attached. 
 



 

CVEC ROUND 5 RFP 

PPA 
 

NET ENERGY POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

FOR SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM  

BETWEEN THE 

CAPE & VINEYARD ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

AND 

SOLECT ENERGY DEVELOPMENT LLC 
________________________________________________ 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 

 

 

 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 

(i) 
 

ARTICLE I: DEFINED TERMS; RULES OF INTERPRETATION....................... 22 
1.1 Defined Terms ..................................................................................................... 22 
ARTICLE II: OBLIGATION TO MODIFY AGREEMENT .................................... 99 
ARTICLE III: TerM ...................................................................................................... 99 
3.1 Conditions Precedent .......................................................................................... 99 
3.2 Term

 ……………………………………………………………………………10
10 

3.3 Early Termination .......................................................................................... 1010 
ARTICLE IV: OWNERSHIP, INSTALLATION, OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, 

AND REMOVAL ............................................................................................ 1111 
4.1 Ownership of the PV System ......................................................................... 1111 
4.2 Construction of PV System by Developer ..................................................... 1212 
4.3 Duty to Maintain ............................................................................................. 1313 
4.4 Late Completion and Developer Payments .................................................. 1414 
ARTICLE V: PURCHASE AND SALE; DELIVERY; GOVERNMENTAL 

CHARGES ....................................................................................................... 1515 
5.1 Purchase and Sale of Net Energy .................................................................. 1515 
5.2 Price for Net Energy ....................................................................................... 1516 
5.3 Title and Risk of Loss of Net Energy ............................................................ 1516 
5.4 Net Metering .................................................................................................... 1616 
5.5 Governmental Charges ................................................................................... 1616 
5.6 Guaranteed Annual Energy Output.............................................................. 1617 
ARTICLE VI: ENVIRONMENTAL ATTRIBUTES ............................................. 1717 
6.1 Title to Environmental Attributes ................................................................. 1717 
6.2 Reporting of Environmental Attributes ........................................................ 1717 
ARTICLE VII: METERING DEVICE(S) AND METERING; BILLING ........... 1717 
7.1 Metering Equipment ....................................................................................... 1717 
7.2 Measurements ................................................................................................. 1718 
7.3 Testing and Correcting ................................................................................... 1718 
7.4 Billing 1819 
7.5 Payment ........................................................................................................... 1919 
7.6 Dispute ............................................................................................................. 1919 
7.7 Records and Audits ......................................................................................... 1919 
ARTICLE VIII: LOSS, DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION OF PV SYSTEM; FORCE 

MAJEURE ....................................................................................................... 1920 
8.1 PV System Loss ............................................................................................... 1920 
8.2 Termination Due to Force Majeure. ............................................................. 2021 
ARTICLE IX: DEFAULT; TERMINATION; REMEDIES .................................. 2121 
9.1 Events of Default by Buyer. ........................................................................... 2121 
9.2 Events of Default by Developer ..................................................................... 2122 
9.3 Remedies .......................................................................................................... 2223 
9.4 Closeout Setoffs ............................................................................................... 2324 
9.5 Unpaid Obligations ......................................................................................... 2324 
9.6 Force Majeure ................................................................................................. 2324 



 

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED) 
 

Page 

(ii) 
 

ARTICLE X: REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; BUYER 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT .............................................................................. 2424 

10.1 Representations and Warranties by Buyer .................................................. 2424 
10.2 Representations and Warranties by Developer ........................................... 2425 
ARTICLE XI: INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE .................................... 2526 
11.1 Insurance ......................................................................................................... 2526 
11.2 Indemnification by Developer ........................................................................ 2526 
11.3 Notice of Indemnification Claims .................................................................. 2626 
ARTICLE XII: REMEDIES; LIMITATIONS ........................................................ 2627 
ARTICLE XIII: SYSTEM PURCHASE AND SALE OPTIONS .......................... 2727 
13.1 Grant of Purchase Option .............................................................................. 2727 
13.2 Timing of Purchase Option ............................................................................ 2727 
13.3 Final Purchase Option Notice ........................................................................ 2829 
13.4 Transfer Date .................................................................................................. 2829 
13.5 Terms of PV System Purchase ....................................................................... 2829 
ARTICLE XIV: DISPUTE RESOLUTION ............................................................. 2929 
14.1 Dispute Resolution .......................................................................................... 2929 
14.2 Stay of Termination ........................................................................................ 2930 
ARTICLE XV: NOTICES ......................................................................................... 3030 
ARTICLE XVI: ASSIGNMENT; BINDING EFFECT; FINANCIER PROVISIONS

 ……………………………………………………………………………31
31 

16.1 Assignment; Binding Effect ........................................................................... 3131 
16.2 Financier Provisions ....................................................................................... 3132 
ARTICLE XVII: MISCELLANEOUS ..................................................................... 3232 
17.1 Entire Agreement; Amendments; Binding Effect ........................................ 3232 
17.2 Expenses ........................................................................................................... 3233 
17.3 No Joint Venture ............................................................................................. 3233 
17.4 Joint Work Product ........................................................................................ 3333 
17.5 Waiver .............................................................................................................. 3333 
17.6 Severability ...................................................................................................... 3333 
17.7 Further Assurances ......................................................................................... 3333 
17.8 Survival ............................................................................................................ 3333 
17.9 Governing Law ................................................................................................ 3334 
17.10 Counterparts; Scanned Copy......................................................................... 3434 
17.11 Nondiscrimination........................................................................................... 3434 
17.12 No Limitation of Regulatory Authority ........................................................ 3434 
17.13 Special Terms and Conditions ....................................................................... 3434 
17.14 Eligibility for Net Metering Credits or Alternative On-bill Credits. ......... 3435 
17.15 Third Party Beneficiary ................................................................................. 3535 
17.16   Service Contract ....……………………………………………………………..37 
 



 

1 
 

SPECIMEN NET ENERGY POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
FOR SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM  

BETWEEN THE 
CAPE & VINEYARD ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. 

AND 
SOLECT ENERGY DEVELOPMENT LLC 

THIS NET ENERGY POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT FOR SOLAR 
PHOTOVOLTAIC SYSTEM (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this ___ day of 
_______________ (the “Effective Date”), by and between the Cape & Vineyard Electric 
Cooperative, Inc., a Massachusetts cooperative corporation (“Buyer”) and Solect Energy 
Development LLC, a Massachusetts limited liability company (“Developer”).  Buyer and 
Developer are in some cases hereinafter referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as 
the “Parties.” 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, Developer and Barnstable County (“Host”), a member of Buyer, have entered 
into a Lease Agreement dated ______________ (“Lease”) for Developer to develop a canopy 
mounted solar photovoltaic system, which may or may not include an accompanying battery 
energy storage system (“PV System”) located on Host’s property (the “Premises”), as more 
particularly described in Exhibit A attached hereto; 

WHEREAS, on behalf of the Host, Buyer issued a request for proposals for the PV System 
(the “RFP”); 

WHEREAS, Developer is in the business of designing, procuring, installing, testing, 
commissioning, owning, operating and maintaining solar power electric generation facilities and 
battery energy storage systems; 

WHEREAS, Developer proposes, pursuant to the Lease, to design, procure, install, test, 
commission, own, operate and maintain the PV System on the Premises; 

WHEREAS, Developer desires to sell to Buyer, and Buyer desires to purchase from 
Developer, all of the Net Energy (as defined herein) generated by the PV System, and otherwise 
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, Buyer desires, to the extent permitted by law, to sell the Net Energy generated 
by the PV System during the Term for the benefit of Host, pursuant to an Intergovernmental Net 
Energy Power Sales Agreement (“Inter-Governmental PSA”), and to other Cooperative Members 
(as defined herein). 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, the mutual premises, 
representations, warranties, covenants, conditions herein contained, and the Exhibits attached 
hereto, Buyer and Developer agree as follows: 



 

 

2                          PPA 
 

ARTICLE I:  DEFINED TERMS; RULES OF INTERPRETATION 

1.1 Defined Terms 

When used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings given, unless a different 
meaning is expressed or clearly indicated by the context. 

Words defined in this Article I that are capitalized shall be given their common and ordinary 
meanings when they appear without capitalization in the text.  Words not defined herein shall be 
given their common and ordinary meanings. 

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, such Person’s general partner or manager, or any 
other Person that, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, or is 
controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person. 

“Agreement” means this Net Energy Power Purchase Agreement for Solar Photovoltaic System, 
including all Exhibits, attachments, and schedules hereto and any amendments or addenda. 

“Alternative On-bill Credit” means the energy value of generation from an Alternative On-bill 
Generation Unit, as calculated in accordance with 225 CMR 20.08(1)(a)2. 

“Alternative On-bill Generation Unit” has the meaning as set forth in in 225 CMR 20.02. 

“Annual System Degradation Factor” means the factor expressed in percent by which the 
Guaranteed Annual Energy Output of the PV System shall decrease from one Contract Year to the 
next Contract Year as set forth in Exhibit C. In the case of added battery storage, Annual System 
Degradation Factor shall also mean the factor expressed in percent by which the battery system 
shall decrease in power availability from one year to the next. 

“Applicable Legal Requirements” means any present and future law, act, rule, requirement, order, 
bylaw, ordinance, regulation, judgment, decree, or injunction of or by any Governmental 
Authority, ordinary or extraordinary, foreseen or unforeseen, and all licenses, permits, tariffs, and 
other governmental consents, which may at any time be applicable to a Party’s rights and 
obligations hereunder, including, without limitation, the selling and purchasing of power 
therefrom. 

“Appraised Value” means the fair market value assigned to the PV System, as determined by the 
Independent Appraiser using customary and accepted appraisal methods in the energy and solar 
electricity industry, and to any emission trading agreements, renewable energy certificate sales 
agreements or revenue producing agreements in connection with the PV System to which 
Developer is a party and which are assignable to Buyer, but not including this Agreement or the 
Lease. 

“Bankrupt” means that a Party or other entity (as applicable):  (i) is dissolved (other than pursuant 
to a consolidation, amalgamation or merger); (ii) becomes insolvent or is unable to pay its debts 
or fails (or admits in writing its inability) generally to pay its debts as they become due; (iii) makes 
a general assignment, arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of its creditors; (iv) has 
instituted against it a proceeding seeking a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or any other 



 

 

3                          PPA 
 

relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or other similar law affecting creditor’s rights, or a 
petition is presented for its winding-up, reorganization or liquidation, which proceeding or petition 
is not dismissed, stayed or vacated within twenty (20) Business Days thereafter; (v) commences a 
voluntary proceeding seeking a judgment of insolvency or bankruptcy or any other relief under 
any bankruptcy or insolvency law or other similar law affecting creditors’ rights; (vi) seeks or 
consents to the appointment of an administrator, provisional liquidator, conservator, receiver, 
trustee, custodian or other similar official for it or for all or substantially all of its assets; (vii) has 
a secured party take possession of all or substantially all of its assets, or has a distress, execution, 
attachment, sequestration or other legal process levied, enforced or sued on or against all or 
substantially all of its assets; (viii) causes or is subject to any event with respect to it which, under 
the applicable laws of any jurisdiction, has an analogous effect to any of the events specified in 
clauses (i) to (vii) inclusive; or (ix) takes any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, 
approval of, or acquiescence in, any of the foregoing acts. 

“Battery Energy Storage System” means battery or batteries and necessary equipment and 
controls to extend the power available to the host facility when installed in conjunction with a 
renewable energy resource and/or the grid. 

“Business Day” means a day on which Federal Reserve member banks in Boston are open for 
business; and a Business Day shall open at 8:00 a.m. and close at 5:00 p.m. Eastern Prevailing 
Time. 

“Buyer” has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement. 

“Buyer Event of Default” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.1. 

“Commercial Operation” means that the PV System is ready for regular, daily operation,  has 
undergone testing as provided in the Common Technical Specifications attached as Exhibit E to 
the Lease, is in compliance with Applicable Legal Requirements in all material respects (including, 
but not limited to, a grant of permission to operate from the Distribution Company, and completion 
of all final inspections), and is capable of producing Energy and delivering it to the Point of 
Delivery and all Training and Documentation Requirements, as required in Common Technical 
Specifications, Exhibit E to the Lease, are complete and provided to Host and, as applicable, 
CVEC. 

“Commercial Operation Date” means the first day on which the PV System is ready for 
Commercial Operation, as certified in writing by Developer to Buyer in the Notice of Commercial 
Operation. 

“Commercially Reasonable” means any of the practices, methods and acts which, in the exercise 
of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known, or which in the exercise of due diligence, 
should have been known, at the time the decision was made, would have been expected in the 
industry to accomplish the desired result consistent with reliability, safety, expedition, project 
economics, and regulations. 

“Common Technical Specifications” means those technical specifications and requirements for 
the PV System, contained in Exhibit E to the Lease. 



 

 

4                          PPA 
 

“Contract Year” means the consecutive 12-month period commencing on the Commercial 
Operation Date. 

“Construction Commencement Date” has the meaning set forth in the Lease. 

“Cooperative Member(s)” means any municipality, county or political subdivision thereof, or 
body politic, that has duly joined Buyer as a cooperative member. 

“Developer” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble. 

“Developer Event of Default” has the meaning set forth in Section 9.2. 

“Distribution Company” means Eversource Electric Company or any successor thereto. 

“Distribution Company System” means the electric distribution system operated and maintained 
by the Distribution Company. 

“DOER” means the Massachusetts Department of Energy Resources. 

“Effective Date” is the date first set forth in the introductory paragraph of this Agreement. 

“Energy” means the amount of electricity either used or generated over a period of time; expressed 
in terms of kilowatt hour (“kWh”) or megawatt hour (“MWh”).  Energy shall not include 
renewable energy credits, or any investment tax credits under Section 48 of the Internal Revenue 
Code or otherwise, to the extent that the PV System receives or is entitled to receive any such 
credits. 

“Environmental Attributes” means any credit, benefit, reduction, offset, financial incentive, tax 
credit and other beneficial allowance that is in effect as of the Effective Date or any expansion, 
reenactment, extension or replacement thereof that may come into effect in the future (except 
Shared Environmental Attributes), including, to the extent applicable and without limitation, (i) 
greenhouse gas offsets under the Regional Greenhouse Gas Initiative, (ii) Class I Renewable 
Generation Attributes (as such term is defined at 225 C.M.R. 14.02) or any similar credits under 
the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts or any other jurisdiction, (iii) tax credits, 
incentives or depreciation allowances established under any federal or state law, (iv) energy 
investment tax credits under section 48 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, (v) 
incentives under the Solar Massachusetts Renewable (SMART) Program as provided in 225 CMR 
20.00, and (vi) other allowances however named or referenced, with respect to any and all fuel, 
emissions, air quality, or other environmental characteristics, resulting from the use of solar energy 
generation or the avoidance of the emission of any gas, chemical or other substance into the air, 
soil or water attributable to the sale of Net Energy generated by the PV System during the Term 
and in which Developer has good and valid title.  Environmental Attributes shall not include net 
metering credits, or any capacity credits for the PV System, including credits or payments related 
to the Forward Capacity Market or Shared Environmental Attributes. 

 “Financier” means any individual or entity providing money or extending credit for the PV 
System to Developer for: (1) the construction, term or permanent financing of the PV System; 
(2) a tax equity investment made in part in an expectation of an allocation of tax and other benefits; 



 

 

5                          PPA 
 

or (3) working capital or other ordinary business requirements for the PV System.  “Financier” 
shall not include common trade creditors of Developer. 

“Financing Agreement” means any credit agreement, reimbursement agreement, note purchase 
agreement, trust indenture, lease agreement or other document (and any documents relating to or 
ancillary to the foregoing documents) identified from time to time in writing by Developer to 
Buyer as a “Financing Agreement” under which Developer or any Affiliate of Developer obtains 
financing that is secured by all or substantially all of the assets of Developer (including any credit 
enhancement for any bonds) for the acquisition, development, construction, modification, repair 
or operation of the PV System or any refinancing thereof or any equity take-out financing for costs 
incurred for any of the foregoing purposes. 

“Force Majeure” means any cause not within the reasonable control of the affected Party which 
precludes that Party from carrying out, in whole or in part, its obligations under the Agreement, 
including, but not limited to, Acts of God; winds; hurricanes; tornadoes; fires; epidemics; 
landslides; earthquakes; floods; other natural catastrophes; strikes; lock-outs or other industrial 
disturbances; acts of public enemies; acts, failures to act or orders of any kind of any Governmental 
Authority acting in its regulatory or judicial capacity; insurrections; military action; war, whether 
or not it is declared; sabotage; riots; civil disturbances or explosions.  Nothing in this provision is 
intended to excuse either Party from performing due to any governmental act, failure to act, or 
order, where it was reasonably within such Party’s power to prevent such act, failure to act, or 
order.  Notwithstanding anything in the Agreement to the contrary, Force Majeure shall not mean: 

(a) Ordinary inclement weather affecting construction, start-up, operation, or 
decommissioning of the PV System. 

(b) Unavailability of sun. 

(c) Unavailability of equipment, repairs or spare parts for the PV System, except to the 
extent due to a qualifying event of Force Majeure. 

(d) Any nonpayment under this Agreement or any third party agreement. 

(e) Economic hardship of either Party. 

“Forward Capacity Market” means the locational capacity market in which ISO New England 
projects needs of the power system three years in advance and holds an annual auction to purchase 
power resources to satisfy the New England region future electricity demand needs. 

“Good Engineering Practice” means any of the practices, methods and acts which, in the exercise 
of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known, or which in the exercise of due diligence, 
should have been known, at the time the decision was made, would have been expected to 
accomplish the desired result consistent with reliability, safety, expedition, project economics and 
Applicable Legal Requirements for similar facilities in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  
Good Engineering Practice is not intended to be limited to consideration of any one practice, 
method or act, to the exclusion of all others, but rather, is intended to require the consideration of 
a spectrum of possible practices, methods or acts. 



 

 

6                          PPA 
 

“Governmental Authority” means the United States of America, the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts, and any political or municipal subdivision thereof, and any agency, department, 
commission, board, bureau, independent electric system operator, or instrumentality of any of 
them, or any court or tribunal, including the Buyer in its regulatory capacity but not as Party to 
this Agreement. 

“Governmental Charges” means all applicable federal, state and local taxes (other than taxes 
based on income or net worth but including, without limitation, sales, use, gross receipts or similar 
taxes), governmental charges, emission allowance costs, duties, tariffs, including but not limited 
to Monthly Minimum Reliability Contributions, levies, leases, fees, permits, assessments, adders 
or surcharges (including public purposes charges and low income bill payment assistance charges), 
imposed or authorized by a Governmental Authority, Distribution Company, or other similar 
entity, on or with respect to the Net Energy or this Agreement. 

“Guaranteed Annual Energy Output” means the minimum amount of Net Energy that is 
guaranteed by the Developer to be generated by the PV System in a Contract Year, as set forth in 
Exhibit C. 

“Host” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals. 

“Independent Appraiser” means an individual who is a member of an accounting, engineering or 
energy consulting firm qualified by education, certification, experience and training to determine 
the Appraised Value of solar photovoltaic generating facilities of the size and age and with the 
operational characteristics of the PV System.  Except as may be otherwise agreed by the Parties, 
the Independent Appraiser shall not be (or within three years before his appointment have been) a 
director, officer or employee of, or directly or indirectly retained as consultant or adviser to, Host, 
any Cooperative Member, Buyer, Developer or any Affiliate of Developer. 

“Interconnection Agreement” means the Interconnection Service Agreement and any exhibits 
thereto, entered into with the Distribution Company which authorizes the interconnection of the 
PV System with the Distribution Company System, which confirms the eligibility of the PV 
System for treatment as a Solar Net Metering Facility and which specifies whether any Net Excess 
Generation (as defined in the Tariffs) shall be subject to allocation or cash-out. 

“Interest Rate” means a fluctuating interest rate per annum equal to the sum of (1) the Prime Rate 
as stated in the “Bonds, Rates & Yields” section of The Wall Street Journal on the Effective Date 
and thereafter on the first day of every calendar month, plus (2) two percentage points.  (In the 
event that such rate is no longer published in The Wall Street Journal or such publication is no 
longer published, the Interest Rate shall be set using a comparable index or interest rate selected 
by Host Town and reasonably acceptable to Developer.)  The Interest Rate hereunder shall change 
on the first day of every calendar month.  Interest shall be calculated daily on the basis of a year 
of 365 days and the actual number of days for which such interest is due. 

 “Inter-Governmental PSA” means the Inter-Governmental Net Energy Power Sales Agreement 
for the PV System entered into between Buyer and Host. 

“ISO” means the New England Independent System Operator established in accordance with the 
NEPOOL Agreement (the Second Amended and Restated New England Power Pool Agreement 



 

 

7                          PPA 
 

dated as of February 1, 2005) and the Interim Independent System Operator Agreement as both 
Agreements are amended, superseded or restated from time to time. 

“kWh” means kilowatt hour. 

“Lease” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals to this Agreement. 

“Metering Device(s)” means any and all revenue quality meters installed by Developer, Buyer or 
the Distribution Company at, before, or after the Point of Delivery necessary or appropriate for the 
delivery of Energy into the Distribution Company System, the calculation of Net Metering Credits, 
and the registration, recording, and transmission of information regarding the amount of Net 
Energy generated by the PV System and delivered to the Point of Delivery for sale to Buyer. 

“Monthly Minimum Reliability Contribution” has the meaning set forth in G.L. c. 164, §139(j) 
and 220 CMR 18.10, as approved by the Department of Public Utilities in the Distribution 
Company’s tariff. 

“Net Energy” means the actual and verifiable amount of Energy generated by the PV System and 
delivered to Buyer at the Point of Delivery or allocated to Buyer in excess of any Energy consumed 
by the PV System (including transformers) as metered in kWh at the Developer’s Metering Device, 
and in conformance with Applicable Legal Requirements and the Tariffs. 

“Net Energy Price” means the amount paid by Buyer to Developer for each kWh of Net Energy 
and capacity sold by Developer to Buyer pursuant to this Agreement, as set forth in Exhibit C 
attached hereto.  

“Net Metered Generation Unit” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR 20.02. 

“Net Metering” means the process of measuring the difference between electricity delivered by a 
local electric distribution company and electricity generated by a net metering facility and fed back 
to the local electric distribution company, as set forth under M.G.L. c. 164, §§138 – 140 and 220 
C.M.R. 18.00, as may be amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority, and pursuant 
to the Distribution Company’s Tariffs. 

“Net Metering Credit” has the meaning set forth in 220 C.M.R. 18.00, as may be amended from 
time to time by a Governmental Authority, as implemented by the Tariffs. 

 “Notice of Commercial Operation” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2.F. of this Agreement. 

“Notice of Permits and Interconnection Costs” means the written notice from Developer to Buyer 
that Developer has obtained all final permits or required approvals (excepting an interconnection 
agreement) required to construct the PV System and identifying all Distribution Company 
estimated infrastructure upgrade costs associated with interconnection of the PV System, as 
evidenced in writing by the Distribution Company. 

“Outside Construction Commencement Date” means the later of ninety (90) days after the 
Effective Date or ninety (90) days after Developer receives notification from DOER that DOER 



 

 

8                          PPA 
 

has issued a final Statement of Qualifications approving the developer’s enrollment in the 
SMART Program. 
 
“Outside Commercial Operation Date” means the later of one-hundred eighty (180) days from 
the Effective Date or one-hundred eighty (180) days after Developer receives notification from 
DOER that DOER has issued a final Statement of Qualifications approving the developer’s 
enrollment in the SMART Program. 
 
“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation (including a business trust), limited 
liability company, joint stock company, trusts, unincorporated association, joint venture, 
Governmental Authority, or other entity. 
 
“Point of Delivery” means the agreed location or locations on the Premises where Net Energy is 
to be delivered and received, as further set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

“Premises” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals to this Agreement, and is the area in which 
Host  has assigned to Developer the necessary rights to design, procure, install, test, commission, 
own, operate, maintain and remove the PV System, as further identified in Exhibit A. 

“Prime Rate” means the rate published from time to time in the “Money Rates” section of The 
Wall Street Journal, as the prime-lending rate.  In the event this index is discontinued or its basis 
is substantially modified, the Parties shall agree on a substitute equivalent index. 

“Production Shortfall” means the amount, expressed in kWh, by which the actual amount of Net 
Energy generated by the PV System in any Contract Year is less than the Guaranteed Annual 
Energy Output for that Contract Year. 

“Purchase Price” has the meaning ascribed to it in Section 13.3 of this Agreement. 

“PV System” means the solar electric generating facility, including, but not limited to, the PV 
System Assets, which produces the Net Energy sold and purchased under this Agreement, as 
further identified in Exhibit B, attached hereto.  The PV System may (or may not include) a Battery 
Energy Storage System, as specified in Exhibit B. 

“PV System Assets” means each and all of the assets of which the PV System is comprised, 
including Developer’s solar energy panels, mounting systems, canopies, tracking devices, 
inverters, integrators, Battery Energy Storage Systems, if any, and other related equipment and 
components installed on the Premises, electric lines and conduits required to connect such 
equipment to the Point of Delivery, protective and associated equipment, improvements, Metering 
Device(s), and other tangible and intangible assets, permits, property rights and contract rights 
reasonably necessary for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the PV System. 

“PV System Loss” means loss, theft, damage or destruction of the PV System or any portion 
thereof, or any other occurrence or event that prevents or limits the PV System from operating in 
whole or in part, resulting from or arising out of any cause (including casualty, condemnation or 
Force Majeure). 

“RFP” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals hereto. 



 

 

9                          PPA 
 

“Shared Environmental Attribute” means any credit, benefit, reduction, offset, financial incentive 
or other beneficial allowance that may come into effect in the future (except any expansion, 
reenactment, extension or replacement of any credit, benefit, reduction, offset, financial incentive 
or other beneficial allowance that is in effect as of the Effective Date). 

“SMART Program” means the Solar Massachusetts Renewable Target (SMART) Program as 
established in 225 CMR 20. 

“SMART Tariff” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR 20.02, as may be amended from time to 
time by a Governmental Authority. 

“Solar Incentive Payment” has the meaning set forth in 220 CMR 20.08, as may be amended 
from time to time by a Governmental Authority. 

“Solar Net Metering Facility” has the meaning set forth in 220 CMR 18.00, as may be amended 
from time to time by a Governmental Authority. 

“Solar Tariff Generation Unit” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR 20.02, as may be amended 
from time to time by a Governmental Authority. 

 “Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2 herein. 

“Termination Date” means the earlier to occur of: (1) the last day of the Term; or (2) the date of 
termination. 

ARTICLE II:  OBLIGATION TO MODIFY AGREEMENT 

Upon implementation, after the Effective Date, by the Massachusetts Department of Public 
Utilities, the DOER, or other Governmental Authority of any Applicable Legal Requirement that 
may affect any provision of this Agreement or the anticipated economic benefits of the Parties, in 
particular (i) any Applicable Legal Requirement regarding Net Metering, or (ii) any rule or 
regulation amending 225 CMR 14.00 (Renewable Energy Portfolio Standard) or 225 CMR  20.00 
(Solar Massachusetts Renewable Target (SMART) Program), the Parties shall be obligated to 
amend this Agreement and shall use their best efforts to conform such amendment to the original 
intent of this Agreement, including allocation of economic benefits to most closely approximate 
the benefits anticipated by both Parties, and to do so in a timely fashion. 

ARTICLE III:  TERM 

3.1 Conditions Precedent. 

The obligations of the Buyer and Developer under this Agreement shall be conditioned upon the 
following requirements: 

A. execution by Developer and Host of the Lease as of or of even date with the Effective 
Date of this Agreement. 



 

 

10                          PPA 
 

B. execution by Buyer and Host of the Inter-Governmental PSA as of even date with 
the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

3.2 Term 

The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) shall commence on the Effective Date and shall remain 
in effect until the twentieth (20th) anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date or such date as 
of which this Agreement may be earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions hereof.  The Term 
may be extended upon mutual agreement of the Parties and in conformance with all Applicable 
Legal Requirements for one five (5) year period, with such modifications to the provisions hereto 
which may be appropriate to such extension and which are mutually agreed upon in writing.  A 
Party seeking to extend the Term of this Agreement shall send written notice of such intent to the 
other Party no later than two (2) months prior to the Termination Date. 

3.3 Early Termination. 

A. Early Termination.  Either Party may terminate this Agreement prior to the 
achievement of the Commercial Operation Date as specified below: 

(i) in the event that Developer has not prepared for submission to the 
Distribution Company a complete interconnection application seeking authorization to construct 
and interconnect the PV System to the Distribution Company System within forty-five (45) days 
of the Effective Date; 

(ii) in the event that the Lease has been terminated for cause; 

(iii) in the event the Buyer determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, that 
the PV System will not be eligible for Net Metering Credits or Alternative On-Bill Credits.  This 
right of termination exists for fifteen (15) days upon Buyer’s receipt of the Notice of Permits and 
Interconnection Costs but may be waived in Buyer’s sole discretion to accommodate Seller’s 
construction schedule; 

(iv) in the event that Developer has not entered into a binding purchase order 
for the major components of the PV System, including the PV panels, racking system, inverters 
,transformers, and, when applicable, Battery Energy Storage System within thirty (30) days after 
receipt of a fully executed Interconnection Agreement; 

(v) in the event that during the interconnection process the Distribution 
Company imposes a cost for utility upgrades necessary to interconnect the PV System in excess 
of $10,000, and the Parties are not able to reach agreement within sixty (60) days of Developer’s 
receipt of such notice from the Distribution Company on how such cost will be allocated among 
the Parties.  The Parties agree that for each $10,000 in excess of the initial threshold of a cost of 
$10,000 for utility upgrades to be paid solely by the Developer, the Developer may increase the 
Net Energy Price by an amount per kWh as specified in Exhibit C and Buyer shall determine in its 
sole discretion whether to accept such increase in Net Energy Price, in which case this condition 
shall be deemed satisfied; 



 

 

11                          PPA 
 

(vi) in the event that the Interconnection Agreement, in form and substance 
satisfactory to Developer and Buyer, in each of its reasonable discretion, is not finalized and 
executed within  one-hundred eighty (180) days of Developer’s submission of the interconnection 
application, provided, however, that Buyer will extend the deadline for compliance with this 
subsection in thirty (30) day increments, upon Buyer’s determination, in its reasonable discretion, 
that Developer is using Commercially Reasonable efforts to secure such Interconnection 
Agreement, and further that said deadline will be automatically extended to the extent that 
achievement of the same is delayed while awaiting utility action; 

B. Buyer’s Right to Terminate Other Agreements with Developer.  Buyer shall have 
the right, but not the obligation, to terminate any one or more of each net energy power purchase 
agreements it may have with Developer, or any Affiliate of Developer (“Additional PPA”), prior to 
the Commercial Operation Date of such Additional PPA, in the event that prior to the Commercial 
Operation Date, the Developer, as a result of gross negligence or willful misconduct, has failed to 
fully comply with all Applicable Legal Requirements.  

C. Notice/Waiver.  Either Party may waive any condition precedent applicable to it.  
The Party proposing to terminate this Agreement as the result of the non-fulfillment or failure of 
any of the above-referenced conditions precedent shall give the other Party written notice of the 
notifying Party’s intent to terminate this Agreement due to non-fulfillment or failure of any such 
foregoing conditions, and shall include in such notice a detailed description of the efforts 
undertaken by the notifying Party to satisfy such condition or conditions (which efforts need only 
be Commercially Reasonable) and the reasons why such condition or conditions have not been 
satisfied.  In the event either Party terminates this Agreement the Parties shall have no further 
obligations hereunder except those of the Developer in subsection D. below and those which 
survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

D. Buyer’s Remedy Upon Early Termination.  In the event this Agreement is 
terminated pursuant to Section 3.3: 

(i) Upon early termination due to fault of Developer, Developer shall pay to 
Buyer within thirty (30) days of the Termination Date a sum of $2,500 to cover Buyer’s cost to 
procure another developer to design, procure, install, test, commission, own, operate and maintain 
a solar PV System, provided that if such payment is timely received, Developer shall have no 
further liability under this Agreement, except for any obligations that survive termination. 

(ii) Buyer shall be entitled to all drawings, designs, permits, samples, 
applications, reports and approvals prepared and/or obtained by Developer as of the Termination 
Date for development of the PV System.  The Developer shall assign permits that run with the 
Premises to Buyer or Host after consultation with each. 

ARTICLE IV:  OWNERSHIP, INSTALLATION, OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND 
REMOVAL 

4.1 Ownership of the PV System. 

A. Title.  Subject to the rights provided to Buyer and Host pursuant to Article XIII (PV 
System Purchase and Sale Options) and other terms hereof and the Lease, the PV System and all 



 

 

12                          PPA 
 

alterations, additions, improvements or installations made thereto by Developer and all Developer 
property used in connection with the installation, operation and maintenance of the PV System is, 
and shall remain, the personal property of Developer.  

B. Security Interests in PV System.  Except as otherwise provided herein, Buyer 
acknowledges and agrees that Developer may grant or cause to be granted to a Financier a security 
interest in the PV System and in Developer’s rights to payment under the Agreement. 

C. No Expenditures.  Developer and Buyer acknowledge and agree that Buyer shall not 
be required to make any expenditure, incur any obligation, or incur any liability of any kind 
whatsoever in connection with the ownership, construction, operation, maintenance, repair, or 
removal of the PV System. 

4.2 Construction of PV System by Developer 

A. Construction.  Developer shall, at its sole cost and expense, (i) design, construct, 
operate, and maintain the PV System in accordance with Applicable Legal Requirements, in good 
condition and repair in accordance with applicable contractor warranties or guarantees, 
manufacturer’s warranties, instructions and specifications, as further identified in the Common 
Technical Specifications set forth in Exhibit E to the Lease, applicable requirements of the 
insurance policies maintained by Buyer, Host and Developer with respect to the PV System, and 
the terms of this Agreement, and (ii) monitor the PV System performance with respect to any PV 
System malfunction causing a material unanticipated loss of Net Energy such that the same will be 
discovered and rectified in accordance with Good Engineering Practice.  The PV System will, when 
completed, comply with all Applicable Legal Requirements and the Common Technical 
Specifications set forth in Exhibit E of the Lease, except as waived thereunder. 

B. Governmental Approvals.  Except as otherwise specified herein, the Developer shall 
be responsible at its sole cost for designing, financing, procuring, installing, testing, commissioning, 
operating and maintaining the PV System and obtaining all approvals and permits required under 
the Applicable Legal Requirements for Developer’s use of the Premises and for the PV System 
from any Governmental Authority having jurisdiction in the matter.  Developer will promptly 
inform Buyer of all significant developments relating to the issuance of such approvals or permits. 

C. Ownership of Drawings, Reports and Other Materials.  All drawings, reports and 
materials prepared by the Developer in the performance of this Agreement shall, upon reasonable 
request, be made available to Buyer. 

D. Reporting. 

(i) Ten (10) days prior to the first anniversary of the Commercial Operation 
Date, and every year thereafter on the same date, and upon the reasonable request of Buyer, 
Developer shall provide Buyer with an electronic report of the energy generation from the PV 
System, consistent with the letter and intent of the U.S. Department of Energy, Federal Energy 
Management Measurement and Verification Guidelines.  Although the Developer shall maintain 
operational controls of the Battery Energy Storage System, Developer agrees to operate the Battery 
Energy Storage System to optimize financial benefit to the Buyer and resiliency benefits to the 
Host. 



 

 

13                          PPA 
 

(ii) Developer shall provide Buyer access to the PV System’s data acquisition 
system required by Section B.13 of the Common Technical Specifications set forth in Exhibit E to 
the Lease.  If a Battery Energy Storage System is included in the PV System, Developer shall 
provide Buyer access to the Battery Energy Storage System’s data acquisition system and 
operational controls required by Section B.14 of the Common Technical Specifications set forth 
in Exhibit E to the Lease. 

E. Interconnection with Distribution Company System.  Except as otherwise provided 
herein, Developer will obtain at its sole cost all approvals and agreements required for Developer’s 
interconnection of the PV System to the Distribution Company System.  Developer will promptly 
inform Buyer of all significant developments relating to such interconnection matters.  If any 
material changes in plans and/or specifications to the PV System are required by the Distribution 
Company, then Developer shall submit such changes, if any to Buyer for its approval, which shall 
not be unreasonably withheld. Developer will provide Buyer a copy of the Permission to Operate 
in electronic format. 

F. Notice of Commercial Operation.  Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, 
Developer shall notify and represent to Buyer when the PV System has achieved Commercial 
Operation (“Notice of Commercial Operation”),and shall in such notice certify to Buyer the 
Commercial Operation Date. 

G. Record Plans.  Within ninety (90) days following the issuance of the Notice of 
Commercial Operation, Developer shall prepare and deliver to Buyer detailed record plans 
accurately depicting the PV System and, if applicable, the Battery Energy Storage System 
including, without limitation, interconnection applications and utility agreements, all wiring, lines, 
conduits, piping, other structures or equipment and, for any Battery Energy Storage System, the 
software controls manual. 

4.3 Duty to Maintain 

A. Maintenance; Repairs. 

(i) Developer shall take good care of the PV System, conduct all required 
maintenance and make all repairs thereto, interior and exterior, structural and non-structural, 
ordinary and extraordinary, foreseen and unforeseen, and shall maintain and keep the PV System 
in first class order, repair and condition, in accordance with Applicable Legal Requirements and 
Good Engineering Practice (“Developer’s Maintenance Obligations”). 

(ii) Buyer shall have no duty or liability to Developer with respect to the 
maintenance, repair or security of the PV System. 

B. Alterations.  Developer shall have the right from time to time both before and after 
the Commercial Operation of the PV System and at Developer’s sole cost and expense to make 
additions, alterations and changes, structural or otherwise to the PV System, subject, however, in 
all cases to the following: 

(i) No alteration shall be made which would tend to (i) materially change the 
general design, use, character or structure of the PV System, or (ii) increase, reduce or impair, to 



 

 

14                          PPA 
 

any material extent, the use of the PV System for the generation of electricity, subject to Applicable 
Legal Requirements (any such alteration pursuant to this Section, a “Substantial Alteration”) 
except after prior written notice to and consent from Buyer, which consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld;  

(ii) No later than completion of any alteration or Substantial Alteration, 
Developer will provide Buyer with complete copies of all final plans and specifications therefor 
not previously provided; and 

(iii) No alteration shall be made that conflicts with the Host’s existing and future 
uses enumerated in Exhibit D to the Lease. 

C. Operations Manual.  Developer shall deliver to Buyer an operations, maintenance 
and parts manual covering the PV System in accordance with the Common Technical Specifications 
set forth in Exhibit E of the Lease. 

D. Compliance with Laws; Professional Standards.  Developer, at Developer’s sole 
expense, shall diligently and fully comply with all Applicable Legal Requirements (including, but 
not limited to, any and all applicable local, state and federal wage laws).  In addition, Developer 
shall ensure that the PV System is operated and maintained in accordance with Good Engineering 
Practice. In the case of Battery Energy Storage System, a fire prevention plan will be approved by 
local fire chief. 

4.4 Late Completion and Developer Payments. 

Late Completion.  In the event that Developer fails to achieve Commercial Operation by 
the Outside Commercial Operation Date, Developer shall pay to Buyer liquidated damages 
(“Delay Liquidated Damages”).   

Delay Liquidated Damages shall be the product of: (i) the estimated daily energy output 
from the PV System (kWh) for each day the PV System fails to achieve Commercial Operation; 
and (ii) the difference between the average applicable all-inclusive electricity price charged by the 
Distribution Company at the Premises and the Net Energy Price for such estimated daily energy 
output, as set forth in Exhibit C.  Delay Liquidated Damages may be assessed upon written notice 
at the discretion of Buyer. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Developer shall be responsible for Delay Liquidated 
Damages if such delay is due to causes within Developer’s control, but Developer shall not be 
responsible for Delay Liquidated Damages if such delay is due to (a) Buyer’s failure to perform 
its obligations hereunder or Host’s failure to perform obligations under the Lease, (b) delays 
caused by Buyer or the Distribution Company, (c) delays in receiving approvals from 
Governmental Authorities, (e) events of Force Majeure, or (f) in the event that Developer cannot 
satisfy the Outside Commercial Operation Date milestone because Developer lacks a permit, 
approval or Interconnection Agreement necessary to commence construction and/or Commercial 
Operation of the PV System, and Developer is utilizing Commercially Reasonable efforts to secure 
such permit, approval or Interconnection Agreement.  The Parties recognize the delays, expense 
and difficulties involved in proving the actual losses or damages in a judicial or other proceeding, 
and agree that the Delay Liquidated Damages are reasonable compensation to Buyer.  Delay 



 

 

15                          PPA 
 

Liquidated Damages owed to Host shall be resolved between Buyer and Host through the Inter-
Governmental Agreement. Should this obligation be due under any other agreement between the 
Parties, the delay damages is only due to the extent due under one of the agreements, not 
cumulatively. 

 

ARTICLE V:  PURCHASE AND SALE; DELIVERY; GOVERNMENTAL CHARGES 

5.1 Purchase and Sale of Net Energy 

A. Commencing on the Commercial Operation Date and continuing throughout the 
remainder of the Term, Developer shall make available to Buyer, and Buyer shall take delivery of 
at the Point of Delivery, all of the Net Energy generated by the PV System. 

B. In the event that the System is qualified as a Solar Tariff Generation Unit under the 
SMART Program, the Distribution Company may elect to retain demand resource payments on 
account of the System’s participation in the ISO Forward Capacity Market.  In the event that the 
System is not qualified as a Solar Tariff Generation Unit under the SMART Program, or payments 
from the ISO Forward Capacity Market are not retained by the Distribution Company, the Buyer 
shall be entitled to receive demand resource payments from the ISO Forward Capacity Market 
associated with the Net Energy. 

C. To the extent permitted by law, Host or Buyer, on behalf of Host, shall obtain Net 
Metering or Alternative On-bill Credits for the Net Energy in accordance with Schedule Z of the 
interconnection application filed by Developer with the Distribution Company on Host or Buyer’s 
behalf, and Host or Buyer shall have the right to reallocate in accordance with Schedule Z such 
credits to the Host, in accordance with the Inter-Governmental PSA, or to other governmental 
entities. 

5.2 Price for Net Energy 

A. Buyer shall pay Developer for the Net Energy, as metered at the Metering Device(s), 
at the applicable Net Energy Price.  The payment made by Buyer to Developer shall equal the Net 
Energy for the relevant period multiplied by the Net Energy Price for such period. 

B. Adjustments to Net Energy Price.  In all cases, any adjustments in the Net Energy 
Price shall be made to the nearest hundredth of a cent. 

5.3 Title and Risk of Loss of Net Energy 

Title to and risk of loss of the Net Energy will pass from Developer to Buyer at the Point of 
Delivery.  Developer warrants that it will deliver the Net Energy to Buyer at the Point of Delivery 
free and clear of all liens, security interests, claims, and other encumbrances. 



 

 

16                          PPA 
 

5.4 Net Metering 

If the PV System is a Net Metered Generation Unit, each of Developer and Buyer agrees to take 
all reasonable measures with respect to which it has legal capacity to facilitate and expedite the 
review of all approvals necessary for the PV System to be eligible for and participate in Net 
Metering as a Solar Net Metering Facility, pursuant to M.G.L. c. 164, §§138 – 140, 220 CMR 
18.00, and the Tariffs, as may be amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority.  Buyer 
and Developer acknowledge and agree that Buyer or Host (if so designated by Buyer) shall act as 
the Host Customer, as defined in 220 CMR 18.02 of the Distribution Company’s Net Metering 
Tariff, M.D.P.U. No. 163, for the PV System.  To the extent that the Distribution Company elects 
not to purchase Net Metering Credits from Buyer, Buyer shall assign the Net Metering Credits to 
Host and/or other governmental entities. 

5.5 Governmental Charges. 

A. Developer is responsible for local, state and federal income taxes attributable to 
Developer for income received under this Agreement. 

B. Developer is responsible for all real and personal property taxes, assessments, use 
taxes and all other charges and fees assessed against the PV System.  The Parties acknowledge and 
agree that within thirty (30) days of Developer’s payment of such charges and fees, Developer will 
invoice Buyer for the same, and Buyer will have ninety (90) days to reimburse Developer for such 
charges and fees.  

C. Both Parties shall use reasonable efforts to administer this Agreement and 
implement its provisions so as to minimize Governmental Charges.  In the event any of the sales of 
Net Energy hereunder are to be exempted from or not subject to one or more Governmental 
Charges, the applicable Party shall, promptly upon the other Party’s request therefor, provide the 
other Party with all necessary documentation to evidence such exemption or exclusion. 

5.6 Guaranteed Annual Energy Output. 

A. Developer guarantees that the PV System will produce the Guaranteed Annual 
Energy Output in each Contract Year, as adjusted by the Annual System Degradation Factor.  On 
the first anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date and each anniversary of the Commercial 
Operation Date thereafter during the Term (and any extension thereof), the Guaranteed Annual 
Energy Output shall be decreased by the Annual System Degradation Factor, as shown on Exhibit 
C. 

B. In the event that a Production Shortfall exists in any Contract Year, the Developer 
shall owe Buyer a sum equal to the product of (i) the average applicable all-inclusive rate charged 
by the Distribution Company in any Contract Year for Energy at the Premises minus the applicable 
Net Energy Price; and (ii) the Production Shortfall.  Buyer may elect to set-off payments due and 
owing under Section 5.2(a) against the Production Shortfall damages payable to Buyer under this 
Section 5.6(b) for the first two (2) billing cycles of the subsequent Contract Year.  In the event that 
any damages remain payable to Buyer after the second billing cycle, Developer shall pay Buyer the 
remaining amounts due within thirty (30) days of the end of the second billing cycle. 



 

 

17                          PPA 
 

ARTICLE VI:  ENVIRONMENTAL ATTRIBUTES 

6.1 Title to Environmental Attributes 

All Environmental Attributes relating to the PV System or the Net Energy will be and remain 
property of Developer.  Developer shall have all right, title, and interest in and to any and all 
Environmental Attributes, and Buyer shall have no right, title or interest in or to any such 
Environmental Attributes.  The Parties shall use Commercially Reasonable efforts to modify the 
terms hereof with the mutual intent to allocate the value of any Shared Environmental Attributes 
between each other on a 50/50 basis. 

6.2 Reporting of Environmental Attributes 

Developer shall take all actions necessary to qualify for, register and report the Environmental 
Attributes relating to the Net Energy.  Except as set forth in Section 6.1, Buyer shall not report to 
any Person that any Environmental Attributes relating to the Net Energy belong to any Person 
other than Developer. 

ARTICLE VII: METERING DEVICE(S) AND METERING; BILLING 

7.1 Metering Equipment 

The Parties acknowledge and agree that Developer shall provide, install, own, operate and 
maintain the Metering Device(s), except for the Metering Device owned and installed by the 
Distribution Company.  Developer shall maintain and test the Metering Device(s) in accordance 
with Applicable Legal Requirements and the Common Technical Specifications set forth in Exhibit 
E to the Lease. 

7.2 Measurements 

Except as otherwise provided herein, readings of the Metering Device(s) shall be conclusive as to 
the amount of Net Energy delivered to Buyer.  Developer shall maintain and test its Metering 
Device(s) generally in accordance with the same terms and conditions applicable to Metering 
Device(s) installed for the purpose of delivering Energy to the Distribution Company and the 
calculation of Net Metering Credits, but in any event no less than every two (2) years.  Developer 
shall bear the cost of the testing of its Metering Device(s) and the preparation of test reports, as 
provided for in Section 7.3(d) below. 

7.3 Testing and Correcting. 

A. Once per calendar year, Buyer may request a test of the Developer’s Metering 
Device(s). Following any meter test, if the Developer’s Metering Device(s) is found to be accurate 
or inaccurate within ±2%, then Buyer shall bear the costs of the meter test and reconciliation.  If 
the Developer’s Metering Device(s) is found to be inaccurate by more than ±2%, or if the Metering 
Device(s) is for any reason out of service or fails to register, then Developer shall bear the costs of 
the meter test and reconciliation. 



 

 

18                          PPA 
 

B. If a Developer’s Metering Device(s) is found to be inaccurate by ±2% or less, any 
previous recordings of the Metering Device(s) shall be deemed accurate.  If a Developer Metering 
Device(s) is found to be inaccurate by more than ±2% or if such Metering Device(s) is for any 
reason out of service or fails to register, then:  (i) Developer shall promptly cause the Metering 
Device(s) found to be inaccurate to be adjusted to correct, to the extent practicable, such inaccuracy; 
(ii) Developer shall send an invoice to Buyer the following month estimating the correct amounts 
of Net Energy delivered or allocated during the periods affected by such inaccuracy, service outage 
or failure to register; and (iii) Developer shall estimate the correct amount of Net Energy in 
accordance with Good Engineering Practice and as practicable based on the kWh generated during 
the affected period.  If as a result of such adjustment the quantity of Net Energy for any period is 
decreased, Developer shall reimburse Buyer for the amount paid by Buyer in consideration for that 
Net Energy.  If as a result of such adjustment the quantity of Net Energy for any period is increased, 
Buyer shall pay for the additional Net Energy.  Adjustments to bills shall be made in accordance 
with ISO rules, policies and procedures.  Amounts due as a result of any billing adjustment made 
in accordance with ISO rules, policies and procedures shall not be subject to any interest charge in 
favor of Buyer or Developer. 

C. Each Party and its consultants and representatives shall have the right to witness 
each test conducted by or under the supervision of Developer to verify the accuracy of the 
measurements and recordings of the Developer’s Metering Device(s).  Developer shall provide at 
least twenty (20) days prior written notice to Buyer of the date upon which any such test is to occur.  
Developer shall prepare a written report setting forth the results of each such test, and shall provide 
Buyer with copies of such written report not later than thirty (30) days after completion of such test. 

D. In the event that there is a discrepancy between the Net Energy generated by the PV 
System as reported by the Developer’s and Distribution Company’s Metering Devices, Developer 
and Buyer will use good faith efforts to investigate and remedy such discrepancy in consult with 
Distribution Company.  In the event of a discrepancy in which the Developer’s Metering Device 
reports greater Net Energy than the Distribution Company’s Metering Device, Buyer shall only be 
required to pay Developer under this Agreement for the amount of Net Energy reported by 
Distribution Company’s Metering Device.  Developer shall credit Buyer in the subsequent month’s 
invoice for any amounts paid by Buyer in a prior month or months for Net Energy reported by 
Developer’s Metering Device in excess of the Net Energy reported by Distribution Company’s 
Metering Device. 

7.4 Billing 

On or before the tenth (10th) day of each month during the Term (or if such day is not a Business 
Day, the next succeeding Business Day), Developer shall calculate the amount due and payable to 
Developer pursuant to Exhibit C, with respect to the immediately preceding month, and shall 
forward to Buyer an invoice, identifying PV System production data from the Developer’s 
Metering Device, and including such calculation, with sufficient detail for Buyer to verify the 
calculation and the total amount due and payable for the previous month.  Adjustments to bills 
shall be made in accordance with ISO rules, policies and procedures, if applicable. 



 

 

19                          PPA 
 

7.5 Payment 

Within twenty-one (21) days of the receipt of Developer’s invoice pursuant to Section 7.4 (Billing), 
Buyer shall pay Developer any amounts due and payable hereunder for Net Energy delivered 
during the prior month, for which Developer has submitted an invoice to Buyer pursuant to Section 
7.4 (Billing).  All such invoices shall be paid by mutually agreeable method(s), to the account 
designated by Developer.  Amounts due as a result of any billing adjustment made in accordance 
with ISO rules, policies and procedures pursuant to this Section 7.5 shall not be subject to any 
interest charge in favor of Buyer or Developer. 

7.6 Dispute 

If a Party, in good faith, disputes an invoice, as described in this Article VII, the disputing Party 
shall immediately notify the other Party of the basis for the dispute and pay any undisputed portion 
of such invoice no later than the due date.  Upon resolution of the dispute, any required payment 
shall be made within twenty-one (21) days of such resolution along with the interest accrued at the 
Prime Rate per annum from and including the due date but excluding the date paid.  Any 
overpayments shall be returned by the receiving Party upon request or deducted from subsequent 
payments with interest accrued at the Prime Rate.  The Parties shall only be entitled to dispute an 
invoice within twelve (12) calendar months from the date of issuance of such invoice.  If the Parties 
are unable to resolve a payment dispute under this Article VII, the Parties shall follow the 
procedure set forth in Article XIV (Dispute Resolution). 

7.7 Records and Audits 

Each Party will keep, for a period not less than six (6) years after the expiration or termination of 
any transaction, records sufficient to permit verification of the accuracy of billing statements, 
invoices, charges, computations and payments for such transaction.  During such period each Party 
may, at its sole cost and expense, and upon reasonable notice to the other Party, examine the other 
Party’s records pertaining to such transactions during such other Party’s normal business hours. 

 

ARTICLE VIII: LOSS, DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION OF 
PV SYSTEM; FORCE MAJEURE 

8.1 PV System Loss. 

A. Developer shall bear the risk of any PV System Loss, except to the extent such PV 
System Loss results from the negligence or noncompliance of Host or Host’s agents, 
representatives, customers, vendors, employees, or contractors. 

B. In the event of any PV System Loss that, in the reasonable judgment of Developer, 
results in less than total damage, destruction or loss of the PV System, this Agreement shall remain 
in full force and effect and Developer has the option, at Developer’s absolute and sole discretion 
and sole cost and expense, to repair or replace the PV System as quickly as practicable.  Developer 
shall be entitled to all proceeds of insurance with respect to the PV System in connection with any 
PV System Loss.  If Developer elects not to repair or replace the portion of the PV System affected 



 

 

20                          PPA 
 

by the PV System Loss, the Expected Annual Energy Output shall be recalculated using PV Watts 
or a similar software program and the Guaranteed Annual Energy Output shall be adjusted 
accordingly (by way of example, if there is a 200 kW loss from a 2,000 kW system, the Guaranteed 
Annual Output shall be reduced by a fraction equal to the lost kW capacity divided by the original 
capacity, i.e. 200 kW / 2000kW).  Developer shall, however, pay Buyer an amount equal to the net 
present value of the Foregone Buyer Benefit, using a discount factor of 8%, such amount not to 
exceed the replacement value of the part of the PV System affected by the PV System Loss.  
Foregone Buyer Benefit is defined as (i) in the Contract Year of occurrence, the difference between 
the G1 rate (or such other rate for the Premises’ electric account of the Distribution Company’s 
tariff)  in the Contract Year of occurrence of the partial PV System Loss and the Net Energy Price, 
multiplied by the Expected Annual Output adjusted for the Annual System Degradation Factor and 
(ii) for the remainder of the Term the G1 rate (or such other rate for the Premises’ electric account 
of the Distribution Company’s tariff)  is assumed to increase by 3% per year.  In the event that 
Developer elects to repair or replace the PV System pursuant to this Section 8.1(b), Developer shall 
be responsible for any Production Shortfall that occurs during the repair/replacement period.  The 
Foregone Buyer Benefit shall not be paid to the extent that damage, destruction or loss is due to 
Force Majeure or condemnation. 

C. In the event of any PV System Loss that, in the reasonable judgment of Developer, 
results in total damage, destruction or loss of the PV System, Developer shall, within twenty (20) 
Business Days following the occurrence of such PV System Loss, notify Buyer whether Developer 
is willing to repair or replace the PV System.  In the event that Developer notifies Buyer that 
Developer has opted not to repair or replace the PV System, this Agreement will terminate 
automatically effective upon the receipt of such notice of termination, and Developer shall be 
entitled to all proceeds of insurance with respect to the PV System in connection with such PV 
System Loss, provided however, proceeds paid on account of damage to the Premises shall be paid 
to Host.   

8.2 Termination Due to Force Majeure.  If a Claiming Party claims a Force Majeure for a 
consecutive period of six (6) calendar months or longer, the non-Claiming Party may terminate 
this Agreement, in whole or in part, without any liability to the Claiming Party as a result of such 
termination. 

8.3 Performance Excused by Force Majeure.  To the extent either Party is prevented by Force 
Majeure from carrying out, in whole or part, its obligations under this Agreement and such Party 
(the “Claiming Party”) gives notice and details of the Force Majeure to the other Party as soon as 
practicable, then the Claiming Party will be excused from, the performance of its obligations under 
this Agreement (other than the obligation to make payments then due or becoming due with respect 
to performance prior to the Force Majeure).  The Party affected by Force Majeure will use 
Commercially Reasonable efforts to eliminate or avoid the Force Majeure and resume performing 
its obligations; provided, however, that neither Party is required to settle any strikes, lockouts or 
similar disputes except on terms acceptable to such Party, in its sole discretion.  The non-Claiming 
Party will not be required to perform or resume performance of its obligations to the Claiming 
Party corresponding to the obligations of the Claiming Party excused by Force Majeure.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, Developer shall not owe any Developer Termination 
Payment if the damage, destruction or loss is due to actions of Host or is caused by an event at the 
Premises (such as a fire at the Premises) not caused by Developer. 



 

 

21                          PPA 
 

 

ARTICLE IX:  DEFAULT; TERMINATION; REMEDIES 

9.1 Events of Default by Buyer.   

The following shall each constitute an event of default by Buyer (“Buyer Event of Default”): 

A. Buyer breaches any non-monetary material obligation under the Agreement, and 
fails to cure such breach within thirty (30) Business Days after notification by Developer of the 
breach; 

B. Buyer fails to make any payment due under this Agreement within forty-five (45) 
Business Days after such payment is due unless such payment is contested by Buyer; 

C. If any material representation or warranty made by Buyer in Article X 
(Representations and Warranties; Buyer Acknowledgement) of this Agreement proves to have been 
misleading or false in any material respect when made and such Party does not cure the underlying 
facts so as to make such representation or warranty correct and not misleading within ten (10) 
Business Days of written notice from the other Party; 

D. Buyer becomes Bankrupt. 

9.2 Events of Default by Developer 

The following shall each constitute an event of default by Developer (“Developer Event of 
Default”): 

A. Developer breaches any non-monetary material obligation under the Agreement, and 
fails to cure such breach within thirty (30) Business Days after notification by Buyer of the breach; 
provided, however, that Developer shall have an additional reasonable period of time thereafter if 
Developer uses Commercially Reasonable effort to cure such Developer Event of Default during 
the initial thirty (30) days after notice as aforesaid and Developer provides reasonable written 
assurances that it will continue to use Commercially Reasonable efforts to cure within such a 
reasonable period of time thereafter not to exceed an additional ninety (90) days. 

B. Developer fails to make any payment due under this Agreement, including but not 
limited to, amounts payable to Buyer for any Production Shortfall pursuant to Section 5.6(b) and 
Indemnification pursuant to Section 11.2  within forty-five (45) Business Days after such payment 
is due unless such payment is contested or a right of set-off has been claimed by Developer; 

C. If any material representation or warranty made by Developer in Article X 
(Representations and Warranties; Buyer Acknowledgement) of this Agreement proves to have been 
misleading or false in any material respect when made and such Party does not cure the underlying 
facts so as to make such representation or warranty correct and not misleading within ten (10) 
Business Days of written notice from the other Party; 

D. Developer becomes Bankrupt; 



 

 

22                          PPA 
 

E. Host terminates the Lease on account of an Event of Default by Developer 
thereunder; 

F. Failure by the Developer to commence construction of the PV System on or before 
the Outside Construction Commencement Date, or achieve Commercial Operation of the PV 
System on or before the Outside Commercial Operation Date, unless such failure is caused by Force 
Majeure, material breach by Host of its obligations under the Lease or delay in interconnection 
approval caused by the Distribution Company; 

G. For any reason other than an event of Force Majeure, Developer is unable to provide 
Net Energy to Buyer for ninety (90) consecutive days in any three hundred sixty-five (365) day 
period commencing on the Commercial Operation Date and prior to the expiration of this 
Agreement, provided, however, that Developer shall have thirty (30) days to cure such default if 
Developer is using Commercially Reasonable efforts to cure such Developer Event of Default 
during the original one hundred twenty (120) day period; 

H. Developer consolidates or amalgamates with, or merges with or into, or transfers all 
or substantially all of its assets to, another entity, and the resulting, surviving or transferee entity 
fails to assume, effective immediately upon the effectiveness of such consolidation, amalgamation, 
merger or transfer, each and all of the obligations of Developer under this Agreement; or 

I. Any other material breach of this Agreement not specifically enumerated above, and 
such breach is not cured within thirty (30) Business Days after notification by Buyer of the breach; 
provided, however, that Developer shall have an additional reasonable period of time thereafter not 
to exceed thirty (30) Business Days to cure such breach if Developer uses Commercially 
Reasonable efforts to cure such default during the initial thirty (30) days after notice as aforesaid 
and Developer provides reasonable written assurances that it will be able to cure such default within 
such a reasonable period of time thereafter not to exceed thirty (30) Business Days. 

9.3 Remedies 

A. Buyer Event of Default. 

(i) In the event of an uncured Buyer Event of Default, not excused by Force 
Majeure, Developer agrees to give written notice to Host and Host shall have a period of sixty (60) 
days after receipt of said notice to cure such default, provided however, that Host shall have an 
additional reasonable period of time thereafter to cure the Buyer Event of Default if Host uses 
Commercially Reasonable efforts to cure such Buyer Event of Default during the initial sixty (60) 
days after notice aforesaid, and Host provides reasonable written assurances that it will be able to 
cure such Buyer Event of Default within such a reasonable period of time thereafter. 

(ii) In the event that Host elects not to step in or fails to cure such Buyer Event 
of Default, Developer shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement and the Lease and shall also be 
entitled, but not required, to terminate and collect damages from the Buyer, which damages shall 
include, but not be limited to, the value of anticipated future net revenues, including revenues 
attributable to Environmental Attributes, through the end of the Term if payments had continued 
under this Agreement absent the Buyer Event of Default. 



 

 

23                          PPA 
 

(iii) In the event of an uncured Buyer Event of Default, remedies may include 
an assignment of this PPA to Host consistent with Section 6.2(f) of the Inter-Governmental 
Agreement. 

B. Developer Event of Default. 

(i) Financier Step-In.  Buyer agrees to give written notice to any Financier (of 
which Buyer has written notice) upon a Developer Event of Default hereunder, and Financier shall 
have a period of sixty (60) days after receipt of said notice to cure such default, provided however, 
that Financier shall have an additional reasonable period of time thereafter not to exceed thirty 
(30) days to cure the Developer Event of Default if Financier uses Commercially Reasonable 
efforts to cure such Developer Event of Default during the initial sixty (60) days after notice 
aforesaid, and Financier provides reasonable written assurances that it will be able to cure such 
Developer Event of Default within such a reasonable period of time thereafter not to exceed an 
additional thirty (30) days. Buyer agrees and acknowledges that any Financier is a third party 
beneficiary of the provisions of this Section 9.3(B)(i). 

(ii) Buyer Termination; PV System Purchase Rights.  In the event that Financier 
elects not to step-in or fails to cure pursuant to sub-Section (i) above, or Buyer has no written 
notice of a Financier, Buyer shall have the right, but not the obligation, to: 

1) terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days notice and recover 
monetary damages from Developer or seek specific performance. 

2) purchase the PV System pursuant to Article XIII (PV System 
Purchase and Sale Options) provided that Buyer shall be entitled to offset 
the Purchase Price of the PV System determined in accordance with Article 
XIII against the amount of monetary damages due and owing Buyer 
pursuant to this Section 9.3.  Buyer may assign its Purchase Option under 
this sub-Section to Host. 

9.4 Closeout Setoffs 

The non-defaulting party shall be entitled, at its option and in its discretion, to set off, against any 
amounts due and owing from the defaulting party under this Agreement, any amounts due and 
owing to the defaulting party under this Agreement. 

9.5 Unpaid Obligations 

The non-defaulting party shall be under no obligation to prioritize the order with respect to which 
it exercises any one or more rights and remedies available under this Agreement.  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary herein, the defaulting party shall in all events remain liable to the non-
defaulting party for any amount payable by the defaulting party in respect of any of its obligations 
remaining outstanding after any such exercise of rights or remedies. 

9.6 Force Majeure 



 

 

24                          PPA 
 

Without limitation of Section 8.2 or Section 8.3, if by reason of Force Majeure, either Party is 
unable to carry out, either in whole or in part, its obligations herein contained, such Party shall not 
be deemed to be in default during the continuation of such inability, provided that:  (a) the non-
performing Party, as soon as practicable (and in any event within five (5) Business Days after the 
Force Majeure event first prevents performance, gives the other Party hereto written notice 
describing the particulars of the occurrence; (b) the suspension of performance be of no greater 
scope and of no longer duration than is required by the Force Majeure event; (c) no obligations of 
the Party which were to be performed prior to the occurrence causing the suspension of 
performance shall be excused as a result of the occurrence; and (d) the non-performing Party shall 
use Commercially Reasonable efforts to remedy with all reasonable dispatch the cause or causes 
preventing it from carrying out its obligations.  If an event of Force Majeure continues for a period 
of one hundred eighty (180) days or longer, either Party may treat such an event as an Event of 
Termination and may immediately terminate this Agreement by sending the non-performing Party 
a written termination notice setting forth the Termination Date.  In the Event of Termination under 
this Section 9.6, Financier shall have step-in rights as provided in Section 16.2. 

 

ARTICLE X:  REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES; BUYER 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

10.1 Representations and Warranties by Buyer 

As of the Effective Date, Buyer represents and warrants to Developer as follows: 

A. Buyer has full legal capacity to enter into this Agreement and to perform all 
obligations hereunder; 

B. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized, and each person 
executing this Agreement on behalf of Buyer has full authority to do so and to fully bind Buyer; 

C. Buyer knows of no pending or threatened action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or 
investigation before or by any judicial court or administrative or law enforcement agency against 
or affecting Buyer or its properties wherein any unfavorable decision, ruling, or finding would 
materially and adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or Buyer’s ability 
to carry out its obligations under this Agreement; 

D. None of the documents or other written or other information furnished by or on 
behalf of Buyer to Developer or their agents pursuant to this Agreement contains any untrue 
statement of a material fact or omits to state any material fact required to be stated therein or 
necessary to make the statements contained herein or therein, in the light of the circumstances in 
which they were made, not misleading; and 

E. Buyer represents and warrants that this Agreement has been presented to the Host 
and that the final form of this Agreement will be included as an exhibit to the Lease and the Inter-
Governmental PSA, and further that the Inter-Governmental PSA is in full force and effect. 

10.2 Representations and Warranties by Developer 



 

 

25                          PPA 
 

As of the Effective Date, Developer represents and warrants to Buyer as follows: 

A. Developer has full legal capacity to enter into this Agreement and to perform all its 
obligations hereunder; 

B. The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized, and each person 
executing this Agreement on behalf of Developer has full authority to do so and to fully bind 
Developer; 

C. Developer knows of no pending or threatened action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or 
investigation before or by any judicial court or administrative or law enforcement agency against 
or affecting Developer or its properties wherein any unfavorable decision, ruling, or finding would 
materially and adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or Developer’s 
ability to carry out its obligations under this Agreement; 

D. None of the documents or other written or other information furnished by or on 
behalf of Developer to Buyer or its agents pursuant to this Agreement contains any untrue statement 
of a material fact or omits to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to 
make the statements contained herein or therein, in the light of the circumstances in which they 
were made, not misleading; and 

E. Developer acknowledges, agrees, and intends for purposes of “safe harbor” under 
the Bankruptcy Code that, without limitation, as applicable: (i) the transactions pursuant to this 
Agreement constitute “forward contracts” within the meaning of the Bankruptcy Code or a “swap 
agreement” within the meaning of the Bankruptcy Code; (ii) all payments made or to be made by 
one Party to the other Party under this Agreement with respect to forward contracts constitute 
“settlement payments” and/or “margin payments” within the meaning of the Bankruptcy Code; and 
(iii) all transfers of performance assurance by one Party to another Party under this Agreement 
constitute “margin payments” within the meaning of the Bankruptcy Code. 

 

ARTICLE XI:  INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE 

11.1 Insurance 

The Developer shall comply with the Insurance requirements in the Lease, including Exhibit C 
thereto. 

11.2 Indemnification by Developer 

Without duplication of any amounts paid to Buyer pursuant to Section 9.3 or any other provision 
of this Agreement setting an amount of Liquidated Damages or otherwise calculating an amount 
owed hereunder, which other provision shall provide the sole and exclusive amount due with 
respect thereto and subject to Article XII, Developer shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
the Buyer, Host and other Cooperative Members and other participating governmental parties 
(collectively “Buyer Indemnified Parties” and singularly “Buyer Indemnified Party”) and each 
Buyer Indemnified Party’s directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives and independent 



 

 

26                          PPA 
 

contractors, from and against any and all (a) costs, claims, liabilities, damages, expenses (including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees), causes of action, suits or judgments, incurred by, on behalf of or 
involving any one of the foregoing parties, in each case, arising out of (i) bodily injury, death or 
property damage or any other claims by third parties and (ii) property damage incurred and (b) lien 
claims by subcontractors or suppliers or sub-subcontractors and sub-suppliers, to the extent, in the 
case of subclauses (a) and (b), arising, directly or indirectly, from or in connection with (A) any 
material breach by Developer of its obligations, covenants, representations or warranties contained 
in this Agreement, (B) Developer’s actions or omissions taken or made in connection with 
Developer’s performance of this Agreement, except for actions or omissions required by this 
Agreement and in accordance with the Common Technical Specifications set forth in Exhibit E to 
the Lease and which is in accordance with Good Engineering Practices; (C) any claims arising 
from or based on the violation by Developer or its agents of Applicable Legal Requirements and 
orders. 

11.3 Notice of Indemnification Claims 

If a Buyer Indemnified Party seeks indemnification pursuant to this Article XI, the Buyer 
Indemnified Party shall notify Developer of the existence of a claim, or potential claim as soon as 
practicable after learning of such claim, or potential claim, describing with reasonable particularity 
the circumstances giving rise to such claim.  The Developer further agrees, if requested by the 
Buyer Indemnified Party, to investigate, handle, respond to, and defend any such claim, demand, 
or suit at its own expense arising under this Article XI.  Upon written acknowledgment by 
Developer that it will assume the defense and indemnification of such claim, the Developer may 
assert any defenses which are or would otherwise be available to Buyer Indemnified Party. 

 

ARTICLE XII:  REMEDIES; LIMITATIONS 

The Parties confirm that the express remedies and measures of damages provided in this 
Agreement satisfy the essential purposes hereof.  For breach of any provision for which an express 
remedy or measure of damages is provided, such express remedy or measure of damages will be 
the sole and exclusive remedy, the obligor’s liability will be limited as set forth in such provision 
and all other remedies or damages at law or in equity are waived.  If no remedy or measure of 
damages is expressly provided herein, the Parties reserve and shall have all rights and remedies 
available to each of them at law or in equity with respect to the performance or non-performance 
of the other Party hereto under this Agreement. 

UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, 
NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY SPECIAL, 
INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES, LOST PROFITS, OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION DAMAGES OF ANY 
CHARACTER, RESULTING FROM, ARISING OUT OF, IN CONNECTION WITH OR 
IN ANY WAY INCIDENT TO ANY ACT OR OMISSION OF EITHER PARTY RELATED 
TO THE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT, IRRESPECTIVE OF WHETHER 
CLAIMS OR ACTIONS FOR SUCH DAMAGES ARE BASED UPON CONTRACT, 



 

 

27                          PPA 
 

WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER THEORY AT 
LAW OR EQUITY. 

 

ARTICLE XIII: SYSTEM PURCHASE AND SALE OPTIONS 

13.1 Grant of Purchase Option 

As set forth in the Lease, Developer has granted to Host the right and option to purchase all of 
Developer’s right, title and interest in and to the PV System and the Environmental Attributes on 
the terms set forth in this Agreement (the “Purchase Option”).  Host, in its sole discretion, shall 
have the right to exercise the Purchase Option: (a) upon the tenth (10th), twelfth (12th), or fifteenth 
(15th) anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date of this Agreement, (b) upon a Developer 
Event of Default pursuant to Section 9.3 and the expiration of any cure right with respect thereto, 
or (c) upon the expiration of the Term of this Agreement, subject to the timing and conditions set 
forth in this Article XIII. 

13.2 Timing of Purchase Option. 

A. If the Host declines the Purchase Option or otherwise fails to send the Host Purchase 
Option Notice within sixty (60) Business Days prior to (tenth (10th), twelfth (12th), or fifteenth (15th) 
anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date of this Agreement, or the date of its Termination, 
the Buyer shall have thirty (30) Business Days thereafter to provide written notice to Developer of 
its intent to exercise the Purchase Option (“Initial Host Purchase Option Notice”) pending 
completion of due diligence. Promptly following receipt of a Purchase Option Notice from Host or 
Buyer, as the case may be, Developer shall promptly, but no more than ten (10) Business Days 
thereafter, make available to the Host, or the Buyer, as the case may be, the PV System and all 
Environmental Attributes, including records relating to the operations, maintenance, and warranty 
repairs, for its inspection during normal business hours. 

B. Buyer or Host, as the case may be, shall have twenty-five (25) Business Days from 
their respective purchase option notices to inspect the PV system, review the records provided by 
Developer and exercise other due diligence. 

C. Determination of Purchase Price. The purchase price shall be the higher of the Buyer 
Purchase Payment in Exhibit C, or the Appraised Value of the PV System, as determined by the 
Independent Appraiser (“Purchase Price”).  If the Purchase Option arises out of a Developer Event 
of Default, the Purchase Price shall be the Appraised Value. 

D. Independent Appraiser.  Within twenty-five (25) Business Days of Developer’s 
receipt of Purchase Option Notice, Developer and Buyer or Host, as the case may be, shall each 
propose an Independent Appraiser.  If Developer and Buyer or Host do not agree and appoint an 
Independent Appraiser within such twenty-five (25) Business Day period, then at the end of such 
twenty-five (25) Business Day period, the two proposed Independent Appraisers shall, within five 
(5) Business Days of each Party’s notice, select a third Independent Appraiser (who may be one of 
the Independent Appraisers originally designated by the Parties or another Independent Appraiser) 



 

 

28                          PPA 
 

to perform the valuation and provide notice thereof to Developer and Buyer or Host.  Such selection 
shall be final and binding on Developer and Buyer or Host. 

E. PV System Records and Inspection. The Developer shall make the PV System and 
records related thereto available to the Independent Appraiser.  Similarly, the Buyer or Host shall 
make available to the Independent Appraiser the results of its inspection, review of records and 
other due diligence.  The selected Independent Appraiser shall, within twenty (20) Business Days 
of appointment, make a preliminary determination of the Appraised Value (the “Preliminary 
Determination”). 

F. Preliminary and Final Appraisal Determinations.  Upon making such Preliminary 
Determination, the selected Independent Appraiser shall provide such Preliminary Determination 
to Developer and Buyer and/or Host, together with all supporting documentation that details the 
calculation of the Preliminary Determination.  Developer and Buyer and/or Host shall each have 
the right to object to the Preliminary Determination within ten (10) Business Days of receiving such 
Preliminary Determination; provided that the objecting Party provides a written explanation 
documenting the reasons for its objection.  Within ten (10) Business Days of receipt of the objecting 
Party’s objections, the selected Independent Appraiser shall issue its final determination (the “Final 
Determination”) to Developer and Buyer and/or Host, which shall specifically address the 
objections received by the Independent Appraiser and whether such objections were taken into 
account in making the Final Determination.  Except in the case of fraud or manifest error, the Final 
Determination of the Appraised Value by the selected Independent Appraiser shall be final and 
binding on the Parties. 

G. Appraisal Costs.  Developer and Buyer or Host, as the case may be, shall each be 
responsible for payment of one half of the costs and expenses of the Independent Appraiser(s), 
unless the Purchase Option is to be exercised pursuant to a Developer Event of Default, in which 
case the Developer shall be responsible to pay the fees and costs of the Independent Appraiser. 

13.3 Final Purchase Option Notice 

Within ten (10) Business Days of the Final Determination, the Buyer or Host shall notify the 
Developer in writing whether it intends to exercise the Purchase Option at the Purchase Price 
determined in accordance with Section 13.2 (“Final Buyer Purchase Option Notice” or “Final Host 
Purchase Option Notice”).  Upon such Final Purchase Option Notice, the Purchase Option shall 
become irrevocable.  If the Buyer’s or Host’s Purchase Option has arisen on account of a Developer 
Event of Default and Termination of the Agreement therefor under Section 9.2, the Developer 
Termination Payment shall be deducted from the Purchase Price. 

13.4 Transfer Date 

The closing of any sale of the PV System (the “Transfer Date”) pursuant to this Article XIII will 
occur as soon as practicable but no later than ninety (90) Business Days following the date of the 
notice provided to Developer pursuant to Section 9.3.  This Agreement shall terminate effective 
upon the Transfer Date, if not earlier terminated. 

13.5 Terms of PV System Purchase 



 

 

29                          PPA 
 

On the Transfer Date (a) Developer shall surrender and transfer to Buyer or Host, as the case may 
be, all of Developer’s right, title and interest in and to the PV System, and the Environmental 
Attributes, and shall retain all liabilities arising from or related to the PV System and the 
Environmental Attributes prior to the Transfer Date, (b) Buyer or Host, as the case may be, shall 
pay the Purchase Price after deduction of any Developer Termination Payment or other set-offs, as 
applicable, by certified check, bank draft or wire transfer and shall assume all liabilities arising 
from or related to the PV System and the Environmental Attributes from and after the Transfer 
Date, and (c) both Parties shall (i) execute and deliver a bill of sale and assignment of contract 
rights containing such representations, warranties, covenants and other terms and conditions as are 
usual and customary for a sale of assets similar to the PV System, together with such other 
conveyance and transaction documents as are reasonably required to fully transfer and vest title to 
the PV System, and the Environmental Attributes in Buyer, and (ii) deliver ancillary documents, 
including releases, resolutions, certificates, third person consents and approvals and such similar 
documents as may be reasonably necessary to complete the sale of the PV System and the 
Environmental Attributes to Buyer or Host.  The purchase shall be on an “as is,” “where is” basis 
without warranty of any kind. 

ARTICLE XIV:  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

14.1 Dispute Resolution 

Unless otherwise expressly provided for in the Agreement, the dispute resolution procedures of 
this Article XIV shall be the exclusive mechanism to resolve disputes arising under the Agreement.  
The Parties agree to use their respective best efforts to resolve any dispute(s) that may arise 
regarding the Agreement.  Any dispute that arises under or with respect to the Agreement that 
cannot be resolved shall in the first instance be the subject of informal negotiations between the 
Parties.  The dispute shall be considered to have arisen when one Party sends the other Party a 
written notice of dispute.  The period for informal negotiations shall be fourteen (14) days from 
receipt of the written notice of dispute unless such time period is modified by written agreement 
of the Parties.  In the event that the Parties cannot resolve a dispute by informal negotiations, the 
Parties may agree to submit the dispute to mediation.  Within fourteen (14) days following the 
expiration of the time period for informal negotiations, the Parties may agree to mediation and 
choose a neutral and otherwise qualified mediator.  In the event that the Parties fail to agree upon 
a mediator, the Parties may request that the American Arbitration Association, Boston, 
Massachusetts, appoint a mediator.  The period for mediation shall commence upon the 
appointment of the mediator and shall not exceed sixty (60) days, unless such time period is 
modified by written agreement of the Parties.  The decision to continue mediation shall be in the 
sole discretion of each Party.  The Parties will bear their own costs of the mediation.  The 
mediator’s fees shall be shared equally by the Parties.  In the event that the Parties cannot resolve 
a dispute by informal negotiations or mediation, the sole venue for judicial enforcement shall be 
courts in and for Barnstable County, Massachusetts.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, injunctive 
relief from such court may be sought without resorting to alternative dispute resolution to prevent 
irreparable harm that would be caused by a breach of the Agreement.   

14.2 Stay of Termination 



 

 

30                          PPA 
 

During informal negotiations and mediation pursuant to Section 14.1, the Parties shall not exercise 
any termination rights pursuant to this Agreement.  During such informal negotiations and/or 
mediation, the Parties shall continue to fully perform their respective obligations pursuant to this 
Agreement.  All applicable statutes of limitation and defense based upon the passage of time and 
similar contractual limitations shall be tolled while discussions in Section 14.1 are pending and 
the Parties shall take such action, if any, required to effectuate such tolling.  Without prejudice to 
the procedure set forth in Section 14.1, a Party may file a complaint for statute of limitations 
purposes, if in its sole judgment such action may be necessary to preserve its claims or defenses. 

 

ARTICLE XV:  NOTICES 

All notices, demands, requests, consents or other communications required or permitted to 
be given or made under the Agreement shall be in writing and addressed to the following: 

If to Buyer: Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. 
23H2 White’s Path, Suite 2 
South Yarmouth, MA 02664 
Attn: Liz Argo, Executive Director 
Tel: (774) 722-1812 
Email: largo@cvecinc.org 

with a copy to: 

Kevin D. Batt 
Jessica A. Wall 
ANDERSON & KREIGER LLP 
50 Milk Street, 21st Floor 
Boston, MA 02109 
t: 617-621-6514 
f: 617-621-6614 
 

If to Developer: 

Solect Energy Development LLC 
89 Hayden Rowe Street 
Hopkinton, MA  01748 
Attn:  Legal Notices 
legal@solect.com 

with a copy to: 

N/A 

Notices hereunder shall be deemed properly served: (a) by hand delivery, on the day and at the 
time on which delivered to the intended recipient at the address set forth in the Agreement; (b) if 
sent by mail, on the third Business Day after the day on which deposited in the United States 



 

 

31                          PPA 
 

certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to the intended 
recipient at its address set forth in the Agreement; or (c) if by Federal Express or other reputable 
express mail service, on the next Business Day after delivery to such express mail service, 
addressed to the intended recipient at its address set forth in the Agreement.  Either Party may 
change its address and contact person for the purposes of this Article XV by giving notice thereof 
in the manner required herein. 

ARTICLE XVI:  ASSIGNMENT; BINDING EFFECT; FINANCIER PROVISIONS 

16.1 Assignment; Binding Effect. 

A. Developer shall not, without the prior written consent of Buyer, which consent will 
not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, assign, pledge or transfer all or any part of, 
or any right or obligation under, this Agreement, whether voluntarily or by operation of law, and 
any such assignment or transfer without such consent will be null and void; provided, however, that 
Developer may, with prior notice to Buyer, assign, pledge or transfer all or any part of, or any right 
or obligation under this Agreement for security purposes in connection with any financing or other 
financial arrangements regarding the PV System (each, a “Permitted Transfer”); provided further, 
however, that Developer shall continue to be responsible and liable for its obligations under this 
Agreement, unless an assignee in a Permitted Transfer assumes all of Developer’s obligations under 
this Agreement in writing.  Developer shall deliver notice of any Permitted Transfer to Buyer or 
Host in writing as soon as reasonably practicable. Developer shall reimburse Buyer for its 
reasonable attorneys’ fees related to review and approval of assignments, and such reasonable 
attorneys’ fees as may be incurred by Host. 

B. With prior notice to Developer, Buyer shall have the right to assign, pledge or 
transfer all or any part of, or any right or obligation under, this Agreement, to the Host without the 
consent of the Developer.  Buyer shall not otherwise assign, pledge or transfer all or any part of, or 
any right or obligation under, this Agreement unless the proposed assignee has equal financial 
capability as Buyer to perform under this Agreement and Buyer has provided prior notice to 
Developer, and provided that no such assignment will impair Developer’s right and title to 
Environmental Attributes pursuant to Section 6.1. 

C. Subject to the foregoing restrictions on assignment, this Agreement will inure to the 
benefit of and be binding upon the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

16.2 Financier Provisions 

A. Any Person or entity that has entered into a loan agreement, credit agreement, 
reimbursement agreement, note purchase agreement or other document (and any documents relating 
to or ancillary to the foregoing documents) identified from time to time in writing by Developer to 
Buyer as a “Financing Agreement” under which Developer obtains financing whether or not 
secured by all or substantially all of the assets comprising the PV System shall, for so long as the 
Financing Agreement is in existence and until any lien thereof has been extinguished, be entitled to 
the protections set forth herein.  No Financing Agreement shall encumber or affect in any way the 
interest of Buyer or Host in and to the Premises, or Buyer’s or Host’s rights under this Agreement.  



 

 

32                          PPA 
 

Buyer shall act expeditiously, cooperatively and in good faith in facilitating any amendments to this 
Agreement requested by Financier in connection with the financing of the PV System. 

B. Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 16.2 and subject to Section 9.3(a) 
(Financier Step-in), Financier shall have the right: (i) to assign the Financing Agreement; (ii) to 
enforce its lien by any lawful means; (iii) to take possession of and operate the PV System or any 
portion thereof and to perform all obligations to be performed by Developer hereunder, or to cause 
a receiver to be appointed to do so, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; and (iv) 
to sell the PV System and rights under this Agreement and any other contracts dealing with the sale 
of Net Energy or Environmental Attributes from the PV System to a third party.  Buyer’s consent 
shall not be required for the Financier’s acquisition of the PV System pursuant to this Agreement, 
except as provided in sub-Section (C) below. 

C. Upon the Financier’s acquisition of the PV System, Financier shall have the right to 
sell or assign said acquired PV System, provided Financier and proposed assignee (as applicable) 
shall first satisfy each of the following conditions:  (i) any such assignee shall be approved in 
advance by Buyer, such approval not to be unreasonably conditioned, withheld or delayed provided 
that such assignee provides satisfactory evidence of its financial and technical capability to perform 
the Developer’s obligations under this Agreement; (ii) any such assignee shall assume all of 
Developer’s obligations under this Agreement; (iii) Financier and/or any proposed assignee shall 
have satisfied every obligation of Developer existing under this Agreement but which remains 
unsatisfied at the time of the proposed assignment; and (iv) Financier and any such assignee shall 
satisfy all Applicable Legal Requirements. 

 

ARTICLE XVII:  MISCELLANEOUS 

17.1 Entire Agreement; Amendments; Binding Effect 

This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the Parties hereto with respect to the 
subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior oral or written agreements and understandings 
between the Parties relating to the subject matter hereof.  This Agreement may only be amended 
or modified by a written amendment to the Agreement signed by both Parties hereto.  This 
Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding upon the Parties and their respective successors 
and permitted assigns. 

17.2 Expenses 

Each Party hereto shall pay all expenses incurred by it in connection with its entering into the 
Agreement, including, without limitation, all attorneys’ fees and expenses. 

17.3 No Joint Venture 

Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute either Party a partner, agent or legal 
representative of the other Party or to create a joint venture, partnership, agency or any relationship 
between the Parties.  The obligations of the Parties are individual and not collective in nature. 



 

 

33                          PPA 
 

17.4 Joint Work Product 

This Agreement shall be considered the work product of both Parties hereto, and, therefore, no rule 
of strict construction shall be applied against either Party. 

17.5 Waiver 

No waiver by either Party hereto of any one or more defaults by the other Party in the performance 
of any provision of the Agreement shall operate or be construed as a waiver of any future default, 
whether of like or different character.  No failure on the part of either Party hereto to complain of 
any action or non-action on the part of the other Party, no matter how long the same may continue, 
shall be deemed to be a waiver of any right hereunder by the Party so failing.  A waiver of any of 
the provisions of the Agreement shall only be effective if made in writing and signed by the Party 
who is making such waiver. 

17.6 Severability 

If any section, phrase or portion of the Agreement is, for any reason, held or adjudged to be invalid, 
illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such section, phrase, or portion so 
adjudged will be deemed separate, severable and independent and the remainder of the Agreement 
will be and remain in full force and effect and will not be invalidated or rendered illegal or 
unenforceable or otherwise affected by such adjudication, provided the basic purpose of the 
Agreement and the benefits to the Parties are not substantially impaired. 

17.7 Further Assurances 

From time to time and at any time at and after the execution of the Agreement, each Party shall 
execute, acknowledge and deliver such documents and assurances, reasonably requested by the 
other and shall take any other action consistent with the terms of the Agreement that may be 
reasonably requested by the other for the purpose of effecting or confirming any of the transactions 
contemplated by the Agreement. 

17.8 Survival 

Termination of the Agreement for any reason shall not relieve Developer or Buyer of any 
obligation accrued or accruing prior to such termination, including, but not limited to, the 
obligations set forth in Article XI (Indemnification and Insurance) and Article XIV (Dispute 
Resolution), which shall survive the expiration or termination of the Agreement. 

17.9 Governing Law 

This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties hereunder shall be governed by and shall 
be construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the laws of the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts without regard to principles of conflicts of law. 



 

 

34                          PPA 
 

The Parties agree that to the maximum extent permissible by law, nothing in this Agreement shall 
be interpreted to eliminate or reduce legal protections or defenses available to the Buyer as public 
cooperative or to the Host as municipal entity. 

17.10 Counterparts; Scanned Copy 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and 
all of which shall constitute one and the same instrument.  The Parties agree that a scanned or 
electronically reproduced copy or image of this Agreement bearing the signatures of the Parties 
hereto shall be deemed an original and may be introduced or submitted in any action or proceeding 
as competent evidence of the execution, terms and existence of this Agreement notwithstanding 
the failure or inability to produce or tender an original, executed counterpart of this Agreement 
and without the requirement that the unavailability of such original, executed counterpart of this 
Agreement first be proven. 

17.11 Nondiscrimination 

Developer agrees that it shall not, because of race, color, national origin, ancestry, age, sex, 
religion, physical or mental handicap, or sexual orientation, gender identity, genetic information, 
or status as a veteran, discriminate against any qualified employee, applicant for employment, 
subcontractor, or person or firm seeking to provide goods or services to Developer, or deny any 
person access to the Premises or to any activities or programs carried out upon the Premises.  
Developer shall comply with all applicable federal and state statutes, rules, and regulations 
prohibiting discrimination in employment or public accommodation. 

17.12 No Limitation of Regulatory Authority 

The Parties acknowledge that nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to be an agreement by 
Host or Buyer to issue or cause the issuance of any permit or approval, or to limit or otherwise 
affect the ability of the Host, or the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to fulfill its regulatory 
mandate or execute its regulatory powers consistent with Applicable Legal Requirements. 

17.13 Special Terms and Conditions 

Developer understands and agrees that this Agreement is Buyer’s standard form for energy 
management services and that modifications to the main body of this Agreement are not permitted.  
To the extent there are special terms and conditions that are specific to the installation of the PV 
System on the Premises, such terms and conditions will be set forth in Exhibit D attached hereto 
(the “Special Terms and Conditions”).  To the extent there is a conflict between the Special Terms 
and Conditions and the main body of this Agreement, the Special Terms and Conditions will 
control. 

17.14  Eligibility for Net Metering Credits or Alternative On-bill Credits.  If the PV System 
qualifies as a Net Metered Generation Unit, Developer shall assist Buyer and/or Host if designated 
as Host Customer, in applying for, and performing all activities necessary and support Buyer’s 
efforts to reserve and maintain an assurance of Net Metering under the System of Assurance.  
Developer shall work in good faith with Buyer and Host to prepare the Application for a Cap 
Allocation (as such terms are defined in the System of Assurance) to be signed by the “Host 



 

 

35                          PPA 
 

Customer,” and any amendments thereto.  Developer shall pay application and reservation fees 
required to receive a Cap Allocation.  Alternatively, if the PV System qualifies as an Alternative 
On-bill Generation Unit, Developer shall assist Buyer and/or Host to enroll for receipt of 
Alternative On-bill Credits. 

17.15 Third Party Beneficiary 

The Parties agree that Host shall be third party beneficiary to this Agreement. 

17.16 Service Contract.  This Agreement is a “service contract” within the meaning of Section 
7701(e)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and represents nothing other than a purchase of 
electricity by Buyer from the PV System.  Buyer agrees that Developer will have the right to file 
an information fixture filing and precautionary financing statement with the relevant state and 
authorities. 

 

[Signature page to follow.] 
 



 

 

 PPA 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date. 

BUYER: 
Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

By:  __________________________ By: ___________________________ 
Name:                  Name:  
Title:   Clerk     Title: President 

23H2 White’s Path, Suite 2 
South Yarmouth, MA 02664 
(774) 722-1812 (voice) 
 

DEVELOPER 

Solect Energy Development LLC 

By:  ________________________ 
Name: James Dumas 
Title: Manager 

 

 

 

 

List of Exhibits to Agreement 

Exhibit A:  Description of the Premises 
Exhibit B:   Description of PV System 
Exhibit C:  Net Energy Price Provisions 
Exhibit D:  Special Terms and Conditions Applicable to this Net Energy Power Purchase 

Agreement 



 

 

 PPA 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PREMISES  

Address: 
3195 Main Street, Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630  
 
Legal Description: 
Barnstable County Lab Building, located at the above address, as illustrated in the Sketch Plan entitled 
“Site Plan – SED – Barnstable County Lab – 6177 – 320.45 kW DC – 240 kW AC and dated February 
7, 2020.  The PV System on the attached Sketch Plan is identified by the area where the solar panels and 
Battery Energy Storage System are located, as such Sketch Plan may be amended or revised from time 
to time. 

The Premises shall further include all necessary electrical and other utility sources, together with the 
non-exclusive right of ingress and egress from a public right-of-way, to the Premises for the purpose of 
design, procurement, installation, testing, commissioning, ownership, operation, inspection, 
maintenance, repair and improvements and removal of the PV System.  In the event there are not 
sufficient electric and other necessary utility sources located on the Premises to enable Developer to 
transmit Net Energy generated by the PV System to the Point of Delivery, Host agrees to grant 
Developer or the Distribution Company the right to install such utilities on, over and/or under the 
Premises and the Property, as necessary to operate the PV System, provided, however, the location of 
such utilities shall be as reasonably designated by Host. 
 

 

Site Plan – SED – Barnstable County Lab – 6177 – 320.45 kW DC – 240 kW AC
3195 Main St, Barnstable, MA 02630

Solect Energy Development  LLC.  Confidential

Utility: Eversource
Account #: 2880 967 0020
Meter #: 2537203

Date : 02-07-2020
Developed by : AG

Revision: 01

N

Scale 1” = 50’-0”

Inverter:
(4) Solectria PVI-60TL
Mounted On Canopy 

Structure

Exterior Utility Fused & Lockable 
Disconnect Switch
Located At Grade

Accessible At All Times By Utility
Located On Exterior Wall

PV Array
#754 Hanwha 
395W Panels

Main Electrical 
Room

Utility Meter
Located On Transformer

Revenue Grade 
Production Meter For PV

Located In Combiner 
Panel on Exterior Wall

#45-100
Pad Mounted 
Transformer 

(POCC)

Point of 
Interconnection

Property Line



 

 

 PPA 

EXHIBIT B 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PV SYSTEM 

PV SYSTEM: Module Manufacturer: Hanwha Q-Cells 

 Nameplate Capacity: 320.45 KW DC 

 Approximate Annual Energy Production: 

 350,682 kWh 

 Location: Barnstable County Lab Parking Lot at 
3195 Main street 

 Mounting Systems: M Bar C Company 

Preliminary Specifications: 

 Long span design, galvanized structural steel, no 
water management, below grade piers, standard 3’ 
diameter piers, no lighting, no downspouts, no snow 
guards, minimum height 9’6” 

 Battery Manufacturer:  Tesla Powerpack 2.5 
  

 

 

 

 

PV SYSTEM ASSETS: 

BESS Nameplate Capacity in kilowatts per hour:  

111 kW for 2.0 hours 

Location: Barnstable County Lab Parking Lot at 
3195 Main Street, co located with the solar project 

 

Mounting System: M Bar C Canopy   

 Inverters: Solectria PVI 60TL (Qty-4) 

 Related Equipment:  

 Electric Lines:   

** Final system size will be determined once final field layout and structural analysis has been 
completed. 



 

 

 PPA 

EXHIBIT C1 

NET ENERGY PRICE PROVISIONS 

EXPECTED ANNUAL ENERGY 
OUTPUT 350,682 kWh/year 

GUARANTEED ANNUAL ENERGY 
OUTPUT (Year One) 

280,545 kWh/year2 

 
ANNUAL PV SYSTEM 

DEGRADATION FACTOR 
 
ANNUAL BATTERY ENERGY 

STORAGE SYSTEM 
DEGRADATION FACTOR 

       (if applicable) 
 

.5% per year 

 

2% per year 

 

NET ENERGY PRICE without Battery $.11 per kWh 

NET ENERGY PRICE W. BATTERY 
       (if applicable) 
 

$.1257 per kWh 

ADDED NET ENERGY PRICE FOR 
EACH $10,000 OF UTILITY 
UPGRADE COSTS (IN EXCESS 
OF INITIAL $10,000) 

DISTRIBUTION COMPANY Eversource Electric Company 

PROPOSED BUYER PURCHASE 
PAYMENT FOR THE PV 
SYSTEM3 

$816,749                       Contract Year 10 

$690,867                       Contract Year 12 

$488,068                       Contract Year 15 

 

 

 
1In the event that the final field layout and/or structural analysis performed by Developer results in a substantial and 

material change to the PV System Size identified in Exhibit B, hereto, Developer and Buyer agree to negotiate 
in good faith an amendment to this Exhibit C. 

2The only allowable adjustment to the Guaranteed Annual Output is the Annual System Degradation Factor. 

3In accordance with Article XIII, the Purchase Price shall be the greater of the Fair Market Value and the Buyer 
Purchase Payment for the PV System. 

$.002 per kWh 



 

 

 PPA 

EXHIBIT D 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO THIS AGREEMENT 



BARNSTABLE COUNTY  
In the Year Two Thousand Nineteen 

Proposed Ordinance 20- __ 

To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease agreement for Rooftop Photovoltaic Energy Facility 
between Solect Energy Development LLC and Barnstable County at the Barnstable County Lab Building, located 
at 3195 Main St., Barnstable, MA 02630 

The Cape Cod regional government, known as Barnstable County, hereby ordains; 

Section 1. Source of Authority and General Purposes 

In accordance with Article II, Section 2-8, (d) (vii) of the Barnstable County Home Rule Charter, Barnstable County 
hereby enters into a lease agreement for Rooftop Photovoltaic Energy Facility between Solect Energy Development 
LLC and Barnstable County at the Barnstable County Lab Building, located at 3195 Main St., Barnstable, MA 
02630 

Section 2. Effective Date 

The Ground Lease Ordinance shall take effect upon passage of the ordinance by the Barnstable County Assembly 
of Delegates and execution by the Barnstable County Commissioners, and Solect Energy Development LLC 

Section 3. Ground Lease Table of Contents 

Article I: Definitions 
Article II: Lease of Premises 
Article III: Term 
Article IV: Rent 
Article V: Design, Installation and Operation of PV System 
Article VI: Developer’s Representations, Warranties, and Additional Covenants 
Article VII: Host’s Representations, Warranties, and Additional Covenants 
Article VIII: Termination; Default; Remedies; Purchase Options 
Article IX: Indemnification; Insurance 
Article X: Quiet Enjoyment 
Article XI: Assignment and Mortgage 
Article XII: Dispute Resolution 
Article XIII: Miscellaneous 
Memorandum of Lease Pursuant to M.G.L. c. 183, §4 

Approved by the Board of County Commissioners on _______________________ at ________. 
Date                            Time 

  Ronald Bergstrom, Chair 

April 15, 2020 10:00 AM



 

 
 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 
 

 
BANRSTABLE, SS. 
 

     

  

   

 

 

 

 
 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair: 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair: Y 

Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner: 

Y 

A true copy, Attest, April 15, 2019 

Barnstable County Regional Clerk 

Y 

At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners on the fifteenth 

day of April, A.D. 2020, held through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts Governor 

Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on March 12, 

2020, motion by Commissioner Beaty to authorize the introduction of Proposed Ordinance 20-__, 

To authorize the County of Barnstable to execute a lease agreement for Rooftop Photovoltaic 

Energy Facility between Solect Energy Development LLC and Barnstable County at the 

Barnstable County Lab Building, located at 3195 Main St., Barnstable, MA 02630 as presented, 

at the next meeting of the County Assembly of Delegates, pursuant to Section 2 – 8(e) of the 

Barnstable County Home Rule Charter, 2nd by Commissioner Flynn, approved 3-0-0   

 

 



 

 
 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 
 

 
BANRSTABLE, SS. 
 

     

  

   

 

 

 

 
 

Ronald Bergstrom, Chair: 

Mary Pat Flynn, Vice-Chair: Y 

Ronald R. Beaty, Commissioner: 

Y 

A true copy, Attest, April 8, 2019 

Barnstable County Regional Clerk 

Y 

At a regular meeting of the Barnstable County Board of Regional Commissioners on the eighth 

day of April, A.D. 2020, held through remote participation pursuant to Massachusetts Governor 

Charles D. Baker’s Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open Meeting Law on March 12, 

2020, motion by Commissioner Flynn to authorize the Chair to execute agreements regarding the 

Cape and Vineyard Electric Cooperative (CVEC) Round 5 Photovoltaic/Storage Initiatives in 

Barnstable County after approval by the County Board of Regional Commissioners, as presented, 

2nd by Commissioner Beaty, approved 3-0-0   

 



 

Barnstable County Lab Building Canopy 

{A0632740.1 }

LEASE AGREEMENT  

FOR  

CANOPY SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC ENERGY FACILITY 

BETWEEN 

SOLECT ENERGY DEVELOPMENT LLC 

AND 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } i 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
ARTICLE I: DEFINITIONS .......................................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE II: LEASE OF PREMISES ........................................................................................... 7 

2.1  Leased Premises ...................................................................................................... 7 
2.2  As-Is Condition of the Premises ............................................................................. 9 
2.3  Ownership of the PV System .................................................................................. 9 
2.4  Net Lease ................................................................................................................ 9 
2.5  Purpose .................................................................................................................... 9 
2.6  Subordination .......................................................................................................... 9 
2.7  No Interference ..................................................................................................... 10 
2.8  Use of the Premises ............................................................................................... 10 
2.9  Notice of Lease ..................................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE III: TERM ................................................................................................................... 11 

3.1  Term ...................................................................................................................... 11 
3.2  Holdover ............................................................................................................... 11 

ARTICLE IV: RENT .................................................................................................................... 11 

4.1  Rent ....................................................................................................................... 11 
4.2  Taxes ..................................................................................................................... 11 
4.3  Monthly Minimum Reliability Contribution ........................................................ 11 

ARTICLE V: DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND OPERATION OF PV SYSTEM .................... 12 

5.1  General Description .............................................................................................. 12 
5.2  Conditions Precedent to Commencement of Construction ................................... 12 
5.3  Governmental Permits .......................................................................................... 13 
5.4  Design and Installation ......................................................................................... 13 
5.5  Interconnection with Electric Distribution Grid ................................................... 14 
5.6  Access to and Use of the Premises ....................................................................... 14 
5.7  Plans and Specifications ....................................................................................... 14 
5.8  Maintenance Responsibilities ............................................................................... 14 
5.9  Manufacturer and Installer Warranties ................................................................. 14 
5.10  Use of Installation and/or Maintenance Subcontractors ....................................... 15 
5.11  Alterations ............................................................................................................. 15 
5.12  Host Cooperation .................................................................................................. 15 
5.13  Emergencies .......................................................................................................... 15 
5.14  Damage ................................................................................................................. 16 
5.15  Payment and Performance Bonds ......................................................................... 16 
5.16  Mechanics Liens ................................................................................................... 16 
5.17  Utilities .................................................................................................................. 17 
5.18  Operations and Maintenance Manual; Training ................................................... 17 
5.19  Notice of Commercial Operation .......................................................................... 17 
5.20  Late Completion.................................................................................................... 17 
5.21  Maintenance; Repairs ............................................................................................ 17 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } ii 

 

5.22  Host’s Maintenance .............................................................................................. 18 

 5.23 Project Relocation………………………………………………………………..19 

5.24  No Voiding of Existing Warranties ...................................................................... 19 
5.25  Use of Hazardous Materials Prohibited ................................................................ 20 

ARTICLE VI: DEVELOPER’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND ADDITIONAL 
COVENANTS .............................................................................................................................. 20 

6.1  Developer’s Representations and Warranties ....................................................... 20 
6.2  Developer’s Covenants ......................................................................................... 20 

ARTICLE VII: HOST’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND ADDITIONAL 
COVENANTS .............................................................................................................................. 21 

7.1  Host’s Representations and Warranties ................................................................ 21 
7.2  Host’s Covenants .................................................................................................. 21 

ARTICLE VIII:  TERMINATION; DEFAULT; REMEDIES; PURCHASE OPTIONS ........... 22 

8.1  Termination ........................................................................................................... 22 
8.2  Events of Default by Host ..................................................................................... 22 
8.3  Events of Default by Developer ............................................................................ 23 
8.4  Force Majeure ....................................................................................................... 23 
8.5  Remedies ............................................................................................................... 24 
8.6  Step-in Rights of Financier ................................................................................... 25 
8.7  Damage or Destruction of PV System .................................................................. 25 
8.8  Site Restoration ..................................................................................................... 26 
8.9  Abandonment of PV System ................................................................................. 26 
8.10  Decommissioning Assurance ................................................................................ 26 
8.11  Purchase Option .................................................................................................... 27 
(l)  Acknowledgement of CVEC’s Purchase Option .................................................. 29 

ARTICLE IX: INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE ................................................................. 29 

9.1  Developer Indemnification of Host ...................................................................... 29 

 9.2 Host Indemnification…………………………………………………………….29 

 9.3 Insurance…………………………………………………………………………29 

 9.4 Survival…………………………………………………………………………..30 

ARTICLE X: QUIET ENJOYMENT ........................................................................................... 30 

10.1  Quiet Enjoyment ................................................................................................... 30 
10.2  Host’s Reserved Uses ........................................................................................... 31 

ARTICLE XI: ASSIGNMENT AND MORTGAGE ................................................................... 31 

11.1  Assignment ........................................................................................................... 31 
11.2  Financing by Leasehold Mortgage........................................................................ 31 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } iii 

 

11.3  Financing by Leasehold Mortgage Release of Developer .................................... 32 
11.4  Financier Provisions.............................................................................................. 32 

ARTICLE XII: DISPUTE RESOLUTION .................................................................................. 33 

12.1  Dispute Resolution ................................................................................................ 33 
12.2  Stay of Termination .............................................................................................. 33 

 12.3 Survival…………………………………………………………………………..34 

ARTICLE XIII: MISCELLANEOUS .......................................................................................... 34 

13.1  Construction; Obligation to Modify Agreement ................................................... 34 
13.2  Notices .................................................................................................................. 34 
13.3  Entire Agreement; Amendments; Binding Effect ................................................. 35 
13.4  Expenses ............................................................................................................... 35 
13.5  No Joint Venture ................................................................................................... 36 
13.6  Joint Work Product ............................................................................................... 36 
13.7  Waiver ................................................................................................................... 36 
13.8  Governing Law ..................................................................................................... 36 
13.9  Nondiscrimination................................................................................................. 36 
13.10  Severability ........................................................................................................... 36 
13.11  Further Assurances................................................................................................ 36 
13.12  Survival ................................................................................................................. 37 
13.13  Counterparts; Scanned Copy ................................................................................. 37 
13.14  CVEC as Third Party Beneficiary ......................................................................... 37 
13.15  Special Terms and Conditions .............................................................................. 37 
13.16  No Limitation of Regulatory Authority ................................................................ 37 

 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 1 

 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT FOR  
CANOPY SOLAR PHOTOVOLTAIC ENERGY FACILITY BETWEEN 

SOLECT ENERGY DEVELOPMENT LLC 
AND 

BARNSTABLE COUNTY 

 

 This Lease Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into this __day of ___________, 
2020 (the “Effective Date”) and is by and between Solect Energy Development LLC, a 
Massachusetts limited liability company with a business address at 89 Hayden Rowe Street, 
Hopkinton, MA,  01748, (“Developer”), and Barnstable County, a Massachusetts municipal 
entity with an address of 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02630(“Host”). 

RECITALS 

(a) Host wishes to lease an area of ground space described in Exhibit A (the 
“Premises”), which is a part of the Property located at 3195 Main Street, Barnstable, MA 02653 
and owned by Host to the Developer to allow it to design, procure, install, test, commission, 
own, operate and maintain a solar photovoltaic system which may or may not include a battery 
energy storage system (“PV System”), as defined in Article I (Definitions), on the Premises for 
beneficial public purposes; 

 
(b) Developer wishes to lease the Premises in order to design, procure, install, test, 

commission, own, operate and maintain the PV System on the Premises for beneficial public 
purposes, subject to the terms and restrictions set forth in this Agreement; 

 
(c) Developer has also entered into a Power Purchase Agreement (“PPA”) with the 

Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc., a Massachusetts cooperative corporation with an 
address at 23H2 White’s Path, Suite 2, South Yarmouth, MA 02664 (“CVEC”) pursuant to 
which Developer will sell the Net Energy generated by the PV System to CVEC; and 

(d) CVEC has entered an Intergovernmental Power Sales Agreement (Inter-
Governmental PSA) with the Host to sell to the Host an allocated share of the Net Energy 
purchased by CVEC from the Developer under the PPA. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for consideration paid, the receipt and sufficiency of which are 
hereby acknowledged, the Parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows. 

ARTICLE I:  DEFINITIONS 

When used in this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings given, unless 
a different meaning is expressed or clearly indicated by the context.  Words defined in this 
Article I which are capitalized shall be given their common and ordinary meanings when they 
appear without capitalization in the text.  Words not defined herein shall be given their common 
and ordinary meanings. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 2 

 

 

“Additional Exceptions” has the meaning set forth in Exhibit A-1 hereto. 

“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, such Person’s general partner or manager, 
or any other Person that, directly or indirectly, through one or more intermediaries, controls, or is 
controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person. 

“Alternative On-bill Credit” means the energy value of generation from an Alternative 
On-bill Generation Unit, as calculated in accordance with 225 CMR 20.08(1)(a)2. 

“Alternative On-bill Generation Unit” has the meaning as set forth in in 225 CMR 20.02. 

“Applicable Legal Requirements” means any present and future law, act, rule, 
requirement, order, bylaw, ordinance, regulation, judgment, decree, or injunction of or by any 
Governmental Authority, and all licenses, permits, tariffs, and other governmental consents, 
which may at any time be applicable to a Party’s rights and obligations hereunder, including, 
without limitation, the design, procurement, construction, installation, operation, ownership, 
maintenance, repair, decommissioning and removal of the PV System on the Premises, as well as 
the selling and purchasing of power therefrom. 

“Bankrupt” means that a Party or other entity (as applicable):  (i) is dissolved (other than 
pursuant to a consolidation, amalgamation or merger); (ii) becomes insolvent or is unable to pay 
its debts or fails (or admits in writing its inability) generally to pay its debts as they become due; 
(iii) makes a general assignment, arrangement or composition with or for the benefit of its 
creditors; (iv) has instituted against it a proceeding seeking a judgment of insolvency or 
bankruptcy or any other relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or other similar law 
affecting creditor’s rights, or a petition is presented for its winding-up, reorganization or 
liquidation, which proceeding or petition is not dismissed, stayed or vacated within twenty (20) 
Business Days thereafter; (v) commences a voluntary proceeding seeking a judgment of 
insolvency or bankruptcy or any other relief under any bankruptcy or insolvency law or other 
similar law affecting creditors’ rights; (vi) seeks or consents to the appointment of an 
administrator, provisional liquidator, conservator, receiver, trustee, custodian or other similar 
official for it or for all or substantially all of its assets; (vii) has a secured party take possession 
of all or substantially all of its assets, or has a distress, execution, attachment, sequestration or 
other legal process levied, enforced or sued on or against all or substantially all of its assets; 
(viii) causes or is subject to any event with respect to it which, under the applicable laws of any 
jurisdiction, has an analogous effect to any of the events specified in clauses (i) to (vii) inclusive; 
or (ix) takes any action in furtherance of, or indicating its consent to, approval of, or 
acquiescence in, any of the foregoing acts. 

“Business Day” means a day on which Federal Reserve member banks in Boston are 
open for business; and a Business Day shall open at 8:00 a.m. and close at 5:00 p.m.  Eastern 
Prevailing Time. 

“Commercial Operation” means that the PV System is ready for regular, daily 
operation, has undergone testing and met Commissioning Requirements as set forth in the 
Common Technical Specifications, Exhibit E, has been accepted by Developer and Host (and to 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 3 

 

 

the extent required, the Distribution Company), is in compliance with Applicable Legal 
Requirements in all respects, including all final inspections, is capable of producing Energy and 
delivering it to the Point of Delivery, and all Training and Documentation Requirements, as 
required in Common Technical Specifications, Exhibit E, are complete and provided to Host. 

“Commercial Operation Date” means the date that the Developer certifies in a written 
notice to the Host that Commercial Operation has been achieved in accordance with 
Section 5.19, subject to the approval of the Host and CVEC, such approval not to be 
unreasonably withheld. 

“Commercially Reasonable” means any of the practices, methods and acts which, in the 
exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known, or which in the exercise of due 
diligence, should have been known, at the time the decision was made, would have been 
expected in the industry to accomplish the desired result consistent with reliability, safety, 
expedition, project economics and regulations. 

“Construction Commencement Date” means the date that the Developer (a) has 
secured all required permits and approvals from Governmental Authorities and the Distribution 
Company under Applicable Legal Requirements for the construction of the PV System and (b) 
has mobilized to commence work at the Premises, as certified in writing to the Host and CVEC.   

“Contract Year” means the consecutive 12-month period commencing on the 
Commercial Operation Date. 

“Distribution Company” means Eversource Electric Company or any successor thereto. 

“Distribution Company System” means the electric distribution system operated and 
maintained by the Distribution Company. 

“Effective Date” means the date set forth in the introductory paragraph of this 
Agreement. 

“Energy” means the amount of electricity either used or generated over a period of time; 
expressed in terms of kilowatt hour (“kWh”) or megawatt hour (“MWh”).  Energy shall not 
include renewable energy credits, or any investment or production tax credits under Section 45 
of the Internal Revenue Code or otherwise, to the extent that the PV System receives or is 
entitled to receive any such credits. 

“Environmental Claim” means causes of action, claims, fines, penalties, damages, 
demands, administrative or judicial proceedings, notices of noncompliance or violation, consent 
orders or consent agreements arising from activities conducted on or in connection with the 
Work which arise, or are alleged to have arisen, out of any (a) violation of any applicable 
Environmental Law, (b) action by a Governmental Authority for enforcement, cleanup, removal, 
response or remedial action or damages, pursuant to any Environmental Law, or (c) 
compensation, or injunctive relief resulting from injuries to persons or property due to (i) an 
alleged violation of any Environmental Law or (ii) any release of Hazardous Material. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 4 

 

 

“Environmental Law” means any and all existing and future Applicable Legal 
Requirements relating to human health, human safety or the environment. 

“Event of Default” means any event of default as defined in Sections 8.2 and 8.3 of this 
Agreement. 

“Event of Termination” means any event of termination as defined in Section 8.1 of this 
Agreement. 

“Financier” means any individual or entity providing money or extending credit for the 
PV System to Developer or its Affiliates for: (1) the construction, term or permanent financing of 
the PV System; or (2) working capital or other ordinary business requirements for the PV 
System.  “Financier” shall not include common trade creditors of Developer. 

“Force Majeure” means any cause not within the reasonable control of the affected 
Party which precludes that Party from carrying out, in whole or in part, its obligations under this 
Agreement, including, but not limited to, Acts of God; extreme winds; hurricanes; tornadoes; 
fires; epidemics; landslides; earthquakes; floods; other natural catastrophes; strikes; lock-outs or 
other industrial disturbances; acts of public enemies; acts, failures to act or orders of any kind of 
any Governmental Authority acting in its regulatory or judicial capacity; insurrections; military 
action; war, whether or not it is declared; sabotage; riots; civil disturbances or explosions; 
curtailments ordered by the Distribution Company, the independent electric system operator, or 
any Governmental Authority.  Nothing in this provision is intended to excuse either Party from 
performing due to any governmental act, failure to act, or order, where it was reasonably within 
such Party’s power to prevent such act, failure to act, or order.  Notwithstanding anything in this 
Agreement to the contrary, Force Majeure shall not mean: 

A. Inclement weather affecting construction, start-up, operation, or 
decommissioning of the PV System, except to the extent weather conditions are extreme, 
unusual or create unsafe working conditions as reasonably determined by Developer. 

B. Unavailability of sun. 

C. Unavailability of equipment, repairs or spare parts for the PV System, 
except to the extent due to a qualifying event of Force Majeure. 

D. Inability to obtain, maintain or renew any Permit or any delay in 
obtaining, maintaining, or renewing any Permit, except that Developer shall be able to assert 
Host’s governmental actions on Permits for the PV System as an event of Force Majeure. 

E. Any nonpayment under this Agreement or any third party agreement. 

F. Economic hardship of either Party. 

“Good Engineering Practice” means any of the practices, methods and acts which, in 
the exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known, or which in the exercise of due 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 5 

 

 

diligence, should have been known, at the time the decision was made, would have been 
expected to accomplish the desired result consistent with reliability, safety, expedition, project 
economics and Applicable Legal Requirements for similar facilities in the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts.  Good Engineering Practice is not intended to be limited to consideration of any 
one practice, method or act, to the exclusion of all others, but rather, is intended to require the 
consideration of a spectrum of possible practices, methods or acts. 

“Governmental Authority” means the United States of America, the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts, and any political or municipal subdivision thereof, and any agency, department, 
commission, board, bureau, independent electric system operator, or instrumentality of any of 
them, or any court or tribunal, including Host in its regulatory capacity but excluding Host as 
Lessor under this Agreement. 

“Interest Rate” means a fluctuating interest rate per annum equal to the sum of (1) the 
Prime Rate as stated in the “Bonds, Rates & Yields” section of The Wall Street Journal on the 
Effective Date and thereafter on the first day of every calendar month, plus (2) two percentage 
points.  (In the event that such rate is no longer published in The Wall Street Journal or such 
publication is no longer published, the Interest Rate shall be set using a comparable index or 
interest rate selected by Host Town and reasonably acceptable to Developer.)  The Interest Rate 
hereunder shall change on the first day of every calendar month.  Interest shall be calculated 
daily on the basis of a year of 365 days and the actual number of days for which such interest is 
due. 

“Inter-Governmental PSA” has the meaning set forth in the recitals, a form of which is 
attached hereto as Exhibit G. 

“Leasehold Mortgage” has the meaning set forth in Section 11.4. 

“Metering Device(s)” means any and all revenue quality meters installed by Developer 
or the Distribution Company at, before, or after the Point of Delivery necessary or appropriate 
for the delivery of Energy into the Distribution Company System, the calculation of Net 
Metering Credits, and the registration, recording, and transmission of information regarding the 
amount of Net Energy generated by the PV System and delivered to the Point of Delivery for 
sale to CVEC and/or Host. 

“Monthly Minimum Reliability Contribution” has the meaning set forth in G. L. 
c.  164, §139(j) and 220 CMR 18.10, as approved by the Department of Public Utilities in the 
Distribution Company’s tariff. 

“Net Energy” means the actual and verifiable amount of Energy generated by the PV 
System and delivered to CVEC at the Point of Delivery pursuant to the PPA in excess of any 
Energy consumed by the PV System as metered in kWh at the Metering Device(s), and in 
conformance with Applicable Legal Requirements and the Tariffs. 

“Net Metered Generation Unit” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR 20.02. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 6 

 

 

“Net Metering” means the process of measuring the difference between electricity 
delivered by a local electric distribution company and electricity generated by a Net Metering 
facility and fed back to the local electric distribution company, as set forth under M.G.L. c. 164, 
§§ 138 – 140 and 220 CMR 18.00, as may be amended from time to time by a Governmental 
Authority, and pursuant to the Distribution Company’s Tariffs. 

“Net Metering Credits” has the meaning set forth in 220 CMR 18.00, as may be 
amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority, as implemented by the Tariffs. 

“Outside Construction Commencement Date” means the later of ninety (90) days after 
the Effective Date or ninety (90) days after the PV System has received a “Statement of 
Qualification” pursuant to and as defined in the SMART Program or ninety (90) days after PV 
System has received all permits or approvals from the distribution company or approval board or 
any governmental authority. 

“Outside Commercial Operation Date” means one hundred and eighty (180) days after 
the Outside Construction Commencement Date. 

 “Parties” means Host and Developer collectively, and their respective successors and 
permitted assignees. 

“Party” means Host or Developer individually, and their respective successors and 
permitted assignees. 

“Permits” means all state, federal, county, and local authorizations, certificates, permits, 
licenses and approvals required by any Governmental Authority for the construction, operation 
and maintenance of the PV System. 

“Permitted Use” means the use, occupation, and enjoyment of the Premises by 
Developer to design, procure, install, test, commission, own, operate, maintain, expand and 
remove the PV System, all of which are designed and intended for the purpose of producing 
solar-generated electricity in accordance with Applicable Legal Requirements. 

“Person” means an individual, partnership, corporation (including a business trust), 
limited liability company, joint stock company, trusts, unincorporated association, joint venture, 
Governmental Authority, or other entity. 

“Point of Delivery” means the agreed location or locations on the Premises where Net 
Energy is to be delivered and received, as further set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto. 

“PPA” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals, a form of which is set forth in Exhibit F, 
hereto. 

“Premises” means the portion of the Property on which the PV System will be installed 
and operated, which is more specifically identified in Exhibit A to this Agreement. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 7 

 

 

“Property” means the real property owned by the Host upon which the Premises is 
located. 

“PV System” means the solar electric generating facility, including, but not limited to, 
the PV System Assets, which produces the Net Energy sold and purchased under the PPA as 
further identified in Exhibit B attached hereto.  The PV System may (or may not) include a 
Battery Energy Storage System, as specified in Exhibit B. 

“PV System Assets” means each and all of the assets of which the PV System is 
comprised, including the solar energy panels, mounting systems, carports, tracking devices, 
inverters, integrators, Battery Energy Storage Systems, if any,  and other related equipment and 
components installed on the Premises, electric lines and conduits required to connect such 
equipment to the Point of Delivery, protective and associated equipment, improvements, 
Metering Device(s), and other tangible and intangible assets, permits, property rights and 
contract rights reasonably necessary for the construction, operation, and maintenance of the PV 
System. 

“SMART Program” means the Solar Massachusetts Renewable Target (SMART) 
Program as established in 225 CMR 20. 

“SMART Tariff” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR  20.02, as may be amended from 
time to time by a Governmental Authority. 

“Solar Net Metering Facility” has the meaning set forth in 220 CMR 18.00, as may be 
amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority. 

“Solar Tariff Generation Unit” has the meaning set forth in 225 CMR 20.02, as may be 
amended from time to time by a Governmental Authority. 

“Term” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1. 

“Termination Date” means the earlier to occur of: (1) the last day of the Term; or (2) 
the date of termination. 

ARTICLE II:  LEASE OF PREMISES 

2.1 Leased Premises.   

(a) Host, in consideration of the covenants and agreements on the part of the 
Developer, hereby leases to Developer, and Developer accepts and takes from Host, the 
possession, use, enjoyment, and control of the Premises (as described in Exhibits A and A-1) for 
the sole and exclusive purpose of conducting the Permitted Use, as set forth below, subject to the 
conditions in this Agreement and the Host’s reserved uses as set forth in Article X (Quiet 
Enjoyment). 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 8 

 

 

(b) As shown in Exhibit A, Host also grants to Developer a non-exclusive 
easement for reasonable pedestrian and vehicular access to and egress from the Premises plus the 
right and sufficient space for the installation, operation and maintenance, and access to, of 
electric lines, cables, conduits and related equipment necessary to operate the PV System and 
interconnect the PV System to the building owned by Host and located on the Premises, which is 
interconnected with the local electric distribution system operated by the Distribution Company 
such that the PV System qualifies as a Solar Net Metering Facility.  In the event that the PV 
System is required to be connected directly to the distribution system operated by the 
Distribution Company, Host hereby grants to Developer a non-exclusive easement on, under, and 
across the Property to install, construct, operate, and maintain electric lines, cables, poles, 
conduits and related equipment necessary to interconnect the PV System to the local electric 
distribution system operated by the Distribution Company such that the PV System qualifies as a 
Solar Net Metering Facility or otherwise meet the requirements of the SMART Program. 

(c) Host also grants Developer the exclusive right to receive sunlight at the 
Premises during every hour of each day that sunlight reasonably could be received by the PV 
System, and Host shall not create or install vegetation or structures that will obstruct the passage 
of sunlight to the Premises occupied by the PV System. 

(d) To the extent requested by Developer and reasonably necessary, and 
subject to Applicable Legal Requirements and available space, as determined in Host’s sole 
discretion, Host shall provide necessary space on the Property at locations and for such time as 
specified by Host (such locations, the “Construction Laydown Area”) for temporary (i) storage 
and staging of tools, materials and equipment, (ii) construction laydown, (iii) parking of 
construction crew vehicles, (iv) vehicular and pedestrian access and access for rigging and 
material handling, and other temporary facilities reasonably necessary to construct, erect, install 
and remove the System.  The foregoing notwithstanding, Developer shall not obstruct access to 
the Property, or interfere with or disrupt Host’s use thereof or operations therein.  Following 
temporary use thereof, the Developer shall immediately restore the Construction Laydown Area 
and such other areas of the Property used by the Developer, but not included in the Premises, to 
their condition prior to Developer’s use. 

(e) The Premises are demised subject to the following: 

(i) any encumbrances shown on the survey of the Premises; 

(ii) covenants, restrictions, easements, agreements, and reservations, as 
set forth in Exhibit A-1; 

(iii) present and future zoning laws, ordinances, bylaws, resolutions, 
and regulations of the municipality in which the land lies, and all present and future 
ordinances, laws, regulations, and orders of all boards, bureaus, commissions, and bodies 
of any municipal, county, state, or federal authority, now or hereafter having jurisdiction, 
so long as they permit or otherwise regulate the use of the Premises for the Permitted 
Use; 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 9 

 

 

(iv) the condition and state of repair of the Premises as the same may 
be on the Effective Date; 

(v) all electric and telecommunication cable or wireless services 
charges, accrued or unaccrued, fixed or not fixed, from and after the Effective Date 
arising as a result of the construction and operation of the PV System or any appurtenant 
facilities or improvements associated with the Permitted Use; 

(f) full compliance by the Developer with all Applicable Legal Requirements; 
and 

(g) Host’s reserved uses, as provided in Article X (Quiet Enjoyment) and set 
forth in the Additional Exceptions, attached hereto as Exhibit A-1, or Special Terms and 
Conditions, attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

2.2 As-Is Condition of the Premises.  Developer accepts the Premises in the 
condition or state in which the Premises now are, and except as expressly provided herein, 
without any representation or warranty, express or implied in fact or by law, by Host and without 
recourse to Host, as to the title thereto, the nature, condition or usability thereof or the use or 
uses to which the Premises or any part thereof may be put, subject to Developer’s right to 
terminate this Agreement for failure of conditions precedent to construction set forth in 
Section 5.2. 

2.3 Ownership of the PV System.  Host shall have no ownership interest in the PV 
System or any of the products or services attributable to the PV System, except for any 
ownership interest Host may have by exercising its purchase option in accordance with 
Section 8.11 or by virtue of being a CVEC Member in the event that CVEC exercises its 
purchase option under the PPA unless and until Host exercises the purchase option in accordance 
with Section 8.11 and purchases the PV System. 

2.4 Net Lease.  Except as expressly set forth herein, the Parties acknowledge and 
agree that Host shall not be required prior to or during the Term to make any expenditure, incur 
any obligation, or incur any liability of any kind whatsoever in connection with this Agreement 
or the ownership, installation, operation, maintenance, repair reconstruction or removal of the PV 
System, subject to the Additional Exceptions set forth in Exhibit A-1. 

2.5 Purpose.  The Premises shall be used for the sole and exclusive purpose of 
conducting the Permitted Use.  Except with the prior express written consent of Host Town, 
Developer shall not use the Premises for any use other than the Permitted Use. 

2.6 Subordination.  Developer acknowledges and understands that this Agreement 
and all rights of Developer are subject and subordinate to all existing leases, easements, rights of 
way, declarations, restrictions, permits, or other matters of record.  Developer acknowledges and 
understands that the Host reserves the right to grant additional leases, easements, or rights of 
way, whether recorded or unrecorded, as may be necessary, which do not interfere with 
Developer’s use of the Premises or the exercise of Developer’s other rights hereunder and the 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 10 

 

 

operation of the PV System, and provided that each third party to which such grant is made 
acknowledges in writing Developer’s rights under this Agreement.  Host shall provide Developer 
with reasonable notice in the event that Host grants such additional rights on the Premises to a 
third party.  Notwithstanding any term to the contrary contained herein, Host shall provide 
Developer with a commercially reasonable Subordination, Non-Disturbance and Attornment 
Agreement for any and all existing and future mortgagees and tenants of the Property. 

2.7 No Interference.  Developer shall operate, maintain and repair the PV System in 
a manner that will not obstruct or interfere with other uses of the Property, as identified in 
Exhibit A-1 to this Lease.  In the event interference occurs, Developer agrees to take all 
Commercially Reasonable steps necessary to eliminate such interference promptly, but no later 
than thirty (30) days from notification by the Host.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the PV 
System is a ground-mounted system, Developer may implement reasonable security measures to 
control and monitor access to the Premises, which may include posting warning signs, lighting, 
cameras, installing fencing, and securing access points.   

Host may make alterations to the Premises that do not substantially impair the installation 
and operation of the PV System.  The Developer acknowledges and agrees that Host may have 
continued operation or maintenance responsibilities at the Premises to be conducted at the sole 
expense of the Host, and Developer will use Commercially Reasonable efforts to cooperate with 
Host’s prosecution and completion of such work. 

2.8 Use of the Premises.  Developer and its subcontractors, agents, consultants, and 
representatives shall have reasonable access at all reasonable times, subject to any Special 
Conditions in Exhibit D (including under emergency conditions) to the necessary portion of the 
Property for the purpose of construction, interconnection, operation, inspection, maintenance, 
repair and removal of the PV System, and to any documents, materials and records of Host 
relating to the Premises that Developer reasonably requests in conjunction with these activities.  
Developer shall provide Host with reasonable notice of all activities conducted by or on behalf of 
Developer on the Premises relating to the PV System.  During any such activities, Developer, 
and its subcontractors, agents, consultants and representatives shall comply with Host’s 
reasonable safety and security procedures (as may be promulgated from time to time) and 
Developer and its subcontractors, agents, consultants and representatives shall conduct such 
activities in such a manner and such a time and day as to cause minimum interference with 
Host’s activities.   

2.9 Notice of Lease.  Developer shall use Commercially Reasonable efforts to cause 
a Notice of Lease to be properly recorded, and Host shall provide Commercially Reasonable 
assistance as necessary for Developer to do so, with the applicable land registry that in each case 
includes all information as may be required pursuant to M.G.L. c. 183, §4 with respect to the real 
property rights described in the Lease, as applicable.  Developer shall be responsible for all 
reasonable documented costs of recording the Notice of Lease in a form attached hereto as 
Exhibit H. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 11 

 

 

ARTICLE III:  TERM 

3.1 Term.  The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) commences on the Effective 
Date of this Agreement and ends at the earlier of 11:59 PM on the day preceding the twentieth 
(20th) anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date (the “Termination Date”) or such date as 
of which this Agreement may be earlier terminated pursuant to the provisions of this Agreement.  
The Term may be extended upon mutual agreement of the Parties and in conformance with all 
Applicable Legal Requirements, for one five (5) year period, with such modifications to the 
provisions hereto as may be appropriate to such extension and which are mutually agreed upon 
in writing.  A Party seeking to extend the Term of this Agreement shall send written notice of 
such intent to the other Party no later than two (2) months prior to the Termination Date. 

3.2 Holdover.  If Developer or any party claiming by, through or under Developer, 
retains possession of the Premises or any part thereof for longer than one hundred twenty (120) 
days after the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, then Host may, at its option, serve 
written notice upon Developer that such holding over constitutes (i) a month-to-month tenancy, 
upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Lease, or (ii) the creation of a tenancy-at-
sufferance, and in either event such possession shall be upon the terms and conditions set forth in 
this Lease.  Developer shall also pay to Landlord all damages sustained by Host resulting from 
retention of such possession by Developer including but not limited to court costs and attorney’s 
fees.  Developer hereby agrees that the provisions of this Section shall not constitute a waiver by 
Host of any right of re-entry as set forth in this Lease or otherwise; and that the receipt of any 
Rent or any other act in apparent affirmance of the tenancy shall not operate as a waiver of 
Host’s right to terminate this Lease for Developer’s breach of the Lease.  For greater clarity, the 
120-day period mentioned in this section is the period afforded to Developer for removal of the 
System pursuant to Section 8.9 of this Agreement. 

ARTICLE IV: RENT 

4.1 Rent.  Commencing on the Commercial Operation Date until the end of the Term, 
Developer shall pay to Host an annual rental payment in the amount of $1.00 on or before the 
fifteenth (15th) day of each January during the Term.  The amount of the annual rent payment 
shall be pro-rated for the first and last calendar years of Commercial Operation.  If Developer 
shall fail to pay Host any sum required to be paid by Developer to Host within ten (10) Business 
Days after such payment is due, interest on the unpaid amount shall accrue at the Interest Rate 
from and including the date such payment is due but excluding the date the payment is received. 

4.2 Taxes.  Developer shall be responsible for and pay all ad valorem real and 
personal property taxes, if any, assessed by the local Governmental Authority, with respect to the 
leasehold or the PV System, as may be further set forth in Exhibit D (Special Terms and 
Conditions). 

4.3 Monthly Minimum Reliability Contribution.  Host shall be responsible to pay 
any Monthly Minimum Reliability Contribution charged or assessed to Host by the Distribution 
Company. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 12 

 

 

ARTICLE V:  DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND OPERATION OF PV SYSTEM 

5.1 General Description.  Except as otherwise specified herein, the PV System shall 
consist of the equipment and property described in Exhibit B. 

5.2 Conditions Precedent to Commencement of Construction.  Developer’s 
obligations under this Agreement are subject to the fulfillment or waiver by the applicable Party 
of each of the following conditions precedent: 

(a) Developer shall have obtained financing on terms acceptable to Developer 
in its sole discretion.  For the purposes of this subparagraph, financing may include debt 
financing, equity financing, tax equity financing, loan and credit agreements, notes, bonds, 
indentures, security agreements, lease financing agreements, mortgages, interest rate exchanges, 
or swap agreements, and any other documents relating to the development, bridge construction 
or the permanent financing for the construction and operation of the PV System; 

(b) Developer shall have obtained all permits, licenses and other approvals 
required by Applicable Legal Requirements and from the Distribution Company for construction, 
and installation of the PV System, and agree to follow the requirements of Section 5.3, below 
(Governmental Permits); 

(c) Developer shall have determined that no features of the Premises will 
substantially impair the installation and operation of the PV System, and that the Premises has 
sufficient space to accommodate the installation, operation and maintenance of the PV System 
along with the operation and maintenance of existing facilities;  

(d) Developer shall have determined that it is feasible to make related 
improvements as necessary on the Premises to install, operate, and interconnect the PV System 
to existing infrastructure, it being acknowledged by both Parties that neither Party shall be under 
any obligation to pay for any required upgrades, but that this condition may be satisfied if either 
Party agrees to implement any necessary upgrades at its own cost, or if the Parties agree to share 
the costs of such upgrades; 

(e) Distribution Company shall not require any material changes in plans 
and/or specifications to the PV System or its interconnection that require additional costs or fees, 
in excess of $10,000 in the aggregate, or such greater amount as Developer and CVEC may 
agree (including agreement as to allocation of costs) pursuant to Section 3.4(B)(vi) of the PPA; 

(f) The Interconnection Agreement, in form and substance satisfactory to 
Developer and CVEC, in each of its reasonable discretion, is  finalized and executed within one-
hundred eighty (180) days of Developer’s submission of the interconnection application as such 
deadline may be extended pursuant to Section 3.4(B)(vii) of the PPA; 

(g) Host and Developer have determined that the PPA shall be in full effect 
and not have been terminated on account of failure of conditions precedent included therein. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 13 

 

 

(h) Developer shall have determined to its satisfaction that the PV System is 
eligible to receive the investment tax credit of thirty percent (30%) of eligible costs pursuant to 
Section 48 of the Internal Revenue Code 

(i) Developer shall have received a Statement of Qualification (as defined in 
225 CMR 20.02) under the SMART Program; 

(j) Host and Developer have determined that the Inter-Governmental PSA 
shall be in full effect and not have been terminated on account of failure of conditions precedent 
included therein; 

(k) Host, in its regulatory capacity as a Governmental Authority, and 
Developer shall have reached agreement on the liability of Developer for ad valorem property 
taxes, if any are to be assessed as described in PPA Section 5.5; and 

(l) Host shall have approved the final design of the PV System and its 
integration into the Host’s Property, in accordance with Section 5.4 hereof. 

Either Party may waive any condition precedent applicable to it as set forth in this 
Section 5.2.  Without limitation of Section 8.1(a), either Party may terminate this Agreement as 
the result of the non-fulfillment or failure of any of the above-referenced conditions precedent 
applicable to it shall give the other Party written notice of the notifying Party’s intent to 
terminate this Agreement due to non-fulfillment or failure of any such foregoing conditions, and 
shall include in such notice a detailed description of the efforts undertaken by the notifying Party 
to satisfy such condition or conditions (which efforts need only be commercially reasonable) and 
the reasons why such condition or conditions have not been satisfied.  In the event either Party 
terminates this Agreement pursuant to this Section 5.2, the Parties shall have no further 
obligations hereunder except those which survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

5.3 Governmental Permits.  Developer shall obtain at its sole cost all Permits 
required for Developer’s use of the Premises, the Permitted Use, and the PV System from any 
and all Governmental Authorities having jurisdiction in the matter.  Developer shall promptly 
inform Host of all significant developments relating to the issuance of such Permits.  Host shall 
reasonably cooperate with Developer in procuring such Permits.  If any changes in plans and/or 
specifications for the Project are required by any Governmental Authority, then Developer shall 
submit such changes, if any, to Host for its approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

5.4 Design and Installation.  Developer shall design the PV System in accordance 
with Good Engineering Practice, shall consult with and receive input from Host with respect to 
integration of the PV System with the Host’s facilities and submit the final design for Host’s and 
CVEC’s approval, not to be unreasonably withheld or delayed.  Developer shall furnish all 
supplies, materials, labor, tools, equipment and other services necessary for installation of the PV 
System.  As soon as practicable after the Effective Date, Developer shall provide Host and 
CVEC an updated schedule for design, permitting, equipment procurement, commencement of 
construction and commissioning of the PV System, indicating milestones and durations of 
activities.  Subject to delays excused hereunder, or the failure of the Host to comply with its 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 14 

 

 

obligations hereunder or CVEC to comply with its obligations under the PPA, Developer shall 
commence construction of the PV System no later than the Outside Construction 
Commencement Date and will proceed diligently and continuously thereafter until completion, 
but in no event shall the installation be completed later than the Outside Commercial Operation 
Date.  Developer shall install the PV System in accordance with Good Engineering Practice, all 
Applicable Legal Requirements, applicable contractor, subcontractor and vendor warranties or 
guarantees, manufacturer’s warranties, instruction and specifications, as further identified in the 
Common Technical Specifications set forth in Exhibit E, applicable requirements of the 
insurance policies maintained by Host with respect to the PV System, and the terms of this 
Agreement. 

5.5 Interconnection with Electric Distribution Grid.  Developer shall obtain at its 
sole cost all Permits and agreements required for Developer’s interconnection of the PV System 
to the electric distribution grid maintained by the Distribution Company.  Developer shall 
promptly inform Host and CVEC of all significant developments relating to such interconnection 
matters.  Host shall provide Developer with such information as Developer may reasonably 
request in connection with Developer’s procurement of such Permits and agreements.  If any 
material changes in plans and/or specifications to the PV System are required by the applicable 
electric distribution company, then Developer shall submit such changes, if any, to Host and 
CVEC for their approval, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

5.6 Access to and Use of the Premises.  During construction and the operation of the 
PV System, including, but not limited to, all pre-construction activities, Developer and its 
contractors or agents shall have access to the Premises in accordance with Exhibit D (Special 
Terms and Conditions). 

5.7 Plans and Specifications.  Installation of the PV System shall be completed in 
accordance to plans approved by Host and CVEC, which approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld.  Prior to the Commercial Operation Date, Developer shall provide Host and CVEC 
with documentation as set forth in the Common Technical Specifications, Exhibit E, including 
as-built plans, permission to Operate from local distribution company, and specifications of the 
PV System installed on the Premises which show the actual location of the PV System. 

5.8 Maintenance Responsibilities.  Developer shall properly maintain the PV 
System, conduct all required maintenance, and make all repairs thereto in accordance with Good 
Engineering Practice.  Developer shall take all measures necessary to maximize production of 
the PV System throughout the Term.  Such obligations shall include, but not be limited to, 
maintaining the PV System in a condition of Commercial Operation, and taking all actions 
necessary to comply with the Applicable Legal Requirements.  The Developer shall deliver a 
maintenance report annually to the Host and CVEC.  Developer shall be responsible for all costs 
related to the PV System, including, but not limited to, those costs necessary to construct, 
operate, maintain, repair, and remove the PV System. 

5.9 Manufacturer and Installer Warranties.  All manufacturer and installer 
warranties shall run to the benefit of the Developer. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 15 

 

 

5.10 Use of Installation and/or Maintenance Subcontractors.  Developer may use 
qualified subcontractors to install and/or maintain the PV System, provided that Developer shall 
at all times remain fully responsible for the acts and omissions of such subcontractors.  
Installation and maintenance subcontractors shall be required to meet the insurance requirements 
set forth in Exhibit C, provided, however, that satisfaction of such requirements shall not relieve 
Developer of its responsibilities for such subcontractors as set forth in this Section 5.10. 

5.11 Alterations.  Developer shall have the right from time to time both before and 
after the completion of the PV System and at Developer’s sole cost and expense to make 
additions, alterations and changes, structural or otherwise in or to the PV System, subject, 
however, in all cases to the following: 

(a) No alteration shall be made which would tend to (i) materially change the 
general design, use, character or structure of the PV System, or (ii) increase, reduce or impair, to 
any material extent, the use of the PV System for the generation of electricity, subject to 
Applicable Legal Requirements (any such alteration, a “Substantial Alteration”); 

(b) No Substantial Alteration shall be commenced except after prior written 
notice to and consent from Host, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld; 

(c) Any alteration or Substantial Alteration shall be made with reasonable 
dispatch, in accordance with Good Engineering Practice, and in compliance with all Applicable 
Legal Requirements; and 

(d) No later than completion of any alteration or Substantial Alteration, 
Developer will provide Host with complete copies of all final plans and specifications therefor 
not previously provided; and 

(e) No alteration shall be made that conflicts with the Host’s existing and 
future uses enumerated in Exhibits A-1 and D to this Lease. 

5.12 Host Cooperation.  Host shall have the following duties under this Agreement: 

(a) to act expeditiously, and in good faith in supporting application for and 
facilitating any Permits necessary for the construction and operation of the PV System.  
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the execution of this Lease does not authorize a 
waiver of any permit or approval the Developer may require from the Host acting in its 
regulatory capacity, nor require the Host, acting in its regulatory capacity, to expedite its review 
of the Developer’s Permit application in the Host’s normal course of business; 

(b) to cooperate with Developer to the extent reasonable and appropriate 
given the particular use of the Property on issues regarding access, construction, on-site electrical 
metering and consumption, and interconnection. 

5.13 Emergencies.  The Parties agree that Host shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to respond to any emergency involving the PV System if necessary to protect the 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 16 

 

 

Property, including the Premises, or to protect public health or safety, and to effectuate any 
necessary repairs or take corrective action. 

5.14 Damage.  Any damage done to the Premises or other property not belonging to 
Developer during installation or during operations which is directly caused by Developer shall be 
repaired at Developer’s expense as soon as practicable, but no later than thirty (30) days after 
notification of damage, or sooner if immediate repair is required to prevent further damage to 
such property. 

5.15 Payment and Performance Bonds.  Prior to the Commencement Construction 
Date, the Developer shall provide Host with a performance bond from an issuer with a Best’s 
rating of not less than “A”, and from a surety company licensed to do business in the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts whose name appears on U.S.  Treasury Dept. Circular 570, in 
a form reasonably acceptable to Host (the “Performance Bond”), which Performance Bond shall 
be in an amount sufficient to secure 100% of Developer’s obligations with respect to the 
construction of the PV System under this Agreement or, prior to completion of construction and 
commissioning of the System.  The Performance Bond shall name Host as obligee.  The 
Performance Bond shall remain in effect until sixty (60) days after delivery by Developer to Host 
of the Notice of Commercial Operation, unless (a) fully drawn upon earlier by Host, (b) Host  
has provided notice to Developer of a dispute regarding the completion of the PV System in 
accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, in which case the Performance Bond shall 
remain in effect until the resolution of such dispute, (c) Host provides the issuer of the 
Performance Bond written notice authorizing the expiration of the Performance Bond, or (d) this 
Agreement is terminated pursuant to the provisions hereof and Developer has fulfilled its 
removal and restoration obligations under this Agreement.  In addition, at least fifteen (15) days 
prior to the Construction Commencement Date, Developer shall provide Host with a payment 
bond from an issuer with a Best’s rating of not less than “A” in a form and amount reasonably 
acceptable to Host (the “Payment Bond”).  The Payment Bond shall name Host as obligee.  The 
Payment Bond shall be released upon the later of: (a) receipt by Host of satisfactory evidence 
that all subcontractors, laborers, have been paid in full; or (b) the Commercial Operation Date. 

5.16 Mechanics Liens.  Developer shall not file any mechanics liens against Host for 
its work performed in accordance with this Agreement and this requirement shall flow down to 
all of Developer’s contractors.  If any mechanic’s, laborer’s or materialman’s lien shall at any 
time be filed against the Property, the Premises or the PV System, Developer, within ten (10) 
days after notice to Developer of the filing thereof, shall cause such lien to be discharged of 
record by payment, deposit, bond, insurance, order of court of competent jurisdiction or 
otherwise.  If Developer shall fail to cause such lien to be discharged within the period aforesaid, 
then, in addition to any other right or remedy, Host may, but shall not be obligated to, discharge 
the same either by paying the amount claimed to be due or by procuring the discharge of such 
lien by deposit or by bonding.  Any amount so paid by Host and costs and expenses, including 
court costs and attorney’s fees reasonably incurred by Host in connection therewith, together 
with interest thereon at the Interest Rate from the respective dates of Host’s making of the 
payment of the cost and expenses, shall be paid by Developer to Host within ten (10) Business 
Days of Host’s invoice therefor. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 17 

 

 

5.17 Utilities.  Developer shall make all arrangements for and pay directly to the entity 
providing the service, before delinquent, all electricity consumed by the Developer on the 
Premises; provided that the Host shall make available to Developer throughout the Term, and 
Developer may use in connection with the Permitted Use, all electricity, water, and internet 
service located on the Premises.  For avoidance of doubt, Host shall have no obligation to 
provide new utility interconnections on the Premises. Host shall keep electric transmission and 
distribution facilities on the Property in good working order, and work in good faith with 
Developer to resolve any services issues at the Property promptly.  Except as provided in, and 
without limitation of the obligations to the Host in the preceding sentence, Host shall have no 
duty or liability to Developer with respect to the maintenance, repair, upgrade, replacement or 
security of any other utilities, nor shall Host have any liability to Developer (including, without 
limitation, liability for lost revenue) arising from Host’s actions or omissions with respect to 
such maintenance, repair, upgrade, replacement or security.  In the event that Developer desires 
to undertake maintenance, repair, upgrade, replacement or security activities with respect to 
electrical transmission or distribution lines owned by Host, Developer may do so at Developer’s 
expense subject to the approval of Host and CVEC, which shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

5.18 Operations and Maintenance Manual; Training.  Prior to the Commercial 
Operation Date, the Developer shall deliver a set each to Host and CVEC an operations, 
maintenance and parts manual covering the PV System in accordance with the Common 
Technical Specifications set forth in Exhibit E.  In addition, Developer will train Host’s 
representative(s), including employees or contractors of Host on basic principles of operation, 
maintenance and monitoring of the PV System and on emergency preparedness and response.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Host shall have no right to perform any maintenance or repair on 
the PV System without Developer’s prior written consent, except in the case of an emergency 
where immediate action on the part of Host is reasonably necessary for safety reasons. 

5.19 Notice of Commercial Operation.  Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, 
Developer shall notify and represent to Host and CVEC when the PV System has achieved 
Commercial Operation (“Notice of Commercial Operation”), and shall in such notice certify to 
Host and CVEC the Commercial Operation Date. 

5.20 Late Completion.  If the commencement of construction does not occur on or 
before the Outside Construction Commencement Date and/or Commercial Operation does not 
occur on or before the Outside Commercial Operation Date for any reason other than Host’s 
failure to perform its obligations hereunder, Developer shall have any obligations to CVEC 
specified in the PPA in respect thereof. 

5.21 Maintenance; Repairs.   

(a) Developer shall take good care of the Premises and the PV System, 
conduct all required maintenance and make all repairs to the PV System, ordinary and 
extraordinary, foreseen and unforeseen, and shall maintain and keep Premises and the PV 
System in good condition, and in compliance with all Applicable Legal Requirements and Good 
Engineering Practice. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 18 

 

 

(b) Host shall have no duty or liability to Developer with respect to the 
maintenance and repair of the PV System. 

(c) Any damage caused by Developer or its subcontractors to the Premises or 
other property not belonging to Developer or its subcontractors shall be repaired at Developer’s 
expense within thirty (30) days after notification of damage, or sooner if immediate repair is 
required to prevent further damage to such property.   

(d) Nothing in this Agreement shall limit Host’s ability to maintain the 
Premises in a reasonable manner consistent with Host’s current and past practices, the Additional 
Exceptions set forth in Exhibit A-1, and any other conditions imposed by a Governmental 
Authority that are applicable to the Premises. 

5.22 Host’s Maintenance.  Developer acknowledges that Host may need to 
temporarily remove or relocate all or a portion of the PV System in order to perform routine or 
necessary maintenance.  Unless such maintenance is necessitated as a result of installation or 
operation of the PV System (in which case the Developer shall be solely responsible):  

(a)  Host will provide Developer with at least thirty (30) days prior written 
notice of its intent to temporarily relocate (except in the case of an Emergency, in which case 
notice shall be given as soon as practical and may be after some emergency response work has 
occurred);  

(b)  In such notice, Host will certify that Host’s requested removal or 
relocation of the PV System is required to perform routine or necessary maintenance (except 
that, in the case of an Emergency, such certification may be provided after some emergency 
response work has occurred) and Developer will have no obligation to temporarily remove or 
relocate all or a portion of the PV System unless the Host provides such certification;  

(c)  Host will be responsible for any and all actual, documented, reasonable 
costs incurred in the relocation of all or a portion of the PV System to and from the temporary 
location, including any temporary storage costs;  

(d)  any such relocation shall be performed by Developer (except that, in the 
case of an Emergency, Host may perform such activities as are reasonably necessary in light of 
such Emergency);  

(e)  Host may not request more than one relocation or temporary removal 
during the Term, which shall not be of a duration longer than thirty (30) days unless otherwise 
agreed by the Parties; and  

(f)  in the event that other than temporary removals or relocations that are  an 
“Emergency”, (i) the PV System is temporarily removed or relocated for longer than thirty (30) 
days or if there has already been at least one relocation during the Term, or (ii) if there is more 
than one relocation or temporary removal during the Term, Host shall promptly pay Developer 
for any lost revenue (including lost revenue attributable to the sale of electricity, environmental 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 19 

 

 

attributes, and any incentives related to or attributes of the operation or ownership of the PV 
System) for the duration of the temporary removal or relocation in excess of thirty (30) days.   

Such lost revenue shall be based on Net Energy that would have been produced during the time 
period of the relocation or temporary removal as estimated by PVWatts Calculator, or similar 
recognized method using accurate data inputs for the parameters of the PV System and its 
location.  Host agrees to work in good faith to minimize the timing and the operational and 
economic impacts on Developer of a temporary removal or relocation of the PV System.  For 
purposes of this Section 5.22, “Emergency” shall mean any Force Majeure event, condition or 
circumstance at or affecting the Premises that would, in the reasonable opinion of Host, 
materially and substantially harm life or property on the Premises without immediate 
preventative or remedial action. The Host shall not be responsible in any way for lost revenue 
that is the result of an Emergency. 

5.23 Project Relocation.  Host may request to move the PV System to another 
location on the Property or to another site owned by Host, but any such relocation shall be 
subject to the approval of Developer and Financier, not to be unreasonably withheld provided the 
alternate location or site is suitable for the PV System without increasing the development, 
construction, interconnection or operating cost of the PV System, and the PV System is capable 
of generating substantially equivalent amounts of electric energy when installed at the alternate 
site.  In connection with such relocation, Host shall execute an amendment to this Agreement 
reflecting the new location of the PV System but otherwise continuing all the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement for the remaining term of this Agreement.  Host shall also provide 
any consents or releases required by Developer in connection with the new location.  Host shall 
pay all costs associated with the removal and relocation of the PV System, including design, 
permitting, site investigations, installation, and testing costs and interconnection costs.   

In addition, starting at the shutdown of the Project pursuant to such relocation, and 
ending at the Commercial Operation of the PV System when such relocated PV System is 
reinstalled at a new location (the “Relocation Event”), Host will pay Developer an amount equal 
to the sum of (i) payments that Host would have made to Developer hereunder for electric energy 
that would have been produced by the PV System following the Relocation Event; (ii) revenues 
that Developer would have received with respect to the PV System under applicable solar 
programs and any other assistance program with respect to electric energy that would have been 
produced following the Relocation Event; and (iii) revenues from Environmental Attributes that 
Developer would have received with respect to electric energy that would have been produced by 
the PV System following the Relocation Event.  Determination of the amount of energy that 
would have been produced following the Relocation Event shall be based, during the first 
Contract Year, on the estimated levels of production and, after the first Contract Year, based on 
actual operation of the PV System in the same period in the previous Contract Year, unless 
Developer and Host mutually agree to an alternative methodology. 

5.24 No Voiding of Existing Warranties.  Developer shall ensure that the PV System 
is designed and constructed so that no existing warranties that apply to the Premises are voided 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 20 

 

 

because of the installation of the PV System.  Developer shall consult, as may be necessary, with 
any company that has provided such warranty.   

5.25 Use of Hazardous Materials Prohibited.  Developer shall not use at nor 
transport to the Property, including the Premises, any hazardous materials, including any 
substances defined, classified, or otherwise denominated as a “hazardous substance”, “toxic 
substance”, “hazardous material”, “hazardous waste”, “hazardous pollutant”, “toxic pollutant” or 
oil by the Applicable Legal Requirements, unless specifically authorized by Host.  Developer 
shall have no liability concerning the release of hazardous materials on or from the Premises 
other than liability arising from or related to any hazardous materials brought to the Premises at 
the direction of Developer.  The Developer shall fully indemnify the Host for any release of 
hazardous materials brought to the Property by Developer (or its contractors) and caused by the 
Developer (or its contractors) including all court costs, attorney’s fees, damages and liabilities as 
a result thereof.  The provisions of this Section 5.25 shall survive the expiration or earlier 
termination of the Agreement. 

ARTICLE VI:  DEVELOPER’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND 
ADDITIONAL COVENANTS 

6.1 Developer’s Representations and Warranties.  As of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, Developer represents and warrants to Host as follows: 

(a) Developer has full legal capacity to enter into this Agreement; 

(b) The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized, and each 
person executing this Agreement on behalf of Developer has full authority to do so and to fully 
bind Developer; 

(c) Developer knows of no pending or threatened action, suit, proceeding, 
inquiry, or investigation before or by any judicial court or administrative or law enforcement 
agency against or affecting Developer or its properties wherein any unfavorable decision, ruling, 
or finding would materially and adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement 
or Developer’s ability to carry out its obligations under this Agreement; and 

(d) None of the documents or other written or other information furnished by 
or on behalf of Developer to Host or its agents pursuant to this Agreement contains any 
knowingly untrue statement of a material fact or knowingly omits to state any material fact 
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements contained herein or therein, in 
the light of the circumstances in which they were made, not misleading. 

6.2 Developer’s Covenants.  In addition to the other covenants set forth in this 
Agreement, Developer covenants to Host as follows: 

(a) Developer shall promptly inform Host and CVEC of the occurrence of any 
event that may reasonably be expected to materially adversely affect the operation of the PV 
System or the performance of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement (including, but not 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 21 

 

 

limited to, any notices of default under any third party contract and the occurrence of any event 
that may result in the imposition of material liability or obligations on Developer or Host); and 

(b) Developer shall provide Host or CVEC such other information as Host or 
CVEC may reasonably request in order to review Developer’s compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE VII:  HOST’S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND ADDITIONAL 
COVENANTS 

7.1 Host’s Representations and Warranties.  As of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, Host represents and warrants the following to Developer: 

(a) Host has full legal capacity to enter into this Agreement; 

(b) Host has the power to perform all of its obligations hereunder and the right 
to grant Developer rights provided under this Lease; 

(c) The execution of this Agreement has been duly authorized in accordance 
with open meeting laws, and each person executing this Agreement on behalf of Host has full 
authority to do so and to fully bind Host; 

(d) Host knows of no pending or threatened action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, 
or investigation before or by any judicial court or administrative or law enforcement agency 
against or affecting Host or its properties wherein any unfavorable decision, ruling, or finding 
would materially and adversely affect the validity or enforceability of this Agreement or Host’s 
ability to carry out its obligations under this Agreement;  

(e) Host agrees that it has read and fully understands the form of PPA 
(attached as Exhibit E to this Agreement), including all rights granted to CVEC thereunder;  

(f) Host has delivered to Developer a true, correct and complete copy of 
warranties in effect with respect to the Premises; and 

(g) Host warrants that it holds sufficient title in the Premises to authorize the 
completion of activities in this RFP, except those listed in the Additional Exceptions set forth in 
Exhibit A-1. 

7.2 Host’s Covenants.  In addition to the other covenants set forth in this Agreement, 
Host covenants to Developer that throughout the Term and any extensions thereof, Host shall not 
interfere or allow a third party to interfere with the sun affecting the PV System. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 22 

 

 

ARTICLE VIII:  ARTICLE VIII:  TERMINATION; DEFAULT; REMEDIES; 
PURCHASE OPTIONS 

8.1 Termination.  Subject to Section 8.4 (Force Majeure), this Agreement shall not 
be subject to termination, except for the following Events of Termination: 

(a) Any applicable party may terminate this Agreement prior to the 
Construction Commencement Date for failure to achieve a condition precedent to construction, 
pursuant to Section 5.2. 

(b) The non-defaulting party may terminate this Agreement in the event a 
material Event of Default pursuant to Section 8.2 (Events of Default by Host) or 8.3 (Events of 
Default by Developer) prevents operation of the PV System for twelve (12) months, except with 
respect to Force Majeure events. 

(c) Host may terminate this Agreement in the event that Commercial 
Operation is not achieved by the Outside Commercial Operation Date unless the Developer 
cannot satisfy the Outside Commercial Operation Date milestone because Developer lacks a 
permit, approval or Interconnection Agreement necessary to commence Commercial Operation 
of the PV System, and Developer is utilizing Commercially Reasonable efforts to secure such 
permit, approval or Interconnection Agreement, because of Force Majeure as provided in 
Section 8.4, or because of Host’s failure to comply with its obligations under this Agreement; 
provided that Host may terminate this Agreement as provided in this Section 8.1(c) only if 
CVEC concurrently terminates the PPA as a result of such occurrence. 

(d) Host may terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) Business Days written 
notice to the Developer, in the event that Developer’s material breach of this Agreement, 
including but not limited to damage to the Premises or its occupants, and such damage is not 
cured within cure periods set forth in Section 8.3. 

(e) Host may terminate this Agreement upon five (5) Business Days written 
notice, in the event Developer fails to cure an Event of Default under Section 8.3(c); 

(f) Either Party may terminate this Agreement in the event that the PPA is 
terminated, except (i) if the PPA is terminated due to CVEC’s or Host’s exercise of its Purchase 
Option (as defined therein), and (ii) Host may not terminate this Agreement in the event the PPA 
is terminated due to a default by CVEC.  Notwithstanding anything herein, this Agreement may 
not be terminate by either Party prior to the termination of the PPA. 

8.2 Events of Default by Host.  The following shall each constitute an Event of 
Default by Host: 

(a) Host breaches any material obligation under this Agreement, and fails to 
cure such breach within sixty (60) Business Days after notification by Developer of the breach. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 23 

 

 

(b) If any material representation or warranty made by Host in Article VII of 
this Agreement (Host’s Representations, Warranties, and Additional Covenants) proves to have 
been misleading or false in any material respect when made and as such has had a material 
adverse effect on the Developer, and Host does not cure the underlying facts so as to make such 
representation or warranty correct and not misleading within ten (10) Business Days of written 
notice from Developer. 

(c) Host fails to carry out its obligations and duties pursuant to Article X 
(Quiet Enjoyment). 

(d) Any other material breach of this Agreement, or the Intergovernmental 
Power Sale Agreement, which proves to have a material adverse effect on the Developer, not 
specifically enumerated above. 

Events of Default in this Section 8.2 are subject to specific performance and monetary 
damages pursuant to Section 8.5 (Remedies). 

8.3 Events of Default by Developer.  It shall constitute an Event of Default by 
Developer if Developer: 

(a) breaches any material obligation under this Agreement that proves to have 
a material adverse effect on Host and fails to cure the breach within thirty (30) days after 
notification by Host of the breach; provided, however, no Event of Default shall occur if the 
nature of such breach is such that it cannot reasonably be cured within thirty (30) days and 
Developer commences remedying the breach within said thirty (30) day period and actually 
remedies the breach with ninety (90) days after notification by Host of the breach; 

(b) makes any material representation or warranty made by Developer in 
Article VI (Developer’s Representations, Warranties and Additional Covenants) proves to have 
been misleading or false in any material respect when made and to have a material adverse effect 
on the Host, and Developer does not cure the underlying facts so as to make such representation 
or warranty correct and not misleading within ten (10) Business Days of written notice from 
Host. 

(c) fails to provide or maintain in full force and effect any required insurance 
or bond or other surety, if such failure is not remedied within five (5) Business Days after receipt 
of written notice from the Host, or the occurrence of a default by the insurer of such Developer 
under any insurance policy provided hereunder; 

8.4 Force Majeure.  Notwithstanding Sections 8.1 (Termination), 8.2 (Events of 
Default by Host) and 8.3 (Events of Default by Developer), if by reason of Force Majeure either 
Party is unable to carry out, either in whole or in part, its obligations herein contained, such Party 
shall not be deemed to be in default during the continuation of such inability, provided that:  (a) 
the suspension of performance be of no greater scope and of no longer duration than is required 
by the Force Majeure event; (b) no obligations of the Party which were to be performed prior to 
the occurrence causing the suspension of performance shall be excused as a result of the 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 24 

 

 

occurrence; and (c) the non-performing Party shall use Commercially Reasonable efforts to 
remedy with all reasonable dispatch the cause or causes preventing it from carrying out its 
obligations.  The affected Party shall, as soon as practicable, give the other Party hereto written 
notice describing the particulars of the occurrence of the Force Majeure event.  If an event of 
Force Majeure continues for a period of one hundred eighty (180) days or longer, either Party 
may treat such an event as an Event of Termination and may immediately terminate this 
Agreement by sending the non-performing Party a written termination notice setting forth the 
Termination Date, and neither Party shall have liability by reason of such termination.  In the 
Event of Termination under this Section 8.4, Financier shall have step-in rights as provided in 
Section 8.6. 

8.5 Remedies.   

(a) In the event the defaulting Party fails to cure the Event of Default within 
the period for curative action under Sections 8.2 (Events of Default by Host) or 8.3 (Events of 
Default by Developer), as applicable, the non-defaulting Party may seek specific performance 
and/or monetary damages. 

(b) So long as an Event of Default has occurred and has not been cured, the 
non-defaulting Party may terminate this Agreement subject to the limitations and under the 
provisions of Section 8.1. 

(c) In the event of an Event of Default by Host requiring the permanent 
removal of the PV System from the Premises, and provided that the Host designates an 
alternative location at which the PV System is able to produce substantially equivalent amounts 
of Electricity, the Developer shall mitigate any damages by removing, storing and re-installing 
the PV System at the alternative location, all such costs to be borne by Host as damages.   

(d) [Reserved]. 

For breach of any provision for which an express remedy, other than termination, or 
express measure of damages is provided, such express remedy or measure of damages will be the 
sole and exclusive remedy, the obligor’s liability will be limited as set forth in such provision 
and all other remedies or damages at law or in equity are waived.  If no remedy or measure of 
damages is expressly provided herein, the obligor’s liability will be limited to direct and actual 
damages only, such direct and actual damages will be the sole and exclusive remedy and all 
other remedies or damages at law or in equity are waived. 

UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFICALLY PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT, 
NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER FOR ANY SPECIAL, 
INDIRECT, EXEMPLARY, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, OR PUNITIVE 
DAMAGES, LOST PROFITS, OR BUSINESS INTERRUPTION DAMAGES OF ANY 
CHARACTER, RESULTING FROM, ARISING OUT OF, IN CONNECTION WITH OR 
IN ANY WAY INCIDENT TO ANY ACT OR OMISSION OF EITHER PARTY RELATED 
TO THE PROVISIONS OF THIS AGREEMENT, IRRESPECTIVE OF WHETHER 
CLAIMS OR ACTIONS FOR SUCH DAMAGES ARE BASED UPON CONTRACT, 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 25 

 

 

WARRANTY, NEGLIGENCE, STRICT LIABILITY OR ANY OTHER THEORY AT 
LAW OR EQUITY.  FOR THE AVOIDANCE OF DOUBT, DAMAGES CLAIMED BY 
HOST HEREUNDER SHALL NOT BE DUPLICATIVE WITH ANY DAMAGES PAID TO 
CVEC UNDER THE PPA  

(e) Except for Developer’s third party indemnification obligations hereunder, 
Developer’s aggregate liability under this Agreement and the PPA shall not exceed Developer’s 
aggregate liability under the PPA. 

8.6 Step-in Rights of Financier.   

(a) Host agrees to give written notices to any Financier, of which Host has 
written notice, upon the occurrence of any Event of Default hereunder, the failure of Developer 
to cure any Event of Default in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, or an Event of 
Termination on account of Force Majeure, and Financier shall have a period of thirty (30) days 
after receipt of notice of failure of Developer to cure any Event of Default in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement, provided however, that Financier shall have an additional reasonable 
period of time thereafter, not to exceed an additional ninety (90) days, to cure the Event of 
Default or Event of Termination on account of Force Majeure if Financier uses Commercially 
Reasonable efforts to cure such Event of Default or Event of Termination during the initial 
ninety (90) days after notice aforesaid, and Financier provides reasonable written assurances that 
it will be able to cure such Event of Default within such a reasonable period of time thereafter. 

(b) Host agrees that, prior to termination pursuant to Section 8.1 
(Termination), Host shall give written notice to any Financier of which Host has written notice 
upon the occurrence of any Event of Termination hereunder, and Financier shall have a period of 
one hundred eighty (180) days after receipt of said notice to cure such Event of Termination. 

(c) Host also agrees that, in the event that Host terminates this Agreement 
pursuant to Section 8.1 (Termination), and Financier agrees in writing to assume all liabilities 
and obligations of the Developer, then a new agreement shall be executed by Host with Financier 
to assume the Developer’s place, upon the same terms and conditions as are contained in this 
Agreement; provided, however, that any such new agreement will be for the unexpired term of 
this Agreement and provided further, nothing herein shall be construed to alter any substantive 
terms which would expand the rights of Financier or extend or expand Host’s obligations 
hereunder. 

8.7 Damage or Destruction of PV System.   

(a) Developer shall bear the risk of loss to the PV System (including casualty, 
condemnation or Force Majeure), except to the extent that such loss results from the gross 
negligence of the Host or Host’s agents, representative, customers, vendors, employees, or 
contractors. 

(b) In the event of any PV System loss, Developer shall, at its sole cost and 
expense either (i) repair or replace the PV System, or (ii) elect to terminate this Agreement in 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 26 

 

 

which case Developer shall remove the PV System and promptly restore the Premises to 
substantially the same condition as existed prior to the Effective Date in accordance with 
Section 8.8 (Site Restoration). 

(c) In the event of a total or partial PV System loss because of casualty loss of 
the all of part of the Premises, and the Host elects not to repair or replace the Premises, the 
Developer shall be limited to recovery of proceeds from its insurance coverage. In the event of a 
total or partial PV System loss because of casualty loss of the all of part of the Premises, and the 
Host elects to repair or replace the Premises, the Developer may exercise either of its options 
under Section 8.7(b).    

8.8 Site Restoration.  On the Termination Date, Developer shall peaceably and 
quietly leave, surrender and yield up unto Host the Leased Premises, provided however that 
following the Termination Date of this Agreement, Developer shall have one hundred eighty 
(180) days to remove the PV System from the Leased Premises, and to restore the Leased 
Premises to a neat and orderly condition, reasonable wear and tear excepted, or such additional 
time as may be necessary after Host or CVEC have declined to exercise a Purchase Option 
pursuant to this Lease and the PPA.  Developer and Host shall agree upon whether supports, 
anchors, penetrations, conduits, or other similar ancillary equipment will be removed, 
considering whether such removal would cause harm or damage to the Premises. 

8.9 Abandonment of PV System.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary 
contained in this Agreement, any waiver in whole or in part of the requirement to remove the PV 
System shall require the written approval of Host.  Any of the PV System left on the Premises 
after the passage of one hundred twenty (120) days after the Termination Date shall be deemed 
abandoned.  Host shall provide written notice to the Developer within thirty (30) days of the 
expiration of such one hundred twenty (120) day period, of its election to retain all or any of the 
PV System as its property, or dispose of all or any of the PV System in such reasonable manner 
as Host may see fit and at Developer’s sole cost; provided, however, that Host’s election to retain 
the PV System as its property shall relieve Developer from any liability for its failure to remove 
such PV System; and provided further, however, that the foregoing shall not apply to any of the 
PV System that is not timely removed if the failure to remove is caused by an event of Force 
Majeure or the negligent acts or omissions of Host (in which in either case the time period for 
removal shall be extended on a day for day basis). 

8.10 Decommissioning Assurance.  Upon the issuance of the Notice of Commercial 
Operation, Developer shall establish and maintain thereafter adequate financial assurance in the 
amount specified in Exhibit D, to fully cover the cost of decommissioning the PV System and 
restoring the Premises as specified in this Agreement (such assurance, the “Decommissioning 
Assurance”).  Depending on the circumstances, and subject to Host’s approval, appropriate 
forms of financial assurance may include, without limitation, an escrow fund, irrevocable letter 
of credit, surety bond or third party guaranty; provided, however, that any form of financial 
assurance must provide Host with adequate rights to access the Decommissioning Assurance in 
the event of Developer’s failure to comply with its PV System removal and Premises restoration 
obligations under the Agreement. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 27 

 

 

8.11 Purchase Option.   

(a) Grant of Purchase Option to Host.  For and in consideration of the 
agreement of Host to enter into this Lease, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, Developer hereby grants to 
Host the right and option to purchase all of Developer’s right, title and interest in and to the PV 
System and the Environmental Attributes on the terms set forth in this Lease and the PPA (the 
“Purchase Option”).  Host, in its sole discretion, shall have the right to exercise the Purchase 
Option: (i) upon the tenth (10th), twelfth (12th), or fifteenth (15th) anniversary of the 
Commercial Operation Date, or (ii) upon the expiration of the Term of this Agreement, subject to 
the timing and conditions set forth in this Article. 

(b) Timing of Purchase Option.  If the Host declines the Purchase Option or 
otherwise fails to send its Host Purchase Option Notice within sixty (60) Business Days prior to 
tenth (10th), twelfth (12th), or fifteenth (15th) anniversary of the Commercial Operation Date 
under the PPA, or the date of the expiration of the Term, then the Buyer shall have a purchase 
option set forth in Article XIII of the PPA.  Promptly following receipt of a Purchase Option 
Notice from Host, Developer shall promptly, but no more than ten (10) Business Days thereafter, 
make available to the Host, the records of the operations, maintenance, and warranty repairs of 
the PV System and all Environmental Attributes, and shall provide reasonable access to inspect 
the PV System for its inspection during normal business hours.  If Host does not deliver a 
Purchase Option Notice within the applicable period set forth in this first sentence of this Section 
8.11(b), Host shall be deemed to have declined the Purchase Option. 

(c) Inspection.  Host shall have fifteen (15) Business Days from their 
respective purchase option notices to inspect the PV system, review the records provided by 
Developer and exercise other due diligence. 

(d) Determination of Purchase Price. The purchase price shall be the higher of 
the Buyer Purchase Payment in Exhibit C of the PPA, or the Appraised Value of the PV System, 
as determined by the Independent Appraiser (“Purchase Price”).  If the Purchase Option arises 
out of a Developer Event of Default, the Purchase Price shall be the Appraised Value. 

(e) Independent Appraiser.  Within twenty-five (25) Business Days of 
Developer’s receipt of Purchase Option Notice, Developer and Host shall each propose an 
Independent Appraiser.  If Developer and Buyer or Host do not agree and appoint an 
Independent Appraiser within such twenty-five (25) Business Day period, then at the end of such 
twenty-five (25) Business Day period, the two proposed Independent Appraisers shall, within 
five (5) Business Days of each Party’s notice, select a third Independent Appraiser (who may be 
one of the Independent Appraisers originally designated by the Parties or another Independent 
Appraiser) to perform the valuation and provide notice thereof to Developer and Host.  Such 
selection shall be final and binding on Developer and Host. 

(f) PV System Records and Inspection. The Developer shall make the records 
related to the PV System available to the Independent Appraiser and shall give the Independent 
Appraiser reasonable access to inspect the PV System.  Similarly, the Host shall make available 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 28 

 

 

to the Independent Appraiser the results of its inspection, review of records and other due 
diligence.  The selected Independent Appraiser shall, within twenty (20) Business Days of 
appointment, make a preliminary determination of the Appraised Value (the “Preliminary 
Determination”). 

(g) Preliminary and Final Appraisal Determinations.  Upon making such 
Preliminary Determination, the selected Independent Appraiser shall provide such Preliminary 
Determination to Developer and Host, together with all supporting documentation that details the 
calculation of the Preliminary Determination.  Developer and Host shall each have the right to 
object to the Preliminary Determination within ten (10) Business Days of receiving such 
Preliminary Determination; provided that the objecting Party provides a written explanation 
documenting the reasons for its objection.  Within ten (10) Business Days of receipt of the 
objecting Party’s objections, the selected Independent Appraiser shall issue its final 
determination (the “Final Determination”) to Developer and Host, which shall specifically 
address the objections received by the Independent Appraiser and whether such objections were 
taken into account in making the Final Determination.  Except in the case of fraud or manifest 
error, the Final Determination of the Appraised Value by the selected Independent Appraiser 
shall be final and binding on the Parties. 

(h) Appraisal Costs.  Developer and Host shall each be responsible for 
payment of one half of the costs and expenses of the Independent Appraiser(s), unless the 
Purchase Option is to be exercised pursuant to a Developer Event of Default, in which case the 
Developer shall be responsible to pay the fees and costs of the Independent Appraiser. 

(i) Final Purchase Option Notice.  Within ten (10) Business Days of the Final 
Determination, the Buyer or Host shall notify the Developer in writing whether it intends to 
exercise the Purchase Option at the Purchase Price determined in accordance with Section 13.2 
(“Final Buyer Purchase Option Notice” or “Final Host Purchase Option Notice”).  Upon such 
Final Purchase Option Notice, the Purchase Option shall become irrevocable.   

(j) Transfer Date.   The closing of any sale of the PV System (the “Transfer 
Date”) pursuant to this Article will occur as soon as practicable but no later than ninety (90) 
Business Days following the date of the notice provided to Developer pursuant to Section 
8.11(i).  This Agreement shall terminate effective upon the Transfer Date, if not earlier 
terminated. 

(k) Terms of PV System Purchase.  On the Transfer Date (a) Developer shall 
surrender and transfer to Host all of Developer’s right, title and interest in and to the PV System, 
and the Environmental Attributes arising after the Transfer Date, and shall retain all liabilities 
arising from or related to the PV System and the Environmental Attributes arising prior to the 
Transfer Date, (b) Host shall pay the Purchase Price after deduction of any Developer 
Termination Payment or other set-offs, as applicable, by certified check, bank draft or wire 
transfer and shall assume all liabilities arising from or related to the PV System and the 
Environmental Attributes from and after the Transfer Date, and (c) Host and CVEC, as 
applicable, shall pay to Developer all other amounts owing to Developer as of the Transfer Date 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 29 

 

 

arising hereunder or under the PPA, and (d) both Parties shall (i) execute and deliver a bill of 
sale and assignment of contract rights containing such representations, warranties, covenants and 
other terms and conditions as are usual and customary for a sale of assets similar to the PV 
System, together with such other conveyance and transaction documents as are reasonably 
required to fully transfer and vest title to the PV System, and the Environmental Attributes 
created following the Transfer Date in Buyer or Host, and (ii) deliver ancillary documents, 
including releases, resolutions, certificates, third person consents and approvals and such similar 
documents as may be reasonably necessary to complete the sale of the PV System and the 
Environmental Attributes to Buyer or Host.  The purchase shall be on an “as is,” “where is” basis 
without warranty of any kind. 

(l) Acknowledgement of CVEC’s Purchase Option.  In the event that CVEC 
exercises its Purchase Option under this Lease and the PPA, this Agreement shall be novated to 
substitute CVEC for the Host and shall continue in full force and effect. 

 

ARTICLE IX:  INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE 

9.1 Developer Indemnification of Host.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, the 
Developer shall indemnify and hold harmless the Host, CVEC and all of their officers, 
employees, boards, commissions, and representatives from and against all third-party claims, 
causes of action, suits, costs, damages, and liability of any kind (“Losses”), including any 
Environmental Claim, which arise out of the performance of Developer’s work, provided that 
such Losses are attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to or 
destruction of tangible property but only to the extent caused by the negligent or intentional acts 
or omissions, including failure to comply with the provisions of this Agreement, of the 
Developer, its employees, agents, subcontractors, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by 
them or anyone for whose acts Developer is legally liable.  This indemnity obligation shall apply 
notwithstanding any negligent or intentional acts, errors or omissions of the Host, but the 
Developer’s obligation to pay Losses shall be reduced in proportion to the percentage by which 
the Host’s negligent or intentional acts, errors or omissions caused the Losses. 

9.2 Host Indemnification.  To the extent permitted by law, Host shall indemnify and 
hold harmless Developer from and against any and all Losses from or to third parties for injury 
or death to persons or damage or loss to or of property to the extent arising out of the negligent 
or intentional acts or omissions of the Host, its employees, agents, subcontractors or 
representatives.  This indemnity obligation shall apply notwithstanding any negligent or 
intentional acts, errors or omissions of Developer, but the Host’s obligation to pay Losses shall 
be reduced in proportion to the percentage by which the Developer’s negligent or intentional 
acts, errors or omissions caused the Losses.  Notwithstanding any other provision in this 
Agreement, the Host’s and CVEC’s liability hereunder shall be limited by the protections and 
immunities afforded by and to the amount set forth in Chapter 258 of the Massachusetts General 
Laws. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 30 

 

 

9.3 Insurance.  The Parties agree to comply with the insurance obligations allocated 
to them in Exhibit C hereto. 

9.4 Survival.  If a Party receives notice of the commencement of any proceeding in 
connection with Losses asserted by any third party as to which it believes that the other Party 
may have an obligation under Section 9.1 or Section 9.2, such Party shall deliver to the 
indemnifying Party reasonably prompt written notice thereof, but in any event not later than sixty 
(60) calendar days after receipt of such notice.  Failure to deliver such prompt written notice 
shall not relieve the indemnifying Party of its obligations under Section 9.2 or Section 9.2, as 
applicable, except to the extent that the indemnifying Party is prejudiced by reason of such 
failure; provided that notwithstanding the foregoing, the provisions of Section 9.1 and 9.2 shall 
survive for thirty-six (36) months following the commencement of such proceeding.   

ARTICLE X:  QUIET ENJOYMENT 

10.1 Quiet Enjoyment.  Host covenants that Developer shall quietly have and enjoy 
the Premises throughout the Term and any extensions thereof.  Host warrants and agrees that, 
throughout the Term and any extensions thereof: 

(a) the Premises shall be dedicated to Developer’s use for conducting the 
Permitted Use and designing, constructing, operating, maintaining, repairing, and expanding the 
PV System, except as provided for in Section 10.2 and subject to the Additional Exceptions set 
forth in Exhibit A-1 and Special Conditions in Exhibit D; 

(b) any other uses of the Premises by Host or any third party pursuant to 
Section 10.2 and the Additional Exceptions set forth in Exhibit A-1 shall not materially interfere 
with the Permitted Use and the operational and solar requirements of the PV System; 

(c) Host shall maintain or obtain any agreements, contracts, consents, Permits, 
approvals, or other instruments or permissions necessary for Developer to have the quiet 
enjoyment of its rights under this Agreement; and 

(d) Host shall, in good faith, use its best efforts to protect Developer’s quiet 
enjoyment of its rights hereunder, including, without limitation, defending against a third party 
claim that could materially interfere with Developer’s rights under this Article X or the Permitted 
Use. 

Subject to the specific provisions of this Agreement permitting the same, Host shall have 
the right to enter upon the Premises at any time, at its own risk, as may be necessary in 
connection with the maintenance of the Premises for any purpose, consistent with Section 5.21, 
and provided that such access does not materially interfere with or affect the operation of the PV 
System, no such entry that complies with the provisions of this Agreement permitting the same 
shall be considered a breach of the covenant of quiet enjoyment. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 31 

 

 

10.2 Host’s Reserved Uses.  Except as specifically set forth in the Additional 
Exceptions contained in Exhibit A-1, Host shall not itself conduct any other use, nor shall Host 
allow any third party to conduct any other use, on the Premises. 

ARTICLE XI:  ASSIGNMENT AND MORTGAGE 

11.1 Assignment.   

(a) Developer Assignment.  Except as otherwise provided by this Agreement, 
Developer shall not assign, subcontract, sublet or delegate its rights, privileges or obligations 
under this Agreement without the prior written approval of Host, provided that prior notice to or 
consent of Host shall not be required:  (i) for an assignment or transfer by Developer to any of its 
other individual members or to any Person that is a permitted assignee under the PPA; and (ii) 
for a collateral assignment by Developer to any Financier, subject to the terms and conditions of 
this Article XI.  For assignments requiring Host’s approval, approval may be denied in the 
reasonable discretion of Host if it determines that the proposed assignee does not have at least 
the same financial and technical ability as the assigning Developer.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, Host may not unreasonably withhold its consent to an assignment to an affiliated 
entity under common control or management with Developer.  Developer’s assignee shall agree 
in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

(b) Host Assignment.  Host shall not assign this Agreement without the prior 
consent of Developer, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, provided, however, that any 
such assignment shall be made subject to the terms and provisions of this Agreement.  Host shall 
assign this Agreement to any successor owner or lessee of the Property or the Premises or to any 
Person that holds an exclusive easement interest in the Premises or the PV System.   Host’s 
assignee shall agree in writing to be bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Host 
shall promptly provide Developer a copy of the assignment document following any assignment. 

(c) The rights and obligations created by this Agreement shall inure to the 
benefit of, and be binding upon, the successors and permitted assigns of the respective Parties 
hereto.  Notice of any permitted assignment shall be provided to the other Party as soon as 
practicable. 

11.2 Financing by Leasehold Mortgage.  Host is cognizant of the need of Developer 
to finance its interest in the Premises and the PV System thereon, and therefore specifically 
agrees, subject to Section 8.6, without any further request for prior consent to permit Developer 
to mortgage, assign or transfer its interest in this Agreement and/or the Premises for the purpose 
of obtaining financing, which shall include equity and/or debt, provided: 

(a) The term of such mortgage, assignment or transfer, or other security 
interest shall not exceed the Term; and 

(b) Developer shall give Host and CVEC notice of the existence of any 
mortgage, assignment or transfer, together with the name and address of the mortgagee, assignee 
or transferee, within thirty (30) days of the execution of such mortgage, assignment or transfer. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 32 

 

 

11.3 Financing by Leasehold Mortgage Release of Developer.  Developer shall be 
relieved from its obligations under this Agreement in whole or in part, as the case may be: 

(a) by any whole or partial disposition of Developer’s interest in this 
Agreement in compliance with Section 11.1, when coupled with a written instrument signed by 
the assignee or transferee of such interest in which said assignee or transferee accepts and agrees 
to be bound by the terms of this Agreement, unless the Parties agree otherwise, and except as 
otherwise provided by the terms of any assignment or transfer; and 

(b) in the event of any foreclosure by a Financier, in which case the Financier 
shall substitute for the Developer for purposes of this Agreement. 

Absent express written consent of Host, the execution of a mortgage or any assignment 
from a Financier to another Financier shall not relieve Developer from its obligations under this 
Agreement. 

11.4 Financier Provisions.  Any Person or entity that holds or is the beneficiary of a 
first position mortgage, deed of trust or other security interest in this Agreement or in any PV 
System located on the Premises (any such first position mortgage, deed of trust or other security 
interest is referred to herein as a “Leasehold Mortgage”) shall, for so long as its Leasehold 
Mortgage is in existence and until the lien thereof has been extinguished, be entitled to the 
protections set forth herein.  No Leasehold Mortgage shall encumber or affect in any way the 
interest of Host or Host’s fee interest in and to the Premises, or Host’s rights under this 
Agreement.  Host shall promptly execute any amendments to this Agreement requested by 
Financier in connection with the financing of the PV System so long as said amendment does not 
materially change the terms of this Agreement. 

(a) Financier’s Right to Possession, Acquire and Assign.  Pursuant to the 
provisions of this Section 11.4 and subject to Section 8.6, a Financier shall have the right:  (i) to 
assign its security interest; (ii) to enforce its lien and acquire title to the leasehold estate by any 
lawful means; (iii) to take possession of and operate the PV System or any portion thereof and to 
perform all obligations to be performed by Developer hereunder, or to cause a receiver to be 
appointed to do so, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement; (iv) to acquire the 
leasehold estate by foreclosure or by an assignment in lieu of foreclosure; and (v) to sell the PV 
System and rights under the PPA and any other contracts dealing with the sale of Net Energy or 
renewable energy certificates from the PV System to a third party.  Host’s consent shall not be 
required for the Financier’s acquisition of the encumbered leasehold estate created by this 
Agreement, whether by foreclosure or assignment in lieu of foreclosure. 

(b) Upon the Financier’s acquisition of the leasehold estate, whether by 
foreclosure or assignment in lieu of foreclosure, Financier shall have the right to sell or assign 
said acquired leasehold estate, provided Financier and proposed assignee (as applicable) shall 
first satisfy each of the following conditions:  (i) any such assignee shall be approved in advance 
by Host, such approval not to be unreasonably conditioned, withheld or delayed; (ii) any such 
assignee shall assume all of Developer’s obligations under this Agreement; (iii) Financier and/or 
any proposed assignee shall have satisfied every obligation of Developer existing under this 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 33 

 

 

Agreement but which remains unsatisfied at the time of the proposed assignment; and (iv) 
Financier and any such assignee shall satisfy all Applicable Legal Requirements.  Financier may 
assign this Agreement subject to the same requirements for assignment of the PPA provided in 
Section 16.2 thereof. 

(c) Notice of Default; Opportunity to Cure.  The Financier shall be entitled to 
receive simultaneous notice of any default by Developer, provided that such Financier shall have 
first delivered to Host notice of its interest in the Leasehold Mortgage in the form and manner, if 
any, provided by state laws, rules, regulations, Developer’s procedures, and the provisions of this 
Agreement.  If any notice shall be given of the default of Developer and Developer has failed to 
cure or commence to cure such default within the cure period provided in this Agreement, then 
any such Financier, which has given notice as above provided, shall be entitled to receive an 
additional notice that Developer has failed to cure such default and such Financier shall be 
entitled to cure any such default pursuant to the terms of Section 8.6.  The Financier may take 
possession of the Premises and the PV System, and operate the PV System if necessary, pursuant 
to Section 8.6. 

ARTICLE XII:  DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

12.1 Dispute Resolution.  Unless otherwise expressly provided for in this Agreement, 
the dispute resolution procedures of this Section 12.1 shall be the exclusive mechanism to 
resolve disputes arising under this Agreement.  The Parties agree to use their respective best 
efforts to resolve any dispute(s) that may arise regarding this Agreement.  Any dispute that arises 
under or with respect to this Agreement that cannot be resolved shall in the first instance be the 
subject of informal negotiations between the Parties.  The dispute shall be considered to have 
arisen when one Party sends the other Party a written notice of dispute.  The period for informal 
negotiations shall be fourteen (14) days from receipt of the written notice of dispute unless such 
time period is modified by written agreement of the Parties.  In the event that the Parties cannot 
resolve a dispute by informal negotiations, the Parties may agree to submit the dispute to 
mediation.  If the Parties so agree, within fourteen (14) days following the expiration of the time 
period for informal negotiations, the Parties shall propose and agree upon a neutral and otherwise 
qualified mediator.  In the event that the Parties fail to agree upon a mediator, the Parties shall 
request that the American Arbitration Association, Boston, Massachusetts, appoint a mediator.  
The period for mediation shall commence upon the appointment of the mediator and shall not 
exceed sixty (60) days, unless such time period is modified by written agreement of the Parties.  
The decision to continue mediation shall be in the sole discretion of each Party.  The Parties will 
bear their own costs of the mediation.  The mediator’s fees shall be shared equally by the Parties.  
In the event that the Parties cannot resolve a dispute by informal negotiations or mediation, the 
sole venue for judicial enforcement shall be the courts for or in Barnstable County, 
Massachusetts.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, injunctive relief from such court may be sought 
without resorting to alternative dispute resolution to prevent irreparable harm that would be 
caused by a breach of this Agreement. 

12.2 Stay of Termination.   



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 34 

 

 

(a) During informal negotiations and mediation pursuant to Section 12.1, the 
Parties shall not exercise any termination rights pursuant to this Agreement.  During such 
informal negotiations and/or mediation, the Parties shall continue to fully perform their 
respective obligations pursuant to this Agreement.  All applicable statutes of limitation and 
defense based upon the passage of time and similar contractual limitations shall be tolled while 
discussions in Section 12.1 are pending, the Parties shall take such action, if any, required to 
effectuate such tolling.  Without prejudice to the procedure set forth in Section 12.1, a Party may 
file a complaint for statute of limitations purposes, if in its sole judgment such action may be 
necessary to preserve its claims or defenses. 

(b) During the Term of the PPA (as defined therein), if there is any lawsuit 
pending between Developer and CVEC, Host shall not exercise any termination rights pursuant 
to this Agreement and shall continue to fully perform its obligations under this Agreement.  As 
to any claims that arise between the Parties under this Agreement, all applicable statutes of 
limitation and defenses based upon the passage of time and similar contractual limitations shall 
be tolled while such lawsuit is pending and the Parties shall take such action, if any, required to 
effectuate such tolling.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Host may file a complaint for statute of 
limitations purposes, if in its sole judgment such action may be necessary to preserve its claims 
or defenses.  This provision may be waived by Host at any time for any reason. 

12.3 Survival.  This Article XII shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of 
this Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE XIII:  MISCELLANEOUS 

13.1 Construction; Obligation to Modify Agreement.  Upon implementation by the 
Department of Public Utilities, Department of Energy Resources, or other Governmental 
Authority of any Applicable Legal Requirement that may affect any provision of this Agreement 
or the economic benefits anticipated by either Party, in particular any rule or regulation regarding 
Net Metering, the Parties shall be obligated to amend this Agreement and shall use their best 
efforts to conform such amendment to the original intent of this Agreement, including allocation 
of economic benefits to most closely approximate the benefits anticipated by both Parties, and to 
do so in a timely fashion. 

13.2 Notices.  All notices, demands, requests, consents or other communications 
required or permitted to be given or made under this Agreement shall be in writing and addressed 
to the following: 

If to Host: 

Barnstable County Administrator 
Barnstable Superior Court 
P.O. Box 427 
3195 Main Street 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 35 

 

 

Barnstable, MA 02630 
Attn:  ___________________Phone (___ )___-____ 
Email: ____________  
 
 

If to Developer:  
Solect Energy Development LLC 
89 Hayden Rowe Street 
Hopkinton, MA  01748 
Attn:  Legal Notices 
legal@solect.com 

with a copy to: 

N/A 

 
If to CVEC: Cape & Vineyard Electric Cooperative, Inc. 

23H2 White’s Path, Suite 2 
South Yarmouth, MA 02664 
Attn: Liz Argo, Executive Director 
Tel: (774) 722-1812 
Email: largo@cvecinc.org 

Notices hereunder shall be deemed properly served:  (a) by hand delivery, on the day and 
at the time on which delivered to the intended recipient at the address set forth in this 
Agreement; (b) if sent by mail, on the third business day after the day on which deposited in the 
United States certified or registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, addressed to 
the intended recipient at its address set forth in this Agreement; (c) if by Federal Express or other 
reputable express mail service, on the next business day after delivery to such express mail 
service, addressed to the intended recipient at its address set forth in this Agreement; or (d) by 
electronic mail (confirmed by the recipient) to the Party to which notice is to be given.  Either 
Party may change its address and contact person for the purposes of this Section 13.2 by giving 
notice thereof in the manner required herein. 

13.3 Entire Agreement; Amendments; Binding Effect.  This Agreement and the 
PPA and Inter-Governmental PSA constitute the entire agreement between the Host, Developer 
and CVEC, as the case may be, with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersede all prior 
oral or written agreements and understandings between the Parties relating to the subject matter 
hereof.  This Agreement may only be amended or modified by a written amendment to this 
Agreement signed by both Parties hereto.  This Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding 
upon the Parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns. 

13.4 Expenses.  Each Party hereto shall pay all expenses incurred by it in connection 
with its entering into this Agreement, including but not limited to, all attorneys’ fees and 
expenses. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 36 

 

 

13.5 No Joint Venture.  Nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute either 
Party a partner, agent or legal representative of the other Party or to create a joint venture, 
partnership, agency or any relationship between the Parties.  The obligations of the Parties are 
individual and not collective in nature. 

13.6 Joint Work Product.  This Agreement shall be considered the work product of 
both Parties hereto, and, therefore, no rule of strict construction shall be applied against either 
Party. 

13.7 Waiver.  No waiver by either Party hereto of any one or more defaults by the 
other Party in the performance of any provision of this Agreement shall operate or be construed 
as a waiver of any future default, whether of like or different character.  No failure on the part of 
either Party hereto to complain of any action or non-action on the part of the other Party, no 
matter how long the same may continue, shall be deemed to be a waiver of any right hereunder 
by the Party so failing.  A waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall only be 
effective if made in writing and signed by the Party who is making such waiver. 

13.8 Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights and duties of the Parties hereunder 
shall be governed by and shall be construed, enforced and performed in accordance with the laws 
of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts without regard to principles of conflicts of law. The 
Parties agree that to the maximum extent permissible by law, nothing in this Agreement shall be 
interpreted to eliminate or reduce legal protections or defenses available to CVEC as a public 
cooperative or to the Host as municipal entity. 

13.9 Nondiscrimination.  Developer agrees that it shall not, because of race, color, 
national origin, ancestry, age, sex, religion, physical or mental handicap, or sexual orientation, 
gender identity, genetic information, or status as a veteran, discriminate against any qualified 
employee, applicant for employment, subcontractor, or person or firm seeking to provide goods or 
services to Developer, or deny any person access to the Premises or to any activities or programs 
carried out upon the Premises.  Developer shall comply with all applicable federal and state 
statutes, rules, and regulations prohibiting discrimination in employment or public 
accommodation. 

13.10 Severability.  If any article, section, phrase or portion of this Agreement is, for 
any reason, held or adjudged to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such article, section, phrase, or portion so adjudged shall be deemed separate, 
severable and independent and the remainder of this Agreement shall be and remain in full force 
and effect and shall not be invalidated or rendered illegal or unenforceable or otherwise affected 
by such adjudication, provided the basic purpose of this Agreement and the benefits to the 
Parties are not substantially impaired. 

13.11 Further Assurances.  From time to time and at any time at and after the 
execution of this Agreement, each Party shall execute, acknowledge and deliver such documents 
and assurances, reasonably requested by the other and shall take any other action consistent with 
the terms of this Agreement that may be reasonably requested by the other for the purpose of 
effecting or confirming any of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 37 

 

 

13.12 Survival.  Termination of this Agreement for any reason shall not relieve Host or 
Developer of any obligation accrued or accruing prior to such termination, including, but not 
limited to, the obligations set forth in Sections 5.25, 9.1 and 9.2 (Indemnification), Article IX 
(Indemnification) and Article XII (Dispute Resolution), which shall survive the expiration or 
termination of this Agreement. 

13.13 Counterparts; Scanned Copy.  This Agreement may be executed in 
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and 
the same instrument.  The Parties agree that a scanned or electronically reproduced copy or 
image of this Agreement bearing the signatures of the Parties hereto shall be deemed an original 
and may be introduced or submitted in any action or proceeding as competent evidence of the 
execution, terms and existence of this Agreement notwithstanding the failure or inability to 
produce or tender an original, executed counterpart of this Agreement and without the 
requirement that the unavailability of such original, executed counterpart of this Agreement first 
be proven. 

13.14 CVEC as Third Party Beneficiary.  The Parties agree that CVEC shall be a 
third party beneficiary of this Agreement. 

13.15 Special Terms and Conditions.  Host understands and agrees that this 
Agreement is CVEC’s standard form lease agreement for project development and that 
modifications to the main body of this Agreement are not permitted.  To the extent there are 
special terms and conditions that are specific to the installation of the PV System on the 
Premises, such terms and conditions will be set forth in Exhibit D attached hereto (the “Special 
Terms and Conditions”).  To the extent there is a conflict between the Special Terms and 
Conditions and the main body of this Agreement, the Special Terms and Conditions will control. 

13.16 No Limitation of Regulatory Authority.  The Parties acknowledge that nothing 
in this Agreement shall be deemed to be an agreement by Host to issue or cause the issuance of 
any permit or approval, or to limit or otherwise affect the ability of the Host or the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts to fulfill its regulatory mandate or execute its regulatory 
powers consistent with Applicable Legal Requirements. 

[Signature page to follow]  



 

 

{A0632740.1 } 38 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective 
Date. 

DEVELOPER: 
 
SOLECT ENERGY DEVELOPMENT LLC 
 
By:  ________________________ 
 
Name:  ________________________ 
 
Title:  ________________________ 
 
HOST: 
 
BARNSTABLE COUNTY 
 
By:  ________________________ 
 
Name:  ________________________ 
 
Title:  ________________________ 

 



 

 

{A0632740.1 }  

List of Exhibits to this Agreement 

Exhibit A – Description of Premises 
Exhibit A-1 – Additional Exceptions 
Exhibit B – Description of PV System 
Exhibit C – Insurance Requirements 
Exhibit D – Special Terms and Conditions 
Exhibit E – Common Technical Specifications 
Exhibit F – Power Purchase Agreement between Developer and CVEC 
Exhibit G –Inter-Governmental Power Sales Agreement (Inter-Governmental PSA) between 

CVEC and Host 



 

 

{A0632740.1 }  

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES 

Address: 

3195 Main Street, Barnstable, Massachusetts 02630  

Legal Description: 

Barnstable County Lab Building, located at the above address, as illustrated in the Sketch Plan entitled 
“Site Plan – SED – Barnstable County Lab – 6177 – 320.45 kW DC – 240 kW AC and dated February 
7, 2020.  The PV System on the attached Sketch Plan is identified by the area where the solar panels and 
Battery Energy Storage System are located, as such Sketch Plan may be amended or revised from time 
to time. 

The Premises shall further include all necessary electrical and other utility sources, together with the 
non-exclusive right of ingress and egress from a public right-of-way, to the Premises for the purpose of 
design, procurement, installation, testing, commissioning, ownership, operation, inspection, 
maintenance, repair and improvements and removal of the PV System.  In the event there are not 
sufficient electric and other necessary utility sources located on the Premises to enable Developer to 
transmit Net Energy generated by the PV System to the Point of Delivery, Host agrees to grant 
Developer or the Distribution Company the right to install such utilities on, over and/or under the 
Premises and the Property, as necessary to operate the PV System, provided, however, the location of 
such utilities shall be as reasonably designated by Host. 

 

Site Plan – SED – Barnstable County Lab – 6177 – 320.45 kW DC – 240 kW AC
3195 Main St, Barnstable, MA 02630

Solect Energy Development  LLC.  Confidential

Utility: Eversource
Account #: 2880 967 0020
Meter #: 2537203

Date : 02-07-2020
Developed by : AG

Revision: 01

N

Scale 1” = 50’-0”

Inverter:
(4) Solectria PVI-60TL
Mounted On Canopy 

Structure

Exterior Utility Fused & Lockable 
Disconnect Switch
Located At Grade

Accessible At All Times By Utility
Located On Exterior Wall

PV Array
#754 Hanwha 
395W Panels

Main Electrical 
Room

Utility Meter
Located On Transformer

Revenue Grade 
Production Meter For PV

Located In Combiner 
Panel on Exterior Wall

#45-100
Pad Mounted 
Transformer 

(POCC)

Point of 
Interconnection

Property Line



 

 

{A0632740.1 } A-1-1 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT A-1 

ADDITIONAL EXCEPTIONS 

A.  Developer’s use of the Premises shall be subject to the following: 

Host’s Reserved Uses of the Premises:  
 
[LIST]



 

 

{A0632740.1 } B-1 

 

EXHIBIT B 

DESCRIPTION OF PV SYSTEM 

PV SYSTEM: Module Manufacturer: Hanwha Q-Cells 

 Nameplate Capacity: 320.45 KW DC 

 Approximate Annual Energy Production: 

 350,682 kWh 

 Location: Barnstable County Lab Parking Lot at 
3195 Main street 

 Mounting Systems: M Bar C Company 

Preliminary Specifications: 

 Long span design, galvanized structural steel, no 
water management, below grade piers, standard 3’ 
diameter piers, no lighting, no downspouts, no snow 
guards, minimum height 9’6” 

 Battery Manufacturer:  
Tesla Powerpack 2.5   

 BESS Nameplate Capacity in kilowatts per hour:  

111 kW for 2.0 hours 

Location: Barnstable County Lab Parking Lot at 
3195 Main Street, co located with the solar project 

 

Mounting System: M Bar C Canopy   

PV SYSTEM ASSETS: Inverters: Solectria PVI 60TL (Qty-4) 

 Related Equipment:  

 Electric Lines:   

  

** Final system size will be determined once final field layout and structural analysis has been 
completed. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } C-1 

 

EXHIBIT C 

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 

A. Developer’s insurance obligations.  Developer shall secure and maintain, at its 
own expense, throughout the Term of this Agreement the following insurance coverage.  
Developer shall provide Host with evidence, reasonably satisfactory to the Host, of its insurance 
hereunder, upon request. 

1. Comprehensive commercial general liability insurance of at least 
$2,000,000 combined single limit.  This limit requirement may be satisfied by (i) the purchase of 
the specified limits in an individual policy, or (ii) with the purchase of additional umbrella or 
excess liability insurance which, in combination with the limits of the separate policies, provides 
the total limit required. 

2. Excess liability coverage of at least $10,000,000. 

3. Additional insurance requirements.  All insurance maintained by 
Developer shall: 

a. include as additional insured the Host for obligations arising out of 
this Agreement.  The policies shall be endorsed to require that such additional insureds 
receive at least thirty (30) days’ notice of cancellation or non-renewal.  Additionally, the 
Developer shall be required to provide notice to the Host of any cancellation or non-
renewal at least thirty (30) days in advance of said cancellation or non-renewal. 

b. the insurance may be provided on a claims-made basis. 

c. in the event such insurance is cancelled or non-renewed, Developer 
agrees to provide a 36 month discovery period endorsement for obligations under this 
Agreement. 

d. The insurance shall include coverage for bodily injury liability, 
property damage liability, advertising injury liability and personal injury liability. 

e. The insurance shall include blanket contractual liability coverage, 
including coverage for this Agreement. 

B. Host’s insurance obligations.  Host shall secure and maintain, at its own expense, 
throughout the Term of this Agreement the following insurance coverage.  Host shall provide 
Developer with evidence, reasonably satisfactory to the Developer, of its insurance hereunder, 
upon request. 

1. Commercial general liability insurance written on an occurrence basis 
and endorsed to include its independent contractors, bodily injury liability, property damage 
liability, personal injury liability, premises/operations liability, and broad form general liability, 
with limits of not less than $3,000,000 combined single limit and annual aggregate.  This limit 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } C-2 

 

requirement may be may be satisfied by (i) the purchase of the specified limits in an individual 
policy, or (ii) with the purchase of additional umbrella or excess liability insurance which, in 
combination with the limits of the separate policies, provides the total limit required. 

2. Property insurance on the Premises with a waiver of subrogation rights 
against the Developer. 



 

 

{A0632740.1 } D-1 

 

EXHIBIT D 

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO THIS 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

Upon the issuance of the Notice of Commercial Operation, Developer shall establish and 
maintain thereafter adequate financial assurance in the amount of $4,807, to fully cover the cost 
of decommissioning the PV System and restoring the Premises as specified in this Agreement



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0632740.1 } E-1 

 

EXHIBIT E 

COMMON TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

This Exhibit describes the technical specifications and requirements that are common to 
all the PV Systems.  These common technical specifications are those that each PV System must 
meet or exceed.  These specifications and requirements are not intended to be all-encompassing, 
nor are they intended to override Good Engineering Practice or Applicable laws and code 
requirements.  The Developer is responsible for conformance to all relevant, prevailing codes, 
and the codes take precedence over these Technical Specifications.  Site-specific conditions 
and/or local regulations may require additional specifications and requirements not included in 
this Exhibit. 

A. Design 

1. Design Life and Estimated Production Requirements 

a. Each PV System shall have a service life of twenty (20) years at rated load. 

b. The PV System must be designed so that the estimated annual energy output 
for the PV System, based on actual site-specific shading, azimuth, and 
inclination is at least 80% of the default optimal output for a fixed PV System 
of the same capacity in Boston as estimated by PVWATTS Version 1.  
PVWATTS Version 1 is available at the following website: 
http://rredc.nrel.gov/solar/calculators/PVWATTS/version1/US/Massachusetts/
. 

2. Additional Design Requirements - Stamped affidavits or drawings are required 
for the electrical and structural components of the installation. 

a. The electrical design of the PV System must be performed by a Professional 
Engineer (“PE”) licensed in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. 

b. The structural design of the PV System requires a stamped affidavit from a 
Massachusetts-licensed PE confirming that the underlying structure or bearing 
stratum, is adequate to withstand the static and dynamic loads of the PV 
System.  The analysis must include all mounted portions of the PV System, 
including modules, racks, ballast, and other related components.  The analysis 
must also include all mount securing portions of the PV System, including any 
anchors and penetrating devices. 

B. Equipment 

1. General - All mounting materials for the PV System shall be corrosion-proof 
aluminum or 316 stainless steel.  If the Developer determines the use of 
galvanized structural steel is warranted, the extent of Developer’s use of such 
material shall be clearly outlined in the Developer’s Proposal.  All materials 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0632740.1 } E-2 

 

subject to exposure to the sun must be sunlight resistant material.  All conductors 
shall be copper.  Bare copper conductors exposed to free air shall be tin-plated.  
Alternative materials must be approved by the Host and CVEC. 

2. Inverters 

a. Inverter efficiency shall be equal to or greater than 93%. 

b. Installation shall meet the current UL 1741/IEEE Standard 1547, MEC codes 
and the latest applicable ANSI and FCC standards and addenda dated prior to 
the award of the purchase order for this procurement. 

c. The point of interconnection for the inverter(s) shall not be in parallel with 
any backup generators at the site during emergency generation. 

d. Each inverter shall include: 

i. Automatic operation including start-up, shutdown, self-diagnosis, fault 
detection and alarming. 

ii. Ground fault protection. 

iii. NEMA 2R rating for interior electrical room location or NEMA 3R for 
any exterior locations. 

e. The inverter(s) must have secure, weatherproof housing in the exterior 
installation. 

f. The inverter(s) housing must be a sound structure designed to withstand all 
dead load, live load, wind and seismic loads for the area. 

g. The inverter(s) must be located to provide adequate air flow for cooling. 

h. Lightning protection must be provided for the inverter(s) housing. 

3. Batteries – The battery energy storage system will be DC coupled and meet all 
NEC requirements.  

4. Combiner & Junction Boxes - Combiner boxes and junction boxes which are 
located outdoors shall have the following characteristics: NEMA 4X enclosure, 
600 VDC, and listed by a nationally recognized testing laboratory.  All PV 
System output circuits shall be protected by lightning arrestors of the appropriate 
voltage rating. 

5. DC Disconnect Switches - The DC disconnect(s) shall be 600 VDC, heavy-duty 
safety switch and be listed by a nationally recognized testing laboratory.  Where 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0632740.1 } E-3 

 

located outdoors, disconnects shall be NEMA 3R.  Where fused disconnects are 
used, the fuse shall have appropriate DC ratings. 

6. AC Disconnects - All AC disconnects shall be rated to interrupt the necessary 
voltage and current for the application and be listed by a nationally recognized 
testing laboratory.  Where located outdoors disconnects shall be NEMA 3R.  The 
AC disconnect shall be appropriately located per the utility’s requirements and its 
location shall be noted on the one-line electrical drawing. 

7. Interconnection Circuit Breaker - The Developer shall provide the appropriate 
size, make, and model circuit breaker for the specified AC interconnection 
switchgear that is suitable for back feed in accordance with NEC 690.64. 

8. Wiring and Conduit 

a. All system wiring shall be of an MEC approved wiring method.  All 
conductors shall have a temperature rating of 90 degrees C or lower. 

b. All conductors shall be copper, sized appropriately to minimize line losses. 

c. All conduits used in interior building applications shall be electro metallic 
tubing (“EMT”). 

d. All exterior conduits shall be hot dipped galvanized EMT with weather tight 
compression fittings and expansion joints as required. 

e. Expansion fittings shall be used in conduit runs in compliance with MEC 
article 300.7.  A value of 144°F (80°C) shall be used for the maximum change 
in temperature (delta T) in the calculation of conduit expansion. 

f. All conduits shall be bonded at each end using listed bonding bushings. 

g. Where conduit is attached to roofs, fully flashed, non ferrous stanchions shall 
allow for expansion and contraction.  For roof-mounted conditions, conduits 
shall be supported at a height greater than 3.5 inches by fully flashed, non 
ferrous stanchions.  Manufacturer’s approved surface applied stanchions shall 
be used on membrane roofs. 

h. All outdoor electrical enclosures shall be NEMA 3R and have watertight 
connections. 

i. Exposed cables shall be listed as sunlight resistant and have a temperature 
rating of 90°C.  These conductors shall be properly secured and well 
supported.  Conductors are not permitted to be resting on the abrasive surfaces 
such as asphalt shingles. 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0632740.1 } E-4 

 

j. All wiring and conductors installed in subsurface applications shall be housed 
in utility grade PVC conduit(s) sufficiently covered and include trench 
warning identification.  Spare conduits shall also be installed with a 
volumetric capacity of at least 25% of the original service.  In the event 
subsurface conduits are exposed to vehicular traffic, concrete encasement 
shall be included. 

9. PV System Grounding - The PV System shall be properly grounded in 
accordance with all applicable requirements of local electrical, MEC and NEC 
codes. 

10. PV Array 

a. PV Modules 

i. Modules shall be UL 1703 listed. 

b. Mounting Systems 

i. In all installations, the mounting system shall promote ambient air 
circulation beneath and above modules to enhance efficiency.  The lower 
edge of the panels on the mounting should be designed to eliminate power 
production losses from snow coverage and provide a comfortable working 
height for maintenance. 

ii. Modules shall be individually removable for maintenance and repair. 

iii. The mounting system, regardless of application, shall be designed to meet 
or exceed requirements of all applicable state and local building codes, 
including wind speed, snow and seismic load requirements.  The 
Developer shall describe and document the wind and snow loads that the 
PV System is designed to withstand. 

iv. For ballasted roof mounted systems, the Developer shall provide a 
manufacturer’s comprehensive designed system.  The Professional 
Engineer responsible for this portion of work shall also be licensed in the 
state of Massachusetts. 

v. In the event an existing lightning protection system is modified or 
augmented, the Developer is responsible for UL recertification. 

vi. Each module row or column must be separated to minimize shadowing 
effects on other modules.  The spacing between modules shall be noted on 
the PV layout drawing. 

vii. For all PV Systems with roof penetration points through previously 
warranted roofs, and provided that Host has delivered a true, complete and 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0632740.1 } E-5 

 

correct copy of such roof warranty to Developer prior to the Effective 
Date, then the Developer is responsible for designing and installing the PV 
System in compliance with such that roof warranty to ensure that it is not 
voided. 

11. Installation Requirements 

a. If the PV System interconnects to a building owned by Host and located on 
the Property, the output of the PV inverter(s) shall not interfere with or 
damage the function of existing building electrical distribution systems.  All 
serviceable components must be “accessible” as defined by the MEC article 
100.  The installation shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
building codes including the latest Massachusetts Electrical Code.  The 
Developer shall not, under any circumstance, operate switchgear forming part 
of the main distribution system.  The Developer shall coordinate with the Host 
to operate the switchgear to disconnect or re-energize loads.  Advanced notice 
shall be given to the Host for interconnection of PV System output or if the 
switchgear is to be turned off. 

b. The PV System electrical work must be performed by individuals licensed in 
Massachusetts. 

c. The PV System must be installed according to the manufacturer’s instructions 
and in compliance with all applicable codes and standards. 

d. The Developer is responsible for all aspects of the local electric utility 
interconnection agreement including the submission of Schedule Z to 
accommodate any Net Metering or Alternative On-bill Credit arrangement 
requested by CVEC or the Host.  An application must be submitted to the 
local electric utility, with or without Schedule Z as appropriate, to start the 
formal interconnection process, and sufficient lead time should be allowed to 
successfully achieve interconnection under the local electric utility 
interconnection standards.  All PV Systems must have an appropriate electric 
utility interconnection agreement in place at the time of interconnection to the 
utility grid. 

e. All pertinent permits and inspections must be obtained and copies kept on file 
as may be required by local codes and/or state law. 

f. All PV Systems shall include appropriate surge arresters or other means to 
protect the PV System components from lightning and other surge events.  It 
is the responsibility of the Developer to ensure that the installation meets any 
local, state or federal building and electrical laws that address lightning and 
surge protection. 

12. PV System Warranty Requirements 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0632740.1 } E-6 

 

a. Developer Warranty.  All PV Systems must have a minimum five (5) year 
labor warranty provided by the Developer to protect the Host against defective 
workmanship, PV System or component breakdown, or degradation in 
electrical output of more than fifteen percent from their originally rated 
electrical output during the warranty period.  The warranty must cover the PV 
System, including PV modules (panels) and inverter(s), racking, conduit run, 
and components, and provide for no-cost repair or replacement of the PV 
System, components, including any associated labor during the warranty 
period. 

b. Manufacturer Warranty.  All major equipment must meet the following 
minimum manufacturer warranties: 

i. Photovoltaic Module: Minimum of one (1) year product warranty from 
date of sale to first consumer purchaser for product workmanship and 
materials, plus a minimum performance warranty of twenty (20) years 
within which time the module will produce, under standard test conditions, 
a minimum of 80% of the product’s minimum rated power at time of sale. 

ii. Inverters: Minimum of ten (10) years product warranty from date of sale 
to first consumer purchaser for product workmanship and materials. 

iii. Batteries: Minimum of ten (10) years product warranty from date of sale to 
first consumer purchaser for product workmanship and materials. 

iv. Revenue grade production meters: Minimum of two (2) years following 
the effective commercial operation date that the meter system will be free 
from all defects in design, materials and workmanship.  v. Mounting 
equipment: The Developer shall obtain from the mounting system 
manufacturer(s) a warranty that the mounting system(s) will be free from 
all defects in design, materials and workmanship for a period of ten (10) 
years following the effective commercial operation date.   

13. Electricity Production Meter Requirements - All PV Systems must have a 
dedicated revenue grade production meter that: 

a. is readily accessible and easily understood by the Host; 

b. records the PV System’s AC output as measured on the AC side of the PV 
System’s isolation transformer; 

c. shall be separate from the local utility billing meter and shall not interfere 
with utility billing or net metering; 

d. must be a standard utility “revenue quality” meter that conforms to applicable 
American National Standards Institute (“ANSI”) C-12 standards and shall be 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0632740.1 } E-7 

 

installed on the AC output side of the PV System’s inverter or isolation 
transformer; and 

e. shall have a visible display of cumulative energy produced by the PV System 
and be available for periodic testing and/or re-calibration, if necessary. 

14. Automated Reporting - All PV Systems must include an automated reporting 
system, i.e.  Data Acquisition System (“DAS”) which will report to the 
Massachusetts Renewable Energy Trust (“MRET”) Production Tracking System 
(“PTS”) and detail view be accessible to CVEC and Host.  In addition, the public 
will have access to a Public View from the DAS.  Where Battery Energy Storage 
System is proposed, automated and manual system controls must be provided 
which will be accessible to CVEC and Host offsite through high speed internet 
online access. 

 

C. Commissioning Requirements 

1. Commissioning Procedure -  At a minimum, the Developer’s sample testing and 
commissioning plan shall cover: 

a. measurement and recording of voltage-open-circuit of every source circuit; 

b. performance of inverter startup tests as specified by the inverter manufacturer 
in the inverter operation manual; 

c. measurement of AC power and comparison to predicted power based upon 
estimated irradiance level; 

d. performance of loss of grid test and verification of five minute delay upon 
restoration of the grid; and 

e. measurement and recording of Imp of every source circuit, measured at each 
combiner box (source circuit measurements should be done under uniform 
irradiance conditions and the time of the first and last measurements taken at 
each combiner box should be recorded). 

2. The Developer shall verify that the data acquisition/display system and, where 
applicable, the Battery Energy Storage System controls, are functioning properly, 
comparing independent measurements to data acquisition display and able to 
switch Battery Energy Storage System configurations and operations. 

3. The Developer shall correct, at no additional cost to the Host, any deficiencies 
uncovered by the testing prior to commissioning of the PV System. 

D. Training Requirements 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0632740.1 } E-8 

 

The Developer shall train the Host or staff at the Premises on basic principles of 
operation, maintenance requirements, on-line data monitoring and system controls, and 
safety issues that are specific to the PV System installed (including points of contact in 
emergency situations).  An operations manual to accompany the training will be 
delivered to the Host and to CVEC. 

E. Documentation Requirements 

1. Documentation – The Developer shall prepare an Operations and Maintenance 
manual for the PV System.  In addition, the Contractor shall provide CVEC and 
the Host each with one (1) printed copy and one (1) digital copies on CD of the 
information listed below. 

2. The documentation shall include: 

a. A complete set of all approved shop drawings, a list of equipment and 
products used, and product literature.  The list of equipment shall include the 
manufacturer, brand name, model (if applicable), equipment components, 
recommended maintenance procedures for each piece of equipment, 
approximate amount of product installed and materials contained in the 
product. 

b. Record drawings showing, to scale, the location of all arrays, locations of 
major equipment, including combiner box clusters, all underground and major 
conduit runs, grounding electrodes and specific locations to building or utility 
connections points.  The record drawings shall also contain detailed DC and 
AC electrical schematics. 

c. The Permission to Operate provided by the Local Distribution Company. 

d. Trouble shooting guidelines. 

e. PV System maintenance schedule and procedures. 

f. Contact information for technical assistance and parts ordering. 

g. Records of all warranties and serial numbers of all warranted equipment. 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0632740.1 } F-1 

 

EXHIBIT F 

POWER PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN DEVELOPER AND CVEC 

 



4846-7077-1290.3 
 

 

{A0632740.1 } G-1 

 

EXHIBIT G 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL POWER SALES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN CVEC AND HOST 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
 

Barnstable County 
3295 Main Street 
Barnstable, MA 02630 

and 
 
Bailit Health Purchasing, LLC 
56 Pickering Street 
Needham, MA 02492 
 
 
THIS AGREEMENT is made this 30th day of March 2020 by and between BAILIT HEALTH 
PURCHASING, LLC (hereinafter referred to as Contractor) and Barnstable County 
Administrator (County), but without any personal liability. 

 WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and County for the consideration hereinafter named agree 
as follows:  

WHEREAS: The process followed MA General Law Chapter 30B; 

 

 WHEREAS: The County issued a Request for Written Quotes (RFQ); and  

 
WHEREAS: The Contractor is a vendor with an approved Master Blanket Purchase Order on 
COMMBUYS and who provided the lowest quote.  
  
NOW THEREFORE, the County and the Contractor do mutually agree as follows: 

1.   Employment of Contractor.   The Vendor hereby agrees to perform the services 
hereinafter set forth in the Scope of Services.  Contractor hereby agrees to hold the 
County harmless from any claims regarding worker's compensation benefits, 
unemployment compensation benefits, retirement benefits, or any other benefit normally 
attributable to the status of "employee" and Contractor specifically agrees to pay for all 
damages incurred by the County or Town, including costs, benefits, and reasonable attorney 
fees in the event the Contractor files such claim. 
 
2.   Scope of Services.  The Contractor shall perform the scope of services as set forth in the 
Barnstable County’s Request for Written Quotes and the Contractor’s proposal dated March 
10, 2020 both incorporated by reference herein as Attachment A.   
 
3.  Time of Performance.  April 8, 2020 - June 30, 2022. 
 
4.  Payment and Invoicing. A maximum of $68,616.00 will be paid according to the schedule 
below: 

a. $20,000.00 payable upon contract execution; 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4BCBEB35-E9D5-4DAD-AB0A-9D2C7E1EBA81DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



Bailit Contract 
OD2A Evaluation 

April 8, 2020- June 30, 2022 
2 

 

b. $20,000.00 payable following delivery of proposed evaluation and monitoring 
plan (Due by May 31, 2020); 

c. $ 8,804.00 payable upon receipt of final evaluation and monitoring plan (By June 
30, 2020); 

d. $4,953 payable upon submission of quarterly monitoring reports (Invoice due 
12/31/20 for quarterly reports June – Sept 2020 and Oct – Dec 2020)  

e.  $ 4,953 payable upon submission of quarterly monitoring reports (Invoice due 
6/30/21 for quarterly reports Jan – March 2021 and April – June 2021) 

f. $4,953 payable upon submission of quarterly monitoring reports (Invoice due 
12/31/21 for quarterly reports June – Sept 2021 and Oct – Dec 2021)  

g.  $ 4,953 payable upon submission of quarterly monitoring reports (Invoice due 
6/30/22 for quarterly reports Jan – March 2022 and April – June 2022) 
 

 
5.  Termination or Suspension of Contract for Cause.  If through any sufficient cause, the 
Customer or the County shall fail to fulfill or perform its duties and obligations under this 
Contract, or if either party shall violate or breach any of the provisions of this Contract, 
either party shall thereupon have the right to terminate or suspend this Contract, by giving 
written notice to the other party of such termination or suspension and specifying the 
effective date thereof. Such notice shall be given at least fifteen (15) calendar days before 
such effective date. 

 
6. Termination for Convenience of County. The County shall have the right to discontinue 
the work of the Contractor and cancel this contract by written notice to the Contractor of 
such termination and specifying the effective date of such termination.  In the event of such 
termination or suspension of this Contract, the Contractor shall be entitled to just and 
equitable compensation for satisfactory work completed, for services performed and for 
reimbursable expenses  necessarily incurred in the performance of this Contract up to 
and including the date of termination or suspension. 
 
7.  Changes.  The County may, from time to time, require changes in the Scope of Services to 
be performed hereunder.   Such changes, including any increase or decrease in the amount 
of the Contract, which are mutually agreed upon by the County and the Contractor, shall 
be incorporated in written amendments to this Contract. 
 
8.  Non-Discrimination in Employment and Affirmative Action.  The Customer shall take 
affirmative action to ensure that qualified applicants and employees are treated without 
regard to age, race, color, religion, sex, marital status, sexual orientation, national origin, 
disability, or Vietnam Era Veteran status. The Customer agrees  to  comply  with  all  
applicable  Federal  and  State  statutes,  rules  and  regulations prohibiting discrimination 
in employment including but not limited to: Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as 
amended; Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 1518§(1); the Americans with Disabilities 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4BCBEB35-E9D5-4DAD-AB0A-9D2C7E1EBA81DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



Bailit Contract 
OD2A Evaluation 

April 8, 2020- June 30, 2022 
3 

 

Act of 1990; and all relevant administrative orders and executive orders including Executive 
Order 246. 
 
 
9.  Subcontracting.  None of the services to be provided to the County pursuant to this 
Contract shall be subcontracted or delegated in whole or in part to any other organization, 
association, individual, corporation, partnership or other such entity without the prior 
written approval of the Towns. No subcontract or delegation shall relieve or discharge the 
Customer from any obligation or liability under this Contract except as specifically set 
forth in the instrument of approval. If this Contract is funded in whole or in part with 
federal funds, Contractor further agrees to comply with the provisions of the Office of 
Management and Budget Circular A-110, as amended, with respect to taking affirmative 
steps to utilize the services of small and minority firms, women's business enterprises and 
labor surplus area firms. All subcontracts shall be in writing and shall contain provisions 
which are functionally identical to, and consistent with, the provisions of this Contract. 
The County shall have the right to obtain a copy of the subcontract upon request. 
 
10.  Interest of Members of County and Others.  No officer, member or employee of the 
County, and no member of its governing body of the locality or localities in which the 
Project is situated or being carried out who exercises any functions or responsibility in the 
review or approval of the undertaking or carrying out of the Project, shall participate in 
any decision relating to this Contract which affects his personal interest or the interest of 

any corporation, partnership, or association in which he is directly or indirectly 

f i n a n c i a l l y  interested or has any personal or pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in 
this Contract or the proceeds thereof. 
 
11.   Interest of Contractor.   The Contractor covenants that it presently has no interest 
and shall not acquire any interest directly or indirectly which would conflict in any manner 
or degree with the performance of its services hereunder. 
 
12.  Assignability. The Contractor shall not assign any interest in this Contract and shall not 
transfer any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation), without the prior 
written consent of the Towns or County thereto; provided, however that claims for money 
due or to become due the Contractor from the Towns under this Contract may be assigned 
to a bank, trust company, or other financial institution without such approval. Notice of any 
such assignment or transfer shall be furnished promptly to the County. 
 
13.  Recordkeeping, Audit, and Inspection of Records.  The Contractor shall maintain books, 
records, and other compilations of data pertaining to the requirements of the Contract to 
the extent and in such detail as shall properly substantiate claims for payment under the 
Contract. All such records shall be kept for a period of seven (7) years or for such longer 
period as is specified herein. All retention periods start on the first day after final payment 
under this Contract. If any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit or other action involving the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4BCBEB35-E9D5-4DAD-AB0A-9D2C7E1EBA81DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



Bailit Contract 
OD2A Evaluation 

April 8, 2020- June 30, 2022 
4 

 

records is commenced prior to the expiration of the applicable retention period, all 
records shall be retained until completion of the action and resolution of all issues resulting 
therefrom, or until the end of the applicable retention period, whichever is later.  If this 
contract is funded in whole or in part with state or federal funds, the state or federal 
grantor agency, the County or any of its duly authorized representatives or designees, 
shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice, to examine and 
copy, at reasonable expense, the books, records and other compilations of data of the 
Contractor which pertain to the provisions and requirements of this Contract. Such access 
shall include on-site audits, review and copying of records. 
 
14.  Findings Confidential.  Any reports, information, data, etc., given to or prepared or 
assembled by the Contractor under this Contract which the Towns requests to be kept as 
confidential shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the 
Contractor without the prior written approval of the County or Towns. 
 
15.  Publication, Reproduction and Use of Material.  No material produced in whole or in 
part under this Contract shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any other 
country. The County and Towns shall have the unrestricted authority to publish, disclose, 
distribute, and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials 
prepared under this Contract. 
 
 
16.  Political Activity Prohibited.  None of the services to be provided by the Contractor 
shall be used for any partisan political activity or to further the election or defeat of any 
candidate for public office. 
 
17.  Anti-Boycott Warranty.   During the term of this Contract, neither the Contractor nor 
any "affiliated company" as hereafter defined, shall participate in or cooperate with an 
international boycott, as defined in Section 999 (b) (3) and (4) of the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1954, as amended by the Tax Reform Act of 1986, or engage in conduct declared to be 
unlawful by Sections 2 and 3 of Chapter 151E, Massachusetts General Laws. As used 
herein, an "affiliated company" shall be any business entity of which at least 51% of the 
ownership interested is directly or indirectly owned by the Contractor or by a person or 
persons or business entity or entities which directly or indirectly own at least 51% of the 
ownership interests of the Contractor. 
 
18.   Choice of Law.   This Contract shall be construed under and governed by the laws of 
the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Contractor and the agents thereof, agree to 
bring any federal or state legal proceedings arising under this Contract, in which the County 
or Towns are a party, in a court of competent jurisdiction within the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts. This paragraph shall not be construed to limit any rights a party may have 
to intervene in any action, wherever pending, in which the other is a party.  All parties to this 
contract and covenant agree that any disputes be litigated in the District or Superior courts 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4BCBEB35-E9D5-4DAD-AB0A-9D2C7E1EBA81DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



Bailit Contract 
OD2A Evaluation 

April 8, 2020- June 30, 2022 
5 

 

in Barnstable County. 
 
19.  Force Majeure.  Neither party shall be liable to the other nor be deemed to be in 
breach of this Contract for failure or delay in rendering performance arising out of causes 
factually beyond its control and without its fault or negligence. Such causes may include 
but are not limited to acts of God or the public enemy, wars, fires, floods, epidemics, 
strikes, or unusually severe weather. Dates or times of performance shall be extended to 
the extent of delays excused by this section, provided that the party whose performance is 
affected notifies the other promptly of the existence and nature of such delay. 
 
20.   Compliance with Laws.   The Contractor shall promptly comply with all applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, ordinances, orders and requirements of the Commonwealth and any 
state or federal governmental authority relating to the delivery of the services described in 
this Contract subject to section 18 above.  Unless otherwise provided by law, the 
Contractor shall promptly pay all fines, penalties and damages that may arise out of or are 
imposed because of the Contractor's failure to comply with the provisions of this section 
and, shall indemnify the County or Towns against any liability incurred as a result of a 
violation of this section. If the Contractor receives federal funds pursuant to this 
Contact, Contractor understands and agrees to comply with all federal requirements 
including but not limited to audit requirements. Not-for-Profit entities that receive federal 
funds from the County or Towns must comply with the audit requirements outlined in the 
Office of Management and Budget OMB Circular A-133. 
 
21.   Headings, Interpretation and Severability.   The headings used herein are for 
reference and convenience only and shall not be a factor in the interpretation of the 
Contract. If any provision of this Contract is declared or found to be illegal, unenforceable, 
or void, then both parties shall be relieved of all obligations under that provision. The 
remainder of the Contract shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

 

22.  Waiver of Liability.  The Contractor and the County hereby covenant and agree to 
waive any and all claims against Barnstable County and release Barnstable County from any 
liability arising out of the Scope of Services described in the attached “Exhibit A” brought by 
the Contractor.   

 

23.  Vendors shall submit invoices within 60 days of completing the work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4BCBEB35-E9D5-4DAD-AB0A-9D2C7E1EBA81DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



Bailit Contract 
OD2A Evaluation 

April 8, 2020- June 30, 2022 
6 

 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County and Contractor have executed this Agreement this 
________day of _________ in the year two thousand and twenty. 
 
 
 
FOR THE COUNTY: 
 
County Commissioners: 
 
 
     
 
 
 
    ________________________________ 
   Date 
    
 
   FOR THE CONTRACTOR: 
     
                                                                                      
 
                                                                                       
   Date 
   
  
 
   
 
 ____  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 4BCBEB35-E9D5-4DAD-AB0A-9D2C7E1EBA81

31st

3/31/2020 | 4:19 PM EDT

March

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6

4/17/2020



ATTACHMENT A  

BARNSTABLE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF HUMAN SERVICES 

REQUEST FOR QUOTES 

 

Introduction 

Barnstable County Department of Human Services (BCDHS) was recently awarded a grant from the 

Massachusetts Department of Public Health’s Bureau of Substance Addiction Services.   The grant 

is provided with funding from the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) - Overdose 

Data to Action (OD2A) Initiative.    A consultant will be hired by BCDHS to provide program 

evaluation and monitoring planning for two new programs: 1.) WellStrong Peer Wellness 

Coaching (PWC) Startup Program and 2.) Expansion of the Recovery Support Navigator (RSN) 

Program to the Town of Dennis.  Wellstrong and Duffy are sub-grantees to BCDHS. 

Program 1: WellStrong Peer Wellness Coaching Program  

The programs' evaluation needs will form the basis upon which program monitoring and data 

collection are planned. Preparations for planning data collection, monitoring, and evaluation 

will take place in the winter and spring of 2020, in collaboration with our OD2A sub-grantees 

and with help from outside consultants. The proposed program is new to WellStrong. We do not 

wish to overlook opportunities for evaluating it and therefore will value guidance from our 

BSAS Contract Advisor and associated evaluators. 

We foresee the development of the Evaluation Plans and the selection of indicators as a 

collaborative process, informed by the evidence base, which includes the following 

participants: 

• BCDHS MOAPC (Mass. Opioid Abuse Prevention Collaborative grant) staff (Harik 

and Slade) 

• Consultants experienced in evaluation planning for substance use-related programs and 

services. 

• The sub-grantee (WellStrong; Amy Doherty-CEO) 

• Barnstable County RSAC Harm Reduction and Recovery Workgroup members 

(selected). 

Start-up Phase (January – June 2020, 6 Months) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



2 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

WellStrong Falmouth, (http://www.wellstrong.org/) will start a Peer Wellness Coaching (PWC) 

Program for their members in the spring of 2020. In the spring and summer of 2020 WellStrong 

will be serving as an internship placement for up to 8 graduates of Cape Cod Community 

College's Recovery Coaching Academy.  At WellStrong the interns will receive  80 hours 

towards their Recovery Coach certification requirements and will be developed as Peer Wellness 

Coaches using the SAMHSA/HRSA-approved Whole Health Action Management (WHAM) 

training program (see https://www.integration.samhsa.gov/health-wellness/wham).  

Thereafter, two of the interns will be offered employment by WellStrong as PWCs and they 

will be overseen by a Certified Recovery Coach who is also certified to supervise. 

During the Start-up Phase the BCDHS will be supporting the costs of stipends for 8 interns and 

the costs of their supervision by the Recovery Coach ($16,520 total). 

Implementation Phase (July 2020 – June 2022, 2 years) 

Well Strong’s annual budget for the PWC Program is $111,420.  BCDHS (via BSAS OD2A grant 

funding) will fund $31,000 of the program in each of Years 1 and 2 of the program. 

BCDHS funding will support 0.5 FTE of one PWC, oversight of the PWC by a certified supervisory 

Recovery Coach, program coordination and other startup and operating costs.  A total of 2.0 

FTE Peer Wellness Coaches (1.5 FTEs of which will be funded via other sources) will serve 20 

clients each per year (total of 40). 

Evaluation and Monitoring Scope of Work 

The consultant will provide the BCDHS with a 2-year Program Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. 

Indicators  

Consultant will be required to identify and justify indicators for measurement of success.  

Preliminarily, indicators and information of importance to the evaluation of the programs may 

include: 

1. Outcome indicators recommended by BSAS or its affiliated research/evaluation partners. 

2. Outcome indicators of success relevant to participation in peer-based recovery support 

services and in Recovery Community Centers, via review of the relevant peer-reviewed and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6

http://www.wellstrong.org/
https://www.integration.samhsa.gov/health-wellness/wham


3 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

grey literature. For example, a recent paper (2017) by Dr. John Kelly and his team at 

MGH/Harvard's Recovery Research Institute1discusses the relevant features of peer-based 

recovery support services and Recovery Community Centers that correlate with successful 

client outcomes. We will require assistance from the consultants to select indicators that 

will be most relevant to the proposed program. 

3. Outcome indicators suggested by a review of the relevant peer-reviewed and grey 

literature on contribution of personal health and wellness activates to SUD recovery. 

 

4. Assessment and monitoring of Recovery Capital of program participants along 4 sub-

channels, pre- and post-participation (as deemed relevant): 

a. Social capital: The sum of resources that each person has as a result of their 

relationships. This includes both support from and obligations to groups to which 

they belong. 

b. Physical capital: Tangible assets such as stable employment or housing, access to 

a healthy diet and fulfilling activities. 

c. Human capital: Skills, positive health, aspirations and hopes, and personal resources 

that will enable the individual to prosper, including educational attainment and 

skills, which are key aspects of human capital and will help with some of the problem 

solving that is required on a recovery journey. 

d. Cultural capital: The values, beliefs and attitudes that link to social integration.  

Data Collection  

BCHDS MOAPC staff have significant experience with data collection, analysis, and 

reporting and will be able to provide technical assistance to WellStrong to implement 

the evaluation plan which the consultants deliver. 

The consultant will develop data collection structures and processes that will ensure the 

selected program and outcome indicators are being measured and reported upon. 

 
1 Kelly, J.F. (2017) Report of Findings from a Systematic Review of the Scientific Literature on Recovery Support 

Services in the United States. Recovery Research Institute: Massachusetts General Hospital and Harvard Medical 

School. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



4 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

The consultant will work closely with designated WellStrong staff to oversee and support data 

collection activities.  The consultant will liaise with BCDHS as needed for support of data 

collection and reporting by WellStrong. 

Timeline 

SFY20 (6 Months, January — June 2020)  

Month 1 (January 2020): Discussions between Barnstable MOAPC staff, WellStrong, and our 

BSAS Contract Manager/Advisor provider will take place to develop a scope of work for 

development of the evaluation, monitoring, and data collection plans for the project. 

Month 2 (February 2020): Dissemination of evaluation scope of work to selected vendors on 

MA Professional Services Contract PRF61 (Management Consultants, Program Coordinators, 

and Planners Services Statewide Contract). Engagement of selected evaluation consultant. 

Month 3-4 (March & April 2020): Meetings with and between BCDHS, the evaluation 

consultant, and WellStrong to support consultant's drafting of the program evaluation and 

monitoring plans. Signature of contract between BCDHS and WellStrong, as necessary. 

Months 6 (June 2020): Finalization of consultant's program Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. 

SFY21 (12 Months, July 2020 — June 2021)  

Quarterly (September/December/March/June): Collation of data by consultant via reporting 

formats set forth in Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. Intra-quarter monitoring of quantity and 

quality of income data by consultant with feedback and technical support to WellStrong, as 

needed.  Consultant will provide BCDHS with a Quarterly Summary of Activities and Progress 

(scope TBD). 

Month 12 (June 2021): Delivery of Year 2 Program Evaluation and Monitoring Annual Report by 

consultant (scope TBD). 

 SFY22 (12 Months, July 2021 — June 2022)  

Quarterly (September/December/March/June): Collation of data by consultant via reporting 

formats set forth in Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. Intra-quarter monitoring of quantity and 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



5 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

quality of income data by consultant with feedback and technical support to WellStrong, as 

needed.  Consultant will provide BCDHS with a Quarterly Summary of Activities and Progress 

(scope TBD). 

Month 12 (June 2022): Delivery of Year 2 Program Evaluation and Monitoring Annual Report by 

consultant (scope TBD). 

Background on Wellstrong 

WellStrong is a nonprofit, peer-run, community recovery center for people in recovery from 

substance use disorder which offers opportunities for fitness, wellness and health.  In the two 

years that WellStrong has been open, it has grown from a volunteer organization with one 

part-time employee to having six part-time employees, each in recovery, as well eight paid 

class instructors, most of whom are in recovery. In January 2020, two part-time employees will 

rise to full-time management positions. 

WellStrong offers a variety of fitness, yoga and meditation classes, as well as meetings and 

open gym time. It’s a place where members come not only for class, but to connect before and 

after. It is a safe space for new members who are greeted with empathy, understanding and 

guidance when they walk through the doors. 

Wellstrong’s total annual budget is $275,000, which supports 5 FTE employees and 5 volunteer 

staff, gymnasium space and the costs of associated equipment and supplies. WellStrong serves 

over 600 people per year and is the Recovery Community Center to which treatment providers 

(inpatient and outpatient) refer clients living in the upper-Cape area who are newly in recovery. 

Among their 609 participants last year: 

• 245 (40%) were still receiving in-patient treatment services but had been connected 

proactively to WellStrong to begin participating in a recovery community. 

• 219 (36%) were within 0-6 months of beginning recovery; 

• and 110 (18%) were within 7-12 months of beginning recovery. 

Not all of these clients have access to formal Recovery Coaching services. But all are greatly 

aided in their recovery by being able to join communities of like-minded persons. WellStrong 

provides a communal context centered on health for people in recovery.  In 2020 it will expand 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



6 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

its services to include one-on-one health and life coaching to further support members via an 

evidence-based intervention. 

Peer Wellness Coaches (PWCs) are an emerging professional designation akin to CHWs and 

Patient Navigators (https://www.integration.samhsa.gov/workforce/team-members/peer-

providers).  In early recovery, after finding the security of a place to live, there are other day-

to-day aspects of wellness that must be fulfilled such as medical health, mental health, 

emotional health, stress management and nutrition. Peer Wellness Coaching services at 

WellStrong will help clients create a wellness plan, set and meet goals in all areas of wellness, 

help keep the clients accountable to action items they have set in their plan, and address client 

needs/provide referrals beyond WellStrong to recovery support services. 

 

Project # 2 Recover Support Navigator 

 A consultant will be hired by BCDHS to provide program evaluation and monitoring planning 

for Duffy Health Center’s expansion of its Recovery Support Navigator (RSN) Program to the 

Town of Dennis (https://www.duffyhealthcenter.org/).  Duffy is already providing contracted 

RSN services to the Town of Yarmouth, MA; Dennis is adjacent to Yarmouth.  Duffy will the 

BCDHS’ sub-grantee implementing the program. 

The programs' evaluation needs will form the basis upon which program monitoring and data 

collection are planned. Preparations for planning data collection, monitoring, and evaluation 

will take place in the winter and spring of 2020, in collaboration with our OD2A sub-grantee and 

with help from outside consultants. We do not wish to overlook opportunities for evaluating 

the RSN Program and therefore will value guidance from our BSAS Contract Advisor and 

associated evaluators. 

We foresee the development of the Evaluation Plans and the selection of indicators as a 

collaborative process, informed by the evidence base, which includes the following 

participants: 

• BCDHS MOAPC (Mass. Opioid Abuse Prevention Collaborative grant) staff (Harik 

and Slade) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6

https://www.integration.samhsa.gov/workforce/team-members/peer-providers
https://www.integration.samhsa.gov/workforce/team-members/peer-providers
https://www.duffyhealthcenter.org/


7 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

• Consultants experienced in evaluation planning for substance use-related programs and 

services. 

• The sub-grantee (Duffy Health Center, Heidi Nelson-CEO, and Daniel Rodrigues, 

Associate Director) 

• Barnstable County RSAC Harm Reduction and Recovery Workgroup members 

(selected). 

Duffy RSN Program Expansion to the Town of Dennis 

Start-up Phase (4 Months, March – June 2020) 

Duffy Health Center will extend its Yarmouth RSN services to the citizens of the Town of Dennis.  

Starting in March 2020 10 hours of service per week will be available, contracted at an hourly 

rate of $30, payable to Duffy by the BCDHS on behalf of the Town of Dennis ($5,000 total).  

During this period Dennis will be encouraged to identify resources to support these services in 

FY21 and FY22. 

Implementation Phase (2 Years, July 2020 – June 2022) 

In FY21 and FY22 BCDHS will provide program support for RSN services of $6,000 (4 

hours/week) and $4,000 (2.5 hours/week) respectively.  The Town of Dennis is expected to 

provide funding if more hours per week of RSN services are desired. 

 

Program Monitoring and Evaluation Scope of Work 

The Evaluation Consultant will provide the BCDHS with a 2-year Program Evaluation and 

Monitoring Plan. 

Indicators  

Duffy already tracks the following RSN program client utilization indicators: 

• Demographics (gender, age, etc.) 

• Co-morbid conditions (e.g., mental health conditions) 

• Number of calls (initial, unduplicated calls) received from Yarmouth residents 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



8 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

• Type and number of contacts with the RSN (encounters, by phone, etc.) 

• Services accessed by Yarmouth residents, including: 

o Engagement with RSN 

o Participation in office based opioid treatment program, with counseling, either at 
Duffy or another health center or agency, as a result of this program 

o Participation in other substance use disorder counseling/treatment (such as use 
of mobile app for health and recovery, see below) 

o Additional community resources used, e.g. detox or other levels of care 

o Transportation provided (through taxi /bus vouchers) 

Collection of additional information may be necessary, as defined by the (pending) Evaluation 

and Monitoring Plan.  

The Evaluation Consultant will be required to identify and justify indicators for measurement of 

program success.  Preliminarily, indicators and information of importance to the evaluation of 

the programs may include: 

5. Outcome indicators recommended by BSAS or its affiliated research/evaluation partners. 

6. Outcome indicators of success relevant to participation in peer-based Recovery Support 

Navigator services via review of the relevant peer-reviewed and grey literature. We will 

require assistance from the Consultant to select indicators that will be most relevant to the 

proposed program. 

7. Outcome indicators suggested by a review of the relevant peer-reviewed and grey 

literature on contribution of personal health and wellness activates to SUD recovery. 

 

8. Assessment and monitoring of Recovery Capital of program participants along 4 sub-

channels, pre- and post-participation (as deemed relevant): 

e. Social capital: The sum of resources that each person has as a result of their 

relationships. This includes both support from and obligations to groups to which 

they belong. 

f. Physical capital: Tangible assets such as stable employment or housing, access to 

a healthy diet and fulfilling activities. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



9 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

g. Human capital: Skills, positive health, aspirations and hopes, and personal resources 

that will enable the individual to prosper, including educational attainment and 

skills, which are key aspects of human capital and will help with some of the problem 

solving that is required on a recovery journey. 

h. Cultural capital: The values, beliefs and attitudes that link to social integration.  

Data Collection  

As a FQHC Duffy Health Center has the capacity and experience to collect, process, 

analyze, and report on indicators and outcomes of significance.  

The Consultant will work with relevant Duffy staff regarding data collection structures and 

processes that will be relevant to the RSN Program evaluation.   

The Consultant will work with BCDHS as needed for support of data collection and reporting by 

Duffy. 

Timeline 

SFY20 (6 Months, January — June 2020)  

Month 1 (January 2020): Discussions between Barnstable MOAPC staff, Duffy, and our BSAS 

Contract Manager/Advisor provider will take place to develop a scope of work for 

development of the evaluation, monitoring, and data collection plans for the project. 

Month 2 (February 2020): Dissemination of evaluation scope of work to selected vendors on 

MA Professional Services Contract PRF61 (Management Consultants, Program Coordinators, 

and Planners Services Statewide Contract). Engagement of selected Evaluation Consultant.  

Signature of contract between BCDHS and Duffy Health Center. 

Month 3-4 (March & April 2020): Meetings with and between BCDHS, the Evaluation 

Consultant, and Duffy to support Consultant's drafting of the program evaluation and 

monitoring plans. 

Months 6 (June 2020): Finalization of consultant's program Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. 

SFY21 (12 Months, July 2020 — June 2021)  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



10 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Quarterly (September/December/March/June): Collation of data by Consultant via reporting 

formats set forth in Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. Intra-quarter monitoring of quantity and 

quality of income data by consultant with feedback and technical support to Duffy, as 

needed.  Consultant will provide BCDHS with a Quarterly Summary of Activities and Progress 

(scope TBD). 

Month 12 (June 2021): Delivery of Year 2 Program Evaluation and Monitoring Annual Report by 

consultant (scope TBD). 

 SFY22 (12 Months, July 2021 — June 2022)  

Quarterly (September/December/March/June): Collation of data by Consultant via reporting 

formats set forth in Evaluation and Monitoring Plan. Intra-quarter monitoring of quantity and 

quality of income data by Consultant with feedback and technical support to Duffy, as 

needed.  Consultant will provide BCDHS with a Quarterly Summary of Activities and Progress 

(scope TBD). 

Month 12 (June 2022): Delivery of Year 2 Program Evaluation and Monitoring Annual Report by 

Consultant (scope TBD). 

Background on Duffy Health Center Recovery Support Navigator (RSN) Services 

Duffy offers an integrated team approach to provide primary care, behavioral health, and case 

management services. An integral member of that team is a Recovery Support Navigator (RSN), 

who links patients to services, follows up with clients, and acts as advocate for persons with 

opioid use disorders, with the goal of keeping clients engaged in treatment and recovery. The 

Recovery Support Navigator is responsible for linking patients with providers and outside 

agencies arid to provide support, guidance, and advocacy.   

As noted, Duffy is already providing contracted RSN services to the Town of Yarmouth, MA.  

Beginning March 2020 a RSN employed by Duffy will be available to citizens of the Town of 

Dennis for approximately 10 hours per week for follow up and support of residents seeking 

treatment and counseling for substance use disorders. 

Residents will have a published phone number which provides direct access to a Recovery 

Support Navigator to link residents to treatment and other community resources.  In addition, 

the RSN will respond to requests from the Dennis police department and EMS staff to follow 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



11 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

up with Dennis residents needing services. This partnership will help maximize the care 

coordination with this program for Dennis residents.  Clients will also have access to a validated 

mobile app, myStrength (licensed to Duffy for clients and staff).2 

Services offered by the RSN will include client engagement, assistance with referrals to 

evidence based treatment and recovery options, and coordination with other organizations to 

assist clients in obtaining appropriate social services, resources, and assistance. The RSN is 

supervised by the Duffy Senior Director of Program Services, Patricia A. Cawley, LICSW, and is 

trained as a Recovery Coach, and has appropriate life/work experience. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
2  The MyStrength app allows users to address depression, anxiety, stress, substance use, chronic pain and 

sleep challenges, while also supporting the related physical and spiritual aspects of the person’s health 

https://mystrength.com/. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6

https://mystrength.com/


12 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Specifications for Submission: 

Submit a written quote to implement a 2-year Program Evaluation and Monitoring.  Quote must 

include an hourly rate/total cost proposal inclusive of all costs, qualifications, resumes of lead staff 

who will work on the project, and references from 3 projects similar in scope.  

Price proposals/quotes should not exceed $ $49,500 in year one and up to $10,000 in year two 

and $10,000 in year three.  

Submission deadline:  February 28, 2020 

Term: April 2020 – June 2022 

Submit quotes and required documentation to vharik@barnstablecounty.org 

 

 

March 10, 2020 
 
 
Ms. Beth Albert 
Director 
Barnstable County Department of Human Services 
P.O. Box 427  
Barnstable, MA 02630 
 
 
Dear Beth, 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit a response to the request for quotes by Barnstable 
County Department of Human Services (BCDHS)  to provide two-years of program evaluation 
and monitoring for the WellStrong Peer Wellness Coaching (PWC) Start-Up Program and 
Expansion of the Recovery Support Navigator (RSN) Program in the Town of Dennis. 
 
This response includes the firm’s background and qualifications, the key staff on the team and 
resumes for the lead staff, our approach to the work, major tasks, our rates, and total costs. We 
also have included three references.    
 
Bailit Health Background 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6

mailto:vharik@barnstablecounty.org


13 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
As you’re aware, Bailit Health Purchasing, LLC (Bailit Health) is a Massachusetts-based health 
care policy consulting firm that is over 20 years old.  We are dedicated to ensuring insurer and 
provider performance accountability on behalf of public agencies and employer purchasers and 
a range of other clients.  Consultants at Bailit Health have a broad and deep understanding of 
the health care system in Massachusetts and particularly with the behavioral health care, health 
plans and providers, and also bring expertise in evaluation and monitoring. 
  
We have recently been involved in a number of substance use disorder (SUD) related projects 
that support our qualifications and inform our work on this topic. They include: 
 

• Conducted an evaluation of program outcomes at the Thundermist, a Community 

Health Center in Rhode Island, where community health teams worked with primary 

care providers to support adults to access supports to address complex social, 

environmental, medical and behavioral health needs. 

Reference:  Marea Tumber, SIM Liaison and Project Advisor, Rhode Island Office of the 

Health Insurance Commissioner 

Email: Marea.Tumber@ohic.ri.gov  

Phone: 401-462-2144 

 

• Supporting the Massachusetts Blue Cross Blue Shield Foundation of Massachusetts in its 

behavioral health urgent care (BHUC) grant program for emergency service providers.  

This work includes the monitoring and evaluation of grantees in expanding programs to 

include BHUC.  

Reference: Jacquie Anderson; Senior Director of Grantmaking, BCBSMA Foundation 

Email: Jacquie.anderson@bcbsma.com 

Phone: 617-246-5434 

 

• A related policy brief for the Foundation on the barriers to expanding access to BHUC. 

 

• Supporting the Cambridge Health Alliance (CHA) Accountable Care Organization in its 

efforts to expand their substance use disorders preferred provider network. 

Reference: Colleen O’Brien, Psy.D, Clinical Director, Population Health, Cambridge 

Health Alliance 

Email: coobrien@challiance.org 

Phone: 617-575-5383 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6

mailto:Marea.Tumber@ohic.ri.gov
mailto:Jacquie.anderson@bcbsma.com
mailto:coobrien@challiance.org


14 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

• A published policy brief on the use of ASAM criteria in Medicaid Managed Care and 

prior authorization for State Health and Value Strategies.3 

 
The Bailit Health Team 
Beth Waldman, a senior consultant at Bailit Health and former Massachusetts Medicaid 
director, will serve as our project director. She has broad and diverse background in a range of 
consulting projects, including developing a SUD strategic plan for Barnstable County in 2015.  
Beth will be joined by Amy Lischko, a professor at Tufts University, former Commissioner of 
the Massachusetts Department of Health Care Finance and Policy, and senior consultant at 
Bailit Health who has extensive experience in evaluation and monitoring and would lead the 
design of the monitoring and evaluation for both programs, Ellie Shea-Delaney, a senior 
consultant at Bailit Health and former Assistant Commissioner for the Massachusetts 
Department of Mental Health in 2017, who brings a strong background in behavioral health 
services, including knowledge of peer support services such as Recovery Support Navigation 
and the Whole Health Action Management (WHAM) model, and Rachel Isaacson, a consultant 
at Bailit Health, who has done extensive research and drafted numerous documents for Bailit 
clients.  Resumes for each team member are included as Attachment A.  
 
Proposed Tasks 
To provide program evaluation and monitoring planning for WellStrong and Duffy for their 
new programs, Bailit Health will work closely with the grantees, BCDHS staff, and members of 
the Barnstable County RSAC Harm Reduction and Recovery Workgroup in order to develop 
evaluation plans and select indicators and measures to be included within those plans.   
 
We suggest an initial kick off meeting between BCDHS staff and the Bailit Health Team to 
understand the programs and projects from your perspective, followed by separate kick off 
meetings with Bailit Health, BCDHS staff and each of the grantees.  On an ongoing basis, we 
would suggest at bi-weekly calls with BCDHS staff and Bailit Health during the evaluation 
planning process, moving to quarterly meetings once the evaluation plan is put into place.  
Likewise, it will be important to have regular meetings with the grantees as part of the planning 
process, moving to quarterly once plan is in place.   
 
In developing the evaluation plans, Bailit Health proposes holding planning meetings with all 
participants, including BCDHS staff, the grantee and the Workgroup members.  Assuming that 
the members of the Workgroup will be participating in the development of both evaluation 
plans, we suggest conducting joint meetings to the extent feasible.  We expect that the 
evaluation plans will be similar, while the selected indicators and measures will differ across 
programs.  Potential indicators and measures will come from a variety of sources, including 
BSAS, literature reviews, and program specific reviews, such as indicators of success at 
Recovery Support Centers, and assessment and monitoring of Recovery Capitol of program 

 
3 The brief is accessible at https://www.shvs.org/resource/implementing-the-asam-criteria-for-sud-treatment-
through-medicaid-managed-care/  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6

https://www.shvs.org/resource/implementing-the-asam-criteria-for-sud-treatment-through-medicaid-managed-care/
https://www.shvs.org/resource/implementing-the-asam-criteria-for-sud-treatment-through-medicaid-managed-care/


15 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

participants, as appropriate for the WellStrong, PWC program. Additional indicators will be 
considered for Duffy’s RSN program on top of those indicators which are already tracked to 
provide indicators of success relevant to RSN services and relative to overall SUD recovery.  
 
Following the development of the evaluation and monitoring plan, Bailit Health will collate the 
data collected and provide quarterly monitoring of the data.  Bailit Health will develop a 
quarterly report for each program and will provide technical assistance to WellStrong and 
Duffy, as needed.  We recommend that quarterly reports be due 30 days following the end of 
each quarter, and the annual reports be due 60 days following the end of the year.  If you agree, 
this would extend the end date of the contract through August 31, 2022 to allow for full data 
collection.  If you are not able to extend the contract beyond June 2022, the final report could be 
based on the final 3 quarters of data instead of a full year.  
 
Below is a proposed high level work plan:  
 

Task Timeframe 

Kick off meetings  

• with BCDHS and Bailit Health 

• with BCDHS, Bailit Health and WellStrong 

• with BCDHS, Bailit Health and Duffy Health Center 

• with the Workgroup  

 

April 2020 

Develop proposed evaluation plan approach for both programs and 

identify potential measurement of success for each program including 

consideration of measures proposed by BSAS, identified sources and 

other appropriate options 

April/May 2020 

Work with BCHDS staff to develop data collection structures and 

processes for each program that will ensure that   outcome indicators 

for selected programs are being measured and reported on.  
 

May 2020 

Share draft program evaluation and monitoring plans for review 
and approval with BCDHS, grantees and Workgroup members.  
Each plan will include overall approach to evaluation and 
monitoring, indicators and measures to be collected, and a data 
collection approach. 

June 2020 

Finalize evaluation and monitoring plan including reporting 
formats 

June 2020 

Collation of data for both programs with technical support, as 
needed   

Quarterly between 
July 2020-June 2022 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



16 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Submit quarterly summary of activities and progress for both 
programs to BCDHS.  

Quarterly starting July 
2020 
through June 2022 

Submit program monitoring evaluation and monitoring annual 
report (FY21 and FY22).  We recommend that this report be due 
60 days following the end of the 4th quarter to allow for full 
analysis  

August 31, 2021 
August 31, 2022 

 
 
Budget 
Our proposed budget to complete this work is $48,804 from April 2020 – June 2020, and $9,906 
per year between July 2021 and August 2022 (per our recommendation above to extend the date 
for last quarterly and final report). For a detailed budget, see Attachment B.  Bailit will only bill 
Barnstable County for actual hours and expenses, so if we require fewer hours to complete the 
work, the budget could decrease.  We have estimated that the initial kick off meetings will all 
happen in the same day to reduce travel costs and that there will be one planning meeting that 
reviews both evaluation plans. 
 
Please let us know if you have any questions about the proposal.  We look forward to the 
potential to work with you again. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Beth Waldman 
 
cc: Michael Bailit 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



17 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Attachment A – Resumes 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



18 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
 
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



19 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

BETH WALDMAN, J.D., M.P.H. 
 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 
2007 - Present BAILIT HEALTH PURCHASING, LLC Needham, MA 
  Senior Consultant   

• Behavioral Health Care:  

• Supporting the Massachusetts BCBS Foundation’s behavioral health urgent care 
(BHUC) grant program through planning and facilitating of learning 
communities with grantees and implementing continuing grant guidelines; and 
developing a brief to identify barriers to BHUC and recommendations; 

• Supporting the Bureau for Substance Addiction Services (BSAS) within the 
Massachusetts Department of Public Health, including developing a 
procurement to serve for individuals committed to substance use treatment 
through the court system; 

• Developed issue brief for State Health and Value Strategies (SHVS) focused on 
the intersection of the ASAM criteria and managed care utilization review;  

• Supported a MA-based ACO in the development of a preferred substance use 
network; 

• Supported NH in the development and drafting of successful CMMI grants for 
Maternal Opioid Misuse (MOM), and for Integrated Care for Kids (InCK); 

• Worked with the Massachusetts Medicaid program and BSAS to develop and 
implement a SUD Waiver for the Commonwealth; lead drafter of SUD portion of 
state’s waiver request; assisting BSAS in considering impact of SUD Waiver on 
the state’s payor of last resort policy;  

• Participated in evaluation of CMS Medicaid Innovation Accelerator Program 
(IAP), in partnership with Abt Associates, focused on physical and mental health 
integration which provides technical support to states 

• Supported CO HCPF in improving coordination between Medicaid and the 
Department of Corrections and County Jails to better support Medicaid-eligible 
clients who are justice-involved 

• Worked with Neighborhood Health Plan of Rhode Island to support 
development of a behavioral health strategic plan; 

• Assisted Barnstable County (MA) in the development of a regional substance use 
plan, including holding focus group with key stakeholders on Cape Cod 

• Facilitated the MA CHIA-chaired Task Force on Behavioral Health Data and 
Long Term Stays 

• Facilitated Governor’s Opiate Task Force (MA) to identify potential solutions to 
public health emergency and priorities for spending $20M in emergency 
funding; 

• Worked with CO HCPF to design and develop a health home model, including a 
focus on individuals with SPMI; 

• Facilitated MA DMH-chaired Behavioral Health Integration Task Force; 

• Provided strategic direction and drafting for managed behavioral health carve-
out procurement in MA; previously led similar effort for the Iowa Medicaid 
Enterprise;  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



20 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

• Assisted Iowa in the transition of additional services (institutional and 
community based services) into the Iowa Plan through facilitation of transition 
committees.  

• Managed Care Procurements:  

• Supporting states in development and review of MCO procurements, including 
LA and TN; assisted MI, DC and VA in recently released procurements;   

• Providing ongoing support to MI in MCO contract management, including 
reporting on value-based purchasing and aligning that contract with new 
Medicaid managed care rules.  Also assisted in development of dental RFP and 
model contract and development of an EQRO procurement; 

• Supporting Medicaid health plan preparing to respond to a state’s dental RFP; 

• Co-authored a report for the California Health Care Foundation on how the state 
can use purchasing power and oversight to improve Medi-Cal Managed Care 
performance. 

• Annually facilitated day-long sessions on MCO procurement and value-based 
purchasing to select states on behalf of NASHP and State Health Value and 
Strategies (SHVS) Project between 2015-2018; topics included Medicaid managed 
care procurements; Medicaid managed care and VBP; Medicaid managed care 
and LTSS; and Medicaid managed care and Behavioral Health;  

• Developed Medicaid managed care toolkit for states to use to help guide 
development of procurements for SHVS 

• Revised NJ Medicaid managed care contract; 

• Drafted chapter on provider networks and delivery systems for the National 
Governors Association Medicaid Health Care Purchasing Compendium; 

• Supported Neighborhood Health Plan of RI in responding to state procurement 
in September 2016, previously led drafting of responses to Medicaid managed 
care procurements for MCOs in WA, TN, WI, CT and RI.  

• Payment Reform and Cost Containment Efforts:  

• Leading study for the Medicaid and CHIP Payment and Access Commission on 
use of Medicaid managed care to further payment and delivery system reform 
efforts in five states. Supporting Catalyst for Payment Reform in scan of 
Medicaid managed care contracts focused on contractual requirements for 
payment reform activities.  

• Assisting Michigan in developing and ongoing support of APM reporting and 
strategic planning templates and ongoing support of an APM Workgroup for 
Medicaid health plans to increase use of APMs across plans.  

• Supporting Network4Health, led by Catholic Medical Center (NH) and its 
partners, to meet state requirements as a DSRIP entity.  Supported CMC since 
inception of Network4Helath to develop the integrated delivery network as part 
of NH’s DSRIP initiative; served as lead drafter of successful IDN application 
and initial project plan submission.  

• Assisted OR in implement VBP framework as part of their 1115 Waiver, 
including developing the framework and facilitating a CCO APM Workgroup 
and supporting VBP requirements within CCO 2.0 RFP; previously assisted OR 
in development of strategy and tools to spread their Coordinated Care Model to 
other state agencies and employers 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



21 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

• Assisted Medicaid health plan in Rhode Island to implement Accountable Entity 
program; assisted FQHC in Rhode Island in responding to state’s Accountable 
Entity application.  

• Assisted hospital system in development of strategic plan focused on 
streamlining activities focused on avoidable emergency room and hospitalization 
usage.  

• Assisted Arizona in development and implementation of DSRIP-like program 
focused on behavioral health.  

• Developed tool to assist FQHCs in use of data when participating in risk-based 
contracts.  

• Served as faculty for FQHC Payment Reform Academy through NASHP; 
reviewed FQHC payment methodology for DC Medicaid, including payment 
options, considerations for cost reporting and potential measurement; 

• Conducted a national study of payment reform activity within state Medicaid 
programs for the National Association of Medicaid Directors. 

• Conducted a study of safety net ACOs for MACPAC focusing on development, 
challenges and lessons learned 

• Conducted review of CO Medicaid rate setting methodologies and 
recommending short term improvements; 

• Assisted VT and MN in the development and drafting of their successful SIM 
Model Testing Grant Applications; Assisted PA in development, drafting and 
review of their SIM Model Testing Grant Application;  

• Developed payment reform strategy for MA managed care plans; 

• Directed the MA Health Care Quality and Cost Council on its Roadmap to Cost 
Containment;  

• Developed a payment reform readiness tool for Catalyst for Payment Reform. 

• Long Term Care Services and Supports:  

• Providing support to Idaho in development of incentives to plan to improve 
LTSS quality. 

• Conducting evaluation of CMS Medicaid Innovation Accelerator Program (IAP) 
focused on LTSS technical support to states in partnership with Abt Associates. 

• Supported a plan response to LTSS One Care RFP in MA 

• Worked with a LTSS-focused Medicaid MCO to develop a strategic plan 

• Conducted a review of covered services and provider qualifications for CO to 
bring greater alignment across HCBS waivers for persons with disabilities and 
elders.  

• Supported VT’s SIM-funded DLTSS Work Group and assisting in management 
of technology projects related to the LTSS population 

• Worked with health plans to develop dual eligible managed care products, 
including developing Medicare Model of Care; responding to state 
procurements; design and implementation of care management program and 
dementia programs; and preparation for readiness review; 

• Worked with VT on development of several long term care services and supports 
grant proposals;  

• Provided strategic support to the NC Association of Long Term Care Facilities.  

• Health Care Reform:  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



22 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

• Provided technical assistance to CCIIO in support of implementation and 
operation of state-based and federal SHOP Marketplaces 

• Assisted in development of eligibility and enrollment rules for the MA Medicaid 
program based on ACA requirements; provided assistance to development of 
eligibility rules in ME and CCIIO;  

• Reviewed and made recommendations on Medicaid waiver authority and use 
for the Medicaid and CHIP Payment and Access Commission (MACPAC); 

• Worked with CO HCPF on the design, implementation and monitoring of early 
expansion coverage of Adults without Dependent Children and eligibility 
expansion for working individuals with disabilities; continuing focus on 
provision of care to former inmates, including facilitating statewide workgroup 
and studying impact of Denver recovery court program. 

• Staffed the MN Health Care Reform Task Force and its subgroups to develop 
recommendations for Care Integration & Payment Reform, Access (including 
whether to have a Basic Health Plan), Workforce Development and Public Health 
& Prevention;  

• Assisted VT in Exchange Implementation effort, including leading early 
Exchange design efforts;  

• Led initial ME planning efforts for implementation of the ACA, including 
drafting state health plan chapter detailing implementation efforts, development 
of policy presentations on key aspects of reform, including design of an 
Exchange, impact on Medicaid and related policy decisions, and impact on 
Maine’s insurance laws and related policy decisions; 

• Provided support to the OR Health Authority in the development of their 1115 
Waiver authorizing Coordinated Care Organizations. 

• Performance Measurement:  

• Facilitated ongoing statewide quality committee for Massachusetts, including 
development of quality priority recommendations 

• Assisted WA in development of a statewide core measure set 

• Assisted CO HCPF in review of and suggested improvements to its Key 
Performance Indicators (KPI) performance incentive program; 

• Developed a performance indicator dashboard for Medi-Cal. 

• Eligibility Modernization:  

• Reviewed state of VT and CO’s Medicaid eligibility and enrollment processes 
and issued report recommending improvements. 

 
1994 - 2007 EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES Boston, MA 
  Medicaid Director (2003 – 2007) 

• Responsible for overall administration and management of MassHealth program, 
with an annual budget of $8 billion and over 1 million members. 

• Led complex, matrix organization with approximately 1000 employees across 
EOHHS and oversaw cross-agency Medicaid Management Team. 

• Served as a member of the EOHHS Management Committee. 

• Set policy, programmatic and purchasing goals for MassHealth program. 

• Played key role in the development and implementation of the Massachusetts Health 
Care Reform initiative, including participating as an active member of team that 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



23 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

created Governor’s initial plan and legislation; negotiating terms of waiver 
amendment to implement HCR with CMS; implementing MassHealth expansions 
and new Commonwealth Care program; participating as a member of the 
Commonwealth Health Insurance Connector Authority Board (the Massachusetts 
Exchange); serving on cross-agency implementation team to trouble shoot across the 
reform; and serving as a spokesman about the reform effort both in Massachusetts 
and nationally. 

• Provided executive leadership to major agency initiatives including implementation 
of Health Care Reform legislation, program integrity gap analysis and organizational 
restructuring, and procurement and build of a new MMIS system. 

• Managed relationship with CMS, including negotiating terms of Medicaid state plan 
and waiver. 

• Provided testimony to state legislature on annual budget request, MassHealth related 
bills, and oversight hearings. 

• Provided executive direction in the negotiation of the Rosie D lawsuit on provision of 
services for children’s behavioral health. 

 
DIVISION OF MEDICAL ASSISTANCE 
Acting Deputy Commissioner (January 2003 – September 2003) 

• Managed staff responsible for the 1115 Demonstration Waiver and SCHIP program; 
Federal/National Policy Management; Evaluation Support; and Constituent Services 
(including legislation and press). 

• Assisted Commissioner in overall administration of the MassHealth program, 
including playing a lead role in transition planning for EOHHS reorganization. 

• Continued to serve as Director, Waiver Implementation and Administration. 
 

Director, Waiver Implementation and Administration (2001 – 2003) 

• Administered the Division’s 1115 Demonstration Waiver and SCHIP programs, 
including negotiating amendments and extensions with CMS and monitoring state 
and federal budget neutrality. 

• Recommended and implemented major eligibility policy changes – including 
Insurance Partnership program and SCHIP. 

• Led agency in development of and application for new waivers or amendments to 
current programs. 

• Led major agency policy and program initiatives. 

• Led evaluations of agency programs, including annual reports for the 1115 Waiver 
and the SCHIP program. 

• Key agency contact for advocate groups. 
 

Assistant General Counsel (1994 – 2001) 

• Provided legal counsel for an 1115 waiver and SCHIP expansion - including 
involvement in shaping of new programs, drafting legislation and regulations for 
Children's Expansion, Insurance Partnership program and HIV Expansion; 
negotiating proposed expansions with the Health Care Financing Administration; 
drafting member and employer notices; procuring vendors; and troubleshooting 
operational issues. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



24 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

• Represented Commonwealth in litigation of Medicaid actions, including oral 
argument before the Supreme Judicial Court. 

• Advised Division's Claims Review Board on provider payment issues. 

• Honors: Twice awarded Commonwealth Citation for Outstanding Performance: as 
member of the Pharmacy Program Plus team (2000); as member of the Insurance 
Partnership implementation team (1999). 
 

1993 – 1994 BOARD OF REGISTRATION IN MEDICINE Boston, MA 
  Litigation Counsel (part-time) (1993 – 1994) 
 
1993 - 1994 NATHANSON & GOLDBERG Boston, MA 
  Associate (part-time) (1993 – 1994) 
 
EDUCATION 
 
1995 – 1997 HARVARD SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH Boston, MA 
 
1990 – 1993  BOSTON COLLEGE LAW SCHOOL        Newton, MA 
 
1986 – 1990 UNION COLLEGE Schenectady, NY 
 
PUBLICATIONS 
 
Isaacson R, Shea Delaney E, and Waldman B. “Implementing the ASAM Criteria for SUD Treatment 
through Medicaid Managed Care” Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, Princeton, NJ, November 2019. 
 
Waldman B, Dyer MB, Lischko A and Boros A. “Raising the Bar: How California Can Use Purchasing 
Power and Oversight to Improve Quality in Medi-Cal Managed Care” California Health Care 
Foundation, Oakland, CA, April 2019. 
 
Waldman B, Bailit M and Dyer MB. “State Medicaid Approaches for Defining and Tracking Managed 
Care Organizations Implementation of Alternative Payment Models” Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, 
Princeton, NJ, February 2018. 

Loeffler A, Tobey R, Bailit M and Waldman B.  “Using Data to Manage Population Health Under Risk 
Based Contracts” HRSA HITEQ Center, July 12, 2017. 
 
Burns M and Waldman B. “The Role of State Medicaid Programs in Improving the Value of the Health 
Care System” National Association of Medicaid Directors, March 2016.  
 
Bailit M and Waldman B. “Safety-Net Provider ACOs: Considerations for State 
Medicaid Purchasers” Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, Princeton, NJ, January 2016. 
 
Waldman B and Bailit M. “Provider Network Development and Management and Delivery System 
Transformation in State Medicaid Programs” in Medicaid Health Care Purchasing Compendium, 
National Governors Association, January 2016. 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



25 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Bailit Health Purchasing and Abt Associates (Waldman B and Bailit M) “A Study of Safety-Net Providers 
Functioning as Accountable Care Organizations” Medicaid and CHIP Payment and Access Commission 
(MACPAC), July 28, 2015. 
 
Bailit Health Purchasing (Houy M, Waldman B and Bailit M). “Three Emerging Challenges for Sustained 
Payment and Delivery System Reform” Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, Princeton, NJ, March 2015. 
 
Hogan B, Bazinsky K and Waldman B. “Approaches to the Integration of Services for Persons with 
Intellectual and Other Developmental Disabilities (I/DD)” Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, Princeton, 
NJ, October 2014. 
 
Waldman B and Bailit M. “Considerations for State Development of Performance Measure Sets” Robert 
Wood Johnson Foundation, Princeton, NJ, September 2014. 
 
Lischko A, and Waldman B. “Understanding State Resistance to the Patient Protection and Affordable 
Care Act: Is it Really Just Politics As Usual?” Journal of Health and Biomedical Law; IX (2013): 27-60. 
 
Lind, A, Center for Health Care Strategies, Hogan B and Waldman B, Bailit Health Purchasing.  
“Challenges and Considerations for Including Medicare-Medicaid Enrollees in Health Homes,” Technical 
Assistance Brief, Integrated Care Resource Center, Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services, June 2012.  
 
Waldman B, Seifert R, and Nordahl K. “Stabilizing MassHealth Funding: Options to Break the Recurring 
Cycle of Expansion and Contraction”, Massachusetts Medicaid Policy Institute, February 2012. 
 
Waldman B and Nordahl K. “The ACAs Impact on Medicaid: Changes and Opportunities for 
MassHealth”, Massachusetts Medicaid Policy Institute, July 2011. 
 
Bailit Health Purchasing (Waldman B and Bailit M). “A Medi-Cal Performance Dashboard: Practical 
Recommendations for a Framework and Measures.” California HealthCare Foundation, Oakland, CA, 
January 2011.  
 
Waldman B. "Massachusetts Health Care Reform", Health and Human Rights Journal, April 2010. 
 
Waldman B. "Covering Children and their Parents – The Massachusetts Model and Implications for 
National Health Reform, First Focus, December 2009. 
 
Waldman B. “The State Children’s Health Insurance Program in Massachusetts: Achievements, 
Challenges and Implications for Health Reform”, Massachusetts Medicaid Policy Institute, April 2007. 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



26 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Rachel Isaacson, MPH 

 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

1/2019-present BAILIT HEALTH PURCHASING, LLC     Needham, MA 

  Consultant  

• Assisting Michigan’s and Louisiana’s implementation of payment reform through 

their Medicaid plans, including: analyzing detailed plan data and reports on their 

use of Alternative Payment Models and the provider payments related to such 

models; and drafting reporting instruments.  

• Supporting technical assistance provided to states via the Robert Wood Johnson 

Foundation’s State Health and Value Strategies (SHVS) including supporting: 

o A workgroup of ten state Medicaid agencies who are addressing the social 

determinants of heath through Medicaid managed care approaches 

o the development of an SHVS issue brief on the intersection of American 

Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria and utilization management.   

o providing technical assistance to Hawaii Medicaid regarding MCO 

requirements for social determinants of health screening and referral 

guidelines  

• Supporting the development of a population health management approach for San 

Bernardino County and the Arrowhead Regional Medical Center  

• Supported implementation of a specialty-referral network for substance use 

providers for a Medicaid ACO  

• Supported an evaluation of social determinants of health screening and 

implementation, including to identify opportunities for improvement for a Medicaid 

ACO 

• Supporting implementation of the Medicaid Accountable Entity program and 

drafted a Request for Proposal Response for a Medicaid Dental bid for 

Neighborhood Health Plan of Rhode Island 

• Supported New Hampshire’s applications for Center for Medicare and Medicaid 

Innovation grants for Maternal Opioid Misuse (MOM) and Integrated Care for Kids 

(InCK) 

• Drafted a Health Resources and Services Administration New Access Point Grant 

application 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



27 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

• Developed an evaluation tool for Michigan’s Medicaid managed care External 

Quality Review Organization re-procurement and reviewing related procurement 

documents and scoring approaches being considered by the state 

 
2018  COMMUNITY CATALYST       Boston, MA 

Policy Intern  

• Conducted a qualitative research project on patient engagement in the Financial 

Incentive Alignments. Responsibilities included writing literature reviews, 

interviewing participants, creating survey instruments, data analysis, and synthesis. 

• Responsible for policy research on health plans that serve individuals dually enrolled 

in Medicare and Medicaid. 

 
Q4 2017  HARVARD T.H. CHAN SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH  Boston, MA 

Graduate Research Assistant 

• Assisted with study design and data collection in an implementation science guided 

intervention that explored if targeted physical activity interventions decrease 

classroom disruptions for adolescents with disabilities at an alternative school in 

Worcester, MA.  

 

2015-2017 SAN DIEGO FOOD BANK      San Diego, CA 

North County Food Bank Supervisor 

• Created and maintained relations with food bank partners. Lead trainings, helped 

partners increase programmatic capacity, and performed outreach to potential new 

partners. 

• Co-chaired the North County Food Policy Council. Responsibilities included 

facilitating meetings, promoting opportunities for learning, and connecting members 

to resources to support their organizations. 

 

EDUCATION 

2017-2018 HARVARD T.H. CHAN SCHOOL OF PUBLIC HEALTH  Boston, MA  

  Master of Public Health, Social & Behavioral Sciences Concentration 

 

2010-2014 UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, SAN DIEGO    San Diego, CA   

Bachelor of Arts, Political Science  

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



28 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 

AMY M LISCHKO 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPEREINCE 
 
2016 – present  BAILIT HEALTH PURCHASING, LLC 

                          Senior Consultant 

• Assist the Rhode Island Office of the Health Insurance Commissioner with 
various projects related to their Affordability Standards and value-based 
payment reform activities. 

• Provide program evaluation support to various projects including an evaluation 
of a Community Health Team intervention for high risk patients. 

•  Support Network4Health, led by Catholic Medical Center (NH) and its partners, 
to meet state requirements as a DSRIP entity.  

• Assisted the state of Maine in its planning efforts for implementation of the 
ACA, including development of policy presentations on key aspects of reform, 
including design of an Exchange, impact on Medicaid and related policy 
decisions, and impact on Maine’s insurance laws and related policy decisions; 

 
2007- present    TUFTS UNIVERSITY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC  
    HEALTH AND COMMUNITY MEDICINE  

     Associate Professor 
• Assessed consumer preferences regarding choice of inpatient hospital for the 

Massachusetts Health Policy Commission under a grant funded by the Robert 
Wood Johnson Foundation. 

• Evaluated insurer participation in SHOP exchanges for the U.S. Department of 
Health and Human Services. 

• Evaluated risk selection in market-based state health programs under a grant 
provided by the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation, State Health Access Reform 
Evaluation program. 

• Evaluated the implementation of the Massachusetts Commonwealth Health 
Insurance Connector under a grant provided by The Commonwealth Fund. 

• Evaluated the financial impact of a fraud prevention program in Medicare for the 
Administration for Community Living in the Department of Health and Human 
Services. 

  
1993-2007 COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS  

Various Senior Management Positions 

 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



29 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
SELECTED PUBLICATIONS 
 

Research Articles 
 
Zhao, N. Koch-Weser, S. Lischko, A. and Chung, M. Translation of Nutrition Science for the 
WIC Program and the Impact of Organizational Readiness for Change on Successful 
Translation.  
Current Developments in Nutrition, Volume 3, Issue Supplement_1, June 2019. 
 
Koch-Weser, S. Chui, K., Hijaz, S., Lischko, A., Auerbach, D. Investigating Consumer Hospital 
Choice: Demand-side Levers Could Address Health Care Costs. HealthCare, January 11, 2019.  
 
Lischko, A. Whitemore, H. Stromber, S, Green, M, Cowdry, R, Gabel, J.  SHOP Talk:  An Early 
Look at the Tying Provision in States with a Federal Exchange.  Under Review. 
 
Gabel, J., Whitemore, H. Lischko, A., Stromberg, S, Green, M., An Early Look At SHOP 
Marketplaces: Low Premiums, Adequate Plan Choice In Many, But Not All States. Health 
Affairs.   
Health Aff May 2015 vol. 34 no. 5 732-740 
 
Lischko, A. Burgess, J. Knowledge of Cost Sharing and Decisions to Seek Care, American 
Journal of Managed Care, April 2010. 
 

 
EDUCATION  

 
1982  BS University of Massachusetts,  Amherst, MA  Food Science and Nutrition  

 
1988  MSPH University of Massachusetts, Amherst, MA  Health Policy and Management 

 
 

2008   D.Sc. Boston University, Boston MA  Health Services Research  

 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6

javascript:;
javascript:;


30 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

ELEANOR SHEA-DELANEY, M.P.A. 
 
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 
 
2017              BAILIT HEALTH PURCHASING, LLC    Needham, MA 

         Senior Consultant (03/2017-present) 

• Since joining Bailit Health, Ellie has used 35 years of experience in state government in  
program development and implementation, and public policy.  Her expertise is in the 
areas of Medicaid, elders, and people with disabilities, including those with behavioral 
health issues. 

•  Recent  projects and clients include: supporting the Blue Cross Blue Shield Foundation 
(BCBSF) in the development of Behavioral Health Urgent Care Centers (BHUC), by 
facilitating learning communities with grantees and evaluating outcomes; developing a 
brief for BCBSF on the barriers to developing BHUC; helping Cambridge Health Alliance 
expand their substance use disorder services network; developing a brief on the use of 
ASAM criteria in managed care for State Health and Value Strategies; supporting the 
Massachusetts DPH Bureau of Substance Abuse Services in the re-procurement of Section 
35 beds.  

•  She has worked on other projects related to a range of substance use disorder issue 
forArizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCS) regarding behavioral health 
system improvements and measures; and strategic planning for Hallmark Health 
Systems to sustain key SUD and care management programs. 

•  She has also worked on a number of projects related to long term services and supports 
and strategic planning. 

 
2008-2017     MASSACHUSETTS DEPARTMENT OF MENTAL HEALTH (DMH) Boston, MA 
                      Assistant Commissioner of Program Development and Interagency Planning,  
                      (01/2008-01/2009 and 07/2009-2017) 

• Served as a member of the agency’s executive leadership team with a budget of 
approximately $760M and 3,300 employees;  

• Facilitated interagency collaboration primarily with MassHealth, Elder Affairs and the 
Department of Public Health (DPH); projects included: the One Care Duals Initiative 
from development to implementation, Money Follows the Person, the Balancing 
Incentive Program, Aging and Disability Resource Consortia leadership team, nursing 
facility Pre-Admission Screening (PASRR) improvements, the Elder Peer Bridger’s 
initiative and other MassHealth reform  activities such as Patient Centered Medical 
Homes, ACO’s and  BH and LTSS Certified Partners;  

• Co-chaired the Elder Mental Health Collaborative consisting of many state agencies, 
advocates and providers;  

• Helped to promote interagency support for the established Certified Older Adult Peer 
Supports (COAPS) and other peers supports such as Whole Health Action 
Management (WHAM); 

• Coordinated activities involving the Massachusetts Behavioral Health Partnership 
(MBHP), such as the development of the Emergency Services Program (ESP) 
procurement and on-going monitoring of the network’s performance, including 
assessing the impact of ESP’s on ED Boarding;  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



31 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

• Served as the Commissioner’s designee to chair a legislatively mandated Special 
Commission which completed a report on enhancing in-patient access via 
improvements to MBHP’s website, some of which are now in place;  

• Led an interagency planning team that organized a summit held in October 2014 on 
older adult behavioral health needs resulting from a SAMHSA Older Adults BH Policy 
Academy; summit was attended by over 100 health aging health policy leaders and a 
report is available 

• Served as a National Association of State Mental Health Program Directors 
(NASMHPD) Financing and Medicaid Division and the Northeast Regional 
representative for the Older Persons Division;  

• Supervised the Quality Unit and staff responsible for coordinating the Statewide 
Mental Health Planning Council and preparing the Department’s annual State Plan to 
SAMHSA;  

• Oversaw a twenty-person Training and Staff Development Unit during a successful 
reorganization.  

 
2004-2009    MASSACHUSETTS EXECUTIVE OFFICE OF   Boston, MA 
        ELDER AFFAIRS 
                     Interim Secretary, (06-10/2007 and 02-07/2009) 

• Served as the executive of a $2.4B agency (including some Medicaid funds) with 
approximately 125 employees during two transition periods;  

• Key Elder Affairs’ programs and responsibilities included: Prescription Advantage, 
managing the Aging Services Access Points (Massachusetts AAA vendors) and 
Councils on Aging networks, Information and Referral, Elder Protective Services, 
managing a range of federal grants and some critical responsibilities in the 
MassHealth Office of Long Term Care;  

• Each tenure included budget priority setting, the public hearing process, developing a 
spending plan and budget implementation, along with facilitating mandatory 9C 
budget reductions in 2009;  

• Reported to the Secretary of Health and Human Services and was a member of the 
Executive Office of Health and Human Services/Medicaid Management Leadership 
team.  

 
                      Assistant Secretary for Planning and Development, (2005-2009) 

• Oversight of all aspects of Housing programs and Assisted Living Certif ication 
operations, Nutrition services, Title III/Older Americans Act oversight and planning, 
and the Senior Community Service Employment Program;  

• Directed Data, Quality and Evaluation programs 

• Oversaw the MS Aging and Disability Resource Center grant 

• Coordinated Elder Affairs' involvement in numerous CMS grant activities cross 
Health and Human Services and development projects with the University of 
Massachusetts Medical School;  

• Helped to coordinate Massachusetts Rebalancing Long Term Care (LTC) activities 
related to ongoing efforts with the National Governors Association LTC Policy 
Academy and develop specific features of Massachusetts’ cross-Secretariat 
Community First policy and Olmstead Plan.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



32 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
 
EDUCATION 
 
KENNEDY SCHOOL, HARVARD UNIVERSITY       Boston, MA 

Tier IV Executive Training Program 
 
NORTHEASTERN UNIVERSITY      Boston, MA  
Master of Public Administration 
 
BOSTON COLLEGE        Boston, MA  
Bachelor of Arts, Psychology, Magna Cum Laude  
Scholar of the College 

 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



33 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

 
Attachment B – Budget  
 

Task Hours  

 Beth Waldman, Amy 
Lischko and Ellie 

Shea Delaney 
$273 

Rachel Isaacson 
 

$128 

Project Management (assumes bi-weekly 
check in calls with BCDHS through June 
2020, and then quarterly calls) 

30 15 

Kick off meetings  (assumes 4, one hour 
meetings)  

 

12 4 

Develop two evaluation plans  30 30 

Develop data collection approach  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ensure the selected program and outcome 

indicators are being measured and reported 

upon.ensure the selected program and outcome 

indicators are being measured and reported 

upon. ensure the selected program and 

outcome indicators are being measured and 

reported upon. 

20 20 

Share draft plan and present each to 
BCDHS, grantees and Workgroup members 

20 20 

Finalize evaluation and monitoring plan 
including reporting formats 

10 20 

Total Hours – (April – June 2020) 124 hours @ 
$273/hour = $33,852 

109 hours @ $128/hour = 
$13,952 

Travel (assumes 2 trips each to Cape for 4 
individuals)  = $1000 

  

Total Budget ($48,804 + $1000) = $48,804   

Collation of data for both programs with 
technical support, as needed   

20 38 

Submit quarterly summary of activities and 
progress  for both programs to BCDHS.  

8 20 

Submit program monitoring evaluation and 
monitoring annual report (FY21 and FY22).   

8 20 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6



34 
 

 ATTACHMENT A  
BAILT CONTRACT 

 
 

Total – (July 2020 – August 2021; July 2021- 
August 2022) (no travel assumed; cost 
spread across years 2 and 3) = $19,812 
($9,906/year) 

36 hours @ 
$273/hour = $9,828 

78 hours @ $128/hour = 
$9,984 

 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: E8FC0194-8A44-4489-9A4D-4167AE72E4A6


	20200415_Agenda_BRC_Regular Meeting
	20200415_Item 5a_Miuntes_BRC_20200408_Regular
	20200415_Item 6c_Travel Report_CCCE_NOAA_Social Coast Conference_Hulst
	20200415_Item 8a_Appointment_BRC_Dennis Health Agent_O'Brien
	20200415_Item 8b_Agreement_HS_Balit_Dennis Programs Subgrantee
	20200415_Item 8b_Agreement_HS_Balit_Dennis Programs Subgrantee_1
	Summary
	Attestation_20200415_8b

	20200415_Item 8c_Appointments_CCC_Bergstrom
	20200415_Item 8c_Appointments_CCC_Bergstrom
	20200415_Item 8cde_Appointments_CCC_Bergstrom, Harris, & Weeden
	20200415_Item 8c_Appointments_CCC_Bergstrom


	20200415_Item 8d_Appointments_CCC_Harris
	20200415_Item 8cde_Appointments_CCC_Bergstrom, Harris, & Weeden
	20200415_Item 8d_Appointments_CCC_Harris

	20200415_Item 8e_Appointments_CCC_Weeden
	20200415_Item 8cde_Appointments_CCC_Bergstrom, Harris, & Weeden
	20200415_Item 8e_Appointments_CCC_Weeden

	20200415_Item 8f_BC_Solect 1st District Court Solar Project
	20200415_Item 8g_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect 1st District Court Lease
	20200415_Item 8g_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect 1st District Court Lease
	20200415_Item 8g_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect 1st District Court Lease
	20200415_Item 8g_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect 1st District Court Lease


	Attestation_20200415_Item 8g_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect 1st District Court Lease
	Template_Attestation Drafts_BRC_Regular Meeting_COVID-19_2
	20200415_Item 8g_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect 1st District Court Lease
	20200415_Item 8g_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect 1st District Court Lease
	Standalone Ground Lease_Solect First District Courthouse_LA tem 4.10



	20200415_Item 8h_Agreement_BC_Solect_County Lab Solar Project
	BARNSTABLE COUNTY LAB IGA _4.10
	Lab Building Canopy PPA - 4.10

	20200415_Item 8i_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect County Lab Building
	20200415_Item 8i_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect County Lab Building
	20200415_Item 8i_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect County Lab Building
	20200415_Item 8i_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect County Lab Building


	Attestation_0200415_Item 8i
	Template_Attestation Drafts_BRC_Regular Meeting_COVID-19_2
	20200415_Item 8i_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect County Lab Building
	20200415_Item 8i_Proposed Ordinance_20-xx_Solect County Lab Building
	Lab Building Barnstable County Canopy Lease 4.10



	20200415_Item_8b_Agreement_HS_Balit_Dennis_Programs_Subgrantee
	65921485_2862_fy20_od2a_bailit_agreement_partially_executed
	68686099_bailit_agreement_attachment_a




